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Schedule of Principal Properties

HEILIE S DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
AL K3 Bl
UEL] 54 e RAH RERERRK
A VER LS Expected  Group'sInterest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(Fik) (FiK) (FK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
Ul BETHEE KRR 30912017 100.00% 19,553 127,59 - RisiCP
U-City University Town, Shapingba District, Chongging, PRC
e EETLHEA S 30112017 50.00% 74529 20935 - RiSiCP
Bamboo Grove Dazhulin Town, New North District, Chongging, PRC
#%4 BRLRHRER AT 311272021 100.00% 62,667 24925 191,426 RiiCP

Hill Top's Garden 3 Km South of Government, Beibei New Urban Area, Chongging, PRC

kv BRI DTRRN AR 11102021 100.00% 29468 127529 434912 RIS/CP
La Defense Xiyong Cluster, Shapingba District, Chongging, PRC

Bkl BRMITIELE 311202019 100.00% 26,058 67853 119,572 RISI0ICP
Chunsen Land Beibin Road, Jiangbei District, Chongging, PRC

Rt K EEMRREAT 311212020 100.00% 29,105 - 192,745 RISICP
Times Paradise Walk ~ Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging, PRC

% TR K EBIT 450 k 1312017 100.00% 129,03 71873 - RISICP
Hometown 450 Meters West of Crystal Town, Xinpaifang, Chongging, PRC

e EEBRLR 15/4/2020 51.00% 30,967 177,597 91,169 RISIOICP
Lst Avenue Guanyingiao, Jiangbei District, Chongging, PRC

HEDR BB SRR RN 300612017 100.00% - 143,039 - RISICP
Keyuan Rd. Plot Keyuan 4th Road, JiuLongPo District, Chongging, PRC

(%t BEBHE 311202017 100.00% - 108850 - RIS/CP

For Colourful Life Guanyingiao, Jiangbei District, Chongging, PRC

gl ERMLAREREHR 31122021 100.00% - - 59,704 RISICP
Peace Hill County Lijia Town, New North District, Chongging, PRC

K3 EFEANE 30/6/2020 50.00% - 505,434 377,925 RISICP
Glory Villa Dazhu Town, New North District, Chongging, PRC
ILHR BRI EERE 311202022 100.00% 165,823 331,532 1,277,696 RISICP

Longfor Ideal City Lijia Town, New North District, Chongging, PRC

e BEMLFE XA G FRN B 3111202020 70.00% - - 4120 RSICP
Zhaomushan Plot G Zone of Dazhulin Section, New Liangjiang District, Chongging, PRC

R fEE S W 0. WAE CP: {FHLY
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HELIE I DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
HHER ‘ B Lk Bl
THM UEL] 54 HERERR BAHR REETR
A VER LS Expected  Group'sInterest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(k) (Fk) (F7k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BRI AR 300612022 70.00% - - 768,060 RsiCP
Lijia II Plot Lijia, New Liangjiang District, Chongging, PRC
BT BERILFE KA G N E 31122021 70.00% - - 124354 RISICP
Zhaomushan Plot I1 G Zone of Dazhulin Section, New Liangjiang District, Chongging, PRC
BEmA ERTWILHERERE LR 300612019 100.00% - - 567450 Rsicp
Lijia III Plot Lijia Core Business District, New Liangjiang District, Chongging, PRC
RRus BRIRER 300612019 60.00% - - 4171 Rsicp
Caijia Plot Caijia, Beibei New Urban Area, Chongging, PRC
BEAT Chongging Subtotal 567,193 1,923,157 5,035,427
LN AT B R 31122021 100.00% 184930 50,707 - Rsicp
Times Paradise Walk ~ Xibuyuanqu, Gaoxin District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC
MEE AT AL A AL SR A 31122021 100.00% 12,784 9572 31,026 Rsicp
Jade Town Datian Village, Qingchengshan Town, Dujiangyan, Chengdu, Sichuan

Province, PRC

i3 W AR 15 311212018 100.00% 7901 112,644 - RISICP
Century Peak View No.I Tianfu Road Central, Gaoxin District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province

PRC
JEE AT A K RS A A 31122017 5L00% - 316,601 - RSICP
Jasper Sky Zhonghe Street, Jinsong Community, Tianfu Boulevard,Gaoxin District,

Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC

=Tk ERBEATEELIL 31122019 50.00% - 345914 - Rsicp
Poetic Life Jinfeng Road, Daimian Street, Longquanyi District, Chengdu, Sichuan

Province, PRC

Ll ABTHERERAEEN 300612019 100.00% 42819 - 208260 Rsicp
Peace Hill County Baiyun Village, Huayuan Town, Xinjin County, Chengdu, Sichuan Province,

PRC
FLAEA AT R ERAE 3111212020 100.00% - 287,683 215,003 RISICP
Yurensi Rd Plot Jinquan Street, Jinniu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC
(@0 STEREMNGEERERAE i 6H - LR 3062021 49.00% - 2013% 594736 RISICP
Huazhao Plot Group 4, Huazhao Village, Group 5,6 Chadianzi Village, Yinmenkou Street

Office, Jinniu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC

S AT ARG EEERH 300612019 60.00% - - 321,685 RISICP
Dafeng Plot Zhaojia Village, Dafeng Road, Xindu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province,
PRC
R fF%E NENGES 0 WAE CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

P E ) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

i ALHj TARIES B
ik UELE £ R R REmHK RERETR

A VER LS Expected  Group's Interest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under

Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(B0 (BRK
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)

=RiHENS BIE=2% 31120018 100.00% - - 142,44 Ris(CP
Sansheng Str. Plot Sansheng County,Jinjiang District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC

HADNGT Chengdu Subtotal 248494 1,775,474 1,518,954
RoEE FERLINHEAR A 3111212019 60.00% 775 118626 49,628 RISICP

Great Wall Chinoiserie ~ Simatai Village, Gubeikou, Miyun, Beijing, PRC

FiRRE EEECE S 2822017 50.00% 10,941 52,861 - RISICP
Jade Mansion Fengtai Road, Fengtai District, Beijing, PRC
BRiR ERMEFEDNE 31122017 34.00% 2,809 65,547 - RISIO/CP
Rose and Gingko Shahe Town, Changping District, Beijing, PRC

Mansion
YnEg ERTYARRRR 311212018 16.50% - 55,259 - RISIOICP

Fengtai Kandan Plot ~ Fanjia Village, FengTai District, Beijing, PRC

MEETLA MRS EHE 3111212019 17.00% - 130,779 - RISICP
Mentougou Shilong St District, Mentougou District, Beijing, PRC

Newtown Plot

b | HHEREER 311202017 50.00% 147 4,008 - RISICP
Emerald Legend Dongba § District, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

AT YNl 311202017 25.00% - 17,380 - RISICP
Taipingzhuang plot Taipingzhuang Village, Haidian, Beijing, PRC

KER KERRGE 30/412018 50.00% - 188,206 - RISICP

Daxing Yinghai plot  Yinghai Town, Daxing District, Beijing, PRC

(e ] e 31122019 20.00% - 236,163 - RISICP
Shunyi Newtown Plot ~ Nanfaxin Town, Shunyi District, Beijing, PRC

iRl IR A 30912017 2600% - 109,238 - RiCP
Shunyi Renhe Plot Renhe Town, Shunyi District, Beijing, PRC

L b HRERE 31/12/200 3400% - 87,194 106,180 RISICP
South Dongba Plot Dongba, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

FEH TR RGN 31122018 100.00% - - 161,806 RCP
Hou Sha Yu Baixinzhuang, Houshayu Town, Shunyi District, Beijing, PRC
RIEMA TrERETENRRRHR 311212018 100.00% - - 57,164 RISIO/CP
Huanbaoyuan Plot Zhongguancun Environmental Protection Park, Haidian District, Beijing,
PRC
R fEE NENES o MAZE CP: fFHily
Residential Shopping Office Car Park

4E #t Annual Repore 2016




Schedule of Principal Properties

B Bk 4) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
L ‘ AR/ Bl
LHH T H AR &R AR RARERR
A T Expected  Group'sInterest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(F4%) (k) (k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
RRIRE LR 301512020 25.00% - 76,387 130915 RISICP
The Orient Original Sunhe County, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC
(Sunhe II)
RS R L EREH (B4 325 301112019 50.00% - - 23783 sicp
Changyang Plot Changyang Town (B4, $32), Fangshan District, Beijing, PRC
NGt Beijing Subtotal 14672 1,179,668 743,528
HiREEAC WREEATIAF BRI AS 01 5 31/12/200 100.00% 80,546 173,321 6,205,307 RiiCP
Banyan Bay A/C No.601 Binhai East Road, Mouping District,Yantai, Shandong Province,
PRC
HikiED WREEATA TR 3111212020 100.00% - - 696,147 RiSICP
Banyan Bay B Binhai East Road, Mouping District, Yantai, Shandong Province, PRC
B it Yantsi Subtotal 80,546 173321 6,991,454
[[RIERw 10 INLHRA B R RS 30062017 100.00% - 108,697 - RISICP

Songjiang Newtown Meijiabang Road North Guyang Road, Songjiang District, Shanghai, PRC

BB FEERITERLLE 311212018 100.00% - 144,674 88498 RISICP
Jiading Jianggiao Plot  Northern Community, Jianggiao Town, Jiading District, Shanghai, PRC

LGN LR T e 31120017 100.00% 10,847 530371 - RISIO/CP
Honggiao Paradise Walk  Shenchang Road, Minghang District, Shanghai, PRC

Xt LR 251812017 100.00% 2949 93,600 - RISI0/CP
North Paradise Walk ~ Gucun Town, Baoshan District, Shanghai, PRC

s K En 31122019 50.00% - - 132,265 sicp
Magiao Town Plot Parcel P1, 332 Road, Magiao Town, Shanghai, PRC

i IR 7 A S 3 S B e 3111212019 100.00% - - 337,054 sloicp

Zhuangiao Town Plot  The junction between Huming Road and Jianchuan Road, Zhuangiao Town,
Minghang District, Shanghai, PRC

BRI LT TERR A E 31122019 63.00% - - 253870 sioicp
Kunxiu Lake Plot Western Hi-Tech Park, Songjiang Industrial Zone, Shanghai, PRC
IR Shanghai Subtotal 33,79 400,008 811,687
R fF%E NENGES 0 WAE CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

BB ) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
i AL K3 Bl
LHH T H AR e T BRI
A VER LS Expected  Group's Interest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
Bk ERR CERR)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
HRAR B 5 7 T 30/5/2020 100.00% 2115 321,980 340,718 RISICP
Chianti Chanhe Road West, Xi'an, Shanxi Province, PRC
i sks b BRI AR AU TR A 3011112018 100.00% - 97,098 138,402 RISICP

Aerospace Town B Plot  Southeast of the junction between Hangchuang Road and Shenzhousi Road,

Aerospace, Changan District, Xi'an, Shanxi Province, PRC

B (RER) i3 a4 3011112018 100.00% 7,204 131,922 9450 RISICP
Chanba Plot Chanba Ecological Area, Xi'an, Shanxi Province, PRC
WR% (RFR) BT 8 1 % T 7 A T AT 300912018 100.00% - - 347 RISICP
Chang'an Wonder Furong Road West, Qujiang New District, Xi'an, Shanxi Province, PRC
BNt Xian Subtotal 9319 551,200 524007
Bl HESE TN P 31122019 100.00% - - 84923 RISICP
Rose and Ginkgo Valley  Zhenze Road, Taikeyuan, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC
hE THBESHRL R L ESER 311212021 100.00% 5513 9,480 112,159 RISICP
Jiu Shu Xilu Road, Yangshan Town, Huishan District, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province,

PRC
JEl IHH B AR TR 311202021 100.00% 10,645 98,436 205,853 RISICP
Quiet tale Yicheng Road, Yixing, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC
%% BRGS0 L B st 311212020 100.00% 49,613 - 90,501 RISICP

Mountain Top Garden  Xihu Road Central, Xishan District, Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, PRC

it Wi Subtotal 65,771 167916 493,436

Bl THEFNTRERLER =4 31122018 100.00% 39,872 - 57,807 RIS/CP
Sunshine City Sanxin Road, Tianning District, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

(5 THE MR L3 301612018 100.00% 09,988 295,577 - RISICP

Hongzhuang Project Qinye Road South, Zhonglou District, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Al IHEFAHREERA 1208 31122018 100.00% 64303 - 138931 RISICP
Dongjing 120 Project  Dongjing 120 Road, Tianning District, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

MG Changzhou Subtotal 174,163 255,577 196,828
R fFE NENGES o WAE CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

B W38 a2) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
HHRH ‘ AR/ B
THM UEL] 54 HERERR AR RARERR
A T Expected  Group'sInterest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(k) (Fk) (F7k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
Bt KB HABA TR 3111202020 SLO0% 30017 12699 52,544 RISO/CP
Times paradise walk Shishan Street, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
Bl FRBMIEETRRLL TR 311202017 50.00% - 216570 - RiiCP
Longfor Mansion Northern of green plot in Yushan Road and Eastern of green plot in

Zhujiang Road, Shishan Street, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

PRC
BN Suzhou Subtotal 30,17 343,565 52,544
Rl gEEEETILERERE 311202018 100.00% 16,834 3993 - RISICP

Rose and Ginkgo Villa I Shiyuan Street, Shenbei New District, Shenyang, Lizoning Province, PRC

BRIl EEERRTILILREREY 3111202018 100.00% 21,044 10,574 185832 RiSICP
Rose and Ginkgo Villa Il Shiyuan Street, Shenbei New District, Shenyang, Liaoning Province, PRC

ARES RELLHERDH 0% 311212018 100.00% 32283 - 398432 RiiCP
Chianti No.46 Pufeng Road, Shenbei New District, Shenyang, Liaoning Province,

PRC
it RERLLHERDH 0% 300612018 100.00% 21,802 63,638 L1 RISICP
Longfor Hometown No.46 Pufeng Road, Shenbei New District, Shenyang, Liaoning Province,

PRC
L BB 311212019 100.00% - 164001 2395 RiCP
Jinhai Road plot Jinhai Road, Tiexi New District, Shenyang, Liaoning Province, PRC
feF EEHRRIATEE AN 31102018 100.00% - - 58993 RiiCP
Pittosporum Tobira Zhonggong Street, Tiexi District, Shenyang, Lioning Province, PRC
E40 EEBEHTARER SR 3111202016 100.00% 21,850 18438 - RISICP
Fairy Castle Ceramics City North, Dadong District, Shenyang, Lizoning Province, PRC
JEEONE BEREHTATERASRAT A 3111012019 100.00% 19613 198192 - RISICP
Tangning One Changbai Island, Heping District, Shenyang, Lisoning Province, PRC
FILBY TR s T 311012019 60.00% - 132428 54938 RISICP

Chunjiang Central No.5A, Shiji Road, Hunnan District, Shenyang Liaoning Province, PRC
(Shiji Rd. Plot)

e BT R E 311272021 100.00% - - 318,896 RISICP
Shenxin Plot Honghu First Street, Economic and Technological Development Zone,

Shenyang, Lisoning Province, PRC

N Shenyang Subtotal 133,426 627,194 1,482,039
R fEE NENGES 0 WAE CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

b W% 42) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
i ALHj TARIES B
THM UEL] 54 HERERRH RAH RERERRK
A VER LS Expected  Group's Interest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(k) (k) (k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
H AT B R 105 3111212019 100.00% 10,896 151,216 40458 RISICP
Rose & Gingko Coast ~ No.10 Yuanshuang Road, Chengyang District, Qingdao, Shandong Province,
PRC
Bt I 7 B R 6 30312020 100.00% 10625 71391 638 RiSICP

Rose & Gingko Coast F Shuangyuan Road, Chengyang District, Qingdao, Shandong Province, PRC

Rl WA BT R K-SR 1162017 100.00% 5031 1,073 - RISICP
Original Kedayihaoxian, Qingdao, Shandong Province, PRC
fEli LR B 5 O o 7 B O AL 31122018 100.00% 1,565 61,721 9,704 RISICP

Peace Hill County Zhongcun Community, Qingwei Road East Chengyang District, Qingdao,
Shandong Province, PRC

HmEE WA E R BRI T SRR A 31122019 100.00% 12442 110,594 041 RiSICP
Anle Xiazhuang Street, Chengyang District, Qingdao, Shandong Province, PRC
BB SR BT L B B g6 5 31122019 5.10% - 244 542,125 RiiCP
Chunjiang Central No.66, Siliu South Road, Shibei District, Qingdao, Shandong Province,

(Haijing Plot) PRC
firkf i TR AT B AR - (TR 311212018 100.00% - 51312 713 RISICP
Zhongeun IT Plot Zhongcun Community, Qingwei Road East Chengyang District, Qingdao,

Shandong Province, PRC

EL Qingdao Subtotal 40559 871,934 706,395
TYHERL U B M A B T e 30062018 100.00% - 03,364 - RISICP

Rose and Ginkgo Town  Hai'da South Road, EDZ, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC

AR 1 ML E 150812019 100.00% 8130 43768 - RISIO/CP
Chunjiang Central Binjiang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC

L L] Rl EllleE A e 300612017 40.00% - 139,101 - RICP
Xingyi Plot Xingyi Village, Beigan Street Road, Xiaoshan District, Zhejiang Province,

PRC
2% WA B M AL e 311202017 10.00% - 303,151 - RISICP
'The Honor of City Zhenning Road, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC
=g A = B A 31122017 30.00% - 123,589 - RISICP
West Lake Sandun Plot ~ Jialai Road, Sandun Town, Xihu District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province,

PRC
RHAE RERHQER  HERH S WERIOE LETHE 15/11/2017 100.00% - 241,364 - RISICP

Central Courtyard East to planned Jianhua Road, South to planned Second Road, West
to Hiptong Branch Road, North to Dingshi Road, Jianggan District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC

R: BB SENEES 0 HnE CP: (FHLY
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

iikig B I8 DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
HHER ‘ B Lk B
THM UEL] 54 HERERR BAHR REETR
A T Expected  Group'sInterest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(k) (Fk) (F7k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
SR HERBAE-H A WENBEREDL  KERTIH 3122018 100.00% - 153,191 - RiSICP
Xingyi II Plot East to planned Vertical First Road, South and West to Hangzhou Mail

Processing Centre, North to Jianshesi Road, Jianggan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, PRC

R AlETLECRRELA 0L REFES HERHBH - B 300612019 100.00% - 116,640 - RSICP
EH-5 o LERRIS
Xingyi 111 Plot East to Qingnian Road, South to planned BS Road, West to Vertical

First Road, North to Jianshesi Road, A-29 Plot, Xinyi Area, Shibei Unit,
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC

[lIEdg BB BEHERNER MR RRIRUL - LT 3111202018 55.00% - - 185,569 RiSICP
Beigandong Plot East of Yinhe Experimental Primary School, North of Huancheng North

Road, South of Beitang River, Beigan Street, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, PRC

e BLERELE REARAE GENEH BRACH XER 510200 26.00% - - 153,058 RISICP
PN
Xianghu Plot East o Fengqing Road, South to Xiangxi Road, West to Jingshan Road,

North to Caihong Road, Chenqu Plot, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, PRC

RlEDY RERYS  BESRBAIERIAGHERY BERHEAE & 300612019 35.00% - - 98172 RISICP
BN
Changmu Plot East to Yingfeng Road, South to Greenbelt and Drainage facilities land

of Jinji Road, West to Benjing Avenue, North to Planned Branch Road,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC

juevitib] REREE wE=ER WAL LEEGE 311212019 25.00% - - 159,242 RiiCP
Shijicheng Plot East to Qinfeng Port, South to Sanyi Road, West to Green Plot, North to
Huahe Street, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC

T RELES  HR%0% HERs% - L5 AR 311212019 100.00% - - 340,530 $/0/CP
W. Lake Jiangcun Plot  East to Huajiang Road, South to Shuanglong Road, West to Fengshu Road,
North to Yuhangtang Road, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC

MG Hangzhou Subtotal 8,130 1,204,168 936,571
(ks EHERRI SR AR 3111202019 100.00% - - 90407 Rsicp
Paradise Seasons Zhangying Village, Luju Town, Jiangchuan County, Yuxi, Yunnan Province,
PRC
B4 Yuxi Subtotal - - 790407
R fEE NENGES 0 WAE CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

PREE ¥ ) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
i ALHj TARIES B
THM UEL] 54 HERERRH REmHK RERETR
A VER LS Expected  Group's Interest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
Bk ERR CERR)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
i HERKEHERER 30062017 100.00% 817 3153 - RisiCP
Crystal Town Donggang District, Dalian, Liaoning Province, PRC
i BEE R TR 30102018 100.00% 43,288 5134 - Rsicp
Rose and Ginkgo Villa  Honggi Street, Ganjingzi District, Dalian, Liaoning Province, PRC
R 2 A KE Rk TEEL N 3111202020 50.00% - - 669,724 RISICP
Longhe II Xiaonan Village, Shuishiying Street, Dalian, Liaoning Province, PRC
TR TR AT RE LR 301012018 100.00% - 154965 RISICP

Gaoxinyuanqu Plot Qixian East Road, High-technology Industrial Park, Dalian, Liaoning
Province, PRC

KB Dalian Subtotal 72,039 209,461 669,724
ERigy IR petes AT 31122018 100.00% - - 149735 RISICP
Chianti Longshan Town, Cixi, Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, PRC
et s WL ER T RERRER L 65 311202018 100.00% 19,517 258,180 - RISICP
Rose and Ginkgo Coast ~ No.68 Chunxiaozhonggi Road, Beilun District, Ningbo, Zhejiang Province,

PRC
Lok BHERTEEERER 201212018 20.00% - 44,687 - RISICP

Yinzhou Newtown Plot ~ Caijaicao Village, Zhonghe Street, Yinzhou District, Ningbo, Zhejiang
Province, PRC

Wk EWTHMNEE kTR 20122018 100.00% - - 115,656 RISICP
Panhuo II Plot Caoai Village, Panhuo Street, Yinzhou District, Ningbo, Zhejiang Province,

PRC
EARMA BB ARE R 31122018 51.00% - - 54,648 RISICP

Zhonggongmiao Plot  Huidengsi Village, Zhonggongmiao Street, Yinzhou District, Ningbo,
Zhejiang Province, PRC

UNNb BNEEAREEART 300612019 100.00% - - 88126 RISICP
Zhonggongmiao II plot  Penzha Village, Zhonggongmiao Street, Yinzhou District, Ningbo, Zhejiang
Province, PRC

Shit Ningbo Subtotal 19517 302,867 406,165
R: i€ NEES 0: WAE CP: {FHiY
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

PREE ¥ ) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
HHRH ‘ AR/ B
THM UEL] 54 HERERR BAHR REETR
A T Expected  Group'sInterest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(k) (Fk) (F7k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
EL b REREMHELEENS 2011112018 100.00% 8115 1,844 134,645 RISICP
Island in the City Guankou Town, Jimei District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC
Rl B B S b R 3111202019 5L00% - 209442 16733 Rsicp
Chunjiang Land Northeast of Guanxin Road and Hangjin Road intersection, Jimei District,

Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC

FITRR BT R B A S SR U 311202019 49.00% 14647 98,945 27,057 RISICP
Chunjiang Central Xinglin N Road and Xingjin Road inersection, Jimei District, Xiamen,

Fujian Province, PRC

ESIL ] 1103 SR LA B BB SR R L 3111202019 5L00% - - 120000 Rsicp
Jimei 1T Plot Northwest of Jinghu North Road and Fengquan Middle Road Intersection,

11-03 Machinery Industrial Zone, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC

AT BT 13-128 F 1 2B LRI B XM 311202019 SLO0% - - 192,820 RiiCP
Xiang'An Plot Southwest of Wangdeng North Road and Xindian Road, 13-12B area,

Xiang'an District, Xiamen, Fujian Province, PRC

MGt Xiamen Subtotal 2,762 310,231 641,735

E53) RRERNHTINER 31/12/2020 100.00% 50,018 285,203 944,665 RISICP

Ascension to the Throne  Chidian, Jinjiang, Quanzhou, Fujian Province, PRC

AN Quanzhou Subtotal 50,018 285,003 944,665
TEFE WHARYTERERER 555 % 311212019 100.00% 49,987 166,011 425018 RISICP
Wang Cheng Gushan, Wangcheng District, Changsha, Hunan Province, PRC
RlbNit Changsha Subtotal 49,987 166,011 425018
B HETRER R 31122018 100.00% 1232 37,244 72840 RiiCP
MingJing Tai Huaiyin District Road, Ji'nan Qingyuan City, Shandong Province, PRC
FIBR BRERETLIR > SRR 31122019 SLO0% - 408,554 480965 RiiCP
Chunjiang Central East of Hancang River, West of Ring Expressway, Licheng District, Ji' nan,

(Licheng Plot) Shandong Province, PRC
L BRERIL M ERA A1 30112020 30.00% - 68,640 515837 RiiCP
Hancang Plot Hancangliu Village, Baoshan Street Office, Licheng District, Ji" nan,

Shandong Province, PRC

s ] BRER K BEGTH AT - il /1112019 SL00% - - 76331 RISICP
Tangye Plot Wenyuan Street, West of Tangye West Road, Tangye Area, Licheng

District, Ji" nan, Shandong Province, PRC

R fEE S W o WAE CP: {FHY;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

P E ) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

i AL K3 Bl
LHH T H AR e T BRI
A VER LS Expected  Group's Interest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under

Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(B0 (BRK
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)

aailEri s VRS R ) - 6L B 26/5/2018 20.00% - 277,687 -

Changheyuan Plot Qingyuan Road South, Huaiyin District, Lashanhe West Road East, Ji'nan,
Shandong Province, PRC

HERMH MBERAERE A REEREEEMN 311122019 100.00% - - 91,863
Huaiyin District Plot ~~ South of Zhangzhuang Road, Huaiyin District, West of Low-costing

Housing Project of Baligiao, Ji'nan, Shandong Province, PRC

il Suzhou Subtotal 12321 792,125 1437836

FILAH G SN 30112018 80.02% 24276 24,637 - RiSiCP
Chunjiang Land Daliang Street, Shunde District, Foshan, Guandong Province, PRC

bt Foshan Subtotal 21276 4G -

KRF#E BME M B R E5E4 i 311212018 50.00% 18,045 131,148 150,699 RISICP
Longfor Mansion Huamei Daity Co, Huangyun Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, PRC

A M 26 AEHR 31122019 50.00% - - 94630 RiSICP
Baiyun New Town Plot ~ Baiyun Newtown, Baiyun District, Guangzhou, PRC

REELE BEHITASE B B  ZUBEDLR 311212019 50.00% - - 26993 RISICP
Dpt. Zone Plot South of Kaiyuan Road, East of Yunfeng Road, Development Zone,

Guangzhou, PRC

TEM Nt Guangzhou Subtotal 18,045 131,148 515,052
RIER HRSRRREY 3111212019 100.00% 11,430 130317 163974 RISI0/CP

Chunjiang Center Jianning Road, Gulou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

FIBR TERRIEER 5% 31122019 SLO0% - 338,056 92 Rsicp
Chunjiang Central Xinting Road, Dongshan Street, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province, PRC

ESIEE] TEERRCELN - SR RERRAE  BERBE 110208 3400% - - 78079 Rsicp
B WERMERS > LS
Jiangning 11 East to Longmian Avenue, South to Planned Road, West to Fenggi East

Road, North to Gezhi Road, West of Longmian Avenue, South of Gezhi
Road Plor, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

feet5h) WRREHRERANS HEABANS BESRERNEE 20062019 100.00% - - 90626 SICP
TERERIAL -

Jianning Road Plot East to Nanjing Yuqiao Market, South to Jingiao Market, West to
Warehouse in Jingiao, North to Shanghai-Nanjing inter-city high-speed
railway, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, PRC

BN Nanjing Subtotal 11430 468,373 365,606
R fEE NENES O MWAE Cp: {7H5
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

PREE ¥ ) DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
HHRH A% B Lk B
canik] UEL] 54 HERERR BAHR REETR
A VER LS Expected  Group'sInterest ~ Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date in the Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(k) (Fk) (F7k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
Lt PRI S i 31120018 3400% - 19,559 179937 RISICP
Longfor Mansion Southwest of Junction of Tongyan Road and Yaxin Road, Tianjin Haihe

Education Park, Tianjin, PRC

EHENR Rk RS A 20 300612019 100.00% - - 175,881 RISICP

Jinnan District Plot Junction of Nanhuai Road and Zijiang Road, Xianshugu Town, Jinnan
District, Tianjin, PRC

RNt Tianin Subtotal - 19,559 355,818
Rabs RETRORYERYN 3151021 60.00% - - 886,304 RISICP
Changfeng Plot Changfeng Village, Changfeng Street, Qiaokou District, Wuhan, PRC
RN Wuhan Subtotal - - 886,304
it TOTAL 1,686,501 12,402,797 26931420
R fEE NENGES 0 WAE CP: {FHY;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

BEME INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BRLIA i
L il 2 REmK MR EuH
HAAH BRI Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date inthe Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(BiK) (BiK) (k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BRLAAE EETTLELA GG o3 R 10000% 146262 - - $
North Paradise Walk No.6 & No.8 Beichengtianjie, Jiangbei District, Chongging, PRC In operation
TRER ERTHERLGERY— ERE 10000% 9413 - - s
Fairy Castle Yusongizhilu Road, Longshan Street, Yubei District, Chongging, PRC In operation
TERBN BRI ARG 08 R 10000% 360 - - s
Crystal Castle No.162 Xinnan Road, Renhe Town, Beibuxin District, Chongging, PRC In operation
BERSLY B RKBRETILG 455 R 10000% 111654 - - S
West Paradise Walk No48 Zhujiang Road, Yangjiaping, Jiulongpo District, Chongging, In operation
PRC
TN R1E R A SR 1655 R 10000% 29,104 - - S
MOCo No.168 Xinnan Road, Renhe Town, Beibuxin District, Chongging, PRC In operation
(1 Gilvg BRI % 100.00% 218,569 - - S
Times Paradise Walk I Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging, PRC In operation
1o 1 1 e R 10000% 5115 - - S
Times Paradise Walk 11 Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging, PRC In operation
(3 Gilodar 1 Gl LR 10000% 122758 - - S
Times Paradise Walk III Daping, Yuzhong District, Chongging, PRC In operation
BRUAREH ERTPHAESN R 10000% 3 - - S
U-Ciey I University City, Shapingba District, Chongging, PRC In operation
ERURKE- ERTYRRERER 30512017 10000% - 102,365 - $
U-Ciey II University City, Shapingba District, Chongging, PRC
EEERENE TRHLLEARH R 10000% 54618 - - s
Chunsen Starry Street Chenjiaguan, Jiangbei District, Chongging, PRC In operation
EERERY EETILLEXRS 11512017 10000% - 9536 - S
Hometown Paradise Walk Dashiba, Jiangbei District, Chongging, PRC
ERWILHR EENIAHERER 11122020 100.00% - - 36015 $
Longfor Ideal City Lijia Town, New North District, Chongging, PRC
RA=T WIERAT R 8 Rl 100.00% 306 - - $
Theee Thousands Mall Section 2, Ethuan Road East Chengdu, Sichuan In operation
Province, PRC
A Mg AT A4 ELE ERE 10000% 2155% - - s
North Paradise Walk Wukuaishi, Jinniu District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC In operation
R fEE SENEES 0 HEnE Cp: fFE
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

B )

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

: VKIS i
LT il 2 REmK
Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Remaining Unsold Development Planning

(Fik) (Fik) (Fik)

AR EuH
WH 4% TRt

Project Location

Group's Interest

Expected

Completion Date in the Project

(Sqm) (Sqm)

(Sqm)

AR RN MR AR B E % 100.00% 61,989 - -
Times Paradise Walk [ Xibuyuan District, Gaoxin District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC In operation

ARG W% AR T RRBEE 3112200 100.00% - - 23833
Times Paradise Walk II Xibuyuan District, Gaoxin District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC

i3 X W& EE ER% 100.00% 9163 - -
Jinnan Paradise Walk Wuhou District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province, PRC In operation

TRERERS LR RERA ERE 100.00% 632 - -
Summer Palace Starry Street Xiyuan, Haidian District, Beijing, PRC In operation

k@ BRG]l El 100.00% 300,192 - -
Changying Paradise Walk Changying Country, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC In operation

TEAERY IRtk RERH EfE 100.00% 03,34 - -
Beijing Daxing Paradise Walk Huangcun, Daxing District, Beijing, PRC In operation

LBIEXE L frEn RS i 100.00% 25393 1797

Honggiao Paradise Walk Shenchang Road, Minghang District, Shanghai, PRC In operation

IR LETELERHE 18017 100.00% - 96,803 -
Shanghai Baoshan Paradise Walk Gucun Town, Baoshan District, Shanghai, PRC

i RBERH WA TR k3205 S 100.00% 53267 - -
Xi'an Daxing Starry Serect No.20 Xinghuo Road, Lianhu District, Xi'an, Shanxi Province, PRC In operation

FEMIENE BL=HAE  BDKEMSE - AP RIE % 100.00% 78499 -

Xi'an Qujiang Starry Street Qujiang Road West, Qujiang New District, Xi‘an, Shanxi Province, PRC In operation

BHFRKR LGRS Ty T 3111202020 100.00% - - 127,069
Blue Lake Jinghui East Road, Kejiyuan, Taihu, Wi, Jiangsu Province, PRC

B THEESTHLRSEDH 3112200 10000% - - 40000
Wuxi Splendor Paradise Xihu Central Road, Xishan District, Wi, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Walk
AR HEENTEZERS 108 3112200 100.00% - - 17438
Dongjing 120 Project 11 Dongjing 120 Road, Tianning District, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province,
PRC
R fEE SIS 0. WAE Cp: {7HI5
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

BRLIA i
UL ik 201 R RERER
HAAH BRI Expected Group's Interest Completed GFA GFA Under GFA Under
Project Location Completion Date inthe Project ~ Remaining Unsold Development Planning
(¥ik) (Fiik) (593
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
ENERT TREFHTHRES 3182018 100.00% - 19,39 - S
Longcheng Paradise Walk Qinye Road, Zhonglou District, Changzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
(e I WL A AR B s ERE 100.00% 180665 - - S
Jinsha Paradise Walk [ Hai'da South Road, EDZ, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC In operation
ey XREZH BLE TN TR R B 1612018 10000% - 58031 $
Jinha Paradise Walk Il Hai'da South Road, EDZ, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC
BRI R HMARILE 17162017 10000% - 158,067 52,456 $
Binjiang Paradise Walk Binjiang District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, PRC
B IR THARA THAERL 182017 SLOVG - 190,55 51736 S
Suzhou Shishan Paradise Walk Shishan Street, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC
ARSI R ERE AL AE R U 3112019 9007 - - 96,600 $
Chunjiang Central Xinglin N Road and Xingjin Road intersection, Jimei District, Xiamen,
PRC
BRI TEERI TN 1102018 SLOVG - - 162,624 §
Chunjiang Central Xinting Road, Dongshan Strect, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province, PRC
it Toul 2516918 841,118 199,165
R fEE NENGES 0 AT CP: (FHH;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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I am pleased to present to the shareholders the business review and outlook of
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), for the year ended December 31, 2016.

RESULTS
In 2016, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB88.14 billion, representing

a year-on-year growth of 61.6%. Revenue increased by 15.6% year-on-year
to RMB54.80 billion, of which rental income from investment properties
amounted to RMB1.91 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 35.2%.
Excluding effects, such as minority interest and valuation gains, core net profit
was RMB7.76 billion, representing an increase of 11.8% over 2015. Core net
profit margin was 14.2%. The dividend payout ratio increased by 5 percentage

point for three consecutive years to 35% of core net profit.

REVIEW OF 2016

The year 2016 saw China’s real estate market experiencing unprecedented
volatility and differentiation. Despite the gradual unwinding of policy relaxation
which became tightening by year end, property sales volume reached a new
high. However, behind the strong contracted sales numbers, differentiation
across regions and developers further intensified. Leveraging on our deep roots
and brand advantage in major cities, we seized the opportunity and scaled up,
with contracted sales during the period reaching a record high to RMB88.14
billion.

The enthusiasm for new land acquisitions was boosted by increasing sales
volume and prices amid the relatively loose monetary conditions in the first
three quarters of 2016. However, new land supply decreased by 11%* for the
year, which drove the land markets of tier-one and major tier-two cities into
a feverish state and hence the frequent emergence of record price land plots.
The Company insisted on focusing on core urban zones with high potentials
and acquired 43 land plots at reasonable prices during the period, highly
concentrated in Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Guangzhou, Chongqing, Xiamen
and Jinan. The Company also acquired sites in Tianjin and Wuhan, two of the
major cities along the high-speed rail network and entered the Hefei market
in February 2017. The Company has expanded the breadth and depth of its

national coverage, currently with exposure in 27 major strategic cities.

*  Source: China Index Academy
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Chairman’s Statement

Our conviction and determination in land acquisitions was supported by
consistently high cash collection ratio from sales of over 90% and our capability
to tap diversified financing channels at competitive costs. During the year, we
issued corporate bonds amounting to RMB11.8 billion based on our domestic
AAA investment grade credit rating, while our average borrowing costs further
decreased to 4.92%. The Company remained vigilant in managing our foreign
debt ratio, engaging in exchange rate swaps which helped the Company shield
the impact of exchange rate fluctuations of our relatively small foreign currency

exposure.

We have won the recognition of capital markets and offshore credit rating
agencies with our stable financial performance and disciplined balance sheet
management. During the year, the Company obtained an investment grade
credit rating of BBB- from Standard & Poor, while Moody's raised our outlook
to positive (Bal) despite volatile market conditions. Together with the BBB-
credit rating from Fitch, Longfor became the first non-SOE enterprise attaining
investment grade credit ratings from three offshore credit agencies, and emerged

with a brand new presence in the capital markets.

During the year, three Paradise Walks have commenced operations in the
important traffic nodes of Beijing, Chongqing and Shanghai and became
a popular landmark for locals, providing ease of access and good leisure
experiences. To date, the Company has an investment property portfolio of
approximately 1,940,000 square meters (21 shopping malls) in operation. Our
investment property portfolio has entered a phase of steady growth, harvesting

rental income with an annual growth of 35%.

Looking back to 2016, there were increasing differentiation among developers
in terms of growth scale, strategic judgment and business choices. Longfor
is committed to its main business, but yet continue to explore opportunities
with new real estate business forms and micro-innovation. Our two new
featured brands: Champion Apartments (i) which provide white-collar
population with high quality comprehensive rental and lifestyle services, and
One Extendable Space (— J&

successfully commenced operations in Shanghai, Chengdu, Chongqing and other

and .
72 [H]) our co-working office space venture, have

major cities.

OUTLOOK FOR 2017

We consider that Chinese economy become steady in 2017. Given the increasing
city-specific macro policy controls, there will inevitably be price and volume
corrections, and the divergence across regions will become more significant.
However, we believe the real estate industry remains as a pillar of the national
economy. With the backdrop of accelerating consolidation and complex changes,
a company with a firm foundation and stable operations will be best positioned

to capitalize on opportunities.

4 #t Annual Report 2016
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In terms of contracted sales scale, the Company is targeting to further scale up
to reach RMB100 billion mark. There will be 5 new Paradise Walks completing
in 2017, which will enable us to maintain a steady growth in rental income.
Profit growth and profitability will remain stable. In view of fierce competition
in the land market, the Company will continue to adhere to its strategic
priorities and explore opportunities in core urban zones within tier-one and
tier-two cities. The Company will be open to cooperative development, while
approaching acquisition opportunities with a positive attitude and a certain

level of prudence.

We anticipate changes in monetary conditions and policy controls will lead to
short-term volatilities for the industry. However, from a historical perspective,
urbanization and the formation and migration of the urban middle class are
fundamental driving forces of China’s real estate market’s development. We
should have bold imagination, while conducting in-depth research and careful

analysis.

We believe that starting from the needs of people, connecting and integrating
residential, retail, communities, offices and services will be critical in
shaping the future trend of the industry. Therefore, in addition to residential
development, commercial properties, property services and long-term rental
apartments, we will explore other innovative real estate business forms and
introduce new resources. We will lean on our core competence to further

enhance the Company’s competitive edge.

With the continual rapid development of the internet, the transformation
of new technologies, changes in customer base and increasing competition
within the industry, the Company will be facing unprecedented challenges
and uncertainties. However, Longfor will remain confident and resolve amid
these competitive challenges. Looking ahead, we will pursue growth, but at
the same time remain disciplined. We hope to shape the company into a long-
term winner in this traditional industry through continuously upgrading
our organization and operating systems. We will be strategic in our decision
making, embrace the virtue of patience, and look to stay ahead of the curve

through the cycles.

Finally, on behalf of the board of directors, I would like to extend my sincere
thanks to all the employees of the Group for their tireless efforts and the support
of all shareholders.
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L EX YT PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

CERNE REBYEEREFEEELA In 2016, revenue from property development business of the Group was
RMEs14.4105 50 > B FAEWR 14.3% o ST RMBS51.44 billion, representing an increase of 14.3% as compared to last year.
HASETERE L 4,794,251 Tk o Y355 R 2675 The Group delivered 4,794,251 square meters of property in gross floor area
HHBMES27.6% 0 W EE FF1.4% - =% (GFA) terms. The gross profit margin of the overall property development
=N BEEETEKRBANR 10,7308,/ business increased by 1.4% to 27.6% as compared to last year. Recognized
FIrK e average selling price was RMB10,730 per square meter in 2016.

SR

Suzhou Longfor Mansion

E L wN )
Bejing Times Paradise Walk
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H— DENELE Y E TR E TN Table 1: Breakdown of property development revenue of the Group in 2016

* NEBEH * Amount excluding tax
BHEH A e ST
Revenue Total GFA
ZE A - Sk K RN e el
2016 2015 2016 2015

W ARYTF AR T E/EN E/EN
City RMB’000 RMB’000 Sqm Sqm
£ 10,796,830 9,301,158 1,245,790 1,219,908
Chongqing
LM 7,184,100 5,344,004 382,460 387,731
Hangzhou
ki 4,632,538 4,447,941 176,187 188,428
Shanghai
A 4,257,137 3,925,345 394,459 514,151
Chengdu
HE 2,812,120 2,045,573 339,025 292,808
Qingdao
3 2,685,888 - 125,907 -
Nanjing
(RS 2,397,446 1,515,152 280,169 239,661
Xi'an
M 2,047,704 1,219,700 128,684 79,617
Suzhou
Bl 1,730,687 752,762 214,309 116,193
Ningbo
M 1,646,778 479,156 218,156 89,146
Changzhou
bigE) 1,637,697 - 227,646 -
Jinan
& 1,462,853 2,018,204 114,667 162,722
Xiamen
b 1,409,532 2,628,692 75,688 200,250
Beijing
R 1,211,506 1,436,204 161,642 199,216
Changsha
i 1,169,211 2,211,785 182,512 323,037
Shenyang
AR 890,338 1,095,368 135,843 165,939
Shaoxing
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BHEH A ST Y
Revenue Total GFA
ZE A -k K ZEAE —F U
2016 2015 2016 2015

W ANRBTF AR BT EV/EN Tk
City RMB’000 RMB’000 Sqm Sqm
K 844,315 2,922,965 61,484 201,151
Dalian
i3] 812,259 984,633 95,173 125,291
Wuxi
i 679,589 - 97,155 -
Foshan
M 427,431 837,571 70,338 118,670
Quanzhou
HHL 384,919 408,742 36,042 41,069
Yixing
ER 254,216 297,974 25,391 35,919
Yantai
2l 66,308 1,120,055 5,524 149,394
Kunming
st 51,441,402 44,992,984 4,794,251 4,851,201
Total

ZERNE S RERAFEEHE AR 814
ot WEFERRe1.6% - 8 45 iy
6,020,097 Fh K o B LR 41.69% - S
BAR®14,64270 0 B EEHR1429% - K=
A TR P - R R R R A T 8
Hom A NRE 2510 NR%2389(F
o NR #1965t AR ¥ 107.44 0
N B HE13 54800 0 2 BG4 18] A ) 8 8 3 Y
36.9% > 27.1% > 22.3% ~ 12.2% K 1.5% °

=T e
Chengdu Poetic Life

In 2016, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB88.14 billion, representing
an increase of 61.6% as compared to last year. The Group sold 6,020,097
square meters in total GFA, representing an increase of 41.6% as compared to
last year. Average selling price of GFA sold was RMB14,642 per square meter,
representing an increase of 14.2% as compared to last year. Contracted sales
from Yangtze River Delta, Pan Bohai Rim, western China, southern China
and central China were RMB32.51 billion, RMB23.89 billion, RMB19.65
billion, RMB10.74 billion and RMB1.35 billion respectively, accounting for
36.9%, 27.1%, 22.3%, 12.2% and 1.5% of the contracted sales of the Group,

respectively.

iyl
Chengdu Jasper Sky
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HZ  ZENERSEF A 5 BRI Table 2: Details of contracted sales of the Group in 2016

* Yk * Amount including tax
ki A ST A
Contracted sales Total GFA
ZE A - Sk K I i —F-h4
2016 2015 2016 2015

i) AR H # e ARBE T RN Tk
City RMB million RMB million Sqm Sqm
k[ 13,601 7,820 375,094 229,741
Beijing
R 9,159 9,731 951,723 1,016,092
Chongqing
M 9,032 6,513 479,407 400,625
Hangzhou
it 7,715 4,840 306,615 201,578
Shanghai
R 7,050 3,805 665,821 378,541
Chengdu
& 5,540 2,979 222,414 174,216
Xiamen
FA 5,304 2,705 183,323 121,373
Nanjing
M 4,381 2,672 163,076 128,869
Suzhou
HE 4,014 2,205 400,616 261,897
Qingdao
[E:S 3,416 1,257 426,954 178,494
Xi'an
JE M 3,134 1,074 92,791 21,893
Guangzhou
1 2,451 1,702 306,471 234,060
Shenyang
i 2,061 812 198,750 112,255
Jinan
87,3 1,734 1,217 181,982 157,393
Ningbo
55 1,648 364 183,293 45,628
Wuxi
GEd 1,528 885 166,272 132,159
Changzhou
R 1,346 566 172,028 79,374
Changsha
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i A ST Y
Contracted sales Total GFA
ZE A -k K ZEAE —F U
2016 2015 2016 2015

W AR B EHT AR#E#ET EV/EN Tk
City RMB million RMB million Sqm Sqm
M 1,081 464 150,411 64,043
Quanzhou
i1y 993 342 118,849 49,751
Foshan
K 920 1,209 69,443 91,638
Dalian
HE 643 261 56,978 25,722
Yixing
4REL 527 462 77,544 72,277
Shaoxing
A 472 268 48,143 27,027
Yantai
K 373 - 19,560 -
Tianjin
2yl 21 391 2,539 48,284
Kunming
st 88,144 54,544 6,020,097 4,252,930
Total

SENE ARECEHERSEEN G
HERMAANRY 73760 WH A 476 80
Ko By A R AR B M AR S R
EXPEERE o

E X 4

S — R B R RR A BUE R AT K
We HATEMMBRENELB oMY £
OBy SOKE SR T BRI L K
RS IININ 2N Y D
ZEAEHED P LR ERS - #1E %
—ANEFZA=ZtT—H AEECHENS
T 251,938,418 - 7 K (Fr o A0 28 SR W A
2,516,918 J5 k) » B Hl A R 2 5 95.1% ©
AEBHSRA AR 191800 B EFHE
35.2% ° F s K~ BHE - REEH A
F o il 75 86.8% ~ 11.4% F11.8% » A& LA
BB 55 37.2% ~ 26.7% F15.3%

In 2016, the Group had RMB73.7 billion (derived from 4.76 million square
meters) sold but unrecognized contracted sales which formed a solid basis
for the Group's future sustainable and stable growth in profit attributable to

shareholders.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group maintains a prudent property investment strategy. Currently, all
investment properties of the Group are shopping malls under three major
product series, namely Paradise Walk series, which are metropolitan shopping
malls, Starry Street series, which are community shopping malls, and MOCO,
which are mid to high-end household and lifestyle shopping centers. As of 31
December 2016, the Group has investment properties of 1,938,418 square
meters (2,516,918 square meters in GFA with parking space included) which
have commenced operation with an occupancy rate of 95.1%. Rental income,
net of tax, was RMB1.91 billion, representing an increase of 35.2% as compared
to last year. The series of Paradise Walk, Starry Street and MOCO accounted for
86.8%, 11.4% and 1.8% of the total rent respectively, and recorded increases of
37.2%, 26.7% and 5.3% respectively.

4 #t Annual Report 2016
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HK= L DEANFERE WA Table 3: Breakdown of rental income of the Group in 2016
* RERIA * Amount excluding tax
SRR “E-LE
2016 2015
s s faA
RETH IELION i1 % ELION i1 i WR%
Rental % of Occupancy Rental % of Occupancy Change of
GFA income Rental rate income Rental rate  rental income
Fik  ARKTT ARKTT
Sqm RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BRI 120,778 401,506 200% §7.0% 387,885 2774% 100.0% 3.5%
Chonggqing North Paradise Walk
BRI 76,031 156,723 8.2% 96.1% 151,909 10.7% 99.1% 3.0%
Chongqing West Paradise Walk
EERAKE LM 160,168 249,992 13.1% 96.0% 230,362 163% 95.9% 8.5%
Chongging Time Paradise Walk Phase I
ERRREE M 154,460 122,129 6.4% 94.6% 79,168 5.6% 92.1% 54.3%
Chonggqing Time Paradise Walk Phase II
ALK 215,536 109,955 5.1% 93.2% 94,394 6.7% 86.6% 16.5%
Chengdu North Paradise Walk
K L 61,989 29,045 15% 99.3% 21,339 15% 87.2% 36.1%
Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Phase [
R RfxE 221,286 242,169 12.6% 99.1% 182,664 12.9% 91.8% 32.6%
Beijing Changying Paradise Walk
LREAIPR 151,135 160,129 8.4% 99.0% 44420 3.1% 99.6% 260.5%
Hangzhou Jinsha Paradise Walk
b ik 91,638 91,256 4.8% 99.9% 18,142 1.3% 92.9% 403.0%
Chengdu Jinnan Paradise Walk
YN N 144,565 64,571 34% 99.0% - - -
Beijing Daxing Paradise Walk
ERFKE 73,774 25,676 13% 98.6% - - -
Chonggqing Time Paradise Walk Phase I1T
IR:1I0 SR 170,450 7,256 0.4% 92.4% - - -
Shanghai Honggiao Paradise
Kt 1,641,810 1,660,407 86.8% 95.6% 1,210,283 85.5% 96.0% 37.2%
Paradise Walk Subtotal
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i SN e Sk
2016 2015
2len fhiss A
B A [EE::7 GiTiES EL/UN AR BiTiiES Bk
Rental % of Occupancy Rental % of Occupancy Change of
GFA income Rental rate income Rental rate  rental income
ik ARETT ANRETT
Sqm RMB' 000 RMB' 000
B0 16,161 18,747 1.0% 86.3% 20823 1.5% 100.0% -10.0%
Chonggqing Crystal Castle
R =F4& 38,043 30,283 1.6% 98.8% 29,561 21% 98.4% 24%
Chengdu Three Thousand Mall
EEERENY 54,618 27,03 1.4% 72.9% 28,126 20% 83.9% 320
Chongging Chunsen Starry Street
EREEAH 29413 11,668 0.6% 100.0% 11,428 0.8% 100.0% 21%
Chongging Fairy Castle
TRBERENE 6,320 19,070 1.0% 100.0% 18,120 1.3% 100.0% 5.2%
Beijing Summer Palace Starry Street
EEUR 15,516 14,725 0.8% 96.7% 12,056 0.9% 93.4% 2.1%
Chonggqing University City
FiRRENE 4007 37,354 20% 96.4% 34,870 25% 91.7% 7.1%
Xi'an Daxing Starry Street
Fi% ML 63,206 44,047 23% 98.6% - - -
Xi'an Qujiang Starry Street
il - 15,771 0.7% N/A 17,818 1.3% N/A 115%
Others
EAE Gt 267,504 218,888 11.4% 91.8% 172,802 12.2% 95.0% 26.7%
Starty Street Subtotal
EEMOCO 29,104 33,798 1.8% 100.0% 32,102 23% 100.0% 5.3%
Chongging MOCO
KME NG 29,104 33,798 1.8% 100.0% 32,102 23% 100.0% 5.3%
MOCO Subtotal
CHEER G 1,938,418 1,913,093 100.0% 95.1% 1,415,187 100.0% 95.9% 35.2%

Total for projects that had

commenced operation

AEBEA ETEERNE IS EHE > AEt R The Group has 6 shopping malls under construction with a total GFA of about
& 576 8Tk 760,000 square meters.
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P —F L E D NEAEEERE
VE Vs

Table 4: Breakdown of investment properties under construction of the Group
in 2017 to 2018

G B HH ) 2 SR A
Tk
Estimated

Commencement of Planned GFA

Operation Sqm
HEHRE K 2017 93,343
Chongqing Hometown Paradise Walk
LIk IIPN 2017 190,553
Suzhou Shishan Paradise Walk
HUMTEIL R B 2017 158,067
Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk
HE UMK 2017 102,365
Chongqing U-City Paradise Walk
LI KA 2017 96,803
Shanghai Baoshan Paradise Walk
WS A 2018 119,139
Changzhou Longcheng Paradise Walk
FERIHE frat 760,270

Projects under construction in total

AR B B A L4 b R DA A 2 R 35 10
B > REE T NERGREY ET
s E AR 202000 -

% Pl

TR 15 4 AR R — AT
BUAH RSB RIFRS 8 TR THES
W78 S0y B — B AT BB S A A 8
BEN LU B B AR 0.34% %2.29% o [
FH A B B TE R A TR - BRI
B~ AR SLFLRE ) o S R AT BB
B S A £ IR B 4 A Y Bo B E AR AR 0.259% &
1.62% °
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Due to the rental increase of shopping malls in operation as well as continuous
investments in projects under construction, the valuation gain of investment

properties of the Group amounted to RMB2.02 billion in 2016.

COST CONTROL

In 2016, due to the excellent performance of sales and group’s strategy to
acquire projects in first and second tier cities, which diluted fixed expenses
such as staff compensation. As a result, the Group’s general and administrative
expenses to the total contracted sales decreased by 0.34% to 2.29% as compared
to the corresponding period of last year. Meanwhile, as the newly launched sales
of several projects such as Nanjing Chunjiang Central, Xiamen Chunjiang Land
and Chengdu Jasper Sky was strong, the selling expenses to the total contracted
sales decreased by 0.25% to 1.62% as compared to the corresponding period of

last year.



B RS

SRR AR RN TR A A A
B 34,00 MRS 0L SOREWHT R ST E - A S
53 40 S B B ) 13 AR 3.8
JG ©

A RS

TENE BB AENER FER A AL
WA 50.00 BE 45 1 A0 5T TG 5= R~ 49.09% HE 4
BT VLR T E o AR I G s s 2
BB B AR 105 BT -

Pt B i

T 15 B 3 M 6L 4 o I A 3 T 15 B R T 3
Blo ZR—NF AEEMMENGBERHA
RWa38fEon, T EB A AR 2648
G o MR AT BLAET A AR 0.2 48T

)

TR AR 0 T (R R R
A P SR 1 3 B 0 BB SRR A~ A B (5
BB L0 MG SR ) 1 14.2% -
FAERM R 14.69% - T2 R AW S EHR
Tho LARCBR - 2 AR A 3 R A 3
B BEsBNG BB -

b i Rl

WoE-NEF A= AERN L
WAt 4,147 BT K > HEAR TS £y 3,294 8
PR o A T RO B T R AR
W 4,039 70 > BRI AI G 27.6% o MR
AN SR IR - FE R R RV = A
I~ 2 g I T v b I ) L R 4 BIAG T
o LT AR 9 39.29% ~ 31.1% ~ 18.5% ~ 7.6%
R 3.6% °
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SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

In 2016, the contribution of joint ventures mainly came from the Group's
34.0%-owned Beijing Rose & Gingko Mansion. The attributable profit after tax

of the Group in joint ventures was RMB380 million.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES

In 2016, the contribution of associates mainly came from the Group's
50.0%-owned Beijing Jade Mansion, 49.0%-owned Xiamen Chunjiang Central.
The attributable profit after tax of the Group in associates was RMB1.05 billion.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expenses comprised of PRC enterprise income tax and land
appreciation tax. In 2016, the enterprise income tax and the land appreciation
tax of the Group were RMB3.38 billion and RMB2.64 billion, respectively. The

total income tax expenses for the period amounted to RMB6.02 billion.

PROFITABILITY

In 2016, the core net profit margin of the Group (the ratio of core net profit
excluding effects, such as minority interest and valuation gains, to revenue) was
14.2%, while that of the corresponding period of last year was 14.6%, which
was mainly attributable to the increase of turnover and the combined effects of
fees, shares of results of joint ventures and associates and changes of income tax

expense during the period.

LAND BANK REPLENISHMENT
As at December 31, 2016, the Group's total land bank was 41.47 million square

meters or 32.94 million square meters on an attributable basis. The average unit
land cost was RMB4,039 per square meter, accounting for 27.6% of unit price
of current contracted sales. In terms of regional breakdown, land bank in Pan
Bohai Rim, western China, Yangtze River Delta, southern China and central
China accounted for 39.2%, 31.1%, 18.5%, 7.6% and 3.6% of the total land

bank, respectively.
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TR NAR o AR TR o A R A
T £ 1,255 BRF 7K  Fodr37.79% Ak B
W e, > 32.3% (A P HLIE 5 17.5% (R R =
FHLIE > 7,19 (PR FEHHLIE > 5 49 i 3E R b
@ o SPIUCIE AAS 2 17 oK KR 6,329 7T ©

TR AR TR R 2614 > 1
A [ oz 6 ) 3 o [ o BEIECE Y B
BRI AP R E K BT EE
PSRRI K F B E LA IERE -

A2 T ) - o o R B
KL RIEH 1A T

In 2016, the Group has acquired new land bank with total GFA of 12.55
million square meters, 37.7%, 32.3%, 17.5%, 7.1% and 5.4% of which
are located in Pan Bohai Rim, western China, Yangtze River Delta, central
China and southern China respectively. The average acquisition unit cost was

RMB6,329 per square meter.

In 2016, there were 26 cities covered by the Group. The locations of the
projects were moving closer to city cores. The project size was controlled at an
appropriate level, which laid a well foundation for improving the turnover cycle

of the Group's properties available for sale.
The geographic spread of the land bank of the Group was as follows:

Table 5: Breakdown of land bank of the Group

Mol Wl H SR Pl b1 T £ gt ST A il Ll
Region City Total GFA % of Total Attributable GFA % of Total
FIrk FIroR
Sqm Sqm
TR 1) 6 b [ = 1,923,196 4.6% 831,576 2.5%
Pan Bohai Rim Beijing
35 2,109,233 5.1% 2,034,286 6.2%
Shenyang
HhE 1,578,329 3.8% 853,931 2.6%
Qingdao
A 7,164,775 17.3% 7,164,775 21.8%
Yantai
il 2,229,961 5.4% 1,027,412 3.1%
Jinan
K 879,185 2.1% 544,323 1.7%
Dalian
K 375,377 0.9% 243,710 0.7%
Tianjin
NFE 16,260,056 39.2% 12,700,013 38.6%
Subtotal
e o i [ =y 591,029 1.4% 591,029 1.8%
Central China Changsha
FEWL A 886,304 2.2% 531,782 1.6%
Wuhan
/NFE 1,477,333 3.6% 1,122,811 3.4%
Subtotal
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Ho [ Wi A il ke i T2 SR I A Bl ke s
Region City Total GFA % of Total Attributable GFA % of Total
Tk FIrok
Sqm Sqm
o [ 7 5 b EiY- 7,490,307 18.0% 6,242,840 18.9%
Western China Chongqing
JHR 3,552,765 8.6% 2,687,594 8.2%
Chengdu
(RS 1,075,207 2.6% 1,075,207 3.3%
Xi'an
FR 790,407 1.9% 790,407 2.4%
Yuxi
Nat 12,908,686 31.1% 10,796,048 32.8%
Subtotal
RAIL= A R L 1,331,295 3.2% 1,176,308 3.6%
Yangtze River Delta Shanghai
) 828,421 2.0% 828,421 2.5%
Wuxi
M 745,872 1.8% 745,872 2.2%
Changzhou
e 2,409,313 5.8% 1,568,492 4.7%
Hangzhou
k8 709,032 1.7% 646,505 2.0%
Ningbo
kM 638,398 1.6% 323,417 1.0%
Suzhou
P 996,603 2.4% 683,604 2.1%
Nanjing
NFE 7,658,934 18.5% 5,972,619 18.1%
Subtotal
A AR

Beijing Orient Original
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Ho [ oA AR Jir Ak Bl RE25 H SRR Fir Al B s
Region City Total GFA % of Total Attributable GFA % of Total
Tk FIrok
Sqm Sqm
e i b [ & M 1,048,586 2.5% 597,207 1.8%
Southern China Xiamen
SR 1,229,868 3.0% 1,229,868 3.7%
Quanzhou
J&EM 646,400 1.5% 323,200 1.0%
Guangzhou
il 244,637 0.6% 195,759 0.6%
Foshan
/Nat 3,169,491 7.6% 2,346,034 7.1%
Subtotal
st 41,474,500 100.0% 32,937,525 100.0%
Total
LA K

Shanghai Honggiao Paradise Walk
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N ZEANEL Y Table 6: Land acquisition in 2016

ol JHH 4 i WAl 2 A I A ST
Attributable
Region Project City Interest  Site Area Total GFA
% Pk FHK
% Sgm Sqgm
B it SRR Jex 25.0% 121,096 207,302
Pan Bohai Rim The Orient Original Beijing
BROR [ I Jbx 100.0% 13,327 57,164
Huanbaoyuan Plot Beijing
TP e 50.0% 85,709 237,835
Changyang Plot Beijing
LB i 51.0% 266,412 889,519
Chunjiang Central Jinan
A I P 30.0% 203,151 584,477
Hancang Plot Jinan
FE IR i 51.0% 96,449 276,331
Tangye Plot Jinan
W53 0 ] 3 i 20.0% 72,954 277,687
Chang He Yuan Plot Jinan
PR A [ b x| 100.0% 24,864 91,863
Huai Yin Qu Plot Jinan
FILE I 1 b 60.0% 39,738 187,366
Chunjiang Central Shenyang
VAT IR i1 100.0% 148,761 318,896
Shen Xin Plot Shenyang
T [ A 3 K 100.0% 39,000 154,965
Gaoxin Yuanqu Plot Dalian
PN T PN 34.0% 127,322 199,496
Longfor Mansion Tianjin
A K 100.0% 93,218 175,881
Jin Nan District Plot Tianjin
BRI Hh 25.1% 223,812 967,152
Chunjiang Central Qingdao
Lilkppie it HE 100.0% 56,759 99,025
Zhongcun II Plot Qingdao
it 1,612,572 4,724,959
Subtotal
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Mol W H A HE i HEAY B A I A ST R
Attributable
Region Project City Interest  Site Area Total GFA
” FHK FKk
% Sqm Sqm
I Y [ HEAE 11 5 HE 70.0% 224,940 412,722
Western China Zhaomushan Chongqing
85 I HE 70.0% 292,569 768,060
Lijia I Plot Chongqing
ESSIEIE Bil HE 70.0% 59,685 124,354
Zhaomushan II Chongqing
i SN HE 100.0% 221,522 567,430
Lijia IIT Plot Chongqing
BRI HE 60.0% 263,657 417,712
Caijia Plot Chongqing
HT BB JiAP 100.0% 88,463 502,686
Yurenxi Road Plot Chengdu
KR JAR 60.0% 86,517 327,685
Dafeng Plot Chengdu
“RAER JAD 100.0% 25,494 142,244
Sansheng Plot Chengdu
fE M JEHR 49.0% 117,996 796,089
Huazhao Plot Chengdu
/it 1,380,843 4,058,982
Subtotal
RN R TLERAR
Chongqing Times Paradise Walk Nanjing Chunjiang Central
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Ml HH AW i HEAY B i A T A A ST R
Attributable
Region Project City Interest  Site Area Total GFA
% R/EN FIrok
% Sqm Sqm
RAIL= M0 R LR 111 R LM 100.0% 36,065 116,640
Yangtze River Delta Xingyi III Plot Hangzhou
R LA 5 3 4R B 55.0% 47,441 185,569
Beigandong Plot Hangzhou
A b B 26.0% 57,416 153,058
Xianghu Plot Hangzhou
it A2 B B 25.0% 47,065 159,242
Century Peak View Plot Hangzhou
R LM 35.0% 39,578 98,172
Changmu Plot Hangzhou
PG AT M BT 100.0% 81,500 340,530
Xihu Jiangcun Plot Hangzhou
T K £ 100.0% 47,836 113,656
Panhuo II Plot Ningbo
YN R £ 51.0% 23,417 54,648
Zhonggongmiao Plot Ningbo
N T 11 L 41 100.0% 37,309 88,126
Zhonggongmiao II Plot Ningbo
I3 iR A 34.0% 23,810 78,079
Jiangning II Plot Nanjing
kiR P 100.0% 13,401 90,626
Jianning Road Plot Nanjing
G Ly 50.0% 41,727 132,265
Magqiao Town Plot Shanghai
R SR it 100.0% 83,588 337,054
Zhuangiao Town Plot Shanghai
R 7R i 65.0% 80,175 253,870
Kunxiuhu Plot Shanghai
/It 660,328 2,201,535
Subtotal
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Attributable
Region Project City Interest  Site Area Total GFA
7 FHK Tk
% Sqm Sqm
3 o o R R 60.0% 137,800 886,304
Central China Changfeng Plot Wuhan
/it 137,800 886,304
Subtotal
T 7 4l [ HE Rt R JE M
Southern China Baiyun New Town Plot Guangzhou 50.0% 25,905 94,630
e 4 L 30 JEM 50.0% 106,013 269,923
Development Area Plot Guangzhou
ESig k] B 51.0% 50,943 120,000
Jimei II Plot Xiamen
LA M 51.0% 63,722 192,820
Xiang'an Plot Xiamen
/It 246,583 677,373
Subtotal
At 4,038,126 12,549,153
Total
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Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group successfully acquired
Tanzhe Temple Plot with an expected gross floor area of approximately 239,000
square meters (attributable area amounted to 24,000 square meters); Chongqing
Xiyong W Plot with an expected gross floor area of approximately 300,000
square meters; Ningbo Jiangshan Plot with an expected gross floor area of
approximately 82,000 square meters (attributable area amounted to 33,000
square meters); Changsha Chazishan Plot with an expected gross floor area
of approximately 55,000 square meters; Changsha Liuyang River Plot with
an expected gross floor area of approximately 169,000 square meters; Suzhou
Laodonglu Plot with an expected gross floor area of approximately 100,000
square meters; Beijing Liangxiang Town Plot with an expected gross floor
area of approximately 133,000 square meters (attributable area amounted to
27,000 square meters); Hefei Binhu District Plot with an expected gross floor
area of approximately 387,000 square meters; Ningbo Tangjiawan Plot with an
expected gross floor area of approximately 104,000 square meters (attributable
area amounted to 73,000 square meters); Beijing Jinhai Lake Plot with an
expected gross floor area of approximately 153,000 square meters (attributable

area amounted to 38,000 square meters).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31, 2016, the Group’s consolidated borrowings amounted
to RMB57.87 billion. The net debt to equity ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group was 53.9%. Cash in hand reached RMB17.36 billion. The
credit rating of the Group was BBB- by Standard & Poor, Bal by Moody's,
BBB- by Fitch, and AAA by Dagong International®*, CCXR and Shanghai
Brilliance. Moody's has a positive outlook and the others have stable outlook

toward the Company.

* The rating conducted by Dagong International was reviewed on Chongqing Longhu

Development Co., Ltd., a major subsidiary of the Company in Mainland.

Approximately 85.2% of the Group's total borrowings were denominated
in RMB, while 14.8% were denominated in foreign currencies. The Group
is reducing its proportion of borrowings in foreign currencies with a certain

amount of exchange rate swap so as to reduce the risk in exchange losses.

Approximately RMB35.7 billion of the Group’s consolidated borrowings
were with fixed rates ranging from 3.06% per annum to 6.75% per annum,
depending on the terms of the loans, and the other loans were quoted at floating
rates. As of December 31, 2016, the proportion of fixed interest debt was 62%
(December 31, 2015: 42%) of the total debt.

In 2016, the Group obtained new bank loans from overseas of RMB9.17 billion
in exchange for foreign currency borrowings to further decrease exposure to
liabilities. In 2016, the Group issued corporate bonds of RMB11.8 billion with
fixed rates ranging from 3.06% to 3.75% per annum and terms ranged from
five to ten years. Hence, the Group's average cost of borrowing further decreased
t0 4.92% per annum. The average tenor of loan was extended to 5.90 years. The

proportion of unsecured debt was increased to 75%.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group successfully issued
domestic green bonds denominated in Renminbi and raised a total of RMB4.04
billion in February, March 2017 with fixed rates ranged from 4.40% to 4.75%

per annum and terms ranged from five to seven years.

JenCRH R
Beijing Orient Original
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EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2016, the Group had 17,172 full-time employees in
mainland China and Hong Kong. Of these employees, 4,525 worked in the
property development division, 1,862 in the property investment division, and
10,785 in the property management division. Average age of our employees
is 31.6 years old. In the property development and investment divisions,
approximately 58.9% of the employees have bachelor degrees and approximately

13.6% of the employees have master degrees or above.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, work
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total compensation of
the employees consisted of base salary, cash bonus and share-based rewards.
Cash bonus is a major part of senior employees’ cash compensation. The gross
amount of such bonus is determined from, amongst other things, the ranking of
the Group’s budget fulfillment ratio and loyalties of customers, which is then
assessed and allocated to individual subsidiaries according to the results of a

balanced scorecard and profitability.

PROSPECTS

In the first three quarters of 2016, a significant recovery trend was observed
in Chinese real estate market. The transaction volume reached a record high,
and the level of unsold properties reduced obviously, showing positive results
of the policy to destocking. Since October 2016, various measures have been
introduced to cool the property market in different cities, and there has been
a differentiation in the urban policies and credit conditions among cities with
different tiers. In 2017, different regulatory measures will be tailored to the
situation at different cities and it will continue for a certain period of time.
Inventory digestion is expected to accelerate steadily in first tier and leading
second tier cities, while inventory pressure will remain relatively high in low
capacity and lower tier cities. This will provide a further test of the Group’s

brand power, investment, product development ability and financial strength.

Under these circumstances, the Group will place an even higher emphasis
in executing our strategy in a persistent manner to ensure the sustainable
development for our business. We strives to boost sales by strengthening
inventory management through precise customer positioning and high customer
conversion rate. Meanwhile, operational efficiency will be enhanced through

emphasis on inventory management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2017, the Group has 107 key projects for sale currently on the market,
among which 30 are brand new projects and 54 are new phases or new products
of existing projects. The products will cater for different customer groups,
including first-time home buyers, upgraders and business operators, while the
proportion of different product types and features will be adjusted in response
to changes in market demand, thus enabling the Group to have precise product

positioning and to achieve our goals in differentiating market environment.

The Group (including joint ventures and associates) has completed properties
of approximately 5,760,000 square meters in GFA in 2016. The total GFA of
properties planned to complete construction in 2017 will reach approximately
6,800,000 square meters, most of which will be completed in the second half of

the year. The current construction and sales progress are on track.

In our investment properties, Beijing Daxing Paradise Walk, Chongqing
Time Paradise Walk Phase III and Shanghai Honggqiao Paradise Walk have
commenced operation in 2016, while Chongqing Hometown Paradise Walk,
Suzhou Shishan Paradise Walk, Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk, Chongqing
U-City Paradise Walk and Shanghai Baoshan Paradise Walk will commence
operation in 2017. These projects will lay a solid foundation for future growth

of rental income from investment properties of the Group.

In the market with accelerating integration and complicated changes, the Group
will continue to maintain a prudent and rational financial management strategy.
While preserving stable and healthy financial position and gearing ratio, we will
control land cost and relieve funding pressure through external co-operations
and acquisitions in the secondary market. At the same time, we will optimize
the debt structure, explore new funding channels, extend debt maturity tenor
and lower effective funding cost, in view of a depreciating trend of Renminbi,

leading to a safer and healthier financial position of the company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Wu Yajun, aged 52, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on December 21, 2007, and is the Chairperson of the Board of
the Company. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Investment Committee of the Company. Madam Wu joined the Group since its
inception in 1994. She graduated from Northwestern Polytechnical University
(PG LEERE
degree in Engineering in 1984. Madam Wu serves as a representative of the
National Peoples’ Congress (2B AR KE), a member of the Standing
Committee of the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce (4 B T.
Ht), vice-chairperson of the Federation of Industry & Commerce of Chongqing
Municipality (Z B 117 T 7 ¥#) and the Real Estate Branch Chamber of the
Chongqing General Chamber of Commerce (ZE J&F 17 42 7% € 5 b 7 75 ).

Madam Wu has extensive experience in property development, property

) majoring in navigation engineering and obtained a Bachelor

investment and property management.

Mr. Shao Mingxiao, aged 51, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and
a member of the Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. Shao joined the
Group in 2006. He graduated from Renmin University of China (1B AR K
£:) and obtained a Master degree in Economics in 1992. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Shao served as the deputy general manager of Hangyu Economic
F 48 8% J& A PR/~ B ) which is a subsidiary of
Beijing Capital Group (It 50 E #BAIZELE M), and Beijing Xinlian Xiechuang
Real Estate Development Limited (I 5% 57 i 19 81 /75 b 7€ BH 55 45 BR A )
respectively. Mr. Shao was also the general manager of Beijing Zhongjing
Yiyuan Real Estate Development Limited (:”Z;'f R %%%iﬂ% FEEA IR
H]) and the director of the real estate development division of Beijing Hualian

Group (AU ELIERR A ).

Development Company (i

Mr. Zhao Yi, aged 40, was appointed as executive director of the Company on
March 18, 2015 and is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and a member
of the Investment Committee. Mr. Zhao graduated from Zhongnan University

of Economics and Law (9 7§ Bt % B % K

accounting and obtained a bachelor degree in business administration. He is

), majoring in international

a member of China Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in 2006 and has served as the senior manager of Chongqing Longfor, the
financial controller of Chengdu Longfor, the head of the Financial Management
Centre and the general manager of the Ministry of Finance of the Group.

Before joining the Group, he served at Pan-China (Chongqing) Certified Public
Accountants ( B B R e & 1l 5 ).
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Mr. Li Chaojiang, aged 48, was appointed as executive director of the Company
on November 23, 2016 and is the member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group in 2011, and is responsible for the
Human Resoutrces of the Group. He graduated from Yangzhou Teachers College
(5 M Fifi %3 2 Bt ) majoring in Chinese Language & Literature and obtained a
Bachelor of Arts degree in 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for
P & G (China) Company Limited (BRPEHAR A ), Ericsson (China)
Communications Company Limited (ESLAE (PR EEAPRAF) and Zovie
Real Estate Group Co, Limited ( Hh E R T A A PR ) ).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, aged 67, was appointed as independent
non-executive director and member of the Audit Committee of the Company
on November 1, 2009. He has been involved in Asian securities and property
investment markets for more than 30 years. Currently, he is a private investor
including having his own family business, Portwood Company Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Hysan Development Company
Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK")). He is also the publisher and author of “The Churchouse Letter”.

In 2004, Mr. Churchouse set up an Asian investment fund under LIM Advisors.
He acted as a director of LIM Advisors and as Responsible Officer until the
end of 2009. Prior to this, Mr. Churchouse worked at Morgan Stanley as a
managing director and advisory director from early 1988. He acted in a variety
of roles including head of regional research, regional strategist and head of
regional property research. Mr. Churchouse gained a Bachelor of Arts degree
and a Master of Social Sciences degree from the University of Waikato in New
Zealand.

Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, aged 53, was appointed as independent non-
executive director, chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on November 1, 2009. Mr. Chan
is the chairman of Halcyon Capital Limited and Halcyon Securities Limited,
which is engaged in corporate finance and securities business in Hong Kong
respectively. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor degree in Social Sciences (majoring in Economics) and from the Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology with a Master degree in Business
Administration. He worked for the SEHK and has been executive director of
Haitong International Securities Group Limited (formerly Taifook Securities
Group Limited) and head of its corporate finance division for 16 years until
end of 2012. He is the independent non-executive director of Yuexiu REIT
Asset Management Limited, China Conch Venture Holdings Limited and
Tianli Holdings Group Limited, which are listed on the SEHK. He is also an
adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Chan possesses over 25 years of experience in the

financial services industry.
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Mr. Xiang Bing, aged 54, was appointed as independent non-executive
director, member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company on November 1, 2009. He obtained a Doctoral degree in
Accounting from the University of Alberta in Canada. Mr. Xiang is the
founding dean and professor of the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in Beijing, China. Mr. Xiang is the independent non-executive director of Dan
Form Holdings Company Limited, Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited and
China Dongxiang (Group) Company Limited, all of which are listed on the
SEHK. Mr. Xiang is an independent non-executive director of E-House (China)
Holdings Limited, which is listed in the United States of America (the “USA”).
Prior to this, Mr. Xiang was the independent director of HC International,
Inc., Enerchina Holdings Limited, Peak Sport Products Company Limited and
Guangzhou Automobile Group Company Limited, which are listed on the
SEHK, the independent non-executive director of Shanxi Qinchuan Machinery
Development Company Limited and Yunnan Baiyao Group Company Ltd,
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and the independent director
of LDK Solar Company Limited listed in the USA and Perfect World Company
Limited (delisted).

Mr. Zeng Ming, aged 46, was appointed as independent non-executive director
of the Company on June 3, 2011. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Zeng is currently the chief strategy officer of
Alibaba Group. Mr. Zeng obtained his Doctor of Philosophy in International
Business and Strategy from University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, USA in
1998 and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Fudan University (18 H K )
in 1991. Mr. Zeng was the professor of Strategy at Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business, Beijing China and a faculty member at INSEAD, France.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Xu Aiguo, aged 51, was appointed as the vice president of the Group, the

member of Investment Committee of the Company, he is assigned responsibly
for the investment and development department and the new city preparation of
the Group. Mr. Xu joined the Group in 2014. Mr. Xu graduated from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics (FALH K22 ) and obtained a Bachelor
degree in Finance and Accounting in 1988. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu
worked for China Overseas Land & Investment Led. ( 1B/ A FRAF ).

Mr. Yuan Chun, aged 42, was appointed as the vice president of the Group, the
member of Investment Committee of the Company, he is assigned responsibly
for Corporate Branding and Marketing Department and Customer and Market
Research Department of the Group. Mr. Yuan joined the Group in 2010 and
was served as the general manager of Hangzhou Longfor. He graduated from
Tongji University ([l K£) and obtained a Bachelor degree in Heating and

Ventilating in 1996. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yuan worked for China
Overseas Land & Investment Led. ( {1 B AN A PR/ A ).
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Mr. Han Shi, aged 50, was appointed as the vice president of the Group, and
the general manager of innovation division of the Group. Mr. Han joined
the Group in 2016. He graduated from University of International Business
and Economics (¥ 4 88 B K £) majoring in Economics in the department
of International Trade and he completed his EMBA program in Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business (= 7L 7% £ Bt ) in 2009. He titled Senior
Economist in 2010. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for China National
Cereals, Oils and Foodstuffs Corporation ( FHREEE ) and its subsidiaries.

Mr. Cui Hengzhong, aged 48, was appointed as the vice president of the Group
and the general manager of Chongqing Longfor. Mr. Cui joined the Group
in 2007 and was served as the project manager, deputy manager of Operation
and Construction Department of Beijing Longfor. He graduated from Beijing
University of Technology (b 5% . 3% K £) and obtained a Master degree in
Structure Engineering in 1997. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cui worked for
Jiangsu Province Construction Engineering Corporation ({1 & 7 A 4¢ T
TR\ T ), Research Institute of Metallurgical Construction (7@%%@%5}
Ft 4B, Beijing Wanda Property Development Company Limited (L% B4
5 E B BT IR A ),

Mr. Song Hailin, aged 43, was appointed as the vice president of the Group
and the general manager of Beijing Longfor. Mr. Song joined the Group in 2011
and was served as the deputy general manager of Beijing Longfor. He graduated
from Tsinghua University and obtained a Doctor degree in Architectural Design
and Theory in 2001. Mr. Song was a visiting scholar for Urban and Regional
Studies (SPURS) of Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT) in the USA
from 2009 to 2011. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Song was the president of
the Architectural Design and Research Institute of Tsinghua University (153
KEFSERFIITEE ) and during such office, he also acted as the temporary
Deputy District Chief of Fushan District of Yantai in Shandong Province.

Mr. Zhang Xuzhong, aged 43, was appointed as the vice president of the
Group and the general manager of Hangzhou Longfor. Mr. Zhang joined the
Group in 2014. He graduated from Southeast University (R F K5 ) majoring
in civil engineering and obtained a Bachelor degree in Engineering in 1997.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked for the Beijing subsidiary of
China Construction First Building (Group) Corporation Limited (1! # — J5
(%) Jt 7472 F]), China Overseas Holding Limited ( Hh B A B B
FRZyH]), and Suzhou, Beijing, Xiamen subsidiaries of China Overseas Land &
Investment Ltd. ( FP R T AN EE T PR A T ).
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Mr. Wang Guangjian, aged 46, was appointed as the vice president of the
Group and the chairman of Longfor Property Management Company. Mr. Wang
joined the Group in 2000 and was served as property consultant, engineer of
the Budgeting and Purchasing Department, civil engineer and project manager
of Chongqing Longfor. He was also served as the head of Budgeting and
Purchasing Department of both Chengdu Longfor and Chongqing Longfor. He
was then served as the deputy general manager of the Operation Department
of Chongqing Longfor Property and general manager of Chengdu Longfor. He
obtained a Master degree in Management from Chongqing Jianzhu University
(HE#ERE) majoring in Architectural Economy Management in 2000.

Ms. Shen Ying, aged 42, is the general manager of the Human Resources
Department of the Group. Ms. Shen joined the Group in 2016. She graduated from
Shanghai University ( I 7 K &%) and obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics
in 1998 majoring in international finance. Ms. Shen obtained her MBA at Boston
College in 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Shen worked for Hewlett-Packard
(HP) and General Electric (GE) where she held a number of key management
positions, including the Global Human Resources Director of GE Oil & Gas, and

Human Resources Director of GE Healthcare in Greater China Division.

Mr. Huang Shixuan, aged 52, is the general manager of the Engineering
Department of the Group. Mr. Huang joined the Group in 1998. He graduated
from Chongging University (£ B K £) and obtained a Bachelor degree in
Power System and Automation in 1988. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang
worked for Chongqing Construction Corporation ( F B T FEEEEL A\ H]).

Mr. Wang Yajun, aged 45, is the general manager of the Strategic
Development Department of the Group. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2012.
He graduated from Arizona State University in the USA and obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration (MBA) in 2001. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang worked for Beijing Environmental Resources Management Company
Limited (jlﬁj'?:i%fﬁ ERE LA A ), United Technologies Corporation (Eﬁﬁé’
Hi /A ® ), DOW Chemical Company (& [G{t2) and Mckinsey Consultancy
Company (% kA Al ).
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Report of the Directors

The Board of directors (the “Board”) hereby present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of Longfor Properties Co.
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended December 31, 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the property development, property investment and property

management businesses in China.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the year by
principal activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of

the Group on page 115.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group's future business development are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual report.
Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report. The financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group are set out in note 47(b) to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, discussions
on the Group's environment policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can be found in
the section headed “Environmental Policies” and “Compliance with Laws and

Regulations” of this Report of the Directors.
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DIVIDEND
The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.466 per share

for the year ended December 31, 2016 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, June 14, 2017. The
proposed final dividend will be paid on Friday, July 7, 2017 after approval by
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”). The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB
and paid in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong
dollars will be converted from RMB at the average middle rate of RMB to Hong
Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of China for the period from
Wednesday, May 31, 2017 to Monday, June 5, 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, May 29,
2017 to Monday, June 5, 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine the
identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general
meeting to be held on Monday, June 5, 2017, all share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, May 26, 2017.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, June
12, 2017 to Wednesday, June 14, 2017 (both days inclusive) during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, June 9, 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year is set out in

the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at December 31, 2016, the distributable reserve of the Company amounted
to approximately RMB1,266,724,000.

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
RMB19,245,000 (2015: approximately RMB44,580,000).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five years financial summary of the Group is set out on page 296 of this

annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2016, revenue attributable to the largest
customer of the Group amounted to approximately 1.07% of the total revenue
in the year and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than

1.89% of the Group’s revenue in the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, purchases attributable to the largest
supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 2.4% of the total purchases in
the year and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 8.1%

of the Group's purchases in the year.

So far as the Board of the Company is aware, neither the Directors, their
associates nor any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any interest

in these major customers and suppliers.

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers
and contractors, in order to meet our own quality, safety, environmental and
product criteria. During the year ended December 31, 2016 and up to the date
of this report, the Group maintained good relationship with its suppliers and

contractors.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEE

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the Group
regards the personal development of its employees as highly importance.
The Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career path and
opportunities for advancement and improvement of their skills. In addition,
the Group has also adopted share option schemes and share award scheme to
recognize and reward the contribution of the employees to the growth and

development of the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in note

29 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Wu Yajun (Chairperson)

Mz. Shao Mingxiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yan Jianguo ™t
Mr. Zhao Yi

M. Li Chaojiang N2

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek

Mr. Xiang Bing

Mzr. Zeng Ming

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Shao
Mingxiao, Mr. Li Chaojiang, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Zeng Ming shall
retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a period of three years. None of the directors of the Company
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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Report of the Directors

Note 1:  Mr. Yan Jianguo resigned as an executive director of the Company on December 5,
2016.

Note 2:  Mr. Li Chaojiang was appointed as an executive director of the Company on November
23,2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain by them
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty or supposed duty provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said

persons.

In addition, liability insurance for directors and senior management of the
Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain

legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the directors and those of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016 are set out in

note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANT

Save as disclosed in Connected Transactions, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest, either directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at December 31, 2016, save as disclosed under the section headed
"Compliance with Non-competition Undertakings by the Controlling
Shareholders and the Directors", none of the directors of the Company are
considered to be in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted for the year ended December 31, 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the year were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any
such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no arrangement to which the
Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is
a party that would enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body

corporate.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS AND THE DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into the non-competition deed dated November 1,
2009 with the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Charm Talent
International Limited (“Charm Talent”), Junson Development International
Limited (“Junson Development”), Silver Sea Assets Limited (“Silver Sea”),
Silverland Assets Limited (“Silverland”), Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”)
and Mr. Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”) pursuant to which Madam Wu, Charm Talent
and Silver Sea have jointly and severally undertaken, and Mr. Cai, Junson
Development and Silverland have jointly and severally undertaken, not to
compete with the Group. Each of Madam Wu, Mr. Cai, Charm Talent, Junson
Development, Silver Sea and Silverland has also undertaken with the Company
to procure that any investment or commercial opportunity relating to any
property business or investment or management in the People’s Republic of
China that they or any of their respective affiliates identify or propose or that is
offered or presented to them by a third party, be first referred to the Company

in accordance with the terms of the non-competition deed.
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Report of the Directors

On January 29, 2013, Mr. Cai notified the Company that he intended to
participate in the development and investment of a project site in Chengdu for
his personal investment purposes (the “New Opportunity A”). In accordance
with the terms of the Non-competition Deed, Mr. Cai has provided necessary
information on the New Opportunity A, including without limitation,
details and nature of the project site, its geographical location and amount of
proposed investment to the independent board committee of the Company
consisting of all the independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent
Board Committee”). A meeting of the Independent Board Committee was
held on February 5, 2013. Having taken into account, among other things,
the Company’s current investment strategy, the nature of the project, the
development and architectural constraints of the project site, growth and
earning potentials of the New Opportunity A, the independent non-executive
Directors have unanimously resolved that it is in the interest of the Company

and the Shareholders to decline the New Opportunity A.

On June 7, 2016, Madam Wu notified the Company that she intended to
participate in the development and investment of a medical project site in
Chongging for her personal investment purposes (the “New Opportunity B”).
In accordance with the terms of the Non-competition Deed, Madam Wu has
provided necessary information on the New Opportunity B, including without
limitation, details and nature of the project site, its geographical location
and amount of proposed investment to the Independent Board Committee.
A meeting of the Independent Board Committee was held on June 7, 2016.
Having taken into account, among other things, the Company’s current
investment strategy, the relevant expertise and experience in medical and
healthcare area, the cooperation with a medical/healthcare institution, growth
and earning potentials of the New Opportunity B, the independent non-
executive Directors have unanimously resolved that it is in the interest of the

Company and the Shareholders to decline the New Opportunity B.

In March 2017, the Company has received an annual declaration from each of
the controlling shareholders of the Company and the Directors in respect of their
respective compliance with the non-competition undertakings as at December
31, 2016. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the said
declaration and are of the view that each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company and the Directors has complied with their respective non-competition

undertakings during the year ended December 31, 2016.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On July 10, 2013, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to which a 4-year
term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HK$6,385,000,000 and
USD165,000,000 (the “Facility”) was made available to the Company on the

terms and conditions stated therein.

On April 29, 2015, the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to which a
S-year term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HK$3,180,000,000,
USD155,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 (the “Facility”) was made available to

the Company on the terms and conditions stated therein.

On December 22, 2016, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant
to which a 3-year term loan facility in the principal amount of up to
RMB3,000,000,000 (the “Facility”) was made available to the Company on the

terms and conditions stated therein.

It is provided in the Facility Agreements, among other things, that an event of
default will occur if the following shareholders of the Company, the Wu Family
Trust, the Cai Family Trust, Charm Talent and Junson Development cease to
collectively maintain (directly or indirectly) not less than 51% of the entire
beneficial shareholding interest in the Company. If an event of default under
the Facility Agreements occurs, the lending bank or the agent acting for the
lending banks may, and shall if so directed by two-thirds of the lending banks,
terminate the Facility and/or declare that all or part of the loans made under
the Facility together with accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or

outstanding under the Facility Agreements be immediately due and payable.

Other than as disclosed above, there are no other events which are required to be

disclosed by the Company under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

De minimis Connected Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2016, certain directors and their close
family members, and companies controlled by certain Directors and/or their
close family members entered into transactions with the Group which are
disclosed in note 44 (b) and (c) “Related party transactions” to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Such transactions constituted de minimis
connected transactions of the Company which were exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders” approval requirements under the
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

Save as above, the other related party transactions which were carried out by
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2016, did not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as

the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on November 1, 2009.

On December 23, 2009, January 17, 2011, September 28, 2011 and November
4, 2014, the Company granted options to subscribe for a total of 10,600,000
shares, 46,000,000 shares, 150,000,000 shares and 110,000,000 shares under
the Option Scheme to certain directors and employees of the Company, with the

following details:

(1) £ (1) Directors
IRERERAE RRERTH i Syt
“FRk RS WERERR DAt
~A=HiAkff  Numberofshare  Number of share WA
24 ah fling flEAKOEL)  Outstandingat  optionsrechssifid  optionsexercised ~ Outstanding at
Name Capacity Date of grant Evercise price (HKS) ~ January 2016~ duringtheyear ~ during the year  December 31, 2016
ki) itz hits/
(Note 1) (Note ) (Note 3)
e L )N B A 12528 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000
Shao Mingxiao Beneficial Owner ~~ January 17, 2011

“E—ELAZ A §.28 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000

September 28, 2011
“R-WEH-ANR 937 8,000,000 — — 8,000,000

November 4, 2014
BRR(R-F-NET-AERRE) it 00 “E-WE-AmA 931 4500000 (4,500,000 - -

Yan Jianguo (tesigned on December 5,2016) ~ Benefical Owner ~ November4, 2014
i L EN B AR 12528 700000 - - 700,000

ThoYi Beneficial Owner ~~ January 17, 2011

ZE—ELAZTAR 8.28 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000

September 28, 2011
e syt il 9.7 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000

November 4, 2014
FRI-F-RET-AT=RERE) HERAL “Z-WET-ANH 931 - 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

Li Chaojiang (appointed on November 23, 2016) - Beneficial Owner

November 4, 2014

4 #t Annual Report 2016
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Name

Ak

Frederick Peter Churchouse

54
Chan Chi On, Derek

L

Zeng Ming

2 fMEH

i

Date of grant

A~
January 17, 2011
“EERAZTAR
September 28, 2011

“F-WEL-ARA
November 4, 2014

Capacity

HREAL

Beneficial Owner

FElEAL

Beneficial Owner

HREAL

Beneficial Owner

it

Beneficial Owner

i
Capacity

SEHA A

Beneficial Owner

bt )N

Beneficial Owner

i N

Beneficial Owner

“F0k
= f-H A
ik flEAROEL)  Outstandingat
Date of grant Eercise price (HKS) ~ January 1, 2016
i1/
(Nore 1)
SRRNETCACTER 844 150,000
December 23, 2000
“FELACTAR 828 400,000
September 28, 2011
CEFNEFCACAEH 8.4 200000
December 23, 2000
“E—ERAZHAR 828 400,000
September 28, 2011
SERNETCACTER 844 50,000
December 23, 2000
“F-EUACTAR 828 400,000
September 28, 2011
ZE—EAZTAR 8.8 240,000
September 28, 2011
(2)  Employees
ZRNE MRERERAR
~f-H IR
WATHE  Number of share
fHEER(EL)  Outstandingat  options reclassified
Exercise price (HKS) ~ January ,2016  during the year
(Wit (Hit2)
(Note 1) (Note 2)
12528 23,640,000 -
8.28 08,136,500 -
9.37 94.495,000 1,500,000

REERERAE  RERGHE “EE
R H (L G o o ol
Number of share ~ Number of share W
options reclassified ~ optionsexercised ~ Outstanding at
during theyear ~ during theyear  December 31, 2016
2 hits)
(Note 2) (Noce 3)
- - 150,000
- - 400,000
- - 20000
- - 400,000
- - 50,000
- - 400,000
- - 2000
RRERfTRN  RKEREEN ZERE
LU BREER SRR
Number of share ~ Number of share WA
options exercised  options cancelled  Outstanding at
during theyear ~ during the year - December 31,2016
(Kits)
(Nore 3)
(160,000) (2,625,000) 20,855,000
(6,057,500) (1,322,000) 60,757,000
(990,000) (5,560,000) 89,405,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR 2 7]
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Report of the Directors

As for the share option granted on December 23, 2009, the closing price of the
shares on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$8.26. The options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 23
December 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 to 22 December 2019.

As for the share option granted on January 17, 2011, the closing price of the shares
on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted was
HK$12.88. The options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from 17 January
2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 to 16 January 2021.

As for the share option granted on September 28, 2011, the closing price of the
shares on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$8.17. The exercisable period for 10,000,000 share options granted to Mr.
Shao Mingxiao is from September 28, 2017 to September 27, 2021. The remaining
options are exercisable in 4 tranches from 28 September 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
to 27 September 2021, the exercisable percentage is 10%, 30%, 30% and 30%

respectively.

As for the share option granted on November 4, 2014, the closing price of the
shares on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$9.37. The options are exercisable in 5 tranches from 4 November 2015,
2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 to 3 November 2024, the exercisable percentage is 10%,
15%, 20%, 25% and 30% respectively.

The share options reclassified to/from employees due to the appointment/resignation

of directors.

The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the dates on which

the option were exercised was HK$11.67.
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A summary of the principal terms of the Option Scheme (the “Scheme”)

is set out as follow:

@

(i)

(ii1)

(iv)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Participants (defined
in paragraph (ii) below) who have been granted Options under the
Scheme to subscribe for shares with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage Participants
to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and the
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a

whole.

Who may join

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at their discretion, invite
any directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and employees of any
member of the Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors,
contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, service providers
of any member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the

“Participants”) to participate in the Scheme.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme

Initially the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the Scheme or any other
option schemes adopted by the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate of the shares in issue on the date of approval of the
Scheme. The lapsed share options are excluded when calculating
the 10% limit.

A total number of 419,357,000 shares, representing 7.18% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report, ate

available for issue under the Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted pursuant to the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company to each
Participant in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of grant of the Options shall not exceed 1% of the total number of

shares in issue.
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(v)  Time of exercise of the Options

The period within which the Options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period must

expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant.

(vi) Payment on acceptance of Option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant to the Company on

acceptance of the Option offered as consideration for the grant.

(vii) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per share under the Scheme is a price
determined by the Board and notified to each Participant and shall
be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the SEHK on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the SEHK for the five SEHK
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of a share on the date of grant.

(viii) Remaining life of the Scheme
The Scheme will remain valid until October 31, 2019 after which
no further Options will be granted under the Scheme but in
respect of all Options which remain exercisable on such date, the

provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Company has two types of share award schemes namely, Pre-IPO Share
Award Scheme and Restricted Share Award Scheme. The Pre-IPO Share Award
Scheme was adopted before the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, on November 19, 2009. The Restricted Share Award
Schemes was adopted on October 28, 2014.

4 #t Annual Report 2016
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(a)

(b)

Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes to recognise

the contribution of certain of its employees, especially those whom
the Company considered had contributed to the early development
and growth of the Group, and to align their interests with those of the

shareholders of the Company.

A total of 94,014,000 shares (the “Awarded Shares”) were granted
to selected employees of the Group (the “Selected Employees”). For
the implementation of the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes, a trust was
established to hold the Awarded Shares for the Selected Employees up

until vested.

As at December 31, 2016, there were accumulated 92,783,800 shares
vested to the Selected Employees, 1,800,000 shares of which were vested

during the year.

Restricted Share Award Scheme

As an incentive to retain and encourage the employees for the continual
operation and development of the Group, the Board of the Company
resolved to adopt a restricted share award scheme (the “Award Scheme”)
on October 28, 2014 (the “Adoption Date”). Unless sooner terminated
by the Board, the Award Scheme shall be effective from the Adoption
Date and shall continue in full force and effect for a term of 8 years.
According to the Award Scheme, the Company has established a trust for
the employees (the “Trust”), trustee can purchased shares up to 3% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date from the
market out of cash contributed by the Group and be held in trust for the
relevant selected employees until such shares are vested with the relevant
selected employees in accordance with the provisions of the Award

Scheme.

From the Adoption Date to December 31, 2016, the Company had
through the trustee purchased total 55,608,000 shares from the market
(at an aggregate consideration of HK$679,830,633), representing 1.02
% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date,
54,983,000 shares of which were purchased in the year ended December
31, 2016 at an aggregate consideration of HK$674,040,241 (including

transaction costs).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, nil shares was granted to

selected employees of the Group under the terms of the Award Scheme.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at December 31, 2016, the interests of the directors and chief executive of

the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities

and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register which were

required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK")

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

wUN
P FE A A R RE RS (47 ) Interest in the Company (long position)
il
Betn Z W25
HEREH VA Er iy Lamue Interest in
Capacity/Nature Number of underlying
Name of director of interest ordinary shares shares
(W7t 2)
(Note 2)
EHE SREMGRCRVIEN (M7 1)  2,574,533,701 —
Wu Yajun Founder of a discretionary
trust (Note 1)
HR B 1BE gt TDN 9,545,000 39,600,000
Shao Mingxiao Beneficial Owner
(G HadEa A — 5,500,000
Zhao Yi Beneficial Owner
ZEEL A A 500,000 3,000,000
(A= —84F
+—HA -+ =HEZT)
Li Chaojiang Beneficial Owner
(appointed on
November 23, 2016)
L LR L 2N 50,000 550,000
Frederick Peter Churchouse Beneficial Owner
GRS SLETE 2PN — 600,000

Chan Chi On, Derek

Beneficial Owner

AR 2 vl i 25
% WA E 2 b
&% Approximate %
Amount  of interest in
of debentures  the Company
— 44.075%
1,200,000 3£ 7T 0.841%
USD1,200,000
(7L 3)
(Note 3)
— 0.094%
— 0.060%
- 0.010%
- 0.010%
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R A F R 2
JBeAr 2 W 2 &% BEATE 2 I
HEHEA Bb /RSP HEREH Interest in 4% Approximate %
Capacity/Nature Number of underlying Amount  of interest in
Name of director of interest ordinary shares shares of debentures  the Company
(Hat2)
(Note 2)
UES 2 ZEDN 50,000 450,000 — 0.008%
Xiang Bing Beneficial Owner
s L EE 2PN 160,000 240,000 — 0.006%
Zeng Ming Beneficial Owner
W5E Notes:
1 %55 2,574,533,701 A3 Charm Talent Incernational 1 These 2,574,533,701 shares are held by Charm Talent International Limited (“Charm

Limited ([ Charm Talent ) 4 © Charm Talent &
TRE BT A Silver Sea Asset Limited ([ Silver
Seal) 2 EHEA o 1M Silver Sea? ¥ T B AT B A
A1 HSBC International Trustee Limited ([HSBC
International Trustee |) Lh 5 [RK RS sLIIZREA
SRR o SRFRGE RN FRNER
At —Hl\REEL £ (T Rk DIERRLAR
HSBC International Trustee ff: 532 56 AL —TH
2HEER - RRFREEN R aH G BHA L L
AT R A o B S B & 58 Xv il
St (S R AR AR REAHE N ) $LAF 8 A Charm
Talent 74§ 2,574,533, 701 I O (¥ 1 4 -

2 B AR 5 T HE M T R %
JBCA B 1 PR o

3 ANFR T ZEET AR T
R FWARL675% R F =AW
(T545 1) o RRBAMESC EME Sy E A i A - R 52
{8 711,200,000 F T B HESR - AR B A S
F10.24% °

B bR sEE S —F A A=t
H o B s RA N EEAHABRA AT
S AT ] A B 25 0 A AR R O S ) R R 56
352 AR 7 A A 2w A7 B 1 55 R i R
SRR AR I S ) R0 A ) R A I A P 2
Bty ~ A BRSO SR A e R 2 B 2R IR - TR A
NARZEFRET—H BRIz B TR
MERTHISN > Hk R %5 2 RO SR 18 K2 T
L R A A5 R AN ) BSCHLAT A B s Y
PSRBT o I i R AT B T2 55 RER -
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Talent”). The entire issued share capital of Charm Talent is wholly-owned by Silver Sea
Asset Limited (“Silver Sea”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-
owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBC International Trustee”) as the
trustee of the Wu Family Trust. The Wu Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by
Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”) as settlor and HSBC International Trustee as trustee
on June 11, 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Wu Family Trust include certain family
members of Madam Wu. Madam Wu as founder of the Wu Family Trust is taken to be
interested in these 2,574,533,701 Shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

2 The relevant directors was granted options to subscribe for such number of shares under the

Option Scheme.

3 These are the senior notes issued by the Company in 2013 for the aggregate principal
amount of US$500 million at a rate of 6.75% due 2023 (“Notes”). Mr. Shao Mingxiao is
interested in the Notes in the amount of US$1,200,000 as beneficial owner, representing

0.24% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2016, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register which
were required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.
Other than the Option Scheme of the Company adopted on 1 November 2009,
none of Directors or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had been
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company

or any of its associated corporations, or had exercised any such right.
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Name of shareholder

%%
Cai Kui

Junson Development International

Limited (“Junson Development”)

Silverland Assets Limited
(“Silverland”)

HSBC International Trustee

Charm Talent

Silver Sea

Jumbomax Investments Limited

SILIE
Woo Kwong Ching, Peter

2l
Pao Pui Yung, Bessie
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

B/ BEfEE

Capacity/Nature of interest
SHREERERIEA (B 1)

Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
LA N (B7E2)

Registered owner (Note 2)

BRUHA N (i)
Registered owner (Note 1)

AR 2 R (WAL 1)

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)

ZREN(EL 34 4)
Trustee (Notes 1, 3 and 4)

BReHEa N (it 3)

Registered owner (Note 3)
PR 2 AR (M7 5)

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3)
S PERE I i (M7 s )

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 5)
SZPE T 2 R 5 (WAL s )

Interest of controlled corporation (Note 5)

e 2 s (7L 5)

Interest of spouse (Note 5)

Hampe
Number of

ordinary shares

1,544,941,904

3,100,000

1,544,941,904

1,544,941,904

4,119,565,605

2,574,533,701

2,574,533,701

350,130,000

350,130,000

350,130,000

As at December 31, 2016, the interests of persons, other than the directors or
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company representing 5% or more of the nominal value of shares comprised in

the relevant share capital of the Company as recorded in the register kept by the

AL v R A
WA 4L
Approximate %
of interest

in the Company

26.449%

0.053%
26.449%
26.449%
70.526%
44.075%
44.075%

5.994%

5.994%

5.994%
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Notes:

1 These 1,544,941,904 shares are held by Junson Development. The entire issued share
capital of Junson Development is wholly owned by Silverland, the entire issued share capital
of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of the Cai
Family Trust. The Cai Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Cai as settlor
and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on June 11, 2008. The beneficiary objects of
the Cai Family Trust include certain family members of Mr. Cai. Mr. Cai as founder of
the Cai Family Trust is taken to be interested in the 1,544,941,904 shares held by Junson
Development pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2 Mr. Cai Kui is beneficially interested in 3,100,000 shares.

3 These 2,574,533,701 shares are held by Charm Talent. The entire issued share capital of
Charm Talent is wholly owned by Silver Sea, the entire issued share capital of which is in
turn wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of the Wu Family Trust.
The Wu Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Wu as settlor and HSBC
International Trustee as trustee on June 11, 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Wu Family
Trust include certain family members of Madam Wu. The beneficiary objects of the Wu
Family Trust include certain family members of Madam Wu as founder of the Wu Family
Trust is taken to be interested in the 2,574,533,701 shares held by Charm Talent pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

4 According to the latest disclosure of interests filing submitted by HSBC International
Trustee, these 90,000 shares are held by HSBC International Trustee as trustee of several

other trusts which are independent third parties of Wu Family Trust and Cai Family Trust.

5 These 350,130,000 shares represent the corporate interest of Jumbomax Investments
Limited through a number of its wholly owned subsidiaries. Mr. Woo Kwong Ching, Peter
is interested in these 350,130,000 shares through the interest of corporation controlled by
him while Ms. Pao Pui Yung, Bessie is interested in these 350,130,000 shares through the

interest of spouse.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

During the year, the trustee of the Restricted Share Award Scheme purchased on
the SEHK a total of 54,983,000 shares at a total consideration of approximately
HKDG674,040,241 pursuant to the terms of the trust deed under the Restricted
Share Award Scheme. Other than the aforesaid, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the year.
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Report of the Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholder.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is subject to a number of laws and regulations in China concerning
overall environmental protection, impact to the environment, noise pollution

and environmental protection for development projects.

We place high emphasis on complying with relevant environmental laws
and regulations. We require our own staff and construction contractors to
comply with the relevant PRC laws and regulations relating to the quality of
construction including environmental, labour, social and safety regulations, as

well as our own standards and specifications.

We believe that we are in compliance in all material respects with applicable

environmental laws and regulations in China.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the

applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the directors confirm
that the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required under

the Listing Rules.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Schemes” in this section, no equity-linked agreements were

entered into during the year and subsisted at the end of the year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by Messts.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution for the reappointment of Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s auditor will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Wu Yajun

Chairperson

Hong Kong, March 24, 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate governance report
for the year ended December 31, 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of
corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve

its corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the year, the Company had adopted, applied and complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK

(the “Listing Rules”) except the following deviations:

During the year, the Company has not established Nomination Committee as
required by the provision A.5 of the Code. Madam Wu Yajun, Chairperson of
the Board, is responsible for the nomination and appointment of directors. In
accordance with the Company’s corporate strategy, Madam Wu will review
and discuss with other Board members the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board from time to
time and identify individuals suitably qualified to become directors and make
recommendations to the board on the nomination for directorship. The Board
is of view that Chairperson responsible for the nomination directorship is more

effective than the establishment of Nomination Committee at current period.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Madam Wu Yajun serves as the Chairperson of the Board whereas Mr. Shao
Mingxiao, an executive director, serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Board currently comprises four executive directors (including
Madam Wu) and four independent non-executive Directors and therefore has
a fairly strong independence element in its composition. The Chairperson of
the Board should be responsible for the management of the Board while the
Chief Executive Officer should be responsible for the day-to-day management of

business. The division of responsibilities should be set out in writing as below:

Responsibilities of the Chairperson of the Board:

1. To provide leadership for the Board; to ensure that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities; to ensure that good

corporate governance practices and procedures are established.

2. To attend annual general meeting and ensure that issues raised by
shareholders are answered by the chairperson of the Board committees, or

the appropriate alternate on the meeting.
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3. To lead the formulation of corporate strategies, mid-to-long term plans of

development, annual budget and significant organizational and structural

adjustments.
4. To lead the formulation of an investment and financing decision system.
5. To provide leadership in respect of corporate risk and crisis management.
6. To lead the recruitment and appointment of senior management

and Board members of the Company; to participate under the
recommendation of the remuneration committee in decision making
in respect of remuneration and bonuses of, and share option incentive
schemes for, directors and senior management, and other material changes

and reforms in human resources management system and remuneration

system.
7. To participate inauguration of key projects.
8. To provide leadership in respect of corporate culture.

Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer:

1. To provide leadership in the daily corporate operation, the execution of

corporate strategies and achieving the objectives of plans.

2. To establish and continuously improve the management system and

management team.

3. To lead the corporate team and continue to retain and train management
talents.
THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises eight directors, including four executive
directors namely Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhao Yi and
Mr. Li Chaojiang and four independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Frederick Peter Churchouse, Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr.
Zeng Ming.
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The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
overseeing the Group's business, strategic decisions and performances, as well
as performing the corporate governance duties, including: (a) developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;
(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and directors; and (e) reviewing
the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report). During the year, the
Board has reviewed the Code of Conduct of the Group, assessed the risk
management and internal control measures of the Group, assessed the training
needs of the Directors and senior management and arranged relevant trainings
accordingly, and reviewed the status of compliance with Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Board was satisfied with the effectiveness of the Company’s

corporate governance policy.

The Board has delegated the management the day-to-day management and
administrative functions as they think fit and provides guidance of the rights
of management. The Board will review the relevant delegation from time to
time to ensure that clear guidance and rights have been provided and the proper
reporting procedures have been complied. In addition, the Board has also
established various Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the investment committee (the “Investment Committee”) (together, the
“Board Committees”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles

in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, businesses, family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.

All of the independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of
three years. None of them holds any other offices in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries except that each of them has been granted options under the Option
Scheme adopted by the Company on November 1, 2009, details of which are
set out in the Directors’ Report. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors a confirmation of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of

the independent non-executive directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the

requirements of the business of the Company.
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On November 23, 2016, the Board approved the appointment of Mr. Li
Chaojiang as executive directors of the Company and on December 5, 2016, the
board approved the resignation of Mr. Yan Jiangguo as executive director of the

Company.

Board diversity policy
The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) since August

19, 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant to the Policy,
the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to professional experience, culture
and education background, skill and knowledge, gender, age and length of

service.

The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable objectives to

implement the Policy.

During the year under review, the Company held four Board meetings and one

general meeting, the attendance of each director is as follows:

hEEE GRS i) S VN /e v
X N ExE e

No. of Board meetings attended/  No. of general meetings attended/

Hg Directors Total no. of Board meetings Total no. of general meetings
WS Executive Directors
DL Wu Yajun 4/4 1/1
TR Shao Mingxiao 4/4 111
PR it Yan Jianguo 4/4 n
L3 Zhao Yi 4/4 11
ZERL ) Li Chaojiang 2 0/0 0/0
WAL HATE S Independent non-executive Directors
A Frederick Peter Churchouse 4/4 1
PR % Chan Chi On, Derek 4/4 11
J Xiang Bing 4/4 11
W Zeng Ming 4/4 111
BfREL - BUEBUEER —F—ANE+ AL HEHEAL Note 1:  Mr. Yan Jianguo resigned as executive director of the Company on December 5, 2016.
FAMATHS -
MiaE2 o ZENLEER -F-AFE+—-AZF=HHZE Note 2:  Mr. Li Chaojiang appointed as executive director of the Company on November 23, 2016.
AR ARRITES -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on November 1,
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in
paragraph B.1.2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include evaluating and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration system and package of the directors and senior
management, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee consists
of Madam Wu Yajun and Mr. Li Chaojiang two executive directors, and Mr.
Zeng Ming, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, three independent
non-executive directors. Mr. Zeng Ming is the Chairperson of Remuneration

Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year to conduct a
review on the remuneration structure of the directors and senior management
and a review on the basic remuneration internal of senior management of the

Group. The attendance of each member is as follows:

R 2 R K

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
1/1
1/1
1/1
/1

1/1

Note 1:  Mr. Li Chaojiang appointed as executive director of the Company on November 23, 2016.
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Details of the remuneration of the directors during the year are set out in note

43 to the financial statements. The remuneration of the Senior Management

during the year falls within the following bands:

A

Number of Individuals

i T

(BB AY) (RSB SA)

Total Total

remuneration remuneration

(including (excluding

share-based share-based
payment) payment)

Nil to HK$5,000,000 1 1
HK$5,000,000 to HK$6,000,000 - -
HK$6,000,000 to HK$7,000,000 1 1
HK$7,000,000 to HK$8,000,000 — 1
HK$8,000,000 to HK$9,000,000 1 -
HK$9,000,000 to HK$10,000,000 — 1
Over HK$10,000,000 7 6
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on November 1, 2009 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in paragraph
C.3.3 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process
and internal control and risk management systems of the Group and nominating
and monitoring external auditors. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek,
Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, and Mr. Xiang Bing and is chaired by Mr.
Chan Chi On, Derek. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the
chairperson of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate professional and

accounting qualifications.

The Audit Committee held two meetings with the senior management
and independent auditor of the Company during the year, to consider the
independence and audit scope of independent auditor, and to review and discuss
the risk management and internal control systems, interim and annual financial
statements of the Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor

before submitting to the Board for their approval.
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The attendance of each member is as follows:

iAE Ve VS Ve

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
2/2
2/2

2/2

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee reports directly to the Board and is responsible for
investment proposal (including but not limited to appraising land acquisition
as well as making land purchase decisions) submitted by the regional companies
and the business development department of the headquarters. The Investment
Committee currently consists of Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr.
Zhao Yi, Mr. Yuan Chun and Mr. Xu Aiguo.

The Investment Committee held 29 meetings during the year, to discuss and
make investment decision on 349 projects. The attendance of each member is as

follows:

iAE Ve VS Ve

No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
29/29
28/29
28/29
26/29
27129

28/29

Note 1:  Mr. Yan Jianguo resigned as executive director and member of Investment Committee of

the Company on December 5, 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors are aware of the latest development relevant to
the operation of the Group, the Company has arranged and funded suitable
training for the Directors. During the year, relevant Directors have attended
the corporate governance related training organized by the Company. Certain
directors also attended business seminars, and seminars organized by accounting
firm and the third party institutes on directors’ duties and development in

securities laws.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Given that the Nomination Committee has not been established, the Board as
a whole will be responsible for the selection and approval of the new Directors
and assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors.
The Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 3 years.
Under the articles of associations of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided
that every Directors shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every three years. The Board will consider the factors including
the expertise, experience and integrity of the candidates when selecting the new

Directors.

On November 23, 2016, Mr. Li Chaojiang was appointed as executive director
and a member of the Remuneration Committee. On December 5, 2016, Mr.
Yan Jianguo resigned as executive director and a member of the Investment

Committee due to his decision to consideration of other personal development.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are
RMB4,504,000 and RMB1,038,000, respectively.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2016 which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
directors consider that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with all appropriate accounting standards and requirements and reflect amounts
that are based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent
judgment of the Board and the management. The directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going

concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section

headed “Independent Auditor’s Report™ on page 112 of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The directors are responsible for the maintenance of an effective system of
internal control. The Company has established internal audit department which
is responsible for the independent review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system and for the periodic report of the auditing result to
the Audit Committee and the Board. The Company has also engaged external
professional agent to re-assess and evaluate the internal control system of the

Company.

During the year, all the functional departments in the Group constantly
strengthened their daily supervision and improved their internal management,
respectively. The Group had launched certain measures and improvement in
various management systems to enhance its internal control, including “Measure
for the Group's Product Research and Development Platform and Specialized
Plans”, “Measure for Compensation to Clients”, “Utilization Regulation for the
Group’s Business Invitation Agency”, “Measure for the Group’s Commercial
Accounts Receivable”, “Design Sub-suppliers and Design Fee Management
System of Longfor Group”, “Measures for Management of Project Quality
Examination and Assessment of Longfor Group” and “Measures for Management

and Inspection of Commercial Tender of the Group”, etc.
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During the year, as the internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent and objective review of operation and internal control of the
Company, the risk management centre of the Group carried out a series of

special audit, which includes:

1. Routine reviews of Yunnan Company

2. Routine reviews of Xian Company

3. Routine reviews of Changsha Company
4. Routine reviews of Shenyang Company

5. Routine reviews of Shanghai Company

6. Routine reviews of Property Management
7. Special reviews of Authority Management

The Company has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Beijing Branch in 2016 and appointed its corporate risk
management services department to assess and evaluate the internal control
of the Company. The scope of re-assessment includes internal control and
protection measures related to our business risks and the control of business
flow. Our business risks covered risk of strategy positioning and portfolio
management, risk of urban location selection and plot selection, risk of
commercial complex’ site selection and positioning, risk of misjudgment of
real estate cycle, risk of economic volatility and policy change, residential
products positioning risk and risk of brain drain and turnover of staff on key
position. Control of business flow covered sales and payment collection, market
and promotion management, daily capital management, contact management
and information system control. The re-assessment report of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu demonstrates the Group has established key internal control and
process within the selected scope of work to respond to relevant risks, the overall

control condition of the Company is good.

All of the above mentioned internal and external audit report and the follow-up
measures have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board
is of opinion that the internal control system of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2016 is effective and sufficient.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is the basic and necessary factor for achieving
strategic goals of the Group. As such, the Group has established the Risk
Management System of Longfor Group, which specifies the Group’s risk
management organizational system, detailed responsibility, overall procedures
of risk management, risk assessment method and regular risk reporting

mechanism.

Risk management organizational system: The risk management organizational
system of Longfor Group consists of three basic lines of defense under the
leadership of the Board, namely the management members and employees of
the business departments directly under the Company and their subordinate
divisions as the first line of defense; the risk management team consisting of
the management members of the Group with the CEO as team leader and CFO
as deputy team leader as the second line of defense; and the Audit Committee
and internal audit centre as the third line of defense. The Board shall be the
ultimate accountability body of risk management, and shall have the right to
provide guidance and make final decisions on the policy, system and responding
plan of risk management of the Group, conduct assessment on the risk appetite
of the Group and control the balance between the realization of strategic goals
and risk management. The Audit Committee and internal audit centre are
authorized by the Board to advise on and monitor the implementation of risk
management of the Group and review the annual risk management report.
The risk management team is responsible for the ongoing improvement of risk
management system as well as the implementation of management procedures
including risk identification, assessment, responding plan and risk management
report, covering the annual update of risk database, follow-up and monitoring of
the implementation of responding plan and the preparation and reporting of the
risk management report. The direct business departments and their subordinate
divisions are risk owners and shall manage and monitor their respective risk

exposure.

Major risk management procedures: Through various interviews and
communications with the management members of different business units
and the headquarter of the Company, the management procedures have been
formulated, which include target setting, risk identification, risk assessment,

risk response and supervision and risk reporting.

U Target setting: Target setting is the first step of risk management. The
Company shall firstly set the annual target in order to identify and
assess the risks affecting the realization of the target and take necessary
action to control such risks. The targets of the Company are set in four
aspects, namely strategic target, operational target, compliance target and

financial target.
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J Risk identification: The identification of risk events from the operational
activities and important business procedures of each business unit
shall be conducted in bottom-up and top-down approaches through
questionnaire, group discussion, expert consultation, policy analysis and
industry benchmarking. Risk database shall be established and updated
annually. Risk owner and responding measures shall be determined for

risks identified.

J Risk assessment: The Company shall rank the risks identified through
assessment based on vulnerability and effect. Risk management team
shall conduct annual review on the risk assessment criteria (vulnerability
and effect) and report to the Audit Committee and final approved by the
Board.

o Risk response: Based on the result of risk assessment, the business units
of the Group shall propose the risk management and control measures
and recommendations for the risks involved in various aspects such as
improvement of business procedures and internal control system as well as
control of key procedures, and formulate relevant responding plans. Such
management and control plans shall be implemented in daily operation in

the form of management system.

U Risk reporting: The Company has established the systems of annual
risk management report and special risk management report. The risk
management team shall prepare the annual report and special report with

the support of internal audit department.

In early 2016, the Group conducted the risk identification and assessment
for 2016 and mapped out the risks faced by Longfor Group in 2016, which
included 6 primary risks (namely, strategic and investment risk, brand and
reputation risk, operational risk, financial risk, organizational risk and legal
and compliance risk), 20 secondary risks and 40 tertiary risks. The Group also
determined the top ten risk factors for 2016 and formulated the responding
plan through the assessment based on vulnerability and effect. The top ten risk
factors included risk related to strategy positioning and business portfolio, risk
related to urban location and plot selection, risk related to commercial complex
site selection and positioning, risk related to misjudgment of real estate market
cycle, risk related to the change of policy causing economic fluctuation, risk
related to residential product positioning, competitive risk, risk related to brain
drain and turnover of staff on key position, risk related to brand image and risk
related to property operating model. Detail of risks and responding plans were
submitted by the Audit Committee and confirmed by the Board for approval.
During the year, the Group monitored the implementation of risk management
based on the risk responding plans and prepared a report at the end of the year.
Certain special audit reports were also completed. The Board is of opinion that
the risk management system of the Group for the year ended December 31,

2016 is effective and sufficient.
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The Board shall be responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and shall review the effectiveness of such systems. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

DISCLOSURE INSIDE INFORMATION

Inside Information Disclosure Working Group (hereinafter referred to as “Inside
Information Working Group”) is a working group established under the
Board of the Company, which is responsible for the administration of inside

information disclosure.

The Composition of Inside Information Working Group

. The team leader of the Inside Information Working Group is the chief

executive officer of the Group.

*  The members of the Inside Information Working Group include: the
chairman of the Board, the chief financial officer, the company secretary,
the officer in charge of Investor Relations, the officer in charge of Public

Affairs and Media, and the officer in charge of the Legal Department.

®  The secretary of the Inside Information Working Group is the company
secretaty, who is responsible for communicating and reporting between

the Inside Information Working Group and the Board.

The Terms of References for the Inside Information Working
Group

®  The Inside Information Working Group is the daily execution unit that
is engaged in the preliminary determination and handling of inside

information, whilst the Board is the decision making unit.

®  The Inside Information Working Group conducts proper inquiry,
confirms fact, preliminarily assesses sensitive informations’ significant to

the Company, and timely reports to the Board where necessary.

®  The Inside Information Working Group regularly review the effectiveness
and execution of the processes. It also conducts training from time to
time, so as to ensure that the staffs of the Company that may be exposed
to inside information are aware of the disclosure liability and handling

principles for inside information.
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Handling Procedures That May Involve Inside Information

As to the business information that is reasonably expected in becoming inside
information (including, but not limited to acquisitions and mergers, movement

in share capital, and organizational restructuring etc):

> The relevant staff capturing such information shall report to the Inside
Information Working Group promptly, and has the duty to keep such

information confidential;

> The Inside Information Working Group shall conduct proper
investigation and confirmation of facts for the said information.
Where necessary, it will make preliminary judgment upon consulting
professional opinions and report to the Board promptly. The relevant
disclosure matters will be conducted by the company secretary and the

Legal Department;

> If the said information is involved with Safe Habours, the Inside Information
Working Group shall supervise and ensure the confidentiality of the
information. If it is noted that the confidentiality of the information has not
been preserved, it shall report to the Board and disclose the information as

soon as reasonably practicable.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the guidelines for the directors’ dealings in the securities of the
Company. Upon specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended December 31, 2016 in relation to their securities

dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management and
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of

the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Madam Zhang Lei joined the Group in 2008, and is an employee of the
Company. She was appointed as company secretary on August 21, 2015. Madam
Zhang graduated from the Central University of Finance and Economics with
a bachelor’s degree in international finance. She is a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an Affiliated Person of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training during the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in enhancing the corporate transparency as well
as establishing market confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a
stringent internal control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely
disclosure of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws and
regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equally access to information.
The Company has an investor relations department to serve as an important
communication channel between the Company and its shareholders and
other investors. To strive for effective communication and transparency of the
Company, the personnel in charge have frequent contacts with the shareholders
and investors through various channels such as internet, telephone and email.
During the relevant year, the Company has introduced its development strategy
and recent business development to the investors in large investment forums and
site visits. On-site visits to the projects of the Company have been arranged for
the fund managers and analysts from Hong Kong and overseas. The Company
endeavours to create opportunities for direct communication with investors and
to provide the latest development of the Company as well as information of
the PRC real property industry to the capital market in time. In addition, the
annual general meeting also provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairperson of the Board, as well as chairperson of
each of the Board Committees, or in their absence, members of the respective
Committees, and the external auditors of the Company, is available to answer
questions from shareholders at annual general meetings and extraordinary
general meetings of the Company. As such, investors’ understanding of and
confidence in the Company can be enhanced. The Company maintains a website
at www.longfor.com, where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance and

other information are available for public access.
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Information Disclosure

The Group discloses information in compliance with the securities regulations
of the SEHK, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the
Group is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public to make

rational and informed decisions.

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

and Propose Resolutions

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings.
Any one or more Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the

requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the company’s articles of association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set

out in the above paragraph.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director

are available on the Company’s website www.longfor.com.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 15/F., 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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With growing concern on corporate social responsibility, in order to enable
stakeholders to have a better understanding of the policy, measures and
performance regarding environment, society and governance of the Group,
the Group has prepared this Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(hereinafter referred as the “Report”) in accordance with the requirements of
Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of the
Main Board Listing Rules of the HKEx.

The Report covers the principal businesses in relation to property development,
property investment and property management during the period from January

1 to December 31, 2016 (hereinafter referred as the “reporting period”).

The Board is responsible for supervising the Group’s environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) strategy and reporting. The Management of the
Group is responsible for implementing relevant policies and measures to
ensure the effectiveness of risk management and internal control system in
the environmental, social and governance aspects and to promote the Group's

sustainable development.
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AR WA TR B R & & 50 3 i 3 In order to provide stakeholder with contents and information which meet their
B BT T AWM EHE KB T2 K expectation, the Group has engaged the Management and staff from various
G o WA R THERE e departments for the preparation of the Report. According to our review on the
TR A3 S TN B 65 LA B 0 Wi o S 8 5 0 Group’s operations, understanding towards related environmental, social and
FRVEENE > A S A I E T LA B governance issues and analysis on the importance of those issues to stakeholder,

I we have developed the following reporting scope for the Report:

Aspects set out in the Environmental,

WRTRE - AL RER EEMNRE e LERER Social and Governance Material Environmental, Social
WG| Hies Reporting Guide of the HKEx and Governance Aspects
A B A. Environmental
AL HEC o FHAETEE K Al. Emissions *  Emissions from property
development projects
o mEFRET * Emissions of greenhouse gases
o BEY *  Waste
A2. BIRFER o REURME A2. Use of Resources ®  Use of energy
o KU *  Use of water
A3 B RRRER o RELRAREMZEER A3. The Environment and Natural ® Management of the impact on the
Resources environment and natural resources
B. M B. Social
B1. fR o IR AR B1. Employment ®  Recruitment and dismissal
o KRB ®  Performance assessment
o HERES *  Attendance and leave
o HAbAER *  Other welfares
o PERE ®  Equal opportunities
B2. fHEH %4 o BEMRIRT S B2. Health and Safety *  Workplace health and safety
B3. LA o BTERERIE B3. Development and Training *  Staff development and training
o HEILEIEA ® New staff training course
(it ®  Vocational schools
o FENREHE ® Longmai Plan
B4. 4 THEH o PilkETLREHS L B4. Labour Standards * Prevention of child and forced
labour
Bs. fiLMEsHE o MEREBRTRET Rat 6 B R AR B5. Supply Chain Management ®  Management of environmental and
social risks in the supply chain
B6. M EAT o EMANHER B6. Product Responsibility ®  Quality of products and services
B7. RA5 o RETRUERE B7. Anti-corruption ® Anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering
B8, AL o LIRS HEH R AR B8. Community Investment * Community engagement program

and donation
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

Al

Emissions

As a leading real estate developer in China, the Group places high
emphasis on sustainable development of projects and supporting
environmental protection. The Group has real estate projects
over major cities in China providing quality services for tens of
thousands of customers. We implement comprehensive emission
and waste reduction policies, such that environmental factors have
been taken into serious consideration at every stage from project
planning to operation. The Group introduces environmental
elements into our project designs and achieves the target of energy
conservation and emission reduction through various innovative
technologies and forward-looking design proposals, so as to control

emission at source.

The Group is committed to complying with laws and regulations
with respect to the environment in China, including but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the Peoples Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution
and Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance

with laws and regulations with respect to the environment.

Emissions from property development projects

The construction of all the property development projects of the
Group are outsourced to third-party contractors. As such, the
Group does not directly generate air emissions, water discharge
and construction waste pollution arising from construction
work. However as a green enterprise, the Group shoulders the
responsibility of supervising the environmental protection work of
contractors. The Group has formulated Measures for Management
of Project Quality Examination and Assessment of Longfor
Group to evaluate construction work based on worksite clearance,
storage of construction materials, worksite management and other
factors, so as to encourage contractors to minimize impact on the
environment. Such evaluation is carried out on a regular basis and
the evaluation result will also be taken into account subsequently
when selecting contractors. The policy encourages contractors
to carry out green construction for reducing air emissions, water
discharge and construction waste and to engage qualified recyclers

to handle construction waste so as to avoid secondary pollution.
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Emissions of greenhouse gases

Emissions of greenhouse gases by the Group are primarily
attributable to use of energy. During the reporting period, carbon
dioxide equivalent (CO2e) generated from the Group’s operation
totalled 645,686 tons'. We have executed various energy-saving
plans to reduce our carbon footprint. Please refer to the part “A2

Use of Resources” below.

Waste

Wastes generated internally by the Group are primarily
consumables in its offices and project areas. In accordance with
the internationally accepted 4Rs waste management principle
(i.e. reusing materials, replacing with eco-friendly alternatives,
reducing wastes and recycling), we have proactively implemented
various emission and waste reduction measures in daily operation
to reduce wastes generated from offices and property management,
promoted awareness of environmental protection among staff and
customers, and encouraged participation, so as to achieve synergy.
During the reporting period, the major type of wastes generated
by the Group were paper products, such as office paper and paper
cups used in the reception, totalling 183 tons; and plastic bottles
for drinking water at its offices and project areas, totalling 819

kilograms.?

The Group handles waste in line with green principles. All the
wastes generated from its offices, shopping malls and property
management are collected by qualified contractors. The Group
also reduces wastes at source. Departments have implemented
various waste reduction measures and reduced wastes based on the

principles of replace, reduce and recycle.

The calculation of carbon emission is performed in accordance with UK Government
Conversion Factors for greenhouse gas (GHG) reporting published by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra), Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs
of HKEx and Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China promulgated by
the Department of Climate Change of the National Development and Reform Commission
of the PRC.

It represented the procurement volume (which is similar to the waste volume) of
consumables of the Group during the reporting period and did not include those wastes
generated by tenants, property owners or other third-parties in the Group's projects or

properties.
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A2

In daily office work, the Group promotes papetless office, which
makes use of computer system for approval and record, so as to
avoid paper waste. Offices also promote double sided printing.
Printers are installed with toners and ink cartridges with
environmental certification and capable of controlling the number
of colour printing. Recycling trays for printed papers are placed
next to the printers, so as to increase the reuse of printed papers
and generate less waste papers. Waste papers and paper boxes are
collected by recyclers for recycling. In order to reduce the waste of
plastic bottles and paper cups, office staff proactively bring their

own cups.

Apart from offices, the Group has also formulated a series of
initiatives in property management for projects to reduce the
wastes generated by the operation of the Group itself and its
shopping malls and ensure wastes are properly handled in an
environmentally-friendly manner. The Group places recycling
bins at project sites for sorting and recycling domestic wastes and
construction wastes, and increasing the efficiency of recycling.
All of the wastes generated from its projects are removed and
handled by qualified professional cleaning companies or municipal
sanitation department. For rubbish storage, the Group adopts
advanced compression-type rubbish bins to avoid odour and
flies and mosquitoes. The Group also organizes training on
waste sorting in its projects areas, which mainly targets property
owners, promoters of waste sorting and property cleaning staff
etc., to improve the effectiveness of recycling of wastes. Regarding
biological wastes, the Group performs hazard-free decomposition
with microbial agents in biochemical pools and grilles of projects
and professional contractors are engaged for the manual and
mechanical cleaning of biochemical pools to reduce biological

waste discharge.

Use of Resources

The Group strictly complies with the Energy Conservation Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and helps its employees to develop

the habit of resource saving and recycling.

In order to protect natural resources and enhance operating
efficiency, we closely monitor and maximise the use of resources
and put an end to waste. Each of our departments reports on the

use of resources regularly and takes timely action to tackle the
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The Group also compiles a series of policies in respect of the use of
various natural resources and energy, and promotes energy-saving
and cost-saving measures through staff manual and posters for

employees’ reference.

Use of energy

The Group's direct energy consumption was mainly petrol used in
vehicles for administrative purpose. During the reporting period,
the volume of petrol used by the Group totalled 303,205 litres.
The Group’s indirect energy consumption was mainly electricity,
totalling 949,455,653 kWh’,

We are aware that reduction in energy use not only can reduce
greenhouse gases emission, but also save unnecessary expenses for
the Group. As such, during the reporting period, the Group has
implemented various energy-saving plans to enhance its energy

efficiency.

In our offices, the Group provides employees with low-power-
consuming notebooks, and energy-efficient lighting system
are deployed in office. In addition, the Group raises employee
awareness of energy-saving through emails and notices, such as
reminding them to turn off the lights and air-conditioners after
work. We install video equipment in the offices to promote video
conferencing as possible and curtail business travel to bring down
carbon emissions from transportation. Lastly, the Group has
remodified the air-conditioning system in our commercial property
projects and adopted ice thermal storage technology to raise
the efficiency of the air-conditioning system, thereby reducing

electricity consumption.

The energy consumption did not take into account the energy consumed by tenants,

property owners or other third parties in the Group's projects or properties.



BB ALE KRR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A5 A 5 I TIT 1 ) S PR The Group promotes energy-saving in property management
A % [ A1 19 55 3t 7 T HEAT B AR departments in major cities for the real estate projects in the
i - LA AR A8 B R A A7 SE AT AR region, taking a lead in driving the industry to undertake
JRE BT RE e o 788 1R 4% Hb ) S 18 corresponding energy-saving measures. With the efforts of the
I3 0 > AR A (A ST s T property management departments, we have achieved the following
LU R results in various cities:

HofiE A B Yk 2 K

Regional Measures and results of energy conservation and emission reduction

Company

N o Hu T RUG R LED B ARNE 767 R REAEHI4) 289,000 T FLIF

Dalian Replacing with 767 LED energy-saving lights for underground carparks, saving 289,000 kWh of

electricity per year

3] HEJEE A R N (5 HE R LED BT BB 9,175
Sunan Replacing with 9,175 LED energy-saving lights for passageways and underground carpark
SR LL ~ TR UE M A A 36 1 5080 R o A P B

Replacing 36 manual light switches with voice-controlled switches for the passageways of Rose and

Ginkgo Valley and Sunshine City Project
JURR AR IE R A ~ TERR AT ~ a8 2 S T3 oo 118 T 580 1R Y 5 I e B )

Replacing a total of 600 manual light switches with voice-controlled switches for the passageways,

elevator halls and fire exit corners of Fragrance Chianti
JUBEIEF RS FOBAE S0 R LED Bl RERE - ALt 780 1

Retrofitting a total of 780 common fluorescent lights to LED energy-saving lights for the carpark of Jiu

Shu Project

BRI o IR F AT R B R O LED BT RERS 3k 3600 1
Suzhou Retrofitting a total of 3600 traditional fluorescent lights to LED energy-saving lights for projects
L o B~ ARREEE - Al B LSRR F L R 0SB LED BT RERE > 483E 3,500 1

Shanghai Retrofitting a total of 3,500 carpark lights to LED energy-saving lights for Sunshine City, Azure Chianti
(Bai Yin Lu), Hill of Good Hope, Rose and Ginkgo Villa and other projects

T o MR A Jdh T P R B LED B AR 208

Qingdao Replacing with 208 LED energy-saving lights for passageways and underground carparks

EY o JEH MO EL R LED B AEAE > A3 30,324 - BAEETE BRAILA 1,377,000 T HLFF
Chongqing Replacing a total of 30,324 lighting fixtures with LED energy-saving lights, saving about 1,377,000

kWh of electricity per year in total
AR~ EHEITITRESCE - B TR RAILA 815,000 T FUHF

Carrying out energy-saving renovation for transformers and elevators, saving about 815,000 kWh of

electricity per year in total

4E #t Annual Repore 2016
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Hla A

ETATE R P S
Regional

Company

Measures and results of energy conservation and emission reduction

B o JEH MU A EH LED B fEME > 483k 1,880 1 - MAEHT & B R AIL4 126,000 T FLIF

Ningbo Replacing a total of 1,880 lighting fixtures with LED energy-saving lights, saving about 126,000 kWh
of electricity per year in total

Aexd o 11 fRIE H AT (RS SR LED B AR 4,945 1 > B HI 850,000 T RLIF B

Beijing Replacing with 4,945 LED energy-saving lights for 11 underground carparks, saving 850,000 kWh of
electricity per year

B o BUMARBIEE - FILBF - FEROEF S HE R 2015 FHME T T HELED M i - AL g ik

Hangzhou 2,425 B LED B A6 > 4348 5483 420,000 T FLIFF > 1 % 3R 60%
Renovating underground carparks of Shaoxing Hometown, Chunjiang Land, Chianti Riverside and other
projects in Hangzhou with LED lighting in 2015, replacing a total of 2,425 LED energy-saving lights,
saving more than 420,000 kWh of electricity per year and reaching an energy saving rate of 60%

B o B WIE AT EUG SR 645 1A LED BT RERE - 4R E R 40 139,000 T LI

Xiamen Replacing with 645 LED energy-saving lights for the underground carparks of Jiayu Phase I (5521 1]
JHH), saving about 139,000 kWh of electricity per year

JRAD o 10 fATH H 58 AT R UK B s > b R - AR AR I H R 2015 4R

Chengdu SCTE A > B 3 A S 1 K S B R O 7R AR T BT A A 45,000 TILRE
Completed the renovation of non-negative pressure secondary water supply equipment for 10 projects,
among which Jinnan Paradise Walk, Century City and Times Paradise Walk completed the renovation in
2015, saving about 45,000 kWh of electricity per year after the water pump energy-saving renovation.

KR Use of water

A IR SERI AT K & 2
18,541,919 3. 7 K4 o

AEBEVKRERNE R > WEH
TR K i w0 R K
B o SR A AR B 2 W) 2 B E
i T T S SR AR R B TR B
AR > BN iE B T % B
PHOKHEER - B 40 /K5 o T 4 B B
LELTHESYE DS S W NGV
HEE i ke UK BB - 8
SRS > RARE IR A B
Hlfok g BOBEKIRE -

During the reporting period, the Group's aggregate water

consumption amounted to 18,541,919 cubic meters".

The Group recognizes the preciousness of water resources and
implements concrete plans on water efficiency to reduce water
consumption. In our headquarter and regional companies, we
enhance employee awareness of water conservation through emails,
notices and other channels. For example, we remind employees to
turn off water taps after use and save water. All of the commercial
properties of the Group are installed with water-saving devices,
such as sensor faucet and variable speed pump, which automatically
control water supply based on actual consumption, and thus

reducing water wastage.

‘ SRR B BRI ~ 36 FHO0 A =T R A 4
LI SAER K -

The water consumption did not take into account the water consumed by tenants, property

owners or other third parties in the Group's projects or properties.
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BEAN - FAMHE SR N RE A B 1 P 45 Besides, although we cannot directly control the water
[ Hb 7 JE H 9 3 LS B FEK consumption of property owners and tenants of our real estate
B (H& RIR T H Y SE R E IR Y projects, our property management departments in major
EE RIS I - WKFE KR cities have proactively taken various measures to reduce water
R ARG - consumption. Details of cases are as below:

Ho [ 4 7] B 485 B kK

Regional Measures and results of water saving

Company

fikm o TIOR3 B O SR AR AL 0 B A PR R Oy IR A A TR T K 30%
Sunan SEHK 493,600 M

Replacing traditional watering with irrigation for landscaping and greening of Sunshine City I & II,

saving 30% more water compared with past approach, and representing approximately 3,600 tonnes

of water saved per year

L o PRI E T TR A K o A A R AT BT K > AR K40 4,500 M
Shanghai Using river water for the summer watering in the lawn of Sunshine City, reducing the consumption

of municipal water effectively, and representing approximately 4,500 tonnes of water saved per year

HE o BIEFETHOKAIN - BEERARE S K TR > S48 RKEIEL 19,100 M
Chongqing Carrying out water conservation work including wastewater utilization, leak checking and

maintenance of pipes in our projects, saving about 19,100 tonnes of water per year in total

Jbm o BRWLL - AEEIEA - FWGE S IE B B AR AL BT RSB O B S O A B - M R R
Beijing 213,700 FJ5 K » REAEH K B 45,800 M

Replacing traditional watering with mobile micro-itrigation technology for landscaping and greening
of Rose and Ginkgo Villa, Chianti, Chianti Riverside projects, covering an area of 213,700 square
meters and saving 45,800 tonnes of water per year

o FIEE R TAESERAKACMEZERS BB T > WD FUKIhGE 5 B RS IR e
ZE T HARE R A KA e T o AR AT A K e D K BRI A 5 R R A
FTBE TTRIE > B 27K B IR
Applying waterless operation mode in cleaning work of our Projects and reducing water washing by
increasing wiping process; using sweeping cars, 3-in-1 floor-cleaning cars and high-pressure water
jets for daily cleaning to replace traditional washing and reduce water wastage; performing road
washing during rainy days, so as to save water

o FEEL BRI A H F A B I PR K R ST OE o ] R K T IR R > AR KR
2,200 M
Retrofitting the drainage system of gardens of Tangning and Summer Palace Splendor projects,

allowing reuse of water for lawn irrigation and saving 2,200 tonnes of water per year

B o HBHR B A AL REE FKROR T ok SR 4L > B8 LI & K 8340 13,057 W
Hangzhou Adopting reclaimed water treatment system for sprinkling irrigation of garden greening of Chianti

Riverside, saving about 13,057 tonnes of water in total since its operation

4E #t Annual Repore 2016
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Ho [ 4 7] B K H e PR

Regional Measures and results of water saving

Company

JE ] o filE B T &R A ARADKE Sl RERKE A

Xiamen Setting a limit on the water consumption per person per month in staff quarters and requiring staffs

to pay their own water bills when exceeding such limit
o M L IR B RE R KRS 5 Tk T 4 B4R P 0 AE K HEE o

Installing energy-saving toilet tanks in our properties; and energy-saving faucets for washing basins.

JEAD o BIAHEHREVKOKFESAILA 1,305 0 - WD KA 259% > 4 HIK R4 3,400 B
Chengdu Replacing with a total of 1,395 water-saving faucets, saving approximately 25% water and

representing approximately 3,400 tonnes of water saved per year

m o EPUHRA SO K PR 25  MATK TR R A - 0k
Yantai Closing 2/3 of the water valves in our branch offices, reducing water flow without affecting the

effectiveness to save water
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A3

The Environment and Natural Resources

Management of the impact on the environment and natural

resources

The Group is committed to reducing the impact of its operation on
the environment and natural resources. In our day-to-day operation,
we continuously evaluate and monitor environmental risks and
timely put in place control measures to protect the environment

and natural resources.

Therefore, in addition to the above measures in respect of
pollutants and use of resources, the Group has also implemented
a series of measures in respect of protecting the environment and
natural resources. For example, in order to prevent the nearby
residents from being affected by certain noise generated from air-
conditioning system of our shopping malls, the Group installs
sound insulation equipment on the air-conditioning system of
shopping malls near to residential areas. Besides, the light emitted
from billboards and screens of external walls of shopping malls may
affect nearby residents, so the Group turns off the lighting system
of the billboards and screens at 10p.m. Lastly, as oil fume emitted
from restaurants of shopping malls may stain nearby buildings and
the smell from those restaurants may affect nearby residents, the
Group requires all restaurants to install fume filtering device so as

to reduce the impact on the neighbouring properties.
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In addition, we introduces environmental protection elements
in project designs to reduce emissions at source. During the
reporting period, the application of designs making use of
renewable energy and enhancing greening in Emerald Legend, a
project of the Group in Beijing was recognized by government
authorities and certification bodies and was awarded the “Three-star
Authentication of Green Building”from Technology Development
Promotion Centre of Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development and “LEED® Gold Precertification from the U.S.
Green Building Council. Other projects of the Group, including
Hongqiao Paradise Walk in Shanghai and Jade Mansion in

Beijing, was also awarded the “Three-star Authentication of Green

Building”.
B. SOCIAL
Bl Employment

The Group insists fair and ethical labour policy. We have
established comprehensive human resources policies and systems
to be implemented in all our departments, covering employee
remuneration, dismissal, recruitment, promotion, working hout,
leave, equal opportunities and other employee benefits. It facilitates
our employees to understand their own and the Group’s rights and
obligations. The Management regularly reviews and updates those

policies and systems to ensure that the contents are updated.

Recruitment and dismissal

The Group actively recruits employees whose values and concepts
are in line with those of the Group. In order to enhance the
efficiency of recruitment, the Group cooperates with headhunting
firms to explore suitable talents. To regulate the use of
headhunting agencies, the Group has established the Guidelines
on Management of Recruitment through Headhunting Agencies
and formulated unified standards for introducing, managing,
evaluating and rewarding headhunting firms. Headhunting
partners will manage recruitment matters for the Group and offer
a platform for fair competition. Establishing strategic cooperation

with headhunting firms enables the Group to better attract talents.
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Staff Dismissal Management Methods, which was formulated
by the Group, adheres to the principle of respecting and caring
for staff and complies with relevant requirements of the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC. It specifies the manner of dismissal,
compensation standard, dismissal formalities and other matters in

relation to dismissal management.

Performance assessment

In order to encourage talented staff, push underachievers and
constantly improve the performance level of all of the staff,
the Group has formulated the Measures for Assessment and
Management of Individual Performance, which specifies the
assessment criteria of staff performance as well as standards on
staff recruitment, remuneration, development and other aspects. It
enhances the standard of performance management and creates a

fair and equitable employment environment.

Attendance and leave

In order to regulate the management of attendance and leave, the
Group has formulated the Measures for Management of Attendance
and Leave based on national laws and regulations. The policy
specifies the working hour, clocking-in, paid annual leave, sick
leave, personal leave, marriage leave, maternity leave and other
benefits and leave as well as the handling of lateness, early leave
and absence from work. We aim at utilizing the policy to regulate
the management of attendance and leave and establish normal

working order.

Other welfares

In order to satisfy the transport needs of staff travelling to work,
the Group has formulated the Measures for Management of
Vehicle Use and Transport Supplement for staff, specifying the
requirements and granting criteria of the transport allowance. We
provide vehicle use allowance for staff driving their private cars
for business purposes to compensate them for the expenses on use
and maintenance of cars. Besides, the Company provides transport
allowance for staff not driving their private car for business
purposes to ease their economic burden of transport. Regarding the
standards of allowance, ways of granting and other issues, specific

provisions have been set out in the policy.
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Equal opportunities

Respecting every staff has been a persistent principle of the
Group. We strive to guarantee fair treatment for all our staff
regardless of their positions and qualification and avoid workplace
discrimination of any kind. We encourage staff who encounter
discrimination to promptly report to our human resources
department. After independent investigation conducted by our

internal audit department, the Management will follow up.

In order to promptly identify possible issues in basic personnel
and remuneration and welfare operation, mitigate risks and
optimize management, the Group has formulated the Measures
for Management of Routine Checking of Basic Personnel and
Remuneration and Benefit Practices. The routine checking
policy covers three areas, which are basic human resource issues,
remuneration practices and welfare practices. It mainly examines
whether the practices are in compliance with the policies and
processes specified by the Group, whether the filing of major
information and process documents are complete, as well as
whether the staff information and process operation of our human

resources information system are timely and accurate.

The Group has been in compliance with laws and regulations
in relation to human resources, such as the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China and the Trade Union Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and it has formulated the Measures for
Management of Labour Contracts to regulate the terms, renewals
and amendments of labour contracts as well as the management of
temporary and short-term staff. During the reporting period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws

and regulations with respect to human resources.
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B2

Health and safety
Workplace health and safety

The Group strictly follow the State Administration of Work
Safety Act and the National Standard of Occupational Health and
Safety Management Systems to provide a safe and healthy working
environment to its employees, contractors, subcontractors and

customers.

Among all of the business of the Group, property development
projects are regarded as the riskiest workplace. Although the
Group does not have direct control on the construction safety
of staff of contractors and subcontractors, we believe that safety
shall always come first, we take the people-oriented concept and
we shoulder the responsibility of supervising contractors and has
established the Measures for Management of Safety of Projects
under construction of Longfor Group for our property development
project department to provide safety management guidelines
to ensure the department staff are capable of supervising the
construction safety measures of contractors and subcontractors, so
as to avoid the occurrence of safety incidents and protect the health
of labour. We have also established safe production management
organisational structure at regional company level and project level
and formulated safe construction measures in advance and during
construction to enhance safety checks. In addition, the Group has
established the Management of Staff Safety of Longfor to specify the
responsibilities and duties of property management staff, instruct
common protective measures, set out safety working procedures
and precautions, provide ways to cope with incidents and ensure
that risks are monitored and controlled under management

mechanism.

Apart from ensuring that the safety of our working and production
equipment conform to the latest statutory requirements, we
provide regular body check for our staff to safeguard their health.
We set safety targets and emergency plans and keep safety record
for regular assessment. On the other hand, the Group provides staff
safety training which include case study via videos and enable staff
to be aware of our safety requirements. Simple slogans and posters
are displayed prominently in office areas to remind our staff to

maintain safety awareness and mitigate common safety risks.
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During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to

workplace health and safety.

Development and training

Staff development and training

We attach great importance to staff development and pay effort in
helping our staff to achieve their career goals along with promoting
the development of the Group. We have formulated comprehensive
training policies according to staff’s posts and duties and developed
comprehensive training system to satisfy staff development
needs. We provide our staff with all-around training programme
including internal training and external courses, covering not only
professional and technical fronts, but also emphasis of fostering
staff’s personal development. In addition, we also customize
training and mentoring programme for fresh graduates employed
by the Group each year, so as to nurture new blood to support the

long-term growth of the Group.

New staff training courses

The Group launches various training programs for new staff,
such as Longfor special training camp for management trainees,
standard training camp for management trainees, orientation
training of regional mark for new staff, new employee workshops,
training for new middle and senior management, to assist new staff
in understanding the Group’s corporate culture and values and
mastering necessary and basic skills and knowledge and quickly

fitting into their posts.

Vocational schools

In addition, the Group has also established engineering school,
cost and procurement school and operation school, targeting
staff in different posts in different departments to enhance their
working standard and achieve a win-win situation. The Group
intends to continue to develop more vocational schools including
customer research, marketing, financial, R&D and investment, so
as to provide appropriate professional training for staff in different
posts in all our departments and enhance the Group'’s production

capacity.
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training in the financial year

Longmai Plan

As a leadership training programme for high potential talents,
Longmai Plan aims at providing a platform for development of
the Group’s middle to senior management staff, inspiring their
entrepreneurial spirit and broadening their business horizon.
With the support of Madam WU Yajun, our Chairman, together
with National School of Development at Peking University and
McKinsey&Company, a global management consulting company
and the industry’s best training resources, through face-to-face
classes, virtual learning community and workshops, such program
will facilitate its members to learn from experience and grow with

practices and reflection.

Details of training provided by the Group during the reporting

period are as follows:

BB

Perfomance

1910

SV R4 JEE A0 A S AR N OR 2
)

Total number of internal tutors in
the financial year

(excluding management staff)

345

SO AR B 1A A AN S (B
&%)

Total number of internal tutors in
the financial year

(management level)

19
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Labour Standards

Prevention of child and forced labour

The Group strictly prohibits child labour and forced labour and
has formulated a series of policies to ensure comprehensive internal
control to prevent child labour and forced labour. Measures for
Management of Examination of Staff Background Information
of Longhu Property Management, which specifies the Group’s
recruitment due diligence process, requires the human resources
department to verify the candidates” identity information to
confirm their age and conduct background checks to ensure the
truthfulness of information received. We also conduct regular
checks and examination on staff’s personal information, family
information, past working experience and other major information
in our human resources information system, so as to prevent the
employment of child labour and forced labour. Regarding non-
full-time staff who are at higher risk, the Group has also developed
the Operational Guidelines for Management of Interns, Temporary
and Contracting Staff to eliminate the risks of unintentional

employment of child labour and forced labour.

Besides, the Group prohibits contractors and subcontractors from
employing child labour and forced labour through requiring the
third parties to include relevant terms in their service contracts and
deliver the list of staff to us for record. The Group and the third
parties will jointly examine the accuracy and completeness of the
information of outsourced staff to avoid child labour and forced

labour.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
child labour and forced labour.
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Supply Chain Management

Management of environmental and social risks in the supply chain

In order to ensure the Group's operation of projects and services
are carried out in an environmental friendly manner, other than
the above environmental protection measures, we also formulate
policies to encourage contractors, suppliers and other third-
parties to promote green business. When selecting contractors
and suppliers, the Group adopts an evaluation mechanism which
takes into account social responsibilities and their contribution
in environmental protection in addition to common commercial

factors such as product and service quality.

As such, the Group has established the Measures for Management
of Materials and Equipment Suppliers of Longfor Group. Before
selecting suppliers, the Group will conduct on-site inspections
in factories and make a detailed assessment of the performance
regarding their raw material inspection, three wastes treatment
and quality control mechanism on the Form of On-site Inspection
of Materials and Equipment, the rating scale of which includes
excellent, good, fair and poor and supplier being rated as fair
and poor will be eliminated. Currently, the Group has assessed
up to 90% of the material suppliers. Besides, after the raw
materials are delivered to our project site, the Group will check
the specifications of raw materials, verify relevant licenses and
certificates according to the Regulation of Management of Project
Site Materials Inspection of Longfor Group to ensure the material
compositions meet the quality and environmental protection
standards. The Group conducts review and assessment on suppliers
semi-annually to manage unqualified suppliers and terminate
the cooperation with suppliers who fail to meet environmental
and safety standards, such as excessive emission of formaldehyde,
suppliers who are unqualified for three times in our quality control
assessments as well as suppliers who causes significant quality

issues in our projects.
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Besides, the Group has also established the Management System
of Procurement of Materials and Equipment of Longfor Group
and conducts random checks in the factories. The proportion of
factories being checked shall not be less than half of total suppliers
from whom the Group centrally procured during the year. In
respect of the third-party suppliers engaged by our regional
branches, random check shall be conducted not less than once every
quarter. We will fill in the Factory Examination Record Form and
On-site Factory Examination Record Form based on the actual
situation of random check and on-site inspection of factories and
engage national-recognized third-party organisations to conduct
part of the examination of destructive testing. Only those suppliers

with satisfactory results will continue to be engaged.

Product Responsibility

Quality of products and services

In order to ensure the quality of our real estate projects, the Group
will conduct assessment on projects according to the approaches
set out in the Measures for Management of Project Quality
Examination and Assessment of Longfor Group, covering different
types of construction quality such as waterproofing engineering,
steel structure work and concrete work, to rate for the projects and

conduct subsequent reviews for improvement.

The Group has established the Management Suite for Publicity
for Clients of Longfor Group, which emphasizes the management
of preciseness of published materials available to clients. Through
open and transparent product sales and promotion, we can protect
the property owners’ right to know and mitigate the risks of

customer complaint.

Besides, the Group has developed its own IT platform “Customer
Service Management System”, and through which we can manage
customer feedbacks on product quality and provide comprehensive
after-sale service in accordance with the Management Rules of

Return-for-repair of completed projects of Longfor Group.
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The Group irregularly engages third-parties as mystery customers
to check the service condition and quality of our projects and
explore hidden service issues to guarantee service standards. The
Group also engages third-party consultant agencies for conducting
regular customer satisfaction surveys. Moreover, in accordance with
the Operational Guidelines for Customers Interviews of Customer
Service of Longfor Group, middle and senior management conducts
irregular interviews with customers to understand customer needs
and collect opinions and suggestions for formulating effective

improvement measutes and problem solutions.

The Group has set up the Loyalty Fund of Longfor Group, and,
in accordance with the principles set out in the Measures for
Management of the Loyalty Fund of Longfor Group, through the
enhancement of convenience and comfort of community life as well
as the quality and comprehensiveness of community facilities, to
further boost the loyalty and satisfaction of property owners and

maintain our corporate reputation.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to

products and services.
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B8

Anti-corruption

Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering

The Group complies with national regulations in relation to anti-
corruption and anti-money laundering, such as the Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China and the Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the People’s Republic of China. The Business Practices
Guidelines of Longfor Group has been formulated to regulate the
accounting records and information communication and disclosure,
prohibit soliciting or accepting inappropriate commercial interests,
improper use and appropriation of corporate properties as well as
disregard of conflict of interests. The Group provides a channel for
reporting potential misconducts as well. All of the employees of the
Group's controlling and non-controlling subsidiaries shall comply
with the conflict of interest handling principles formulated by the
Management and report and solve conflict of interests through the

reporting system.

On the other hand, the Group advocates business ethics. Through
regular training and communication, we enhance staff awareness
on anti-corruption and anti-money laundering and encourage

stakeholders to report any misconduct.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to

corruption and money-laundering.

Community Investment

Community engagement program and donation

Other than providing quality products and services to meet
customer needs and social development, we hope to contribute to
the construction of harmonious community. Therefore, the Group
actively participates in different voluntary activities, donation
activities and community activities to help the needy, promote
love, care for others and contribute to the society. The Group has
organised and participated in community activities including
education, poverty alleviation and student assistance, aiming at

nurturing the next generation and helping the disadvantaged.
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ARG BT 4R i 7y 2 ] BT During the reporting period, details of community programme the
SEMAL RSB FEEN T Group's regional companies participated in are as follows:

HiJiE A ] HE R

Regional Activities

Company

HE o SR S 7 BOR & RN HEMIAE B IR IE S K — TR BB R AN B N BR N e B OE T E > 15 200
Chongqing TN RO R R TR e N R BE RS AR R RIR > 25 A B 300 A o
The Group cooperated with local government to organize “Longfor’'s New Year Warming Gifts —
Building Renovation Scheme for Poor Rural People with Disabilities”, donating RMB2.00 million to
help poor rural families with disabilities to improve their living condition and environment. It helped

more than 300 beneficiaries.

5 1 L3 77 SO 5 AT RE AR TR K — T R BB R A I R N R S R KRR > 48
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The Group cooperated with local government to organize “Longfor’s New Year Warming Gifts —

Plantation Base Supporting Scheme for Poor Rural People with Disabilities”, donating RMB1.80
million to support poor rural families with disabilities to start up plantation business and achieve the

target of income generation of RMB10,000 per household. It helped up to 450 beneficiary families.

S B 120 BTN R B o LB g S () M RE A& PR 3D ATENBESE A SERAIIEE | > il
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The Group invested RMB1.20 million and cooperated with Chinese Academy of Sciences to organize

Longfor & CAS 3D-printing Employment and Entrepreneurial Training Programme, which helped
more than 100 disabled people in Chongqing to start up their business or seek employment through
3D-printing training and guidance on employment and entrepreneurship. 91 students participated
in the examination of 3D-printing assistant engineer of national information computer education
certification and obtained the certificate of 3D-printing assistant engineer and some students even

establihed their own 3D-printing companies.
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The Group made designated donation to Xingguang Primary School of Chongqing Liangjiang
New Area for carrying out teaching activities and also to the needy students in Shapingba District,

Chongging for poverty alleviation purpose. The total amount of donation was RMB270,000.

A5 B 1) 7 PR 4R D 20 5T N BB & SRR 7 SRR -
The Group donated RMB200,000 to Youyang County by way of cash to support the local poverty

alleviation plan.
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The Group co-established “Longfor Academy” with the leading educational training institution
in Shenyang to provide children with an extra-curricular academy for exploring their interests,
cultivating their talents, learning etiquette and cultivating morality. Since the establishment of
“Longfor Academy” in August 2016, it has cooperated with the Youth Symphony Orchestra of
Liaoning Radio and Television, Shenyang Calligraphy and Art Academy (% [ i = & Bl H A
R, Yangyue Education (%‘Hﬁ%ﬁéx New Oriental, Hongshuo Ballet School (T TE A P R
A B4, Xingmeng Dance Training Centre (% 5 15 5 Il FE L) and other quality educational
institutions, with all of the classes taught by renowned tutors. A total of 252 school kids were

benefited.
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The Group organized “Longfor Banyan Lecture” at Longfor Banyan Bay project, lasting for 7 months,
and invited professional tutors and professors from Beijing Guojie Research Institute (65T {ERF
$iBi), Tsinghua University, Renmin University of China, Beijing Normal University, Central Party
School, China Academy of Aerospace (H'BIfJiK BT ), giving a total of 13 sessions of free lectures, which
cover economics, technology, psychology, health and other topics, to build an open and charitable urban

academic and cultural exchange platform.
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Other than “Longfor Banyan Lecture”, the Group also organized two sessions of aerospace science
lectures and invited Qi Faren, an academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering, and Professor Lu
Fangjun, a researcher of the Institute of High Energy Physics of the Chinese Academy of Sciences
and the deputy director of the Particle Astrophysics Institute, to explain the development milestones
of aerospace industry in China as well as the revolutionary changes brought by space astronomy to

human understanding of cosmology in the past few decades.

2016410 > SEEAEFEWI AR A BT T A — FRTEBIATRBREE » SRR T EEm
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In October 2016, the Group held a week-long aerospace science exhibition at Longfor Forest Park (HE

HIARMAR) to demonstrate extensive aerospace knowledge and explain how China develops great
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In April 2016, the Group donated supplies worth of RMB140,000 to Qingnaxiang Primary School ( F ¥
AP/ in Liangshanzhou and He'ai Primary School (1% /M), The Group organized “2016 Liangshan
Walk of Chengdu Longhu Property”, in which property owners and our staff visited Qingnaxiang

Primary School (T #4E/N) in Liangshanzhou and several poor student families to demonstrate carin
y g p g

for them.
LS ° 2016%F 6 A » AL T 20 F I H 2+ R Ak f B RRFE A/ NREAT IR E ) o IS BB T
Xi'an WE T O ARG > 280 RS A NEI B W H AH— T R T —
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In June 2016, the Group organized visits to Niecun Primary School in Zhouzhi County and 20 families
of property owners participated in the visits. The activity collected supplies worth of RMB25,000 and all
of which were used for improving the teaching condition of Niecun Primary School and preparing a new
school bag for every student.

20164F 11 A > BT ZE R R F R DR TRGE - BHARH < EY - Tl
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In November 2016, the Group cooperated with xian.qq.com (iR Z4H) to initiate the “xian.qq.com

& Longfor Chianti Charitable Education Sponsorship Programme for Nanzhi Primary School”, which
collected winter clothing, stationeries, sport supplies, extra-curricular books and teaching aids from

the public and Longfor property owners to donate to Nanzhi Primary School.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

‘%%’J

TO THE MEMBERS OF LONGFOR PROPERTIES CO. LTD.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Longfor Properties Co.
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 115 to 295, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary

of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2016, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FRAMTIA T s o L i < O

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with the
management judgments associated with determining the fair

value.

The investment properties of the Group represent shopping
malls located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). As
disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the
investment properties are carried at RMB49,031 million as at
December 31, 2016, which represents 22% of the Group's total
assets. A fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties
of RMB47 million and a change in fair value of investment
properties of RMB1,971 million were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended.

All of the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair
value based on valuations performed by a firm of independent
qualified professional valuers (the “Valuers”). Details of the
valuation techniques and key inputs used in the valuations are
disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
The valuations are dependent on certain key inputs that involve
management judgments, including term yield, reversionary
yield and reversionary rental for completed investment
properties, gross development value, developer’s profit and
discount rate for investment properties under development.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the investment
properties included:

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuers;

. Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers about the
valuation methodology, the performance of the property
markets, significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgment on key inputs and data used in the valuation
and how the Valuers justify the methodology and
assumptions used; and

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and source
data used in the valuations by the management and
the Valuers by comparing them, on a sample basis, to
existing tenancy profiles, publicly available information
of similar comparable properties and our knowledge of
the real estate industry.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters
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Valuation of properties under development for sales and properties held for sales

We identified the valuation of the Group’s properties under
development for sales (the “PUD”) and properties held for sales
(the “PES”) (collectively referred to as the “Properties”) as a key
audit matter due to the management judgments involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV”) of these
Properties and the estimation of future costs to completion of

the Properties.

The Group’s PUD of RMB89,426 million and PFS of
RMB10,247 million are situated in the PRC as at December
31, 2016. As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group determined the
NRYV of these Properties by reference to the estimated market
prices of the Properties, which takes into account a number of
factors including the recent prices of similar property types in
the same project or by similar properties, and the prevailing
and forecasted real estate market conditions in the PRC. Based
on the management estimation of the NRV of the Properties,
no write-downs were considered to be necessary. Besides, as
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management estimated the future cost to completion of the
Properties by reference to the actual development cost of the

Group's completed projects, adjusted by certain current market

data.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the Properties

included:

Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated future
cost to completion of the Properties, on a sample basis,
by comparing it to the actual development cost of similar
completed properties of the Group and comparing the
adjustments made by the management to current market

data;

Assessing the appropriateness of the NRV of the
Properties, on a sample basis, estimated by the
management by comparing the estimated selling prices
to the market prices achieved in the same projects or
comparable properties, based on our knowledge of the

Group's business and the PRC real estate industry; and

Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of the
NRYV and future cost to completion of the Properties by

comparing the previous estimation to the actual amounts.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters
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Accuracy of land appreciation tax calculations

We identified the accuracy of land appreciation tax (“LAT")
calculations in the PRC as a key audit matter since significant
judgment is required in estimating the amount of LAT to be
paid by the Group within each of the property development

projects.

LAT arises in the PRC when properties are delivered to the
buyers and revenue is recognised. As disclosed in note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements, LAT amounting to
RMB2,732 million was recognised for current year in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended December 31, 2016. As disclosed
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the LAT
calculations are highly dependent on the appropriateness of the
rates used, which are determined by the amount of the land
appreciation. The amount of the land appreciation is determined
by subtracting the related deductible amounts, including the
cost of land and estimated construction costs, from the estimates

of sales revenue.
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Our procedures in relation to the accuracy of LAT calculations

included:

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated sales
revenue and the related deductible amounts used in the

LAT calculation;

o Engaging our tax specialists in the PRC to assess the
accuracy of the land appreciation amount calculations
for each of the property development projects, and to
assess the appropriateness of the LAT rate used for each
of the property development projects by comparing it to
the LAT rate announced by the State Administration of
Taxation in the PRC; and

J Evaluating the judgments applied by the management in
estimating the amount of land appreciation amount and
LAT rate by comparing their estimates made in previous

years to actual results as well as current year’s estimates.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matters
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Revenue recognised from sales of properties

We identified revenue recognised from sales of properties as
a key audit matter as it is quantitatively significant to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and there are judgments involved in determining the
appropriate point at which to recognise revenue from sales of

properties.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised upon delivery
of the properties to buyers and when all of the five criteria as
disclosed in note 3 Revenue recognition to the consolidated
financial statements are satisfied. The Group recognised revenue
of RMB51,441 million from sales of properties for the year
ended December 31, 2016 as disclosed in note 5(c) in the

consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognised from sales

of properties included:

Obtaining an understanding of and testing the Group's
internal control over the delivery of properties to buyers;

and

o Evaluating the terms set out in the sales and purchase
agreements, on a sample basis, and obtaining the delivery
notices issued by the Group to the buyers to assess
whether the five criteria as disclosed in note 3 Revenue
recognition to the consolidated financial statements are

satisfied.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not exptess any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with TFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

4t Annual Report 2016
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Li Man Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 24, 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
BREZR—AFET A=t —HIEEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

i “F-AE CE-LF
NOTES 2016 2015

ARWTFE  ARWTL
RMB’000  RMB’000

A Revenue 5 54,799,495 47,423,099
S R Cost of sales (38,864,114)  (34,408,307)
EF Gross profit 15,935,381 13,014,792
HAb i A Other income 6 336,045 453,445
Hopb 45 M 1R Other gains and losses 7 (155,308) (155,988)
A BOE W E R A TR AR Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties 12 47,154 434,251
B E N TEEE) Change in fair value of investment properties 12 1,970,958 2,439,626
Change in fair value of derivative financial

i 4 THA T EEH instruments 26 (109,031) —
BB e T S B B S Selling and marketing expenses (1,427,723)  (1,017,951)
TR S Administrative expenses (2,022,328)  (1,435,026)
B A Finance costs 8 (53,059) (43,119)
R A B ) BE A Share of results of associates 1,051,011 (18,707)
JEIG & B EEL Share of results of joint ventures 383,210 266,864
W5 iy Ve ) Profit before taxation 15,956,310 13,938,187
IRESN 5 Income tax expense 9 (6,021,444)  (4,574,070)
B i F Profit for the year 42 9,934,866 9,364,117
AR A 6 1) - Profit attributable to:

N/NEIE: ZEDN Owners of the Company 9,152,953 8,988,037

I 45 Non-controlling interests 781,913 376,080

9,934,866 9,364,117

Y R (UNELST) Earnings per share, in RMB
YN Basic 11 1.57 1.54
#E Diluted 11 1.57 1.53

4t Annual Report 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

BEZR—AETZAZT—HIEEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Bl ZERNE CE A
NOTES 2016 2015
ARl TT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB 000
A 15 Profit for the year 9,934,866 9,364,117
oAty A T AR (B ST Other comprehensive income (expense):
A REE R M E 1R # < A Irems that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Sk R T (i i VA Net fair value gain on hedging instruments 287,663 518,720
B E R E Gain on retranslating hedging
TH R i s instruments reclassified to profit and loss (248,592) (613,754)
39,071 (95,034)
2T W 4 MR Total comprehensive income for the year 9,973,937 9,269,083
A B A 42 Th i 25 488 Total comprehensive income attributable to:
N/NIE 2SN Owners of the Company 9,192,024 8,893,003
I 4 Non-controlling interests 781,913 376,080
9,973,937 9,269,083

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R

F+ZA=+—H

At December 31, 2016

i “ER-ANE CFEHF
NOTES 2016 2015
ANRHFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

B E NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Eid<C/ES Investment properties 12 49,030,600 43,385,100
YIZE ~ B B Property, plant and equipment 13 198,642 208,374
FE AT &0 Prepaid lease payments 14 17,421,955 11,774,585
TR F O RE 7 Interests in associates 15 1,585,693 355,793
G B A E R £ Interests in joint ventures 16 2,737,328 882,285

At ERE Available-for-sale investments 17 180,021 130,920
FRIEA T HEE AT R 4 Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights 11,925,639 4,849,295
A4 T HE Derivative financial instruments 28 639,233 701,083
IR AERL I 2 Deferred taxation assets 30 2,622,641 1,623,857

86,341,752 63,911,292
B E A CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 18 838,729 777,384
IR Properties under development for sales 19 89,426,431 70,829,748
FrfE &Y% Properties held for sales 20 10,246,730 10,428,963
JRE ST B ke A B Wi Accounts and other receivables,

e T BT OR deposits and prepayments 21 10,324,224 9,920,130
JRE S F2 i i JE Amounts due from non-controlling interests 22 3,854,408 2,301,758
JE W B %5 ) N TE Amounts due from associates 22 — 2,695,676
JENS & > 2 H Amounts due from joint ventures 22 2,248,153 1,772,453
A ] FiIE Taxation recoverable 3,844,962 3,291,225
it am TR Derivative financial instruments 28 349,513 —
C A SR AT £ 5K Pledged bank deposits 23 97,368 240,313
SRATHE R R 4 Bank balances and cash 23 17,258,104 17,919,664

138,488,622 120,177,314
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REB—AE AR
At December 31, 2016

i TR NE CE R
NOTES 2016 2015
AR ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
W) A CURRENT LIABILITIES
JRE A T B £°F S Accounts and bills payables, deposits received
B k- and accrued charges 24 66,725,559 52,942,119
JRE A I 428 i W 45 2k A Amounts due to non-controlling interests 25 2,953,235 —
JREAST B 5/ ] k0B Amounts due to associates 25 1,823,964 179,612
FEAT &8 A S 30E Amounts due to joint ventures 25 1,686,533 772,930
B A — 2 W 2 ) 42 P PR kO Amount due to a controlling shareholder of
an associate 25 — 669,363
JRE AR I Taxation payable 12,939,782 10,304,622
SRAT BB K — — 4 R E Bank and other borrowings - due within one year 26 5,333,349 6,177,916
91,462,422 71,046,562
LB B E A NET CURRENT ASSETS 47,026,200 49,130,752
A W B A R TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 133,367,952 113,042,044
A T CAPITAL AND RESERVES
JeAs Share capital 29(a) 508,438 507,823
fitifte Reserves 61,256,261 54,616,826
AN T NG R 5 Equity attributable to owners of the Company 61,764,699 55,124,649
FE e IRE 45 Non-controlling interests 13,350,481 7,343,005
HE 7 A TOTAL EQUITY 75,115,180 62,467,654
et =K NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
SRAT B HAAE X — — AR EI A Bank and other borrowings - due after one year 26 47,027,089 38,158,492
(Tt Senior notes 27 5,511,632 7,929,172
HApnfrA 4 m T A Other derivative financial instruments 26 215,915 —
IR A Deferred taxation liabilities 30 5,498,136 4,486,726
58,252,772 50,574,390
133,367,952 113,042,044
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

H_B—A T A=1+—H
At December 31, 2016

15 E 295 HZ SR B MBMEN —F— L4 The consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 295 were approved and
ZRA A0 H R e i R HE T EE - authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 24, 2017 and are signed

DRIUNSR S S 3 on its behalf by:
R Ak

WU Yajun ZHAO Yi
s EH
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

4E #t Annual Report 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZZ-ANEFZA = AR

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Wi SRxE SEEF
NOTES 2016 2015
ARBBTLE  ARKETI
RMB’000 RMB 000
REED OPERATING ACTIVITIES
IR AT A Profit before taxation 15,956,310 13,938,187
KDL P Adjustments for:

il A Finance costs 53,059 43,119

W3~ RE Kt e Depreciation of propetty, plant and equipment 46,255 33,164

R EUE N AT E G Fair value gain upon transfer to investment properties (47,154) (434,251)

BREMENTEE Change in fair value of investment properties (1,970,958) (2,439,626)

it amI RN AT EES) Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments 109,031 —

JEAG T 0 W] SE Share of results of associates (1,051,011) 18,707

e Share of results of joint ventures (383,210) (266,864)

B - R R R Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (15,700) (2,997)

FE A Interest income (141,046) (238,024)

I 5t s 488 (i ) V4 Net exchange loss (gain) 432,470 (97,130)

A E R E RS IA Dividend income from available-for-sale investments (1,252) (626)

DU A5 15 FERRE () A5 2 B 5 Share-based payments expenses 63,978 101,633

1R ] B R 1R Loss on early redemption of senior notes 117,226 —
HHEESEHRNLER SR Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital 13,167,998 10,655,292
5 (8 W (Increase) decrease in inventories (61,345) 825
RS E Increase in properties under development

for sales (17,219,449) (18,305,191)
FHE EYER D Decrease in properties held for sales 37,193,150 33,275,607
M R e At B M R Increase in accounts and other receivables,

1 AT S IE I A deposits and prepayments (5,662,802) (2,041,100)
TE AR BB A 548~ Bl Increase (decrease) in accounts and bills payables,

JERT 2 B () deposits received and accrued charges 9,174,893 (6,421,356)
BEELNE S Cash from operations 36,592,445 17,164,077
EAREE NS The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

ey income tax paid (3,919,089 (3,082,932)
R ET TS B A NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 32,673,356 14,081,145

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to prepaid lease payments

Additions to investment properties

Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights

Acquisition of assets and liabilities through

acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposal of a subsidiary
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries

Capital contribution to associates

Capital contribution to joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures

Investment in available-for-sale investment

Investments in associates

Dividend received from a joint venture

Dividend received from an associate

Repayments from (advances to) associates
(Advance to) repayments from joint ventures

Advances to non-controlling interests

Placement of pledged bank deposits

Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment

Dividend received from available-for-sale

investments

W&E

NOTES

34

BEZZ-ANEFZAZ R

For the year ended December 31, 2016

o
2016 2015
ARBTE  ARKT
RMB’000 RMB’000

(22,232,378) (6,033,522)
(2,953,997) (3,280,603)
(12,488,087) (8,426,278)

(2,634,798) 635,315
— 174,286

— (60,000)

= (374,500)

— (58,423)
(495,079) (345,415)
(49,101) (122,320)
(495,321) -
— 218,122
300,000 —

2,695,676 (2,695,676)
(475,700) 4,843,040
(1,552,650) (2,301,758)

(19,596) (11,434)
162,541 13,190
(42,392) (60,259)
141,046 238,024
22,005 15,690

1,257 626

BEFHHAB TR

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

(40,116,579)  (17,631,895)

4t Annual Report 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZZ-AFETZA=S—H IR
For the year ended December 31, 2016

WsE “ENE "R LA
NOTES 2016 2015
ABBTL  ARKTIT
RMB’000 RMB 000

MEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
W B A ) P RS A Acquisitions of additional interests

in subsidiaries 31 — (182,114)
L5 B 8 7 A T HE A Disposal of partial interest in subsidiaries not

(R EFEHIRE) resulting in losing of control 32 944,019 —

IR IRAT R I AE 3K Repayment of bank and other borrowings (22,645,189)  (19,717,508)
EATAE Interest paid (2,731,100) (2,716,977)
HrHERAT B New bank and other borrowings raised 19,564,069 15,037,275
BITHEADH IR Proceeds from issue of bonds 11,800,000 8,000,000
B Repayment of bond (1,400,000) —
BTSN B L Bxpenses on issue of bonds (75,945) (52,330)
Jil [ 4 e 2 g Repurchase of senior notes (45,404) —
e B ST g Redemption of senior notes (2,817,764) —
JEPE IR IR Capital injection from non-controlling

shareholders 1,956,971 3,272,290
FF 42 il 5 #Ak Advance from non-controlling interests 2,953,235 —
B RES ¢ Proceeds from issue of shares 52,729 142,551
LA AR I £ 42 bt 1 o Payment for purchase of shares under

the share award scheme (579,218) (4,851)
AT Dividend paid (2,083,332)  (1,654,310)
T s ) Bk Advances from associates 1,644,352 179,612
BEMERT (A ESERER) Advances from (repayments to) joint ventures 913,603 (297,068)

(1] — 44 5 ) PR R B SR 50
— R R BURR Bk

(Repayments to) advance from a controlling

(669,363) 669,363

shareholder of an associate

'S

e S TR 4 T NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 6,781,663 2,675,933
B4 R eE B T NET DECREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (661,560) (874,817)
RN B R 5 R CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 17,919,664 18,794,481
ERE B RIS B CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT THE END OF THE YEAR 17,258,104 17,919,664
B& KB eEEM &R ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RATHE B R B Bank balances and cash 17,258,104 17,919,664
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

— B ¥R

ARNAR_FFLETL_H -+ A%
B & B S AR B 2 B I A4 W (— LR —
A =Sk 22 % > BALS RAERT)
AL AL A ER A RAE - ALH
B A7 7 7 i Wi 5 22 B B A B 2 D ([ B
2P EAR L G R hk
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands o A% 2 A J v 3 N\ R R A0 B (T o
B 1) R 7 s Y A S M B A M 2
2oy A S 5 [ TR R 4 % B R 2
THRFETRIZHE 1R 15 -

ARa I BCEBER AT > KB AR E
TR B R RUR M E 49 -

BRA B IR UA LR BRI E RN E A
AR AR (TARE]) 24 -

R AF T B A T Bk
i 85 e S0 Tt o o e
1)

TRAAE JEE S5 10 A X Y B A
AT A

A ER AR T R
e BB (B R )
A B R 6 L 0 T A

Amendments to IFRS 11

B R A R A R RIS 11 SR B RT AR

Amendments to IAS 1

B s R 1 e T A

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38

B 5 T 0 B 1.6 99 I B Pk i
CERR A HES

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41

I P T 0 B 1.6 99 I B Pk i
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on December 21, 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK").
The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The addresses of the principal place of business of the Company
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong are 7/
F, Tower 2, FuSheng Building, No. 4 Huixin East Street, Chaoyang
District, Beijing, and 15/F, 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong,
respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 49.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”),
which is the functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily eftective for the
current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time in
the current year:

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Wl B A S 2 Bt

Disclosure Initiative

Pide TEME

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

T AT S i TR

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

¥ R EEY

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
JB S B R o R A T
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

BEEM ¢ A AR BISH

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
TR TR R TR U AR I R B Y U F 4 O

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to IFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

4t Annual Report 2016




126

Ao B 2 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

R AF T B A T Bt S
8038 3§ 0 B 5 9 o
1)

1] B 6 RS 1 B G AT AR B
i

AR S T L JA AR AF B KO T B I e
SR 1 SEeER EEIEIE T o B RR e RhiE
SIS 1 SRA AT A B8 i 2 BRI AN
R SR A 7 R R o e AR
SE SR AR B B o 0 AR R0 AT B R
R ER GRS 5] o SR > BT E R E
I 255 8 7T A o B
SRS LS 0 5 i 10 (8 2 T 1
2~ BN DU A R R
SR AR BN B R SR RO

e A > {6 AT B R A B T R i
A BB 2 W S S A 2T W
N BRA A A ) AR R
B> 30 B AR A A R R 75 o e 10 2
LT AR o) HEA G EH M
B 5 R Gi) HAAEM & TR SR E e
IR BB A B AR i

ERMBREM LN BATRE RS
e sl LB SR 7R 4

AL CIEWERZEERT - &80
WENETWENPEFC&Ed > UE
B A B R A A R B R
SV 5 IR L e A B ) A 4 T T O T - I
R > AR R A EH PR 2 MR 42 T
AR S TR R BN R
HHT R T B M 43 o BR Bk 25 R EER
SEEHOh o B e T RICE | SR AT A
Sl 488 3¢ 5% 4 o 3 TR A 4 L S
B RBUS B IR DU AT 2 -

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
for the first time in the current year. The amendments to IAS 1 clarify
that an entity need not provide a specific disclosure required by an IFRS
if the information resulting from that disclosure is not material, and give
guidance on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating information.
However, the amendments reiterate that an entity should consider
providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRS is insufficient to enable users of financial statements
to understand the impact of particular transactions, events and conditions

on the entity’s financial position and financial performance.

In addition, the amendments clarify that an entity’s share of the other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method should be presented separately from those arising
from the Group, and should be separated into the share of items that, in
accordance with other IFRSs: (i) will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (ii) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

when specific conditions are met.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the amendments

provide examples of systematic ordering or grouping of the notes.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively. The ordering
of certain notes to the consolidated financial statements have been revised
to give prominence to the areas of the Group's activities that management
considers to be most relevant to an understanding of the Group's financial
performance and financial position. Specifically, profit for the year was
reordered to note 42 while information in relation to directors’, chief
executive's and employees’ emoluments was reordered to note 43. Other
than the above presentation and disclosure changes, the application of
the amendments to IAS 1 has not resulted in any impact on the financial
performance or financial position of the Group in these consolidated

financial statements.
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Wavmal R BEGTBBEM®E 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

it - Y B (T s o 3t TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
1) ca) STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)
[ B £ g Y G 1 E S T K B iR Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)
F )
AN 4 [E] 7 4 B R R AR EL 1 R AR R The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
BB T S A T IR P B A v ) IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
I % B 5 o 4 U 56 9 5% G T A
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
IR ¢ Bt s o B U 15 9% EFAHBA
IFRS 16 Leases’
R 5 P 5 o 4 U565 1.6 9% &>
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’
IR P A £ e e O 22 9% HNEEAE oy BT A ARE
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle’
I ¢ Bt s i HE AU B T A TR AR F TR N AR 0 R R R o I A 4R O
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transaction'
R 5 B 5 o U 565 2 SR HT A DU 53 25 FE B 0 A 5K 5C 5 70 8 Bt
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'
R 5 ot £ 48 )5S 4 SR BT AR 1 R 4 U 565 4 i 4 S A 0 o Y )
Soutam LERER

Amendments to IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'
I % 5 o 4 U2 15 SR B AT AR T B PR YRR 15 SRR R B AT
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

and IAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture?
R 5 ot 5 £ 4 U585 1.0 99 % BRI gt ) BEHEEE A R SREEREZ R EENETHRA

a8 B ETA
Amendments to [AS 7 Disclosure Initiative®
I o i 1 RS 7 SR AB AT A o % EE
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’
I s SR 12 BRI T A FERD A B B Rk IR B E ¢
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property'
PR BRI 40 SREFT A L Siae/E
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 or January 1,

2018, as appropriate

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS
9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measuted at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value

through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

o In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are

recognised.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

e The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three
types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in IAS
39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been removed retrospective quantitative.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk

management activities have also been introduced.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies
as at December 31, 2016, application of IFRS 9 in the future may have
a material impact on the classification and measurement of the Group's
financial assets. The Group's available-for-sale investments, including
those currently stated at cost less impairment, will either be measured as
fair value through profit or loss or be designated as FVTOCI (subject to
fulfilment of the designation criteria). In addition, the expected credit
loss model may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised

Cost.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of new
hedging requirements may not have a material impact on the Group's

current hedge designation and hedge accounting.

The change in fair value of the Group's derivative financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to
changes in credit risk could be presented in other comprehensive income.
However, it is not practicable to provide reasonable estimate of the effect

of IFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and

the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard

introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

J Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

J Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

In 2016, the IASB issued Clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent

considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of IFRS 15
may result in more disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in respective reporting

periods.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS
16 will supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it

becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and

leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under the IFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal

and an interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under TAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease payments
for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
IFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets

would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require a

lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB71,659,000 as disclosed in note 38. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of
a lease under IFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of IFRS
16. In addition, the application of new requirements may result changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect

until the directors complete a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRS”) (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities including both changes arising from cash flows
and non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments require the following
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities to be disclosed: (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining
or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of
changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other

changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2017 with earlier application permitted. The application
of the amendments will result in additional disclosures on the Group’s
financing activities, specifically reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided on

application.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis, except for the investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value, at the end of each reporting

period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair

value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described

as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

4t Annual Report 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size

and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

J potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or

other parties;
J rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Group
has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including

voting patterns at previous shareholders” meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit ot loss
and other comprehensive income from the date. The Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the

non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
relevant components of equity including reserves and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant
equity component, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received

is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition

of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related

costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities

assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred taxation assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share based payment arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS
2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting

policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that

standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other

types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to the financial assets and financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction

does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales

related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is
recognised upon delivery of the properties to the buyers, at which time all

of the following criteria are satisfied:

o the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties are

transferred to buyers;

o neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the properties

are retained;
. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated

statement of financial position under current liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the relevant lease.

Property management and related service fees are recognised in the period

in which the services are rendered.
Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Promotion and advertising income is recognised when advertisements are
displayed on the advertising screens; or rateably over the displayed period

of the advertisement contract.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income from a financial asset
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under development for such
purposes). Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included

in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under development
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment properties

under development.

Property under development for future use as an investment property
is classified as investment property under development. If the fair
value cannot be reliably determined, the investment property under
development will be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
determined or development is completed, in which time any difference
between the fair value and the carrying amount will be recognised in

profit or loss in that period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Properties held for sales are transferred to investment properties when
it is evidenced by the commencement of an operating lease to another
party. Any difference between the fair value of the property at the date of
transfer and its previous carrying amount shall be recognised in profit or

loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in

profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for administrative
purposes (other than properties under development) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment loss,

if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than properties under development) over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of development
for production, rental or for administrative purposes, the release of the
leasehold land is included as part of the costs of the properties under
development. Properties under development not for sale are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Properties under development
which are intended to be held for own use are shown as non-current

assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments represent upfront payments for land use
rights and are initially recognised at cost and released to profit or loss, or
capitalised as part of the cost of building as mentioned above, over the
lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those that are classified and
accounted for as properties under development intended to be held for

sale.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant

activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or

joint venture.
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a
joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss

in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate
or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of IAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the associate ot joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no

remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.



G

Kok B U 25 A MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEEFBOR @)
NHEARKGESENRE
()

2 B 6 B A
BT A5 > SR A 7k
A Y AT 70 5 T 2 2 4R
HET /A IS 5 4 2 o B HE 25 B A S
0 0 1 A 8 A e B 9
£ T MR -

R EWRE

R B8 5 LA th 5 1 B8 R o 251
LY > LA T O (o
G TR o A 45 A B AR
P 0 3 P B S B L A £
A (M) -

B A B SR v AR W R AR
(2/EX

Feffe i B4 58

F A th 5 0 3 PR P 2 LA (AL
ZBALH T o A BIE LA
A 058 R B B 2 A 4 B LA
BT o FTEEBLF (A R0 B O
T A f 22 T AR BOEAT 34 85 7 5 10
R o

R
7 BAR A 57T 5 B A W 2 K
B o AL A2t

& TR

o — [ 4 2w UR TR BRSO RT
T > SRR R e A RS M
BEIRVLIR L P -

R E e A R PR AP
8o R BTEMEELEMARE
BN 1928 5 WA (5 AP RF AR AR I
TREE LA SR R e
A BRAE 4 il e B R Y
OB (8 1) o Wil s 3R 47 4% A4 P (EH 5t
AR A B 4 Pl e TR R A
(K152 i B B IR T B i PO R =

BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint

venture that are not related to the Group.

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development which are intended to be sold upon
completion of development are classified as current assets, and carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the related
land cost, development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,

borrowing costs capitalised.

Properties under development for sales are transferred to properties held

for sales upon completion.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the costs of land, development expenditure incurred
and, where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the properties less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately

in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and receivables or
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial

recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
accounts and other receivables and deposits, amounts due from non-
controlling interests, associates and joint ventures, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit

or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment

of financial assets below).
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered to

be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could include:
. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as accounts receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group'’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period, observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows

discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current

market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss

4t Annual Report 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of accounts and
other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When an account, bill and
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written

off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available for sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gain or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost

would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised

on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts and bills payables, amounts due
to non-controlling interests, associates, joint ventures and a controlling
shareholder of an associate, senior notes and bank and other borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest

method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative
is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the

hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in a single instrument
are treated as a single compound embedded derivative unless those
derivatives relate to different risk exposures and are readily separable and

independent of each other.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges for foreign currency

and interest rate movements exposure (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge
and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in

offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.

4t Annual Report 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit

or loss and is included in the ‘other gains or losses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or loss
in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in
the same line of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging
relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any
gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the

hedged risk is ultimately recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
(ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative

amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and

also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit

or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating lease, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. In the event that lease incentives ate received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental

expense on a straight-line basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the inception of

the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire

lease is generally classified as a finance lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.



Kok B U 25 A MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BEEWEOR @)
i

A 5 ) 2 I B R R IR
LIZE B D RE & W DUAN B W (AN ) AT
W22 5 » 5355 B i BE S HERR - R s
R > IS FIME R & W IE B 1% 3% H Y
BUAT ME R E A 0 o Bl Ak A LA S
wHE A B WR E I ERTRE -

HEAWER RERRAEWIEATE
P R 5 2 A 2 S T e o

BiIH
P 4958 DA 2 45 5 5 A 1 08 S B0
SR

BRI A5 8 JE % 4F B2 e GRUBL Ut A 5 o
JE SR M A B A5 R 28 S A 2
Wi 2 2% B e[ BRBE AT IR A L > Y E R At
A JE B IR AR B SN BT AT S R R
AR A GRS AT H o A
fry B A B0 IR B (R i R B
B EEHmRB R -

TIEBIR AR a B IR N EE R AR
F% R T (5L 51 R i ) D AL R
D B B g 2 R o AR EBUH A
8 BTG E SR IR 2 AR D o AR AT
ToL TR E 900 A B A T 0 I 2 A
A A i) AT A 5 4 R 2 AT B R
R B I A R o R TR — JE
T (G5 2 DFAG DU R BRAM) B HAD 7
BT 5| A R 25 A S B R B
RPN 2 S hni Vi RPN 1 3%
FREBIHEE KA -

BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred taxation liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred taxation assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which these
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred taxation
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred taxation
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to

reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at each end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For the purposes of measuring
deferred taxation liabilities or deferred taxation assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred taxation liabilities
and deferred taxation assets for such investment properties are measured
in accordance with the above general principles set out in IAS 12 (i.e.

based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred taxation are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred taxation
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred taxation arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
ting for the b binat
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and

that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, which is a defined
contribution plan, are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions. Payments made to
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments
to defined contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under
the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution

retirement benefit plan.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options/share awards to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding
the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions are set out in note 41 to the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options or shares granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase

in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options or shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share

option reserve or capital contribution reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options/share awards to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will

be transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a

reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income

immediately.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is rebutted. As a result, the Group has recognised deferred taxation on
changes in fair value of investment properties as the Group is subject to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”).

Control over certain companies

Note 33 describes that two companies, namely, Qingdao Wanhu
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Wanhu”) and Qingdao Wanchuang
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Wanchuang”) (collectively referred as
“Acquired Companies”) have been acquired by the Group as subsidiaries
and note 32 describes another company, namely, Beijing Zhuoxinruitong
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Zhuoxinruitong”) (together with the
Acquired Companies, referred as the “Subsidiaries”) have been partially
disposed by the Group without losing control. The Group has only held
25.1%, 25.1% and 34% equity interests in each company respectively.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Control over certain companies (Continued)

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the Group has
control over the Subsidiaries based on whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of these Subsidiaries
unilaterally. In making the judgment, the directors considered the
number of directors that the Group has the power to appoint in the board
of the Subsidiares, the Group’s control relating to the relevant activities
of the Subsidiaries, such as the approval of the operation plan, budget and
sales plan, which includes the determination of the range of the selling
price of the properties, and appointing, remunerating and terminating
the key management personnel or service providers of the operations, etc.
After assessment, the directors concluded that the Group has sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of these

Subsidiaries and therefore the Group has control over them.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are
not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company works closely
with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the
findings to the board of directors of the Company every half year to explain

the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of investment
properties and certain types of financial instruments. Notes 12 and 47(f)
provide detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various

assets and liabilities.

Properties under development for sales and properties held for

sales (collectively referred to as the “Properties”)

As explained in note 3, the Group's Properties are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. The directors of the Company make
significant judgments in determining the net realisable value (the “NRV”)
of these Properties and the estimation of future costs to completion of

these Properties.

Based on the experience of the directors of the Company and the nature of
the subject properties, the directors of the Company determine the NRV
of these Properties by reference to the estimated market prices of the
Properties, which takes into account a number of factors including the
recent prices of similar property types in the same project or by similar
properties, and the prevailing and forecasted real estate market conditions
in the PRC. The directors of the Company estimate the future cost to
completion of the Properties by reference to the actual development cost
of other similar completed projects of the Group, adjusted by certain

current market data.

If there is an increase or a decrease in NRV, this may result in write-
downs for these Properties. Such write-downs requite the use of judgment

and estimates of the directors of the Company.

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for sale in the PRC,

at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including the cost of land, sales charges, borrowing costs

and all relevant property development expenditures.
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Land appreciation tax (“LAT”) (Continued)
The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. Significant judgments are

made by the directors of the Company in estimating the amounts of land
appreciation and the applicable land appreciation tax rate due to the

uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties and deductible expenditures.

The Group recognises LAT in its consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when properties are delivered to
the buyers. However, the LAT calculation and payments with local tax
authorities in the PRC in the year will not be finalised until the actual
appreciation value of the whole property project is completed. The final
tax outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and these differences will impact the income tax expense and
the related income tax provisions in the period in which such tax is

finalised with local tax authorities.

Income tax expense

As at December 31, 2016, deferred taxation assets of RMB2,622,641,000
(2015: RMB1,623,857,000) mainly in relation to tax losses, land
appreciation tax provisions, allowance for doubtful debts, government
grants, unrealised profit on intra-group purchases and others have been
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position,
after offsetting certain deferred taxation liabilities as set out in note
30. The realisability of the deferred taxation assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. The directors of the Company determine the
deferred taxation assets based on the enacted or substantively enacted
tax rates and the best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the deferred taxation assets are expected to
be utilised. The directors of the Company review the assumptions and
profit projections by the end of the reporting period. In cases where
the actual future profits generated are more or less than expected, an
additional recognition or a reversal of deferred taxation assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a

recognition or reversal takes place.
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (i.e., the executive directors of the Company) in

order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance.

The Group is organised into business units based on their types of
activities, based on which information is prepared and reported to the
Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance. The Group's operating
segments under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are identified as three main

operations:

o Property development: this segment develops and sells office
premises, commercial and residential properties. All of the Group’s

activities in this regard are carried out in the PRC.

o Property investment: this segment leases investment properties,
which are developed by the Group to generate rental income and
to gain from the appreciation in the properties’ values in the long
term. Currently the Group's investment property portfolio mainly

comprises retail properties and are all located in the PRC.

o Property management and related services: this segment mainly
represents the income generated from property management.
Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in the
PRC.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Company’s executive directors
monitor the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable to

each operating segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current assets directly
attributable to each segment with the exception of prepaid lease
payments, deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights, interests
in associates and joint ventures, available-for-sale investments,
deferred taxation assets, taxation recoverable, derivative financial
instruments and other corporate assets. Other corporate assets
are not allocated to the operating segments because they are head
office assets or assets which are managed centrally by the Group.
The investment properties included in segment assets are stated
at cost when assessed by the chief operating decision maker.
Segment liabilities include accounts and bills payables and accrued
expenditure on construction, deposits received and receipt in
advance from property sales but exclude taxation payable, deferred
taxation liabilities, bank and other borrowings, senior notes, other
derivative financial instruments and other corporate liabilities.
Other corporate liabilities are not allocated to the operating
segment because they are head office liabilities or liabilities which

are managed on a group basis.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. Segment profit does not include the
Group’s share of results arising from the activities of the Group's

associates and joint ventures.
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted earnings
before interest, other gains and losses, taxes, depreciation, share
of results of associates and joint ventures, changes in fair value of
investment properties and upon transfer to investment properties,
change in fair value of derivative financial instruments and
finance costs (“Adjusted Earnings”), where “interest” is regarded
as including investment income and “depreciation” is regarded
as including impairment losses on non-current assets. To arrive
at Adjusted Earnings the Group's earnings are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual segments, such
as directors’ and auditor’s remuneration and other head office or

corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
profit, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales) and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar service.

Information regarding the Group’s operating segments is set out

below.

REZZ-ANETZA=Z+—HIEE
Year ended December 31, 2016

UE S8

A e 5

Property

LB MERE  management
Property Property  and related it
development  investment services Total
ANRWTE  ARWTFLT  AR¥TT ARKTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
KEASMREF KA Revenue from external customers 51,441,402 1,913,093 1,445,000 54,799,495
LN Inter-segment revenue — — 396,434 396,434
GinsiTON Segment revenue 51,441,402 1,913,093 1,841,434 55,195,929
3% A (AR 2L A)) Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 12,443,324 1,331,460 732,874 14,507,658
IR Segment assets 110,640,994 28,684,847 298,366 139,624,207
b AR Segment liabilities 58,600,985 471,119 46,051 59,118,155
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

5. ibdE B ) 5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) PERELE - - BEMAME ) (@) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

BEZZ-HETA=ZT—HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2015

B 1Y

il

Property

B3 WERE  management
Property Property  and related w5t
development investment services Total

ARBTE  ARETT AR¥TT ARKETT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

A B AN R F I Revenue from external customers 44,992,984 1,415,187 1,014,928 47,423,099
IR A Inter-segment revenue — — 383,639 383,639
Ga LN Segment revenue 44,992,984 1,415,187 1,398,567 47,806,738

o3 A (KT EEF])  Segment profit (Adjusted Barnings) 10,415,923 990,443 590,475 11,996,841

OB EE Segment assets 91,710,136 25,048,193 368,333 117,126,662
vans =Kt Segment liabilities 46,946,184 429,470 23,409 47,399,063
oAl 4y HF R Other segment information
PR E R
A B %
Property
LB 4 WHERE  management
Property Property  and related At
development  investment services Total

ANRHTE ARBFT ARKETT ARKTTL
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

FHE S E Amounts included in
Prat A2 20 the measure of segment assets:

“FRE 2016

WEIEMEEE (f5E)  Additions to non-current assets (Note) 36,345 2,955,063 4981 2,996,389

ZETAF 2015

WEIFERBEE (M) Additions to non-current assets (Note) 49,362 3,285,790 5,710 3,340,862
Ft3E - FOEGIER BERCEYEU R - E K Note: Amounts comprise additions to investment properties and property, plant

wkfh o and equipment.

164
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, the chief operating decision maker is provided
with information concerning the Group's consolidated amount
of interests in associates and related share of results, interests in
joint ventures and related share of results, changes in fair value of
investment properties and upon transfer to investment properties,
change in fair value of derivative financial instruments, other
income, other gains and losses, finance costs from borrowings,
depreciation and impairment losses (if any) which are not allocated

to operating segments.

(W) -

(b) LA ~ Hik - BE LA (b)
i A R

Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

assets and liabilities

ZERNE ZELE
2016 2015
ANRETL  ARETFIL
RMB’000 RMB 000
A Revenue
ArEBICA Segment revenue 55,195,929 47,806,738
o il N K Elimination of inter-segment revenue (396,434) (383,639)
SEAUA Consolidated revenue 54,799,495 47,423,099
i Profit
o0 Segment profit 14,507,658 11,996,841
HAgA Other income 336,045 453,445
HAbk 5 k518 Other gains and losses (155,308) (155,988)
AR BB SER) A F(EILAE  Fair value gain upon transfer to
investment properties 47,154 434,251
BEWEANTEES Change in fair value of investment properties 1,970,958 2,439,626
Change in fair value of derivative
fid: 4l T BN (E A ) financial instruments (109,031) —
A A Finance costs (53,059) (43,119)
JREAL B ) 364 Share of results of associates 1,051,011 (18,707)
AL A8 S Share of results of joint ventures 383,210 266,864
e Depreciation (46,255) (33,164)
Ao e B 52 Unallocated expenses (1,976,073)  (1,401,862)
S TR B i i A Consolidated profit before taxation 15,956,310 13,938,187
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5. S ibAE B ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
by WA~ HE - BEAA (b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,
18 0 BHER (49) assets and liabilities (Continued)

“ER-AE CEHE
2016 2015
ARHTE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB 000

=3 Assets
I EREE Segment assets 139,624,207 117,126,662
BEWENTER TS Cumulative change in fair value of
investment properties 20,441,149 18,423,037
BT EHIE Prepaid lease payments 17,421,955 11,774,585
TR s R AR Interests in associates 1,585,693 355,793
IEESENER Interests in joint ventures 2,737,328 882,285
T ERE Available-for-sale investments 180,021 130,920
A T A REC AT A9 4E  Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights 11,925,639 4,849,295
AR & Deferred taxation assets 2,622,641 1,623,857
A& m TR Derivative financial instruments 988,746 701,083
A [E A I Taxation recoverable 3,844,962 3,291,225
AA3 B A8 B HoAh Unallocated head office and other assets 23,458,033 24,929,864
FAREEMAE Consolidated total assets 224,830,374 184,088,606
Ak Liabilities
AR Segment liabilities 59,118,155 47,399,063
JEA i TE Taxation payable 12,939,782 10,304,622
RICHIIA A (& Deferred taxation liabilities 5,498,136 4,486,726
/AT B HABAE K Bank and other borrowings 52,360,438 44,336,408
(Bt Senior notes 5,511,632 7,929,172
HAtfiA 4/ TR Other derivative financial instruments 215,915 -
ARA3 Be A8 K HoAth & Unallocated head office and other liabilities 14,071,136 7,164,961
HAAEME Consolidated total liabilities 149,715,194 121,620,952
() B i B i i3 W as (c) Revenue from major product and services
ALEEE LEYE - KEYERE The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
HERE TR R T T properties sold, properties invested and services provided:
A T
2016 2015
ANREFLE ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB 000
& Sales of properties 51,441,402 44,992,984
&Y Leasing of properties 1,913,093 1,415,187
{5 S A T R Provision of property management services 1,445,000 1,014,928

54,799,495 47,423,099
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R s §-)-NEY 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
d) HEER (d) Geographic information
TRET R B - BEWER The following table sets out information about the Group’s revenue
SRR RS B 7E A R dak T 1 0 A5 B AR from external customers by cities in the PRC, based on the location
EER AR FIAR R - at which the properties are sold, properties are invested and services
TLE) 7 ORI R I A A are provided. Information about its non-current assets is analysed
I3 e by geographical location of assets.
R EIMR% PR
Revenue from T B
external customers Non-current assets
“FAE —F-nF ZFAE —FnF
2016 2015 2016 2015

ARWTIL ARKTT ARWETLE ARKETT
RMB'000 RMB’000 ~ RMB'000  RMB’000

B[ Beijing 1,933,241 2,993,063 13,714,539 9,092,667
BER Chengdu 4,741,258 4,260,967 7,295,322 7,074,754
Y- Chongging 12,426,394 10,658,671 22,872,727 19,764,571
I Hangzhou 8,301,344 6,520,638 6,067,935 5,616,167
A Nanjing 2,685,901 — 101,679 945
HFE Qingdao 2,861,144 2,084,107 590,526 106,101
i Shanghai 4,714,772 4,487,061 9,109,454 6,304,061
3] Sunan 2,915,546 1,918,047 1,186,119 1,424,239
BEM Suzhou 2,054,169 1,219,565 2,551,739 2,027,959
J& " Xiamen 1,906,687 2,866,437 6,609,364 4,367,170
W% Xi'an 2,558,747 1,601,811 1,282,771 726,039
20 L b 3k T Other cities in the PRC 7,700,292 8,812,732 11,517,682 4,950,759

54,799,495 47,423,099 82,899,857 61,455,432

Mt ERBEEAEIEA R ERE - S5 Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments, financial
T H IR TE & o instruments and deferred taxation assets.

HUE 48 BEL BE — A R % AT A8 5 B e A 2 No revenue from transaction with a single external customer

AAEECA R 109% B L o amounts to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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6. JAbBA 6. OTHER INCOME
“ERNE CE LR
2016 2015
AR AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB 000
FE A Interest income 141,046 238,024
AT R PR A Dividend income from available-for-sale investments 1,252 626
U (B ek a) Government subsidies (Note a) 47,826 80,106
R (Ff5Eb) Penalty income (Note b) 68,096 59,865
ET N Sundry income 77,825 74,824
Mt Total 336,045 453,445
M3E - Notes:
(a) RS AR P v R SR T o BB D 5 (a) The amount represents the grants received from the relevant PRC government to
[ 43 PR Bl o G B A A B 4 TR encourage the investments in specific regions. The subsidies are unconditional and
T R T A ] o granted on a discretionary basis to the Group during the year.
(b) ERKRBITYENEEE RN EER (b) It represents penalty received from property buyers who do not execute sales and
a4 A AR T 00 AL T i B i 4 purchase agreements on property sales or from tenants who early terminate tenancy
% o agreements.
7. Jfbd B 4t 7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
“xE  “BEA
2016 2015
ANRBEFLT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEYIE ~ RRGE R kM i i Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15,700 2,997
EE b i LV 2 (R 3 ) Net exchange losses (Note) (302,374) (772,739)
AR S e e R R Reclassification of fair value gain of
THEM ATt hedging instruments from hedging reserve 248,592 613,754
42 T [ 0 S R AR 0 e 4R Loss on early redemption of senior notes (117,226) —
(155,308) (155,988)
Fif 2« F5 R B MDA T ([ o ) B o ([ 3£ Note: It represents exchange difference arising from bank balances, bank borrowings and
I6 ) B ERAT &8 ~ SRATIE S B senior notes, original currencies of which are either denominated in Hong Kong
EEHE S (1 B D254 o Dollar (“HKD”) or United States Dollar (“USD”).
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b AR 8. FINANCE COSTS
ZE-R e S o2
2016 2015
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB 000 RMB 000
SRAT B A i AR Interest on bank and other borrowings
HAE N HEIR Wholly repayable within five years (1,849,214)  (2,250,350)
AN B H AR Not wholly repayable within five years (638,928) (203,508)
e HRNSY Interest expense on seniot notes (537,576) (533,678)
W BREPREWER Less: Amount capitalised to properties under
B P SEN) A & development for sales and investment
properties under development 2,972,659 2,944,417
(53,059) (43,119)
B AL By AR R A R B A L E Y — Borrowing costs capitalised arose on the general borrowing pool of the
BEHsE A2 _F—NETH Group and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 5.32%
=+ — AL EEREES 20— E—X (2015: 6.55%) per annum for the year ended December 31, 2016, to
£ 6.55%) BRI L =EE > AL expenditure on the qualifying assets.
B ERE -
Pt 5 B8 BH 3¢ 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
ZERNE ZE A
2016 2015
AR¥TFIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB 000
AHFIIE Current tax
EiE R EIT (3,470,064)  (2,577,985)
THE (AR LAT (2,732,472) (1,844,446
(6,202,536)  (4,422,431)
TEAF R BRI - Overprovision in prior years:
ASEPTIRBL (H T a) EIT (Note a) 106,927 161,017
(B (H et b) LAT (Note b) 95,097 287,444
202,024 448,461
(6,000,512)  (3,973,970)
RIE B (BT 30) Deferred taxation (Note 30)
AR Current year 65,882 (724,542)
BEAEE (B A2 ) B AR (Under) overprovision in prior years (86,814) 124,442

(20,932) (600,100)

(6,021,444)  (4,574,070)
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The assessment and computation of EIT payable in respect of certain subsidiaries
which held completed property projects were finalised which differed from the
management’s estimation on EIT in prior years, resulting in an overprovision of EIT

in respect of prior years.

(b) The actual appreciation value of several property projects had been finalised and
the development plan for property projects had been revised in which the revised
estimated appreciation amount was different with the appreciation amount made in

prior years, resulting in an overprovision of LAT in respect of prior years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group

does not have income which arises in, or is derived from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are eligible

for exemption from PRC EIT for both years.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and regulations,
preferential corporate income tax rates have been granted to certain PRC
subsidiaries of the Company which were established in western regions
and engaged in the encouraged business. These companies are subject to a
preferential rate of 15% in 2016 (2015: 15%), subject to approval of the
tax authority, if the annual income derived from the encouraged business

is more than 70% of the annual total income.
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

AR e A PO S TR A per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:
“ERNE CE LR
2016 2015
ANBETFL AR¥TIT
RMB’000 RMB 000
R L 4 A1 Profit before taxation 15,956,310 13,938,187
25% HY H B 4 3 B 1Bt PRC EIT at 25% (3,989,078) (3,484,547
JRE A B8 T SE AR B R 2 Tax effect of share of results of associates 262,753 4,677)
JREAG & 5 A 2 BN BT Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 95,803 66,716
SRR TEIN 35 AN AT 1R B S Tax effect of expenses not deductible
B 2 ([t 5k a) for tax purposes (Note a) (436,361) (410,968)
BT 5 BB A BB 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 1,184 2,260
T (B LAT (2,732,472)  (1,844,446)
b R A BT 2 Tax effect of LAT 683,118 461,112
TR AF R AR A Opverprovision in prior years 115,210 572,903
AT R TE e 1R 1 Bl g 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (40,410) (24,465)
T B e A RS Y Effect of tax exemption and preferential rates
BT 0 1B B 2RI 3 granted to certain PRC subsidiaries 10,345 18,704
BR IR BB (F5Eb)  Withholding tax on retained profits to
be distributed (Note b) — (19,151)
E i P B Bl 1 T B Withholding tax levied on dividend paid 8,464 92,489
R Tax charge for the year (6,021,444)  (4,574,070)
FE - Notes:

() B EUE AR A AR AT A 36 B 5
BT W o 2 ) B SRS AR B A M RE HY

AT 7195 BRI B R 22 o

(b) AR AN B vt R A L B 7
3k 7, B AR B L A O B R 2 R ) S
Bii% 12008111295 » 5% RS EINBLBL R
AR B A T A 3t R AR B ) 25%

(a) The amount mainly comprises the tax effect of non-deductible corporate expenses
of the Group and the expenses of certain subsidiaries in excess of the allowable

deduction limits in accordance with the relevant tax regulations.

(b) According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and
the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income” and Guoshuifa

[20081112, where the Hong Kong resident company directly owns at least 25%

I 7 e RN T o mg AR TS s T o I of the capital of the Mainland company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is

ATRBE=F—AEF A=+ —ALE
4 HE TR 24 Rl T B 00 40

8t -

applicable. The amount represents the withholding income tax provided on the
undistributed profits arisen during the year ended December 31, 2016 of certain
PRC subsidiaries.
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10.

11.

JBe B

ENTERBMRA L

ZR— AR IR R
AN 0357 6 (ZF—HF ¢
TR AR 0.284 70)

10. DIVIDEND

it Y- S S T

2016 2015
ARHTE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Dividend recognised as distribution during the year:
Final dividend paid in respect of 2015
of RMB0.357 (2015: in respect of
2014 of RMB0.284) per share 2,083,332 1,654,310

RERE AR A AN FEFERIR
BRE_Z-AFETA=+—HI
TR BN R % 2,722,014,000
T6o RN R o466t (K it — F
—ANET A=+ HME BT RS
HE)CE—RE: E_F A
ToA=tT—HIEFEMAHREAR
#2,083,000,000 7C > # Mt A & #0.357
J6) > MEZRFE I SR R T AR A R g it
i o

A

A TGN A 5 e 2 A % 0 g
Fy R TS LA S

JRRS G A PO A T 0 28 1 Y
LNk 2PN S e

11.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
RMB2,722,014,000, representing RMBO0.466 per share, based on the
number of shares in issue as at December 31, 2016, in respect of the year
ended December 31, 2016 (2015: final dividend of RMB2,083,000,000,
representing RMB0.357 per share, in respect of the year ended December
31, 2015) has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to

the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
“F-NE “FHF
2016 2015

ARHTE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Earnings attributable to the owners of the Company
for the purposes of calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share 9,152,953 8,988,037

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]
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. B ) 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Coninucd)
“FNE CF L
2016 2015
TH T
‘000 000
[ ¥ H Number of shares
R R B A A Y Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
908 I R 2 the purpose of calculation of basic
earnings per share 5,817,674 5,821,449
R HEAH A 2 Sl A VB (e BV 8 Bffece of dilutive potential ordinary shares in
respect of - share options 21,173 41,412
R 5 3L PR 28 1 Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
Lo T % the purpose of calculation of diluted
earnings per share 5,838,847 5,862,861

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the

w55 T {1 4 B R A o8 L A B R

I 2 3 PR RE - 2 B KT BR — 4
S 3 FE AR A 7 % 4 5 W w1 3 DA
R ARA L AR B R L -

BEF-ANELA-F-HF+ A
=t HIREE > mR R E
A ZF A R 5 — TR RAT A
AR T FBEAR B SF- 2 i A o Wt A A
A ARG R AR —F R NET
A2 = BRI e B o A R R
WRH#IR —F——HF A+ LRRHN
F I

calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years have
been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company

by an independent trustee under the share award scheme of the Company.

For the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the share options
granted on January 17, 2011 under the Post-IPO share option scheme
adopted on December 23, 2009 are not included in the calculation of
diluted earnings per share as the adjusted exercise price was greater than
the average market price of the Company’s shares during the outstanding
period in 2016 and 2015.
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12. BEEWE 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
B
(55097 Eia 7S
BEWE Investment
Completed properties
investment under At
properties  development Total

ARWETFE  ARBTT ARBTL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

A i! FAIR VALUE
R oF—HFE—H—H At January 1, 2015 25,702,800 7,658,700 33,361,500
WA Additions 2,482 3,278,121 3,280,603
L E EATEE R Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 3,004,611 3,004,611
T FRRE R B3 () Transfer from properties held for sales (Note) 337,172 — 337,172
Lxc Transfer 4,131,009 (4,131,009) —
B Cost adjustment (5,661) 532,998 527,337
A L 5k £ Fair value gain upon transfer of prepaid
RIEWEN AT EIREE  lease payments to investment properties — 395,863 395,863
HRFAE S 1) SE 438 Fair value change upon transfer of
RBICEYEN N TESE  properties held for sales to
investment properties 38,388 — 38,388
AR £ HERR R A Net increase in fair value recognised
By [T in profit or loss 773,210 1,666,416 2,439,626
AZF R+ "HA=1—H AtDecember 31,2015 30,979,400 12,405,700 43,385,100
N E Additions 97,724 2,856,273 2,953,997
R AREE B (Mi5E) Transfer from properties held for sales (Note) 673,391 — 673,391
L Transfer 8,135,437  (8,135,437) —
FRFAE H 5 1) SE A3 Fair value change upon transfer of
FBCEMZEN A T{EEE)  properties held for sales to
investment properties 47,154 — 47,154
JA 1R 4 R A (L Net increase in fair value recognised
by IREE in profit or loss 1,575,694 395,264 1,970,958
N E—NE At December 31, 2016
+ZHA=+—H 41,508,800 7,521,800 49,030,600

FE AR A YY) SE A Y Unrealised gain on property

EN Sillien revaluation included in profit or loss 1,622,848 395,264 2,018,112
Mizk @ mREAE = QS HED B > BRY Note: The transfer from properties held for sales to investment properties were made since
RO ME > aEED %%%@;% p=3 there was a change in use as evidenced by the commencement of operating leases to
HEWE - third parties.

174
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BEYE
BB e

AEBEBREVENRBEHRZ AR %
— Ak CFE A+ A=+ HAF
B T R 7 b BELAR B2 TSI A B — KO
N7 Al 565 — RSP S A £
{0 J% S50 2 0 A R ) (EL 7 o ot
04 2 0 A (b 8 A 9080 5 A BRI 48
B5) A %55 FTHEAT B Al (EL AR Y o

TEAG R ZE R T (E IR - L E AT & 2
A A T B R A -

LT P A S 00 302
il :

C& M — HBEAHARGHERA
FREBAEATR > WEES EA R
KTREEFT AP

B R 3E — SR Y S AR kT
B R R R A SR > I
B e PR FRE VRO S8 9 RS % ] %
MR MR E R RHA N EE -

A SR T ) 1R B R 4 BEFR B AR (T o
HIITRER N Y2 SHLEE S E YN
VR A AR A B AIRTIE S A
¥,

A %S A 3 (B Y B i (R
A (B A0 B AR ) o DA AR SR
TE R ] B A B A T E
RN AT HESEHR(E—FE=EHR) ER
I o

12.

BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are all situated in the PRC.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at dates of transfer
and December 31, 2016 and 2015 have been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out on those dates by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, a firm of independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group, who have appropriate qualifications and recent

experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of

the properties is their current use.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined by the

valuers on the following basis:

Completed properties - arrived at by capitalising the net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary

incoming potential of the respective properties.

Properties under development - valued on the basis that they will be
developed and completed in accordance with the latest development
proposals and taken into account the construction costs that will be
expended to complete the development as well as developer’s profit

margin to reflect the quality of the completed development.

All of the Group’s property interests in leasehold land and buildings to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the

fair value model and classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.
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12. #BEWE w0

AGEMR G A MBI
L RE*
Investment properties

held by the Group in the
consolidated statement

of financial position

B mEEE -1

shUE A i

Completed investment
properties - shopping malls

in Western China

FE

APEES (ETPETTIN €3
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
FEBR e AL i
Level 3
FEBALBER
) L3 gk
© R ET A a %
3 BAEEHE
o) WiEE e

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Income capitalisation method

The key inputs are

(1) Term yield

) Reversionary yield
(3) Monthly term rental
(4) Reversionary rental

Longfor Properties Co. Led. 8 Wi 1 & BR A

LV TN C

Significant unobservable input(s)

R - % R TS E R AT
S AR A R » AR LR
FHEEBRN TR > R 4% % 65% (=
F05F g E65%) -

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated
by market average selling price and the market
average rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the lower market risk for the
term value, range from 4% to 6.5% (2015: 4% to
6.5%).

WRENHANEE  ZEH TS THERR
AL P A R M 36
o LRI DR AP 459 E 7%
(CE-TE 450 E75%) °

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the conditions of the
shopping malls, range from 4.5% to 7% (2015:
4.5% 107.5%).

BB E A E A ER ABLAHE AT
e - FRARK 8/ Fhk/ AEA
¥4/ ok AEF -4 ARK
367t/ Vik/RENRK 2410/ FHok /
A)e

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from
the rental as stated in the existing rental agreements
with an average of RMB28/sq.m./month to
RMB304/sq.m./month (2015: RMB36/sq.m./month
to RMB241/sq.m./month).

ATREERTHLEA A 7 WA it b K
wIFIHS  FHRARKe T/ Fhk/
REAER 0/ FHk/RCF-TE:
NEWaa7t/Fhk/ AEARK 69278,/ F
Jik/R) e

Reversionary rental is derived from the market
rentals from comparable properties or the rental as
stated in the new rental agreements with an average
of RMB81/sq.m./month to RMB701/sq.m./month
(2015: RMB82/sq.m./month to RMB692/sq.m./

month).

BRI AT RN (W)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
value (Note a)

AR - ATHERE -
The higher the term yield, the lower the fair

value.
A ERTR AR A > TR -
The higher the reversionary yield, the lower the

fair value,

BAEMHEHE  AFEER -
The higher the monthly term rental, the higher

the fair value,

AR ETREHE  AFHEER -
The higher the reversionary rental, the higher the

fair value,



12. BBEWEw)

ARG R MR R AR
TR R Ak
Investment properties

held by the Group in the
consolidated statement

of financial position

SRR
Investment PTOPETUCS
under development

in Western China

NFEES LIEEPEZS N 1t 3
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
FEES Flbis
Level 3 . .
TEBAHRS

22 /N
o)
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

() AHEREE
@ EmEHHHE
6 HBE

The residual method

The key inputs are
(1) Gross development value
0] Developer's profic

3) Discount rate

BN PN ¢

Significant unobservable input(s)

DR TAAEN AR REE 2 EHTIER
PEOEEMBAER > MEEAAN > R
AR 1076 B E AR 1,086 B~ %
—EE ARBL07AETEARK 1683
B -

Gross development value on completion basis,
taking into account of location and individual factors
such as frontage and size, between the comparables
and the property, range from RMB1,076 million to
RMB1,086 million (2015: RMB1,027 million to
RMBI,683 million).

PRBRII IR 7 B8 2T I+ 305055 A
B FP150E06( "% —HF 102%
209) °

Developer's profit, taking into account of the
comparables land transactions and progress of the
property, range from 15% to 20% (2015: 10% to
20%).

JiBlE ZREMERANE Be35%(0F
—IE 4359 E475%) -

Discount rate, taking into account of the prevailing
market interest rates, at 4.35% (2015: 4.35% to
475%).

AR A SRS AT B (H5Eb)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
value (Note b)

BRBEEAR > AR -
The higher the gross development value, the

higher the fair value.

P AR A A -
The higher the developer's profit, the lower the

fair value,

FiBLs e AT -
The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair

value.
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AR B AR
TH L B
Investment properties

held by the Group in the
consolidated statement

of financial position

B mEEE -1
R A
Completed investment
properties - shopping malls

in Pan Bohai Rim

FE

ATEER MEE pEET IN ¢
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
ol e AL i
Level 3
FEMALES
) B %
© R E A g%
3 BAEEHE
o) WiEET e

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Income capitalisation method

The key inputs are

(1 Term yield

=

Reversionary yield

S

)
(¢)
() Monthly term rental
@

Reversionary rental

Longfor Properties Co. Led. 8 Wi 1 & BR A

AR B AL

Significant unobservable input(s)

R - % R TS E R AT
SR B g A DL B
FEHEARENTIRRR > 5 T5.5%E6%(=
TR 5% E6%) °

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated
by market average selling price and the market
average rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the lower market risk for the
term value, range from 5.5% to 6% (2015: 5.5% to
6%).

WRENHANEE  ZEH TS THERR
AL P A R M 36
W DRI OIS R 6% (CF -1
B 60) «

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the conditions of the
shopping malls, at 6% (2015: 6%).

BREMNE A E MRS R ABLAHE AT
i FHBARK 8T/ Fhk/ AEA
R¥ 87/ Fiok/ A (ZZ2-18 : ARK
WL/ THk/ AEARE316TE/ Tk /
A)e

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from
the rental as stated in the existing rental agreements
with an average of RMB138/sq.m./month to
RMB228/sq.m./month (2015: RMB141/sq.m./
month to RMB316/sq.m./month).

BREME A E MRS R B AR &R
s FHRARK 2067/ Fhk/ AEA
R¥se/Fok/ A4 ARK
BT/ THk/ RENR M 45778/ THk/
A)e

Reversionary rental is derived from the market
rentals from comparable properties or the rental as
stated in the new rental agreements with an average
of RMB206/sq.m./month to RMB484/sq.m./month
(2015: RMB235/sq.m./month to RMBA457/sq.m./

month).

BRI AT RN (W)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
value (Note a)

AR - ATHERE -
The higher the term yield, the lower the fair

value.
A ERTR AR A > TR -
The higher the reversionary yield, the lower the

fair value,

BAEMHEHE  AFEER -
The higher the monthly term rental, the higher

the fair value,

AR ETREHE  AFHEER -
The higher the reversionary rental, the higher the

fair value,
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12. BBEWEw) 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
AEERG AR RE
WHLBRE
Investment properties
held by the Group in the AT A BRAE A - (O B R (BT )

consolidated statement AFESS Gt ETL N 43 BRI B ALR Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair

of financial position Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) value (Note b)

R R EEEH Flti: DR TRAEERARRER  ZRETIER ARREEES  ATERS -

Investment properties Level 3 ) . NEMAENERNEZ > WEPALAN BF  The higher the gross development value, the
TEHAURS

under development in

Pan Bohai Rim

) AERER
0) BB A

(ZZ—54F : AR 660 AL -
Gross development value on completion basis,

taking into account of location and individual factors

higher the fair value.

PREETAIL » AR -

& % such s frontage and size, between the comparables :he highe the devclopr's prfi he lower the
The residual method and the property, of nil (2015: RMB3,660 million). i vl
‘ o TR AT
e RERIA SRR L R g o ST AR
e The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
(1) Gross development value EA%(CEHF 1 5%) .

() Developer's profi

(3) Discount rate

Developer's profit, taking into account of the
comparables land transactions and progress of the

property, at nil (2015: %).

B BRHMERGAE AZ(CE-1
B 435%) »
Discount rate, taking into account of the prevailing

matket interest rate, at nil (2015: 4.35%).

value.
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12. #BEWE w0

ARG BRI AE
TH B
Investment properties

held by the Group in the
consolidated statement

of financial position

B ECE -1
RAL= A A .0

Completed investment
properties - shopping

malls in Yangtze River Delta

FE

NFEES (SR N
Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
EZEHR s B A
Level 3 . .
TEOARER
) il
©) AR E A
6 BAENEE
) WS

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Income capitalisation method

The key inputs are

(1) Term yield

2 Reversionary yield
©)] Monthly term rental
4) Reversionary rental

Longfor Properties Co. Led. 8 Wi 1 & BR A

EVONL 7N ¢

Significant unobservable input(s)

Rl - %R WS E R AT
ST AR AR - RN LR
FHEERRNTIRRR > KT 5% E55% (=
F-1H o) -

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated
by market average selling price and the market
average rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the lower market risk for the

term value, range from 5% t0 5.5% (2015: 6%).

WRETHANEE  ZRHASTHERR
ALY A E A% LR
W DRI LIRS R 6% (CF -1
B 65%) o

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the conditions of the
shopping malls, at 6% (2015: 6.5%).

R i F e B A B SRR ek A
e FHRARKMT/FHR/AEN
R¥ 2587/ Fiok/ A (218 ARY
U/ VIk/ RENRS 14T/ TIok/
A)e

Monthly term renal for each unit is derived from
the rental as stated in the existing rental agreements
with an average of RMB24/sq.m./month to
RMB258/sq.m./month (2015: RMB24/sq.m./month
to RMB114/sq.m./month).

ATREERTHLGA A o WA il S K
RIS  FHRARK 010/ Tk
RENRR 027/ FHk/RZF-TE:
ARH37978/FIk/R) -

Reversionary rental is derived from the market
rentals from comparable properties or the rencal as
stated in the new rental agreements with an average
of RMB301/sq.m./month to RMB402/sq.m./month
(2015: RMB379/sq.m./month).

B AR AT R R ()
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair
value (Note a)

AR - ATHRE -
The higher the term yield, the lower the fair

value.
B AT A g A ATERE -

The higher the reversionary yield, the lower the

fair value,

BN A FEEE -
The higher the monthly term rental, the higher

the fair value,

TRERERE R -
The higher the reversionary rental, the higher the

fair value.
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12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

LIEEPEZS N 1t 3

of financial position Fair value hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
RIL=ANERRENE F=ER Hre:
Investment properties under Level 3 . .
. TEEARRS
development in
Yangtze River Delta 1) HE (Y
2 FE AR
G B
The residual method
The key inputs are
(1) Gross development value
(0] Developer's profic
©)] Discount rate
Fff & - Notes:
(a) AR A0 B 5 75 AN T i A B s A fe (@)
WM > SEERATEFEKE T
BBk o
(b)  BRAGEEFRGI(ESL » MEAEIR SRR AR vl 4% (b)
i AR BT AT s ) > g
TR ARk

BN PN ¢

Significant unobservable input(s)

DR TR AR RRE  %BHTHAER
RN A ENBAAR > MEEAAD - FF
ARH 1306 AT E NRA 4153 AET (=%
—hfE ARBI0ARTEARR466H
B -

Gross development value on completion basis,
taking into account of location and individual factors
such s frontage and size, between the comparables
and the property, range from RMB1,396 million to
RMB4,153 million (2015: RMB1,330 million to
RMB4,663 million).

PREE AT - 7% R H S0 R e
B Bs% 205 (ZF— 51 - 8% £20%) «
Developer's profit, taking into account of the
comparables land transactions and progress of the
property, range from 15% to 20% (2015: 8% to
20%).

W% ZRAMGRINE FE350E
475% (ZF 15 1 435% E475%)

Discount rate, taking ino account of the prevailing
market interest rates, range from 4.35% to 4.75%
(2015: 435% t0 4.75%).

measurement.

AR A SRS AT B (H5Eb)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair

value (Note b)

BRBEEAR > AR -
The higher the gross development value, the

higher the fair value.

P AR A A -
The higher the developer's profit, the lower the

fair value,

FiBLs e AT -
The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair

value.

There is no indication that any slight change in the unobservable input(s) would

result in significant higher or lower fair value measurement.

Except gross development value, there is no indication that any slight change in the

other unobservable input(s) would result in significant higher or lower fair value
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13. W ~ W5 Bt Al

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B B R AR
IR Equipment
M Motor and At
Buildings vehicles  furniture Total
ARWFL  ARWFLT ARWFL ARWTFL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ﬁJZZIi COST
Ao E—fE—H—H At January 1, 2015 161,038 61,609 165,778 388,425
WE Additions 29,133 4,604 26,522 60,259
jagalie A YN 3 v Acquisition of assets and liabilities
BB (Wt 33) through acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note 33) - 375 3,502 3,877
HE Disposals (2,572) (3,883) (14,345) (20,800)
REF—TEFZHA=1—H At December 31, 2015 187,599 62,705 181,457 431,761
WE Additions = 4,209 38,183 42,392
gl NI 8 < Acquisition of assets and liabilities
R A (Wt 33) through acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note 33) — — 436 436
(= Disposals (6,329) 4,119) (1,427) (11,875)
WZE—AEFZHA=1+—H At December 31, 2016 181,270 62,795 218,649 462,714
Ratin ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
WoE—FE—~A—H At January 1, 2015 61,892 36,321 100,117 198,330
SRR Charge for the year 6,574 6,150 20,440 33,164
L A B Eliminated on disposals (2,571) (2,491) (3,045) (8,107)
WZZE—HFEFZA=+—H At December 31, 2015 65,895 39,980 117,512 223,387
SRR Charge for the year 3,952 6,299 36,004 46,255
B RF A 85 Bliminated on disposals 977) (3,702) (891) (5,570)
WoE—NEFZA=ZF—H At December 31, 2016 68,870 42,577 152,625 264,072
MR 1 CARRYING VALUES
WZZE—AETFZA=+—H At December 31, 2016 112,400 20,218 66,024 198,642
WZZ—HFEFZA=+—H At December 31, 2015 121,704 22,725 63,945 208,374
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T HGEFIHE - AT AT

14.

BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated

residual values at the following rates per annum:

Buildings
Motor vehicles 20%
Equipment and furniture  33%

Over the estimated useful lives of 20 years

The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments represents land use rights
held in the PRC and is analysed as follows:

RN R R

2016 2015

ANRETT ARETT

RMB’ 000 RMB’000

i Medium-term 6,728,305 2,415,955
=M Long-term 10,693,650 9,358,630
JF B 1 Non-current 17,421,955 11,774,585

7 4 T T A AL B TR AR B E P B A
T 40 4 2 70 FERUBEY 8 R L ffi
FARERT SCAT R 3RIE o R B — R+
A=+—H > A% MK B SR
5 MR T B A R ¥ 3,249,157,000 76 (= %
—F4E 0 NRH8,817,213,000 70 ) A9 FE
FELE A b (s PR

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent payments for acquisition
of the land use rights in the PRC with lease terms ranging from 40 to
70 years for the purpose of property development. The Group had not
yet obtained the certificates of land use rights of prepaid leases with a
carrying value of RMB3,249,157,000 (2015: RMBS8,817,213,000) from

the relevant authorities at December 31, 2016.
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15. HIGE 2 6] i HE 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

“ER-ANE CEHF
2016 2015
AR#FLE ARETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
BERA - L Cost of investments, unlisted 853,803 374,914

JREAG Wi B % v A (B4R » FnBRELME S Share of post-acquisition profits (losses),
net of dividend received 732,304 (18,707)
W B RERR IR 4R Less: Impairment loss recognised (414) (414)

1,585,693 355,793

AE-AREF A=A ZBEA
B R BT 49 o

AR S A K B A ) st ML

Details of the associates as at December 31, 2016 are set out in note 49.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

Bl material
TR NE CFE R
2016 2015
ANR¥EFIT ANRETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
% 42 8 A A9 365 R (R 8 ) B The Group's share of profit (loss) and total
s (B 52) 858 comprehensive income (expense) 5,994 (10,536)

BRI 4 vl B 2 B R 2
RS T KR A ) 2 B R
WIS o DL 85 EOR B2 2 50 B
2% 8 0 0 A 0 B
BRI G -

1280 0 5 s 7 D A R0 ) (T
P ) T -1 55 9 0 A PR
7 (T3 5055 3 1) o 4 T 0 K
B > DS -

AT 25 6 4 O T M R
AT BN -

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]

Summarised financial information of material associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements

prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

For illustrative purposes, it is assumed that Xiamen Xiangzhou Real
Estate Development Limited (“Xiamen Xiangzhou”) and Beijing
Gezhouba Longfor Real Estate Development Limited (“Beijing Gezhouba)

are the only material associates to the Group.

All of these associates are accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.
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15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates

(Continued)
5 P Xiamen Xiangzhou
R A ZE A
2016 2015
ANR#FE ARETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
WEEE Current assets 1,933,605 1,472,994
FE UL E) & E Non-current assets 417 242
WEh A& Current liabilities (325,574) (836,892)
B A Non-current liabilities (930,000) (603,020)
ZE—A R R
2016 2015
ANRHFE AR¥TT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
A Revenue 3,048,801 —
A 3 A (548 Profit (loss) for the year 645,124 (16,676)
g B e L A A B S R 3 Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

R T B~ R i ) B T (1 SBER

& A 2
A A JEL O 22 i A R i L 151

carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:
e I
2016 2015

ARBTE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Net assets of Xiamen Xiangzhou 678,448 33,324
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest
in Xiamen Xiangzhou 49% 49%

A T TR 40 9 R i 9 U (L

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in Xiamen Xiangzhou 332,440 16,329
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15. TG 2 vl B BE R a0

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

U E W Beijing Gezhouba
N SN
2016
AR T
RMB’000
L) B Current assets 5,329,836
FERBE Non-current assets 363
b R=N I Current liabilities (3,911,626)
JEmE) & & Non-current liabilities =
e
2016
AR#F
RMB’000
g A Revenue 5,406,644
A B Vi A Profit for the year 1,457,811

3t B 5 AR L A A R AR
T g ) AR i X R T (PSS

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the

carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

ZE AN

2016

AR T

RMB’000

JU B 2 1 Net assets of Beijing Gezhouba 1,418,573
A2 A o N T R A LU A5 Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest

in Beijing Gezhouba 50%

72 [ 7 Al T A s R i 1 R T Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Beijing Gezhouba 709,287

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2016, addendum to the investment
agreement of Beijing Gezhouba, was entered into between the Group
and its joint venture partner. Before the signing of the addendum, the
Group has the power to appoint three out of five directors in the board
of Beijing Gezhouba and relevant activities of Beijing Gezhouba require
unanimous consent from the board of Beijing Gezhouba. Thus, the Group
is able to exercise joint control in Beijing Gezhouba and accordingly it
was previously accounted for as a joint venture of the Group. After the
signing of the acddendum, the Group has the power to appoint three out
of seven directors in the board of Beijing Gezhouba and relevant activities
of Beijing Gezhouba require consent with more than half of the directors
in the board of Beijing Gezhouba, thus the Group is able to exercise
significant influence in Beijing Gezhouba. Accordingly, it becomes an

associate of the Group.

A BN 16. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
“E N I S TR
2016 2015
ANREETFL  AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB A > F LT Cost of investments, unlisted 2,364,293 962,293
JRE A Wi A2 i A1) (5 482) > FBRC WU B, Share of post-acquisition profits (losses),
net of dividend received 373,035 (80,008)
2,737,328 882,285

RoTZ—RNEF_H=+—HZE&%®
ZE TR O B RE 49 o
RN N R RoE 4 -5
Bl

A S5 0 R 6 1) I 2 T W i A

Details of the joint ventures as at December 31, 2016 are set out in note

49.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not

individually material

"R AN “F-nE

2016 2015
AR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
The Group's share of profits and total
comprehensive income 383,210 266,864
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17. Wb A%

iR TE  HORA

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

“F-AHE —F-4F
2016 2015
ARHTE  ARETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Unlisted equity securities, at cost 180,021 130,920

FEWHER R AR AR TR~
RAE L8 57 28 o B = AR A
BTN LRI - R
LA A FEMATEELEL AL
FEHED A AR A SR B AP E - 6
ST B AR DA SRS 1 ok (L

18. H#K

Unlisted equity investments represent the investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by private entities and an entity with shares traded in
the new over-the-counter market of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. They
are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair value cannot

be reliably measured.

18. INVENTORIES

SFRE CE T

2016 2015
ARWFTE  ARMTT
RMB’000 RMB 000

ey Construction materials 835,433 773,930
TH 2 5 KA Consumables and others 3,296 3,454
838,729 777,384

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]
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BRPpHEYE 19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALES
ZE AR ZE I
2016 2015
ANRHFLE ARETIT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
A COST
TAAER) At the beginning of the year 70,829,748 68,090,667
N Additions 26,474,968 21,993,706
75 ST TR PRI 2 R Wi 7 % B £ (FfFRE 33) Acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) 6,782,518 3,662,388
B T gt | R A AR B O Transfer from prepaid lease payments upon
commencement of construction 23,108,350 10,251,090
BB EREY % Transfer to properties held for sales (37,769,153)  (33,168,103)
JRAE# At the end of the year 80,426,431 70,829,748

BB SES A o

REF—ANETF_H=1T—H  5tA%
J v R W S A UG B B R AR T (E
B % N 58,675,000,000 G (% — 1
40 N 24,700,000,000 7C) > 46 8
SRS Clr vy et ) 5 o i )
YIERBRIE (H

SR (IR E S
ARSI 55 1 B 0 S G < B
Fif 0 LA AT

M MR kB L il B O >
g BT AT K

Z 5 s IE (FfiEa)
FoAth REMCHRIE - BUR IR (M 3Eb)

] 4 1 i 5
A 3B HALBLUIR
TR BRE R it % 4 (Wt c)

The properties under development for sales are located in the PRC.

Included in the properties under development for sales classified as
current assets as at December 31, 2016 is carrying value of approximately
RMB58,675 million (2015: RMB24,700 million) which represents the
carrying value of the properties expected to be completed and sold after

twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALES
The Group’s properties held for sales are situated in the PRC. All the

properties held for sales are stated at cost.

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS
“BAE CEHE
2016 2015
ARHEFE  ARETT
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
Trade receivables (Note a) 2,632,834 2,070,974
Other receivables, net of allowance for
doubtful debts (Note b) 2,497,046 1,232,256
Advances to suppliers 432,265 377,303
Prepaid business tax and other taxes 1,920,336 1,883,814
Prepayments and utilities deposits (Note c) 2,841,743 4,355,783

10,324,224 9,920,130
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21. MEMC % B 30 b ek S

P54 R WA X ()

Bt -

(a) B o B TE R 5 Y 2o R4k
& o A RSN Y ZE R IO t B R AR A B
EE k2 - MERET > e
WA AP A H R AR 4 R A M6 R
fit -

VI 2 3t B A #3203 B At s
2 51 ) 5 5 B IS T B MR S B

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sales of properties and properties
investment. Considerations in respect of sales of properties are paid by purchasers
in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase agreements. For
properties investment, rental income are paid by tenants within two months in

accordance with the terms in the tenancy agreements.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the end of the reporting

period based on the date of delivery of properties and rendering of services:

G
“E A RN
2016 2015
ANBHTFT AR¥EFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
60 HA Within 60 days 1,966,533 1,724,038
612180 H 61 - 180 days 500,792 326,774
1812365 H 181 - 365 days 148,986 11,753
1224 1 - 2 years 16,523 8,409
2,632,834 2,070,974

NZE—ANFEFZH=1+—H 2% (=%
—HAE 1 29) B9 E 5 MEWUHIE I R S R 18
W 0 08 DR M > BLfR R A AT

2
=

WoE—REFZH =+ —HFtARER
JHE M R B R MBS 4 5 A ) 6 ) MR S I
IR (E 25 N R ¥ 2,567,240,000 76 ( —F
—HAF : AR 2,028,595,00070) » HE
T AN H R A S B T
%5 % P SEHE ELAR B SR A A
ST TR0 e 7 5 A S E e B M T
SO A [ S 6 W A o B

A EL R B 2 0 MR O Bl 20 -

At December 31, 2016, 2% (2015: 2%) of the trade receivables are neither past due

nor impaired and with satisfactory credit quality.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable balance are trade receivables with a
carrying amount of RMB2,567,240,000 (2015: RMB2,028,595,000) at December
31, 2016 which are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment as the Group has retained the legal titles of the
properties sold to these customers and the estimated fair value of the relevant

properties is expected to be higher than the outstanding receivable amount.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

2N R

2016 2015

AR T NR¥F

RMB’000 RMB’000

60 H A Within 60 days 1,900,939 1,681,659
61% 180 H 61 - 180 days 500,792 326,774
181 2365 H 181 - 365 days 148,986 11,753
1524 1 -2 years 16,523 8,409
At Total 2,567,240 2,028,595
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(©)

(%)

A Fi 5 B 0 B MRS TR T 5 i e A £ [
FEHERER L EE RS HIRE S
BRI 5 LB R RTS8 - &
FERERER ELMEBR T > Sofs BB gk AR
AR -

AR 5 R AR I R 15 BT
TSR 2 FRER B
CLA S HOR AR R HE G = P BRI
IR RPN AR A RFNFERER -

oAt RSO T L R AR SR - el
WA E SR - B LRS- B
% B AHER B B AR R & THIE E
MBS - RoF—ANETZH=1—
H o G A IR B B 0 38 s A
R 12,000,000 76 (—F — T4« ARHE
12,000,000 7 ) » J& 1K 24 % 5 77 A B
T Fot B IR LA B S Mgt % 5 5 R A
EREE N AN E AP S8 E)
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

21. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

Balance at the beginning of the year and at the end of the year

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date credit was
initially granted up to the end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit

risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

Before accepting any customers, the Group uses an internal credit assessment system
to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and considers adequate allowance
has been made at the end of the reporting period. Balances which are neither past

due nor impaired are all with good credit quality.

Other receivables mainly comprise rental deposits, receivable of refund of the
deposit for land auction, deposits for construction work, temporary payments
and miscellaneous projects related deposits paid which are refundable upon
maturity. Included in other receivables was an amount of RMB12,000,000 (2015:
RMB12,000,000) which has been impaired as at December 31, 2016 because the
counterparties are in severe financial difficulties and the Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances. The remaining balance was not yet due for repayment.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on other receivables:

ZEAHE “E T
2016 2015
ARMT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
12,000 12,000

T 3RIE R it 4 S B4 BT A K
T & A NR¥2830,804,000 76 (=%
—HAE AR 4,334,750,00078) > J3f
RASLE BIEEROE M E R (B ER G
BE ) STt - ERRE > ZEENFTI B
SRV B S B R H A TEAT 3K o

()

Included in the prepayments and utilities deposits, there are mainly prepaid
lease payments amounting to RMB2,830,804,000 (2015: RMB4,334,750,000)
which are paid on behalf of certain entities which the Group potentially invests
in them (“potential investees”). In the opinion of the directors, such payments are

prepayment for property development projects for those potential investees.
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22 MEMCHE PR A
gt res Ll

ZEHHEUARKEHE > BRIER - %
BEHAR—FNER - EEIR > %F
FOHT IR A AR+ A A
it Bl 2 SOE 250 B i E -

23. CHEHBRATAERR BT A5 R
BBi4

() DI AN RS E > £
BRI TERATIOE R > TR AR
Fi bR B R o R =T — N4
TAZT—H o R R E R
) 0.35% (ZF—T4F  0.35%) o

(b)  MRIEZF— AR A BUR ISR > 81
REREHEEUEZHERTE
AR AR 237,184,000 70 (=%
—HAE : AR 242,554,000 70) >
] TR e Y R IEE -

SRATH R R S BIEAEBRSA I
B KRB IR A =0 H S
G B AR R o SRAT IO B AR A A
RHEER159%(ZF—HE : FE
1.5%) °

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES

The amounts are denominated in RMB which are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable within one year. In the opinion of the directors, the
amounts are expected to be settled within twelve months after the end of

the reporting period, and therefore the amounts are presented as current.

23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

(a)  Pledged bank deposits are denominated in RMB which mainly
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the mortgage
guarantees provided to customers. The deposits carry fixed rate at
0.35% (2015: 0.35%) per annum at December 31, 2016.

(b) Included in bank balances and cash are balances which, in
accordance with the applicable government regulations prevailing
in 2016, are placed in restricted bank accounts, amounting to
RMB237,184,000 (2015: RMB242,554,000), which can only be

applied in the designated property development projects.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The interest rates on cash placed with banks ranged from nil to
1.5% (2015: nil to 1.5%) per annum.

= L S
2016 2015
ANRETF  AR¥TL
RMB’000 RMB’000

BB C ARSI T3 Analysis of pledged bank deposits and bank

ATH B LB &
—UARWHHE
— AT RHE
—AFETTRHE

balances and cash by currency:

— Denominated in RMB 16,773,262 18,121,733
— Denominated in HKD 4,043 33,456
— Denominated in USD 578,167 4,788

17,355,472 18,159,977
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24. HEAS Mk B HE A 4% - Tk

24. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES, DEPOSITS

$ic 4 B Tt

RECEIVED AND ACCRUED CHARGES

“ERNE CELE
2016 2015
ANRBEFFLT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 REA S 0E B RET @ 5 B 3 (Mt a) Trade payables and accrued expenditure
on construction (Note a) 14,103,934 13,403,567
JRE AR S 4 (Bt 5 ) Bills payables (Note a) 889,372 673,153
14,993,306 14,076,720
O e 4 B M 2E 8 TR I Deposits received and receipt in advance
from property sales 44,124,849 33,322,343
Lt B A S T I et A (BT b) Other payables and accrued charges (Note b) 7,607,404 5,543,056
66,725,559 52,942,119
Bt - Notes:
(a) 7 AT 2R T % A e I R i S (a) Trade and bills payables and accrued expenditure on construction comprise

AT A SR B AR B AR B PR
ToRR AR SR W5t 0 S F A RIS o A
5 B L MG 0 5 D B HLBORE - AR
P HE A IR A SRR PR P 8

construction costs and other project-related expenses which are payable based on

project progress measured by the Group. The Group has financial risk management

policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

DIF B A RE R > B 5 REA 208 & The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables at the end of the
T EE A RE A 4 - reporting period:

ZENE ZF A
2016 2015
AR ARHFT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
60 HA Within 60 days 5,992,338 7,057,469
612180 H 61 - 180 days 3,151,211 4,109,307
181 %365 H 181 - 365 days 1,665,536 458,234
1824 1 - 2 years 1,720,493 693,811
PEEE:S 2 - 3 years 415,574 280,129
R 3 4 Over 3 years 36,222 7,319
12,981,374 12,606,269

oA R B R T R R
AT B O B - T e I e
FH B LARA o

(b)

(b)

Other payables and accrued charges comprise mainly tax received and payable to the

government on behalf of customers, accrued salaries and accrued staff welfare.
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25. MEAFIERRMERER: BB AW 25 AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

SEBRE —HBBEAT INTERESTS/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES/A
% B B Ak S CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF AN ASSOCIATE
A IE DN RS A I R The amounts are denominated in RMB which are unsecured, interest-free
B RN TR R fE 2 and repayable on demand.

26. BT R IABAE R 26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

SRNE CEHE
2016 2015
AREFIL ARKTIL
RMB’000  RMB’000

SRATRK A KR Bank loans, secured 14,468,448 20,116,599
SRATRK o JEHEHR Bank loans, unsecured 17,875,656 14,741,114
&% A Bond, secured — 1,399,010
(o Tl Bonds, unsecured 20,016,334 8,079,685

52,360,438 44,336,408

9 R A B T (2 i B K T ek B R The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable, based on
S A ST scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, as follows:
“F-AE “F-OE
2016 2015
ARIFTIL ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—4ER Within one year 5,333,349 6,177,916
ZIR—4E > BB E Within a period of more than one year but
not exceeding two years 6,604,231 13,794,347
ZTAE B = AR Within a period of more than two years but
not exceeding three years 15,770,243 8,662,268
ZR =4 (BB A Within a period of more than three years but
not exceeding four years 5,358,583 4,270,590
ZJRIUAE > (B R AR Within a period of more than four years but
not exceeding five years 3,581,461 2,080,822
A LA Exceeding five years 15,712,571 9,350,465
52,360,438 44,336,408
W mE AR —ER Less: Amount due within one year
|1 2K IH shown under current liabilities (5,333,349)  (6,177,916)
— AR B A Amount due after one year 47,027,089 38,158,492
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26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Concinued)

The Group's bank and other borrowings are denominated in the following

=HE currencies set out below:
e LA T
2016 2015
AR ARETFIC
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

B & AT Analysis of borrowings by currency:

— P AREGHE — Denominated in RMB 47,340,961 34,933,449
— DA EHAE — Denominated in HKD 3,953,925 7,505,204
—PLEIeEHE — Denominated in USD 1,065,552 1,897,755
52,360,438 44,336,408

A S T SR AT 5 R A 2 R R R R

wr

E B SRATEK
R RN

The exposure and the range of effective interest rates on the Group’s bank

borrowings are as follows:

Fixed rate bank loans

Variable rate bank loans

e —F i
2016 2015
Effective Effective
RMB’000 interest rate ~ RMB’000 interest rate
ARMTIE  HBEAER ARWTT  HEAE
6,253,923 4.02% 660,000 5.38%
26,090,181 470% 34,197,713 5.18%

(a)

(b)

TSR S A B b A A AT % (e
LA T 37 B i 4 B T A R

ACEEAMERARH - AEEBRITAS
BB N R ¥ 1,400,000,000 TG F i A =%
—NERA T H RSB R M E S (AT A
AEH T AR R o R E A
BB AE 6.7% W [ 8 B RGHE > HE R4
XA > AEE R R ERA
H G — Y b 9 5% 22 100 1 3 2 (RL35 %
BE) o AREE MR —E—PIEN A+ H
F 7B R 36 o RS R R 36 o M T A
FiF%6.7% » A AR =% —1
FENAZ+RHE-F—N4ENH=+H
9 0422 0 [ 2 R R M 2 o A
—PUAEDY F = i A Rl A
i B 2 % — P4 P A =+ H i 4 o] fi
o WS (AR % 1,100,000,000
TE) i WA S T KB - i
VA7 52 (8111765 490 3 3t 6 PR AR 4 o

BHEMG SER-F - HETZ
H=+—-HWHATHEHE AR
1,418,200,000 7C ° i & b Bk b
N2 N TETIBHESE LT
WAEFE - ZEECRFE—AFERA R
SRS gi=p 30

(a)

(b)

The above secured bank loans and bond at the end of the reporting period were
secured by the pledge of assets as set out in note 37.

On May 5, 2009, the Group issued a bond with the principal amount of
RMB1,400,000,000 and would be repayable in full by May 5, 2016, subject to
early redemption as described herein. The bond bears fixed coupon interest rate
at 6.7% per annum for the first five years payable semi-annually in arrears and is
subject to an one-off upward adjustment of up to 100 basis points (inclusive) from
May 5, 2014 at the election of the Group. The Group would determine on April 25,
2014 the interest rate by election of an upward adjustment to the interest rate but
if it determines to maintain the interest rate at 6.7%, the holder of the bond then
may elect to redeem all or part of the bond at the face value from the period April
25,2014 to April 30, 2014. There is neither adjustment on the coupon interest rate
on April 25, 2014 nor redemption of bond up to April 30, 2014. A portion of such
bond (RMB1,100,000,000) was listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
The bond was secured by certain properties and land use rights of the Group.

Management estimates the fair value of the bond at December 31, 2015 to be
approximately RMB1,418,200,000. The fair values of both the listed and unlisted
portions of the bond have been calculated with reference to the quoted market price
of the listed portion of the bond. The bond was fully repaid on May 5, 2016.
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26. 87 B IAbAE K @)

Wi 5E

(©)

(d)

L (#)

MoZ—FELALH  AEEBTHE
A A TS NR M 20T (TF
—HAEH MG ]) o B2 SRR %
F54.60% (FI B HABAE XA » WAHR
TRTEAEL A b H TR R

RoE—RE+-H=+—H> “F—%
B — S 3 O R T V(4% 0 B R B 1 1
AT B SO R 110,371,000 TEFHE ©
SR AR AR I B R R R A
471% °

AZF—fAELH B REEET
BMENA RS - A AR
40 ([ ZF—HEL ZMERD - »
By fE ) AR 2080 BES
TR % 553.93%  BITA AR -F
FEELAZ T L HRREER > —F— N\
FELH T CH 2 BAREEAHRER

Rl = F— ) \FLA L HARES
AHEM B - L Gi) AR 204870 »
&AL 4.20% - AMLE - HR
SECCECAS L ARRHER =
FoFELA B H 2 BASE M A HEH
BEEARL _FE_FELA L HE
BOEH A HE M %

WoFE—HEF—AZHR=F—HF
t—H=H » REEBETE =HEERAF
B% > @EARAARK 08 C(T=F
— RS RS ]) o AR ZF
T —HAZHAI BB R - &5 2 R
Fl%r4.08%  —F_FFE+—HAZHZ
A A A T Al R ST e e R A
+— A Z H AR A A HE [ 55 o

WoZ—NE—HZ+HH R Z—NE
*H‘+ﬁﬁ‘$%@%ﬁ%—HFW®
AR ([ 2B NFEE—MESR]) - B
mﬂ@%%#k%%aaﬁ’ﬁﬁﬂ%
ﬁw% ER_F_—HF—H_THH

BHRR > AEMAER T ILF—
H4+£Hé%§ﬁﬁﬂ$&&§%ﬁ%
W EF—JUE— =T H A
T (i) N AFE B 25 N R W 18480 - LT A
R Ih3.680% HAR_Z_WF—H_+H
AR > AR T —F
—H TR H R R R A A
MR = F = —F— A 2+ H e 1R
e
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26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Concinued)

Note: (Continued)

(c)

(G

On July 7, 2015, the Group issued first tranche of domestic corporate bonds of
RMB2 billion (the “2015 First Tranche Bonds”). The bonds carry a coupon rate of
4.60% per annum (interest payable annually in arrears) and will be fully repayable
by July 7, 2020.

The net carrying amount of the 2015 First Tranche Bonds is stated net of
unamortised issue expense of RMB10,371,000 as at December 31, 2016 and the

effective interest rate of the 2015 First Tranche Bonds is 4.71% per annum.

On July 27, 2015, the Group issued second tranche of domestic corporate bonds
with an aggregate amount of RMBA4 billion (the “2015 Second Tranche Bonds”) and
is in two forms: (i) five years bonds of RMB2 billion with a coupon rate of 3.93%
repayable in full by July 27, 2020, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the coupon
rate after July 27, 2018 and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds
by July 27, 2018, and (ii) seven years bonds of RMB2 billion with a coupon rate of
4.20% repayable in full by July 27, 2022, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the
coupon rate after July 27, 2020 and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the
bonds by July 27, 2020.

On November 2, 2015 and November 3, 2015, the Group issued third tranche of
domestic corporate bonds with an aggregate amount of RMB2 billion (the “2015
Third Tranche Bonds”) and will be repayable in full by November 2, 2022. The
bonds carry a coupon rate of 4.08% per annum. The Group shall be entitled to
adjust the coupon rate after November 2, 2020 and the investors shall be entitled to
sell back the bonds by November 2, 2020.

On January 25, 2016 and January 26, 2016, the Group issued first tranche of
domestic corporate bonds (the “2016 First Tranche Bonds”) of (i) five years bonds
of RMB2.3 billion with a coupon rate of 3.3% repayable in full by January 25,
2021, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate after January 25, 2019
and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds by January 25, 2019, and
(ii) eight years bonds of RMB1.8 billion with a coupon rate of 3.68% repayable
in full by January 25, 2024, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate
after January 25, 2021 and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds by
January 25, 2021.
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26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Concinued)

Note: (Continued)

@

(Continued)

On March 4, 2016 and March 7, 2016, the Group issued the second tranche of the
domestic corporate bonds (the “2016 Second Tranche Bonds”) of (i) six years bonds
of RMB2.5 billion with a coupon rate of 3.19% repayable in full by March 4, 2022,
the Group shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate after March 4, 2019 and the
investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds by March 4, 2019, and (ii) ten years
bonds of RMBL.5 billion with a coupon rate of 3.75% repayable in full by March 4,
2026, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate after March 4, 2021 and
the investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds by March 4, 2021.

On July 14, 2016 and July 15, 2016, the Group issued the third tranche of the
domestic corporate bonds (the “2016 Third Tranche Bonds”) of (i) five years bonds
of RMB700 million with a coupon rate of 3.06% repayable in full by July 14,
2021, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate after July 14, 2019, and
the investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds by July 14, 2019, and (ii) seven
years bonds of RMB3 billion with a coupon rate of 3.68% repayable in full by July
14, 2023, the Group shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate after July 14, 2021
and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the bond by July 14, 2021.

The 2015 Second Tranche Bonds, 2015 Third Tranche Bonds, 2016 First Tranche
Bonds, 2016 Second Tranche Bonds and 2016 Third Tranche Bonds contain a

liability component and early redemption options:
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26. 87 B IAbAE K @)

WiGE - ()

(d)

(#)

(@)

(ii)

BB 43 8w B AR 2 T H SE T
e e Bt 75 o 45 4 7T LA AR
UL T 35 T B 8 5 Y A S 4 B
R B W RN AR L E & -
RE-F—ARE+ZA=+—H"
ST AR SR G) K Gi)
WA G B — T4 = M
g R RER M G)
R Gy R - BN R
HE B 25 19 ) B (i) 93 A1 ot A DA I
TF N SR () K Gi)
T8 {1 5 8 14 B T O (4 411 Bk A 4
Y AT PR SRR I AR S IR > A
B N R 8,940,000 7T B A R M
10,009,400 7G * A B ¥ 10,428,000
gt AR %11,976,00070 & A
R %10177,0006° A R ¥
13,855,000 7C % A [ 8,843,000
g6~ NE 4,121,000 76 & A R B
18,176,000 7C » ‘B M8 4 A % fy B
BAT I & 0 B A 1 4.029
Fd.25% ~ 4.13% ~ 3.41% KX
3.73% ~ 3.28% % 3.78% ~ 3.17%
e3.75% e

RE-F—REFTFZH=+—H>
R R AR A R0 I HE A
- H A B ¥ 215,915,000 76 B
T W 47 & AR B R w8 > Fo
A B 109,031,000 7 # 2 F- &
EHERBE -Z—AE+ A
=+ —HIF4EE#R -
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26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Concinued)

Note: (Continued)

(G

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Liability component represents the contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the rate of interest determined by the
market instruments of comparable credit status taken into account the
business risk and financial risk of the Company. The net carrying amounts
of (i) and (ii) forms of 2015 Second Tranche Bonds, 2015 Third Tranche
Bonds, (i) and (ii) forms of 2016 First Tranche Bonds, (i) and (ii) forms of
2016 Second Tranche Bonds and (i) and (ii) forms of 2016 Third Tranche
Bond are stated net of unamortised issue expenses totally RMB8,940,000
and RMB10,009,400, RMB10,428,000, RMB11,976,000 and
RMB10,177,000, RMB13,855,000 and RMB8,843,000, RMB4,121,000
and RMB18,176,000 as at December 31, 2016 and the effective interest
rate are 4.02% and 4.25%, 4.13%, 3.41% and 3.73%, 3.28% and 3.78%,
3.17% and 3.75% per annum to the liability component of respective

bonds since they were issued.

As at December 31, 2016, the fair value of put options held by bondholders
of RMB215,915,000 have been recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position, of which, fair value loss of RMB109,031,000 was
recognised for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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26. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Concinued)

Note: (Continued)

(Continued)

(ii)

(Continued)

The 2015 First Tranche Bonds, 2015 Second Tranche Bonds, 2015 Third
Tranche Bonds, 2016 First Tranche Bonds, 2016 Second Tranche Bonds and
2016 Third Tranche Bonds are non-guaranteed and listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. The fair value of the 2015 First Tranche Bonds, (i) and (ii)
form of 2015 Second Tranche Bonds, 2015 Third Tranche Bonds, (i) and (ii)
form of 2016 First Tranche Bonds, (i) and (ii) form of 2016 Second Tranche
Bonds and (i) and (ii) form of 2016 Third Tranche Bond at December 31,
2016 with reference to the quoted market price available on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange amounted to RMB2,054,000,000 (at December 31, 2015:
RMB2,062,000,000), RMB2,040,000,000 and RMB2,020,000,000 (at
December 31, 2015: RMB2,010,000,000 and RMB2,034,000,000),
RMB2,042,600,000 (at December 31, 2015: RMB2,019,600,000),
RMB2,309,200,000 and RMB1,827,000,000 (at December 31, 2015:
nil and nil), RMB2,461,250,000 and RMB1,482,000,000 (at December
31, 2015: nil and nil) and RMB701,400,000 and RMB3,030,000,000 (at
December 31, 2015: nil and nil), respectively.
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27. RS

27. SENIOR NOTES

R NE ZE T

2016 2015

AR#FLE ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

BT — RTINS Senior notes issued in 2012 — 2,606,327
T — SRR TI BE ER Senior notes issued in 2013 3,538,902 3,322,815
A TR AT I ST SRR Senior notes issued in 2014 1,972,730 2,000,030
5,511,632 7,929,172

RAEH) At the beginning of the year 7,929,172 7,574,953
FIE S H Interest charge 540,258 533,678
CATFILE Interest paid (546,312) (517,499)
B ] 2 S T Redemption of senior notes (2,700,538) —
i ] 2 Repurchase of senior notes (45,404) =
e 56, s 48 Exchange losses 334,456 338,040
AR At the end of the year 5,511,632 7,929,172

@ WZE-Z"F+F+NAH: XK (@  On October 18, 2012, the Company issued guaranteed senior

oy A % EE A R AT A E
{400,000,000 % JC(41 A K #
2,513,560,0007C ) [ A # £ (& 56
ERERIZE—-NLFEELE
1) %E R E R
6.875% » 78 1 2 4 A — KA
B WER = F— I+ A+ \H
(IECITRERS 14/ vt

S VRSO R IRIOR s
Z oA RA R T > AA A A
AN EAT - AL R T
AR T B v S 2 B I~
YEIR o %515 IR T RAE I S A5 408 R
77 W FCAA SRR SE o HELA BT HE A
ZEEBEMR -
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fixed rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal value
of US$400,000,000 (approximately RMB2,513,560,000) (the
“2019 USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 6.875% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully

repayable at par by October 18, 2019.

The 2019 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the other
secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value of

assets serving as security.
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27. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

@ () (@)  (Continued)

T N IR &4E A /N H B i At any time and from time to time after October 18, 2016, the
B+ A B S ] > RIAS S ] ) Company may at its option redeem the 2019 USD Notes, in
A AN e AN 3 L whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the percentage of
N TR AR O AR 25 A T SRS B AR 4 principal amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest
BB 0 L 1 S [ 4 2 a2 ) I to the redemption date if redeemed during the twelve-month
S0 JRE LR A5F ) B ] 4 3 period beginning on October 18 of each of the years indicated
B R NFERTRE o below.

4y Vi o]
Year Redemption price
ZFNE 2016 103.4375%
“E LA 2017 101.71875%
TR )\ R HAR 2018 and thereafter 1009

= F A A/ H BT fA
Mo AN F AEREMESER F
— U 0 R B AR B 1009 1Y B
I i 27 o 2 0 ) ) O B
H ) =% — JUAE A R i 1 X e st
HARATALE (o) - i 2 3 (2
AT T — IR TR -

[ = — JUAEA B A B ) A
Mz —F—-NEELEE > B
AT — U BT SR A S F
1.00% & (2)(A)F BRI ] B 1 () =
F-NETHHAREH -F 1
A 36 0 TR 2 T BN L (i) e AH
B 7 S R R R S 100 18 A e
2 MBRG AR F -
TEEER —F—NE+H /A HR
2 AR T ks R A RS OR
AHE A T 1A 0 E R R A A
B ZBUEB S B) M T —LF
FICEIERA B H 2 A S5
2R A A o

At any time prior to October 18, 2016, the Company may at its
option redeem the 2019 USD Notes, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the 2019 USD Notes plus the 2019 Applicable Premium as of,
and accrued the unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the

redemption date.

“2019 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2019 USD
Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the
principal amount of such 2019 USD Notes and (2) the excess of
(A) the present value at such redemption date of (i) the redemption
price of such 2019 USD Notes on October 18, 2016 plus (ii) all
required remaining scheduled interest payments due on such 2019
USD Notes through October 18, 2016 (but excluding accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed using a
discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis
points, over (B) the principal amount of such 2019 USD Notes on

such redemption date.
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27. BARE @

(a)

(#)

RN+ A A\ H AT
o AN E AR R TR — LA
5 0 IR A 4 5H106.875 % 1Y i [
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27. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

At any time and from time to time prior to October 18, 2016,
the Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2019 USD Notes with the net cash proceeds of
one or more sales of common stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 106.875% of the principal
amount of the 2019 USD Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest,
if any, to (but not including) the redemption date; provided
that at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2019
USD Notes originally issued on the original issue date remains
outstanding after each such redemption and any such redemption
takes place within 60 days after the closing of the related equity
offering.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2019
USD Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not

including) the offer to purchase payment date.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, a total principal
amount of US$400,000,000 (approximately RMB2,705,640,000)
was redeemed at a consideration of US$416,676,000 (approximately
RMB2,817,764,000) and resulted in loss of early redemption of
approximately RMB117,226,000.

The net carrying amount of the 2019 USD Notes at the early
redemption date is stated net of unamortised issue expenses
totalling US$3,286,426 (approximately RMB22,069,000) and the
effective interest rate of the 2019 USD Notes is 7.20% per annum.
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27. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b)  On January 29, 2013, the Company issued guaranteed senior
fixed rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal
value of US$500,000,000 (approximately RMB3,139,800,000)
(the “2023 USD Notes”) which carry fixed interest of 6.75% per
annum (interest payable semi-annually in arrears) and will be fully

repayable at par by January 29, 2023.

The 2023 USD Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the other
secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value of

assets serving as security.

At any time and from time to time on or after January 29, 2018,
the Company may at its option redeem the 2023 USD Notes, in
whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the percentage of
principal amount set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date if redeemed during the twelve-month

period beginning on January 29 of each of the years indicated

below.
Vi el
Redemption price
2018 103.375%
2019 102.250%
2020 101.125%
2021 and thereafter 100%

At any time prior to January 29, 2018, the Company may at its
option redeem the 2023 USD Notes, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the 2023 USD Notes plus the 2023 Applicable Premium as of,
and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the

redemption date.
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27. BARE @

(b)

(#)
TR T SR B A B T e
Hﬁzg’giﬁim R B

WEB ZZ =X TREAS
B 1.00% B (2)(A)H B E) B
H=F—NEFE—-HZTILHEH
TR EFEFRTTERZ R E N b
(i) F9 R 1 468 3 2 B £ 1) 2 Jin 100
R BB R AR %
CEERTEBR - E - N\F—H
ZF U i BT B R
ASFFRIJEL O 60 355 48 22 i Il 340 B
RARATFIE) 2 BLUE B (B) A B —
F AR FETEIRR A B R A
ARG EFMMEEE -

A= E =N~ =AU B EE AT
R ] > AN R AL R R — % T =
FRITEBAEH106.75% KT
8> HmEEREE B (EAEE
W H ) I RERHER LS ()
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HIEE R AEEE @Rk R (] e
FLEERLERASME35%
M 257 B B I B A B A
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AR B ] HE R 2P AN EE K o
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27. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

“2023 Applicable Premium” means with respect to the 2023 USD
Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the
principal amount of such 2023 USD Notes and (2) the excess of
(A) the present value at such redemption date of (i) the redemption
price of such 2023 USD Notes on January 29, 2018, plus (ii) all
required remaining scheduled interest payments due on such 2023
USD Notes through January 29, 2018 (but excluding accrued
and unpaid interest to the redemption date), computed using a
discount rate equal to the adjusted treasury rate plus 100 basis
points, over (B) the principal amount of such 2023 USD Notes on

such redemption date.

At any time and from time to time prior to January 29, 2016,
the Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2023 USD Notes with the net cash proceeds of
one or more sales of common stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 106.75% of the principal amount
of the 2023 USD Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date; provided that at least
65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 USD Notes
originally issued on the original issue date remains outstanding
after each such redemption and any such redemption takes place

within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2023
USD Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not

including) the offer to purchase payment date.
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(b)

(c)

(#)

BWE_Z—AFET_A=+T—H
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6.75% » B LHEIH—KFE
WA —F— /\NEH A =+ /N H I
et E R H = -

AN RS IR 035 w8
HEHIARAF LT » BARF
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27. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(b)

(o)

(Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2016, a principal amount of
US$2,000,000 (approximately RMB13,154,000) was purchased
from market at a consideration US$2,050,000 (approximately
RMB13,312,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amount of the repurchased

portion of 2023 USD Notes are considered insignificant.

The net carrying amount of the 2023 USD Notes is stated net of
unamortised issue expenses totaling US$2,769,000 (approximately
RMB18,593,000) and the effective interest rate of the 2023 USD
Notes is 6.89% per annum.

On May 28, 2014, the Company issued guaranteed senior fixed
rate notes to the public at par with aggregate nominal value of
RMB2,000,000,000 (the “2018 RMB Notes”) which carry fixed
interest of 6.75% per annum (interest payable semi-annually in

arrears) and will be fully repayable at par by May 28, 2018.

The 2018 RMB Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. They are unsecured, senior obligations
of the Company and guaranteed by certain of the Company'’s
existing subsidiaries, other than those organised under the laws of
the PRC. The guarantees are effectively subordinated to the other
secured obligations of each guarantor, to the extent of the value of

assets serving as security.

At any time prior to May 28, 2018, the Company may at its
option redeem the 2018 RMB Notes, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of
the Notes plus 2018 Applicable Premium as of, and accrued and

unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including) the redemption date.

4t Annual Report 2016




#r o B 5 3R B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

27. BARE @
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27. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(©)

(Continued)

“2018 Applicable Premium” means with respect to 2018 RMB
Notes at any redemption date, the greater of (1) 1.00% of the
principal amount of such 2018 RMB Notes and (2) the excess of
the principal amount of such 2018 RMB Notes, plus all required
remaining scheduled interest payments due on such 2018 RMB
Notes through the maturity date of such 2018 RMB Notes (but
excluding accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date),
computed using a discount rate of 2.50% per annum, over the
principal amount of such 2018 RMB Notes on such redemption

date.

At any time and from time to time prior to May 28, 2017, the
Company may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the 2018 RMB Notes with the net cash proceeds of
one or more sales of Common Stock of the Company in an equity
offering at a redemption price of 106.75% of the principal amount
of the 2018 RMB Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any,
to (but not including) the redemption date; provided that at least
65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2018 RMB Notes
originally issued on the original issue date remains outstanding
after each such redemption and any such redemption takes place

within 60 days after the closing of the related equity offering.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early
redemption options is insignificant at initial recognition and the

end of the reporting period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the
Company will make an offer to repurchase all outstanding 2018
RMB Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not

including) the offer to purchase payment date.
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27. SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

(Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2016, a principal amount of
RMB33,000,000 was purchased from market at a consideration
RMB32,092,000.

In the opinion of the directors, the difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amount of the repurchased

portion of 2018 RMB Notes are considered insignificant.

The net carrying amount of the 2018 RMB Notes is stated net
of unamortised issue expenses totalling RMB7,285,000 as at
December 31, 2016 and the effective interest rate of the 2018
RMB Notes is 7% per annum.

The fair value of the 2019 USD Notes, 2023 USD Notes and 2018
RMB Notes at December 31, 2016 with reference to the quoted

ARz GHREFTAEZ ZZ—
FELREE —F=FENE
BRFE-NEARBEZEL
TAE A A E(CFE—HAF: A
R #2,720,818,00070 ) * A R
3,673,857,000 G (= & — H 4F :
A R #3,340,957,000) & A B ¥
1,966,154,000 76 ( = FE—F4F © A
R 2,008,380,000 C) °

market price available on the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited amounted to nil (2015: RMB2,720,818,000),
RMB3,673,857,000 (2015: RMB3,340,957,000) and
RMB1,966,154,000 (2015: RMB2,008,380,000), respectively.

28. fikL@TH 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

“R-AE CEOHE
2016 2015
ARWTFE  ARWTL
RMB’000  RMB 000

MRIEE I G5 B ARMATAESREE  Derivative financial assets (under hedge accounting)
B Cash flow hedges

— 3 LB A B i — Cross currency interest rate swaps 988,746 701,083
R HA Current 349,513 —
FEBpI Non-current 639,233 701,083
ot Total 988,746 701,083
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28.

ik 4 TR ) 28.

38 XA W

R IR > AEEE LT 5 E B Ak

Bp LA 28 X EBA R - DUER

e — 7 Lo M8 A 37 B 25 0 B s T R AT E K

Je 3 018 9l SR JAE IE R B A 3R 300

Joyts ot gy N B R Eh 7R BOREL A K

S T 7E AN AR IR A A 4 [ TR 2 1 7%

S5 A AR 5 TR O JRE AR A R A

W T B4 i B ) 2 S

38 S i ) 3R A 3T 9 A R 8 2 1 7 DA

A5 TR E BV IE H R R i SRR

R 5 28 SR R 20 A v 8 T T

H oo S5 AR FZGEANT

HESH EL

Notional amount Maturity

A 200,000,000 7T “Z—tHELATA
(ZF =14 : 5 A 200,000,000 75)

Buy HKD200,000,000 10/07/2017
(2015:Buy HKD200,000,000)

H A 155,000,000 7T “F—tHELATH
(ZF =14 - B A 155,000,000 75)

Buy HKD155,000,000 10/07/2017
(2015:Buy HKD155,000,000)

B A 1,000,000,000 i 70 “Z—tFLA+A
(ZF =14 © 5 A 1,000,000,000 #7)

Buy HKD1,000,000,000 10/07/2017
(2015:Buy HKD1,000,000,000)

A 200,000,000 %G “Z—tELA A
(ZF =4 5 A 200,000,000 #75)

Buy HKD200,000,000 10/07/2017
(2015:Buy HKD200,000,000)

H A 1,000,000,000 % 7T “Z—tHELA+H
(ZF =A% B A1,000,000,000 ¥ 75)

Buy HKD1,000,000,000 10/07/2017
(2015:HKD1,000,000,000)

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following cross
currency interest rate swaps designated as highly effective hedging
instruments in order to minimise its exposures to foreign currency
and cash flow interest rate risk on its floating-rate USD and HKD
bank borrowings and USD senior notes and corresponding interest
payment by swapping a portion of those borrowings and senior notes
and corresponding interest payment from USD and HKD to RMB and

floating-rate interest payments to fixed rate interest payments.

The terms of the cross currency interest rate contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the respective designated hedged items
and the directors consider that the cross currency interest rate swaps are
highly effective hedging instruments. The major terms of these contracts

are as follows:

xR MEHH
Exchange rates Interest rate swap
AEH1TTH 1251570 AR ERE +3.09% ZREME6.13%

RMBI1: HKD1.2515 From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.13%

NRBE e 125170 M ETIR 2R E +3.1% ZRER % 6.18%

RMBI: HKD1.2517 From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.18%

AR IR 126163 T MA BRI ER B +3.19 2 EERES.65%

RMBI: HKD1.2616 From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 5.65%

AR® TR 1254280 MR ERE 312 £HERR6.13%
RMBI: HKD1.2542 From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.13%
AR 1IEI 1247900 H A SRAT )24 B +3.19 2 2 A% 6.04%

RMBI: HKD1.2479 From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.04%



28.

R4 T H @)
BRI R )

AEEH

Notional amount

5 A 390,000,000 78

(ZF—T4 + B A390,000,000170)
Buy HKD390,000,000

(2015: Buy HKD390,000,000)
5 A 310,000,000 %G

(ZF—T4 : HA310,000,000470)
Buy HKD310,000,000

(2015: Buy HKD310,000,000)
H A 310,000,000 5 7T

(ZZF—15 5 A310,000,000%7C)
Buy HKD310,000,000

(2015: Buy HKD310,000,000)
5 A 387,500,000 T

(ZZ—H% : HA387,500,000%70)
Buy HKD387,500,000

(2015: Buy HKD387,500,000)
5 A 500,000,000 7

(ZZF—T4  HA500,000,000%7C)
Buy HKD500,000,000

(2015: Buy HKD300,000,000)
H A 50,000,000 75

(ZZ—H4 + HA 50,000,000 78)
Buy USD50,000,000

(2015:Buy USD50,000,000)
A 20,000,000 3% 7

(ZZ—H% B A 20,000,000 8)
Buy USD20,000,000

(2015:Buy USD20,000,000)
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28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B
Maturity

“EZ—tHFLA A

10/07/2017

R ZFENA =4 )\H

28/04/2020

“ECRENAZTAR

28/04/2020

“ECRENA AR

281042020

SR CRENA =+ AR

28/04/2020

“EZER A

29/01/2023

i St Sy iy 1

29/01/2023

Cross currency interest rate swaps (Continued)

R

Exchange rates

AR 124936 7T

RMB1: HKD1.249

AR TR 11997 T

RMBI1: HKD1.1997

ARME1 L5 1.1998 0

RMBI1: HKD1.1998

NEW1IE01.2081 T

RMB1: HKD1.2081

AR TEH 12065 T

RMBI: HKD1.2065

NBBTE50.164 F 70

RMB1: USD0.164

NB®TE50.164 F 70

RMBI: USDO.164

MEHH

Interest rate swap

HAERITRERE 3,12 ZHEH%6.03%

From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.03%

HAERITRERE 3,19 ZHEM%E647%

From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.47%

mABRITRER S 3,19 ERERNE 6479

From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.47%

HA BT SR E 3.9 E£REFR633%

From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.33%

WA ERITRERE 3,19 ZHEH%E6.25%

From HIBOR + 3.1% to fixed rate of 6.25%

i [ F1% 6.759% 2 B2 RI% 7.59%

From fixed rate of 6.75% to fixed rate of 7.59%

i 2 F12 6.759% 2B ERI% 7.53%

From fixed rate of 6.75% to fixed rate of 7.53%

4E #t Annual Report 2016




210

A B 2 R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

28. RiEER T H ) 28.

38 X WA BB o)

£ELH 51 H

Notional amount Maturity

B A 25,000,0003 7T R =FE-A=1H
(ZZ—H% : HA25000,000%7)

Buy USD25,000,000 30/01/2023
(2015:Buy USD25,000,000)

B A 75,000,000 7 “ECEE-A=1H
(ZZF—T5 - HA75,000,000%7T)

Buy USD75,000,000 30/01/2023
(2015:Buy USD75,000,000)

B A 25,000,000 7T “F_=E-A=1H
(ZF—T4 - HA25000,000%7)

Buy USD25,000,000 30101/2023
(2015:Buy USD25,000,000)

B A 25,000,0003 7 e St o o
(ZF—T4F + HA 25,000,000 %)

Buy USD25,000,000 30/01/2023
(2015:Buy USD25,000,000)

B A 25,000,000 7 “ECEE-A=1H
(ZZF—T4 - HA25000,000%7T)

Buy USD25,000,000 30/01/2023
(2015:Buy USD25,000,000)

bt i A 5 XK R R 4 1 3 4 E AR
BEEREHWHER - RZF—K
E+ZA=+—H> Ltz X EEFH
R EHNATHEIE G ARE
988,746,000 JG (. & — . 4F It 55 A
R #701,083,000 78 ) B4 A HE 25 A 1F 48 4
B FE o P TE A A T i g A R
248,592,000 7G ( —F—H4F « g AR
613,754,000 76 ) i [ 4F 9 £ 364 ik ff 4 2
AEERLS -
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps (Continued)

E% B
Exchange rates Interest rate swap
NRHE 1 TE50.166 %70 [ 2 M2 6.75% 22 M 7.65%
RMBI: USD0.166 From fixed rate of 6.75% to fixed rate of 7.65%
INSLAPHAAE T Hh [ 2 128 6,759 22 FI% 7.65%
RMB1: USD0.166 From fixed rate of 6.75% to fixed rate of 7.65%
NRHE 1 TE5.0.166 % 7T Hh L 1% 6,759 22 FI% 7.63%
RMB1: USDO.166 From fixed rate of 6.75% to fixed rate of 7.63%
AR TE5.0.165 %70 o L 2 12 6,759 Z L2 FI% 7.63%
RMB1: USD0.165 From fixed rate of 6.75% to fixed rate of 7.63%
NRH1TE5.0.165 F T oh I 2 1% 6.759% B L iE 1% 7.6%
RMB1: USD0.165 From fixed rate of 6.75% to fixed rate of 7.6%

All of the above cross currency interest rate swaps are designated and
effective as cash flow hedges. The fair values gain of the above cross
currency interest rate swap contracts totalling RMB988,746,000 (2015:
net gain of RMB701,083,000) have been deferred in equity at December
31, 2016. The fair value gain of the hedging instruments amounting to
RMB248,592,000 (2015: gain of RMB613,754,000) were reclassified

from hedging reserve to profit and loss in the same year.
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29. B B fit i 29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
@ A (a)  Share capital
M
0.10#LZ
eyl (qE
Number of
ordinary shares T i
of par value Nominal
HK$0.10 each value
FH#
HKS$000
BE Authorised
AZE—RF—H—H " At January 1, 2015, December 31, 2015 and
“E—HFEFZA=+T—H
“E—-nE+=-A=1+—H December 31, 2016 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
R R Issued and fully paid
W_ZE—HE—~H—H At January 1, 2015 5,808,932,105 580,893
TR R AT R4 (BF3E (1)) Issue of shares upon exercise of share options
(Note (1)) 25,091,500 2,509
REF—HFEFZH=F—H At December 31, 2015 5,834,023,605 583,402
A7 0 PR RE B 47 L 173 (G () Issue of shares upon exercise of share options
(Note (1)) 7,207,500 721
REF=ANEFZA=1—H At December 31, 2016 5,841,231,105 584,123
FAMBHREN R Shown in the consolidated financial statements
SHEANRET T
IEF—ANEF-H=1—H At December 31,2016 RMB’ 000 equivalent 508,438
FHARET T
NoFE—RE+"H=1+—H At December 31, 2015 RMB’ 000 equivalent 507,823
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29. AR Bl )
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b) Rt

BE_F—AF T+ H
=t—HILFE > AAFH
A7 18 e i BE % 477,207,500
JB (2 —T4F © 25,091,500
JB ) 4 i THT {E 0.1 W5 T ¥ it
13 o AF R B AT 8 B R HE A 47
EE A F8.28 L £ 12,528
o0 OB E T N R %741 70
ZFAR®210)(ZF
—RAF 2941 T £ 12,528
Won(HE R AR 23270
Z2ANRH9.9178)) - B #4T
IR AE 25 T B R A Ji
A S5 REAR -

i - WE RS

®

FBc A i 5

SE-NERCFE R
2 = B

FEAL AR E -

I 153 15 e 37 B 2 B I 8 )
PR AT A AR R
(G ) 4 4% 75 72 K 41 % 4 1)
M AR DL R © () SO
A EERE TR 5 b)#E
BT T4 2 I BRAE S
LRI AR 2 R R BEAT AR 5
(OIS A REE37
7 0 R B I B [ e 07
()85 A F B HEE H 5 (o)
SR EAT AN 7 R AR S
f 2 R st Ik S5 A A 4
T AN 5 K of) R 2 B I
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FWE 28T ST Ui A
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(a)  Share capital (Continued)

(@)

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company
issued 7,207,500 (2015: 25,091,500) shares of HK$0.1 each
upon exercise of share options. The exercise prices of the
share options exercised during the year range from HK$8.28
to HK$12.528 (equivalent to RMB7.41 to RMB11.21)
(2015: HK$2.94 to HK$12.528 (equivalent to RMB2.32 to
RMB9.91). The new shares issued rank pari passu with the

then existing shares in all respects.

(b) Reserves

Name, nature and purpose of reserves

@)

Share premium

Share premium at December 31, 2016 and 2015 represented

share premium of the Company.

The share premium account is governed by the Cayman
Companies Law and may be applied by the Company subject
to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to
members; (b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to
be issued to equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares;
(c) the redemption and repurchase of shares (subject to the
provisions of section 37 of the Cayman Companies Law);
(d) writing-off the preliminary expenses of the Company;
(e) writing-off the expenses of, or the commission paid or
discount allowed on, any issue of shares or debentures of the
Company; and (f) providing for the premium payable on
redemption or purchase of any shares or debentures of the

Company.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Coatinued)
(b) Reserves (Continued)

Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(@)

(ii)

(Continued)

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.
Capital reserve

On June 11, 2008, a group reorganisation was completed
for the preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares
by issuing 3,999,999,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. The
difference between the nominal amount of the shares issued
by the Company and the aggregate amount of the share
capital of Juntion Development Hong Kong (Holding)
Limited (“Juntion Development”), then holding company of

the Group, is charged to capital reserve.

On October 2, 2009, the Company declared dividend of
HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,120,000) to the
then shareholders of the Company and charged to capital

reserve.
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29. AR Bl ) 29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) kit ) (b)  Reserves (Continued)
08 ~ E X&) Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(i) R (i) Special reserve

(iv)

wWE_EELELT N
=t—HILEE  FRERE
O —ZELEME A E
B AN REARA A
([EREEE AR ) &
770,000,000 ¥ JG > T A/
R o S A R JB R S HR
ot BRI B TR HE
W1 4 2E 4 Jr 1 FF 422 ol PR B

During the year ended December 31, 2007,
Juntion Development injected additional capital of
HK$770,000,000 in a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Chongqing Longhu Development Company Limited
(“Chongqing Longhu Development”) in which the non-
controlling shareholders are Madam Wu Yajun and Mr.
Cai Kui, who are also the ultimate controlling shareholders
of the Company at that date. The Group’s equity interest

in Chongqing Longhu Development has increased from

A5 W B R R R 60% to 91.3% and a discount on deemed acquisition of
Y 1B HE H 609 B4 % 91.3% > RMB620,672,000 which represents the excess of the share
[T R (Ve APE PN of net assets attributable to the additional interest acquired

620,672,000 7 FIl 4 By i i 4
HIVHE % 1 IR A4 VR (R A
EESBENTS > B
s N TR A R A N1
% .

oA i

LAl ok 4 41 A 4 1 B A0 5 )
W JB 2~ ) A A B OR 2K
KPEHIRE) 0 B VRS -
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(iv)

over the amount injected was recognised in special reserve as

the contribution from equity owners.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the change in net assets attributable
to the Group in relation to changes in ownership interests in

subsidiaries without losing of control.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Coatinued)
(b) Reserves (Continued)

Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries established in the PRC, these subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
year’s losses, expand the existing operations or convert into

additional capital of the subsidiaries.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective
portion of gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of
hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The
cumulative gain and loss arising on changes in fair value of
the hedging instrument that are recognised and accumulated
under the heading of hedging reserve will be reclassified to
profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the

profit or loss.

Shares held for share award

The amount represents the payments made to acquire shares
from the market for the share award scheme as disclosed in
note 41(b).
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30. JBHEBLH 30. DEFERRED TAXATION
PATR 2 7 4F 1A g 58 1Y R JE B IE (B The followings are the major deferred taxation (liabilities) assets
fiR) e LA ) recognised and movements thereon during the year:
fEAER
il
REmRE  HOR
MRS RERE LR REER HASSHEA Wichholding
i AT B Alowance Unrealised ax
Accdlerated — Fairvale  BUEER Land for  BEEE pofion  onretined
w@x  ofinvestment Tax  appreciation  doubtful  Government intra-group  profis to be fle it
depreciation  properties losses  tax provisions debts  subsidies  purchases  distributed Others Total

NeHFn  ARKTr  ARETT  ARETD  ARKTT  ARETT  ARKFR  ARKFT ARETT ARKTE
RBUD RMBUD RMBOW RMBOW  RMBWY  RMBUO  RMBUW  RMBUW  RMBOW RMBW

(Hita) (ko)
(Notea) (Noteb)
REE-TE-A-A At January 1, 201 (137,930 (.877,958) 915 LI57,608 3,750 10,661 118491 (91,046) 1787 479.407)
INRE IR)FEA (Change) credi o profic o los (84020 (I8469) 133779 U618 - @ 6506 738 3690 (600,100)
FRIEIMELTIR Acquisition ofasets and liailcies
R RAR () through acquisiton of subsidaries (Note 33) - - @) B0 - - - - (15089 216638
-1 ZA= 1A At December 31, 2015 Q1951 @564 48 141478 3750 10,634 83,422 (17,708) 595 (862869)
RER(IRIFA (Charge) redit o profic o loss (66,270) (504,528) 59,112 256,772 - - (15,43) 8464 40,761 (20,932)
ERAEREL AR Acquisition o asets and iilcies
B RAR (G ) through acquisitonof subsidiais (Note 3) - = 8306 = = = = = = 8306
AF-nETAE T t December 31, 201 (28822 (5,10095 2001 107155 il 10 17 (9.244) 71 (2875,4%)
REE-RETZA=1-1 At Decemly 6 288,21) 00953) 00 071,535 3750 0,634 68,179 0.4 46716 4
FffzE Notes:
(@) 3 4 B A B e I BELRE TS R 0 S R S (a) This represents the tax effect of the temporary difference arising from the treatment
14 B T A T S B B TS B2 o BT of the government subsidies between the accounting standard and the tax bureau.
T B R EE LB A > (BT 2 Tax bureau treats the government subsidies as an income but for financial reporting
S R ) S T R YR S M B R P 2 T purpose, the government subsidies as deduction from costs of properties under
D o development for sales.
(b) 34 HEAE I 4 B S T 7 A T S AR (b) This represents the tax effect of temporary differences arising from the deduction of
TR B2 8 o A% 45 8] W] 411 B 7R A8 o ke 25 advertising expense. The Group can deduct its advertising expense of no more than
159 9 8 25 B =2 > T A T 40 BR 1 3545 (n 15% of its revenue and for the part that cannot be deducted, if any, it can be carried
A ) BI L A 45 4 [ Ak o forward to future years.
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EREBIH ) 30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

R ERG A MBI R E > & TRER For the presentation purposes of the consolidated statement of financial
HERE (AfE) EHEE o LT Bt BB i position, certain deferred taxation assets (liabilities) have been offset. The
i H TR th R IR BT AS 677047 following is an analysis of the deferred taxation balances for financial

feporting purposes:
“FNE CERLF
2016 2015

ARHTE  ARWTL
RMB’000  RMB’000

R AL Bl JE B Deferred taxation assets 2,622,641 1,623,857
R STl TE B 1 Deferred taxation liabilities (5,498,136)  (4,486,726)

(2,875,495)  (2,862,869)

A-E—NEF_HA=+—H > AEH At December 31, 2016, the Group had unused estimated tax losses of
B4 N %3378,534,000 0 (& — 1 RMB3,378,534,000 (2015: RMB2,033,498,000) available to offset
0 NRM2 033,498,000 7C) B il st A B against future profits. Deferred taxation assets have been recognised in
) VB i A R R B SR e 55 ) o it respect of RMB2,888,364,000 (2015: RMB1,703,034,000) of such losses.
N EEH2.888,364,000 5 (& —FiL4E + A No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
R 1 703,034,000 70 ) I i 48 e SR AE B RMB490,170,000 (2015: RMB330,464,000) due to the unpredictability
TG FE o F A/ Al TE B 55 2 5 13 8 of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the
A 2 K B N R ¥ 490,170,000 7T (Z following years:

F—HE NR#330,464,000 ) 72
TEAEBL TG 7 o ol SR80 JE s 1819 A LA

NAEEEE Y
ZE A S
2016 2015
ANREFLE ARFTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ZE—NE 2016 — 1,934
—E L 2017 4,110 4110
ZE )\ 2018 1,861 1,861
“E N 2019 224,698 224,698
TR 2020 97,861 97,861
e e 2021 161,640 =

490,170 330,464
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30.

31.

BB (4)

R R 60 5 S A 1 A B [ 2 i 1
3t 1 B T AR 97 L AR B 1 2 R D &
Bl 1% 120081112 5% > 5% M S T8 0 81 Bl =R
TR BB A R b R PR B
25% MAEHERAT -

A SO o T B 6 9 A0 B AT BE R T A
e /N R & /N T S ]
K53 UR i F] 2090 1F 0 FLANBL A o
o B > T IRy 2 AR 1 AR AR AL R B
) Y A 4 B 28 ] CIR 28 B T 8 5 R o e
W) &) 5 N R 38,000,000 76 (. F—
0 NR 25,000,000 70) o H A< 4 [
FE 400 2 1 7 IR 25 S L A IR D > AR
22 FEAE AT S A AT R N e s R
3 S M5 ZE B R A A -

TBCUE Bk o 2 il #y A A A

BHEZ-AF+ - A=1+—HIL%
JE > ARSEERAE AR ¥ 100,000,000 7T
€ FF 422 PR S SRl I B 5 0 LA o E
JEABRA A RSN 9% IRHE ~ LAARAE N R
40,381,000 TG LI 77 IEL A2 [ B0
A PR D (T 1Ly S0 |) 351 33,969 B HE
DA R DLARAE A B 15,000,000 T g B L
T HE B A PR A RO .5 9% JREHE 7%
SRR IR ME R 4R 58 5 AR o 1T HE
5 T o S 2 W 25 71 /53 £ 1 BB 1
{8 2 T 1 2= %8 50 Al B % 88,408,000 7C
Je N R 32,974,000 7C (5 77 45 8% ) DA &
A B %30,813,000 70 (B 7 45 8% ) E B #%
A Ho At A AR
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30.

31

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on
Income” and Guoshuifa {2008} No. 112, where the Hong Kong resident
company directly owns at least 25% of the capital of the Mainland
company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is applicable.

Deferred taxation liabilities include provision for withholding tax which
has been provided for 20% of the latest financial year’s undistributed
profits arising from all subsidiaries situated in the PRC and held by
Hong Kong companies. At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred taxation liabilities have not been
recognised was approximately RMB38 million (2015: RMB25 million).
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

ACQUISITIONS OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Group acquired
additional 9% of the equity interest of Chongging Longhu Keheng Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd, at a consideration of RMB100,000,000,
additional 33.96% of the equity interest of Foshan Shi Shun De Gu
Sheng Hui Real Estate Company Limited (“Foshan Sheng Hui”)
at a consideration of RMB40,381,000 and additional 1.5% of the
equity interest of Beijing Longhu Properties Company Limited at a
consideration of RMB15,000,000, from the non-controlling shareholders.
The acquisitions have been accounted for as equity transactions
and RMBS88,408,000 and RMB32,974,000 (debit balances) and
RMB30,813,000 (credit balance), respectively, between the consideration
paid and the carrying amount of the attributable non-controlling interests

acquired had been recognised directly in other reserve.
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32. DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES NOT RESULTING IN LOSING OF
CONTROL

(a)  During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group disposed
of its 40% equity interest in Chengdu Dongjin Enterprise
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu Dongjin”), 66%
equity interest in Beijing Zhuoxinruitong and 50% equity interest
in Shanghai Hukang Enterprise Management Co., Ltd (“Shanghai
Hukang”), which are wholly-owned subsidiaries, to several
independent third parties at considerations of RMB2,000,000,
RMB660,000 and RMB5,351,000, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group disposed
of its 49% equity interest in Chongqing Longhu Xijie Real Estate
Co., Ltd (“Chongqing Xijie”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary,
through disposal of 46.79% and 2.21% of its equity interests in
two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Chongqing Longhu Properties
Co., Ltd. and Chongqing Longhu Development respectively, to
independent third parties at considerations of RMB936,008,000.

The total difference of RMB6,131,000 (debit balance) between the
amount by which the attributable non-controlling interests and the
fair value of the consideration paid are recognised directly to other

reserve.

Subsequent to the disposal, the remaining 60%, 34%, 50% and
51% interest of Chengdu Dongjin, Beijing Zhuoxinruitong,
Shanghai Hukang and Chongqing Xijie are still held by the
Group. In the opinion of the directors, the Group has sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of
these companies and therefore the Group has control over them.
Accordingly, these entities remained as subsidiaries of the Group

and the disposal have been accounted for as equity transactions.
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32. DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES NOT RESULTING IN LOSING OF
CONTROL (Continued)

(b)  During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Group disposed of
its 60% equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Hangzhou
Longzhuo Real Estate Development Ltd (“Hangzhou Longzhuo”),
through disposal of its entire equity interests in two wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Hangzhou Zhuode Investment Management
Ltd. and Hangzhou Lantuo Investment Management Ltd, to two
independent third parties at a consideration of RMB100,000
each. In the opinion of directors, the difference between the
consideration received and the net asset values disposed of are

considered insignificant.

Subsequent to the disposal, the remaining 40% interest of
Hangzhou Longzhuo are still held by the Group. Pursuant to a
supplementary shareholders’ agreement dated January 27, 2015,
the Group still has control of Hangzhou Longzhuo. Accordingly,
it remained as subsidiary of the Group and the disposal has been

accounted for as equity transaction.

33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@ During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group
acquired 60% of the equity interest of Shenyang Jinheng Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Shenyang Jinheng”) at a consideration of
RMB231,823,000, 100% equity interest of Dalian Dongyang Real
Estate Development Ltd. (“Dalian Dongyang”) at a consideration
of RMB757,100,000, 51% equity interest of Jinan Shengxue
Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Jinan Shengxue”) at a consideration of
RMB725,268,000, 25.1% equity interest of Qingdao Wanhu at
a consideration of RMB149,954,000, 25.1% equity interest of
Qingdao Wanchuang at a consideration of RMB288,182,000 and
65% equity interest of Shanghai Yangen Investment Management
Co., Ltd. at a consideration of RMB800,000,000.
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33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(a) (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2016, pursuant to a

supplementary shareholders’ agreement of Hangzhou Longyao

Real Estate Development Led (“Hangzhou Longyao”), which was

previously accounted for as joint venture of the Group, entered

into between the Group and its joint venture partner during the

year, the Group has obtained effective control of voting power to

govern the relevant activities of Hangzhou Longyao. Accordingly,

it becomes subsidiary of the Group.

WheE RN WREE FEEW HREA LEEE hMER it
Shenyang Dalian Jinan Qingdao Qingdao Shanghai Hangzhou
Jinheng Donyang Shengxue Wanhu  Wanchuang Yangen Longyao Total
AB#TE  AREFLE  ARBTLE  ARETLE ARRTL ABRTE ARKTE ARKTE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EN GV Property, plant and equipment
(f3E 13) (Note 13) 19 - - - - - 417 436
FMEE Prepaid lease payments - - - - - 1,203,599 - 1,203,599
B EE Properties under development
(Ht&E19) for sales (Note 19) 341819 757,100 2,556,217 605,783 1,208,976 - 1,312,563 6,182,518
i ey Other receivables 175 - - 61271 - 308 LSS0 LI07,064
IEREBUEERE (W3E30)  Deferred taxation assets (Note 30) - - - 348 685 - 7273 8,306
bl Bank balances and cash 68 - 8,066 118,304 29 24,142 166,920 317,529
TERIRARIERTEE »  Accounts and bills payables, deposics
B REHER received and accrued charges (78,841) - (1,721,415) (188,280) (61,556) — (L9491 (3,345,008)
IR Amounts due to shareholders (118,200) (614,504) (602,368) - - - = (1357
152,100 142,596 240,000 597,426 1,148,134 1,230,769 1,027,847 4538872
W R Less: Non-controlling incerests (38,477) = (117,600) (447472 (859,.952) 430,769) @4 31844
113,623 142,596 122,400 149,954 288,182 800,000 603,675 2,220,430
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33, X O R 2 vl RO A
il )

(b)

33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
47 .
(%) (a)  (Continued)
WhaE KRR MRS FRAW FRAA LEBE hMER it
Shenyang Dalian Jinan Qingdao Qingdao Shanghai Hangzhou
Jinheng Donyang Shengxue Wanhu  Wanchuang Yangen Longyao Total
AREFE  AREFE AREFr ABEFr ABEFn AREFL  AREFT  AREFE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
DIFFIEIERE SR - Consideracion satisied by:
Ra Cash 231,823 797,100 725,268 149954 288,182 800,000 - 2952327
BEAELE Investment in joint venture - — - — - - 603,675 603,675
W Bk Les: Loans assignment (118200)  (614,504) (602,868) - - - - 1B
REFH Net consideration 113,61 142,596 122400 149,954 288,182 800,000 603,675 2220430
RavihFE Net cash outflow:
BfE4 Cash paid 2318%) (757,100) (125,268) (149,954) (288,18) (800,000) - 23)
W BYURRERBE  Less: Cashand cash equivalent
FEDER balances acquired 8 - 8,066 118,304 29 21142 166,920 317,529
(231,759) (757,100 (717,202) (31,650) (288,153) (775,858) 166,920 (2,634,798)
HHAA RN F R In the opinion of directors, the acquisitions of these companies

> WARFREE AR LS
FE WSO S S AR o T B R
SR IR ACCE SRIE S
B P BT R BT A B o

BE-F-HF+_A=+—H
14 $%EWE§Northpole
Intermediary Limited ([ Northpole])
s -, MU A AR
711,170,000 JG » Northpole £ 1% &
PERAT )\EE?MEZ!—‘EEIE"J%
B FA I E S RFE > 25
o CHRE AT B 26 IRA T~ B
MBS RAT ~ RS A
B2 ) B AR 0 A B SE A PR F
(R R ARA R 1) o AR 24 7]
ABRIIME GBS 5 A B R P 1
B o LA AR - A
WA 8% 55 o F B PRI HE o (RO
Northpole K B #S 2> 7 B 4% 7 45 ]
Wi 2~ ]
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(b)

does not constitute a business. Therefore, the transactions were
determined by the directors of the Company to be acquisition of
assets and liabilities rather than a business combination as defined
in IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Group acquired
38.5% of the equity interest of Northpole Intermediary Limited
(“Northpole™), an investment holding company which was
previously accounted for as joint venture of the Group and holds
four joint ventures, namely Chengdu Huixin Real Estate Company
Limited, Chengdu Jia'nan Real Estate Company Limited, Chengdu
Jinghui Real Estate Company Limited and Chengdu Tuocheng
Real Estate Company Limited (collectively referred as the “Chengdu
Companies”) at a consideration of RMB711,170,000. Chengdu
Companies were previously accounted for as joint ventures and
hold properties under development for sales. Upon completion
of the above acquisition, the Group obtains controls on these
companies. Accordingly, Northpole and the Chengdu Companies

become subsidiaries of the Group.
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33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In addition, pursuant to an addendum to the investment agreement
of Longhu Land Limited (“Longhu Land”) and the supplementary
shareholders’ agreement of Foshan Sheng Hui, which were
previously accounted for as joint ventures of the Group, entered
into between the Group and their joint venture partners during
the year of 2015, the Group has effective control of voting power
to govern the financial and operating policies of Longhu Land and
Foshan Sheng Hui. Accordingly, they become subsidiaries of the
Group.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised in these transactions at

EERCHERAENT the date of acquisition are as follows:
JBHR A HEW B H LN . e T
Chengdu Longhu Foshan
Companies Land  Sheng Hui 2015
ARBTT  ARBTT ARBTT ARKTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
W3 - B K (H5E13)  Property, plant and equipment
(Note 13) 3 188 3,686 3,877
IEAEAIE G 2 (M 30) Deferred taxation assets (Note 30) 6,393 271,181 — 277,574
HE Inventories 2,768 9,608 — 12,376
BREPHEEME(MFE19)  Properties under development for sales
(Note 19) 1,645,092 775,683 1,241,613 3,662,388
FefE i B Properties held for sales 319,582 514,238 — 833,820
WSR3 e HL M E WG » Accounts and other receivables,

e RN AR deposits and prepayments 65,696 2,093,857 1,881 2,161,434
JEWABAEAHAKIE  Amount due from joint venture partner 1,062,565 600,809 5657 1,669,031
A W [l A T Taxation recoverable 9,714 223,552 — 233,266
RITREBR MBI & Bank balances and cash 583,138 722455 24723 1330316
A5 Mk J B A S 0 Accounts and bills payables, deposits

Clotia B2 received and accrued charges (529,505)  (2,491,564)  (1,242,431)  (4,263,500)
e A A NI IH Amount due to joint venture partner (103,025) — — (103,0295)
JE AR Taxation payable (61,764) — — (61,764)
AT R Bank and other borrowings

——4E R E - due within one year (160,000) — — (160,000)
JEAE A3 £ (e 30) Deferred taxation liabilities (Note 30) (45,301) (15,635) — (60,936)

2,795,356 2,704,372 35,129 5,534,857
W FermhE £ Less: Non-controlling interests —  (1,232916) (18,453)  (1,251,369)
2,795,356 1,471,456 16,676 4,283,488
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33. BWBOBEAFBKIEEEK  33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

fiff ) THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
by (#) (b)  (Continued)
JBHR A HEW B (NI —e s ¥
Chengdu Longhu Foshan
Companies Land  Sheng Hui 2015
ARFFE  AREFT  ARFFL  ARFFL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

PR3 RS AR Consideration satisfied by:

Blg Cash 695,000 — - 695,000
R4 P SR Consideration payable within
one year 16,170 — — 16,170
REGERYE Investments in joint ventures 2,084,186 1,471,456 16,676 3,572,318
2,795,356 1,471,456 16,676 4,283,488
RARNAFH Net cash inflow
oA BE Cash paid (695,000) - — (695,000)
W CHRESIE R3S Less: Cash and cash equivalent
S L balances acquired 583,138 722,455 24,722 1,330,315
(111,862) 722,455 24,722 635,315

EE TV RN R VNS ZN
5 WARFREE AR LS
FE AR S S AR o T R
5 ok R 5 3 R (BB AT ) [ 36 5

AT R B B A in IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations.

N
[\S]
'S
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In the opinion of directors, the acquisitions of these companies
does not constitute a business. Therefore, the transactions were
determined by the directors of the Company to be acquisition of

assets and liabilities rather than a business combination as defined
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34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Group disposed of its

49% equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, Hangzhou Longyao,
at a consideration of RMB451,000,000. In the opinion of directors, the
difference between the consideration received and the net asset values

disposed of are considered insignificant.

e S i
2015
TRIETT
RMB’000
CR B E A Net assets disposed of:
P B E Prepaid lease payments 463,503
JEMSHRAR ~ FC At B RO Accounts and other receivables, deposits and prepayments
e BB HOR 192
JRE A B T 0 Amount due from the Group 416,500
SRATEE R M 4 Bank balances and cash 29,805
910,000
DU 3114 JE 45 AU Consideration satisfied by:
Bla Cash 204,091
B & Deposit received 246,909
451,000
LG B S AR - Net cash inflow on disposal transaction:
B4 Cash received 204,091
B EHERS LRSS EY S Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed (29,805)
174,286

JA B AR o BT BERE I B 519 HE 2R 07D
A S TR o T A BE R 4 R PR B
AR A B B HATRE S
IR R HO

Subsequent to the disposal, the remaining 51% equity interest of
Hangzhou Longyao are still held by the Group and it became joint
venture of the Group as in accordance with the shareholders” agreement,
relevant activities of Hangzhou Longyao require the unanimous consent

of all directors.
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35.

36.

BLAE A ) A )
BEZ-AF+ -A=1+—HIL%
BE S RN TR B E A R A A (T
BB D) B BN TR A R
25 (TN & 1) 2 7l 3 om A R
90,000,000 76 & A % 50,000,000 TG4 2
FEMM A o A E BN E R A GE
it & 4 A K % 40,000,000 7C S [ J& M 1
It AE TG > 7] R — 4 8 5 = 5 1) i
I 7 T T O W 5 3 A N R
50,000,000 JG > BUAHLIE & 18 M B 2 K&
J& N8 1 509 REHE - RS > AT
{EHE JE B % T EZ M8 AE
% o

AR 8 2 4R - BN 3 % B 380
9 F B 509 e 45 073 o A SR LR AT o T B
N SR B 9 o 2 R B ok Py A
EEI B BOMAE R B IN &
AR BRI By el SOk -

SOk At

AR B AR B A R B AR A R
rf [ Y JB§ 2 W) ZE0 2 0 e 5 T BT A
) 57 S OB R FH B o A2 R G B
Ja&§ 2 ) 1) %t W AR DL T B BB K
A o 52k AR 48 4K b T i BT TR) 2 1
g B NE T E LR - A&
A5 T AT IR AR AR 1 Y B SAT A
fra T A e ke

AL ISy HL A o A B R B oL
o8 VA B R o R B E A
BB E D PR A ERZENE
B o 0 52 I 492 A IR 3 < LA 9 5 9% 1)
AT o T B AR ) e AR

WE-Z-NE+ A=+ —HI1L%
JE 5 A 48 e RR IR AR A BN R
182,817,000 7C(— & — H 4 : AN R ¥
206,399,000 JG) °
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36.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended December 31, 2015, Guangzhou Junliang Real
Estate Ltd. (“Guangzhou Junliang”) and Guangzhou Hupin Real Estate
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Hupin”), increased their paid up registered capital by
RMB90,000,000 and RMB50,000,000, respectively. The Group injected
registered capital of RMB40,000,000 to Guangzhou Junliang and none
for Guangzhou Hupin, meanwhile an independent third party injected
capital of RMB50,000,000 to Guangzhou Junliang and Guangzhou
Hupin respectively, resulting in deemed disposals of 50% equity interest
of both companies. In the opinion of directors, the difference between the

fair value and the net asset values disposed of are considered insignificant.

Subsequent to the deemed disposals, the remaining 50% interest of
Guangzhou Junliang and Guangzhou Hupin are still held by the Group
and they became joint ventures of the Group as in accordance with the
shareholders’ agreement, relevant activities of Guangzhou Junliang and

Guangzhou Hupin require the unanimous consent of all directors.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by the local municipal
government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are
calculated on certain percentage of the average employee salary as agreed
by local municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees. The principal obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustee.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme and the

same amount is matched by employees.

The Group recognised the retirement benefit contributions of
RMB182,817,000 (2015: RMB206,399,000) for the year ended
December 31, 2016.
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37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking and other

facilities granted to the Group at the end of the reporting period:

e e i
2016 2015
ARBFL  ARHTT
RMB’ 000 RMB 000

Investment properties 12,798,831 12,014,048
Properties under development for sales 30,864,495 31,604,942
Pledged bank deposits 97,368 240,313

43,760,694 43,859,303

Vg

ACAEJE fE A HALA

vt B T E A > 2 S A R
1) 558K R 4 T3 AR SR AR B Y o SE A
HTHALEE #BE_FZ—-AFETZ
H =4 —H kB R SR L A
F N R # 188,280,000 (& —H A A
R #197,673,00070) » A& @R AEAL &
REMYECHBE T LA F—F =1
AR o

REEIIAR - AEBCHBFRUT R
R B (R BHRT A

—H N
FERPIE (BFEEEMRF)
HAFE

38. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as a lessor

Contingent rental for certain properties was charged to tenants and was
determined by a certain percentage of turnover earned by the tenants
upon they exceed the pre-determined monthly rental. The contingent
rental income recognised during the year ended December 31, 2016
amounted to RMB188,280,000 (2015: RMB197,673,000). The
properties held by the Group for rental purpose have committed tenants

for periods ranging from one to twenty years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

“FRE CFRA
2016 2015
ARBFL  ARHTT
RMB 000 RMB’ 000

Within one year 985,284 755,839
In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,590,715 1,587,029
After five years 208,949 200,386

2,784,948 2,543,254
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38. MEZH =

39.

LN QLY TS UN

TR A IR o A S AR T R
A4 847 L 28 3 SR A AR M
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38. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of leased properties:
ZF-A “E-RAF
2016 2015

ABHTE  ARETT
RMB'000  RMB’000

—4EN Within one year 31,689 39,534
BB IE (A EREWE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 36,554 62,560
HAFEE After five years 3,416 5,354

71,659 107,448

ACE A AR RS A BB b
HTHAYEEMNES - HEN T
I A — 2+ =4 > MR &
HE W HEE -

¥
PRI > A A DAY

BT A ER T 5 1 B 5 R A L A

—HEM BB EYER
R P AR BB 5

— A B - st (8 PR B 52

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
leasehold land and certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for
an average term of one to thirteen years and rentals are fixed at the date of

signing of lease agreements.

39. COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

commitments:

B
2016 2015
ARMTFE  AEHTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Contracted but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements:
— Expenditure in respect of projects
classified as properties under development

for sales and investment properties

under development 19,211,292 23,221,563
— Expenditure in respect of acquisition
of land use rights 7,306,606 3,973,443

26,517,898 27,195,006

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]
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39. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group's share of the commitments made jointly with other investors

relating to its joint ventures are as follows:

ZEZ A e K E
2016 2015
ARWBTE  AEKETT
RMB’000  RMB’000

Contracted but not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements:
— Expenditure in respect of projects
classified as properties under development

for sales and investment properties

under development 2,598,987 1,504,438
— Expenditure in respect of acquisition
of land use rights 469,660

3,068,647 1,504,438

B L

W% /‘*\ﬁJr#HjJr—H z[x%
T E R R SR AT B R AR A
’5“3‘7,889,799,00075(49?*£¢ : }\%‘ﬁ%‘
10,414,147,000 7G ) B9 8 f o 7% /A w] # 3
By > AR A M AR A A T
E AW A TR IR AR K - SRR 400
AR R IRAE > R BE NS (R A A B BR
WA R T —NE R _F—HE T
H =1 — B W B R A rE s -

ﬂi’%@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi’*lﬁl%ﬁﬁﬁ
ZHRITEHIER o ZFWERIRE T Lk
%%&*ﬁ%ﬁi”’%%%%‘aﬂmﬁiﬁqﬂﬂ@ﬁ f

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees amounting to RMB7,889,799,000
(2015: RMB10,414,147,000) as at December 31, 2016 in respect of
mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of these
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition and the directors of the Company consider that the possibility
of default of the parties involved is remote, accordingly, no value has been
recognised at the inception of the guarantee contracts and at the end of

the reporting period as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released by
banks upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and completion of

the relevant mortgage properties registration.
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41.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:

(a)

(b)

Pre-IPO share award schemes

The Company'’s two Pre-IPO share award schemes were adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on November 30, 2007 and July
31, 2009. Under the Pre-IPO share award schemes, the Company
has awarded the Company's shares (the “Awarded Shares”) to
directors of the Company and certain employees of the Group.
The objective of the Pre-IPO share award schemes is to align the
interests of the employees with those of the Company, to share
the pride of ownership among employees and to reward their
performance and contribution to the Group. The Pre-IPO share

award schemes will be terminated by November 29, 2017.

All Awarded Shares had been granted under the schemes adopted
on November 30, 2007 and July 31, 2009 as at December 31,
2016 and 2015.

Restricted share award scheme

On October 28, 2014, Restricted share award scheme was
adopted by the Company. The objective of the Restricted share
award scheme is to recognise and motivate the contribution of
directors of the Company and employees of the Group, to provide
incentives, to help the Company in retaining its existing employees
and recruiting additional employees and to provide them with
economic interests in attaining the long-term business objectives
of the Company. The share award scheme allows the Company to
make bonus payments to eligible persons by way of the Company’s
shares acquired by and held through an independent trustee until
fulfillment of specified conditions before vesting. The Restricted

share award scheme will be terminated by October 27, 2022.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(b)  Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2016, total of 54,983,000
(2015: 625,000) Company’s shares were acquired by an
independent trustee appointed by the Company for the share
award scheme. The aggregate consideration paid for these shares
in an amount of RMB579,218,000 (2015: RMB4,851,000) was
deducted from shareholders’ equity.

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were
no Company’s shares awarded under the Restricted share award
scheme adopted on October 28, 2014.

(¢)  Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on November 30, 2007 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to ditectors and eligible employees of the Group, and
options can only be offered and granted from November 30,
2007 until the business day before the date on which dealings in
the Company’s share first commence on the SEHK (the “Listing
Date”). Under the Pre-IPO share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries were granted options to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The term of the Pre-IPO share Option

Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(©)

Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

On November 30, 2007, 37,940,000 share options (including
15,588,000 share options granted to directors) were granted. The
number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as
at December 31, 2016 was nil (2015: nil), representing nil (2015:
nil) of the shares of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and
2015.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company
in issue at the Listing Date. The exercise price of the pre-IPO share
option initial at HK$6.46 and amended to HK$2.94 effective from
January 1, 2009.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares

in issue from time to time.

There was no share option expense in relation to the share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme granted by the Company
recognised for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 as the
they were fully amortised in 2011.
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Number of

options

15,588,000

22,352,000
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Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year

are as follows:

B i 39

Vesting periods

AR AMEE —FTNE-A B R 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
AR P PRE R -TE - —H A 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
BREAMEE =T ——F—-F—HRA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
A RS T2 —A—H A 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

i AMEE —TTHE-A—H R 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
ARG A RE T —THE A —H A 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
AREAEE R ——F—A—HRA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
HRHAMERE —F—"F—A—H 2%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

Vi FBL e

a R
Contractual
life of

options

T4
10 years
14
10 years
o
10 years
T4
10 years

T
10 years
T
10 years
T4
10 years
T
10 years
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

A. DR BEBN%AY 4. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(%) (Continued)
DIRE 35 45 55 ) A 5 Il / i JE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
iE RNE 7
(©)  HIRZ BH O i R T # (¢)  Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(%)
ENEE R B RFA AN FEIK The movements of the Company’s share options under the Pre-IPO
7 BR B B i R T S8 S Share Option Scheme held by directors and employees during the
RSt - year:
i
Number of options
ST #oE-55
—~A—H tZAZ1-H
ATl AITHE
frifE QOutstanding EREATf Outstanding
B at Exercised a
L Exercise 4t/ 1 January 1, during December 31,
Grant date price  Vesting peiod 2015 the year 2015
HK$
TR “RELET-AZTA 294 “FELE 8,088,000 (8,088,000) -
Share option November 30, 2007 T—A=1+H%
“F-CE-A-0
November 30, 2007
to January 1, 2012
R-Z-1f R
A=t Bt NiA

Exercisable at
December 31, 2015
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VA e Ay 2 H W i 45k k22 )

(#

DARE i 45 5 9 1Bt 73 S IBh 1

At # ¢ (4

(d)

H

)

R B 5 O MR
A A B U B B R AR I
a1 (B 2 A % 4 1 O A e it
B IRER —FTNEST A
T = H A — T e S R
o TEAMREBAEMERRLS
EA% (R B IR PEER) - R E KA R
BRI R B > AN R BB
JB& 2 ) B o AR T R MR A B
3 BRI R o R B 5 1 B
st AR HER Y 104 -

RE-ZENEF A -H=H B
% th 7] 52 56 10,600,000 % (42 45 7]
42 4,550,000 B AR) B
HEIRAE o WEICREROAT (15 1 8.44 5

JG ©

s

AN_E——F—-A+LHKEZZ
—— A =N A B TR
46,000,000 i (f2 4§ [n] # F %
9,200,000 & & £ ) %% 150,000,000
JBe (62 456 Ml 2 5 4% i 55,600,000 [
JBe ) e 073 1) B R A o B BORE 2 A7
i 5 2 Bl £ 12528 JC K 8.28
=

B FE—EF—HMH > n]ERk
110,000,000 fi% B £ F i A HE (€345
i) 3 2 4% F 19 11,200,000 & A% £
O o BEIRHEZ AT (8 /5 9.37 ¥
T
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(d) Post-IPO share option scheme
The Company’s Post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO

Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on December 23, 2009 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees of the Group. Under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries were granted options to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The term of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is

10 years from the date of adoption.

On December 23, 2009, options to subscribe 10,600,000 shares
(including 4,550,000 shares granted to directors) were granted.
The exercise price of the option is HK$8.44.

On January 17, 2011 and September 28, 2011, options to
subscribe 46,000,000 shares (including 9,200,000 shares granted
to directors) and 150,000,000 shares (including 55,600,000 shares
granted to directors) were granted. The exercise price of the options
are HK$12.528 and HK$8.28, respectively.

On November 4, 2014, options to subscribe 110,000,000 shares
(include 11,200,000 shares granted to directors) were granted. The
exercise price of the option is HK$9.37.
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

41. BB A 2 2k B 1Y 4 5k 22 5

(%)

VIRE 25 45 5 0 JBL 0 S8 I 1 Pt e

it & : 4)

GBI GR = Yie
(%)
BoER-RNER R+
A=+—H> WEE KM
B 1% I IR ) L o R AT I
B HEE W R 2 A8 A ik A B E 7
220,957,000 & K 237,671,500 i »
MERALRR T RNERZF
—HAEFTZA =+ — B Br3.78%
K 4.07% °

DRAT (AR 5 2 B 3 4 1 i A
il B B AR 2w G Al B B
AR B A BRI T R AT Y
AR FE AR A EER
i H AL R B AT B A Y
10% °

DRAT (AR B 2 B 3 1 i A
B B AR 2w B A B b 2
A5 T ATS ARAT 5 1Y A i B i
AEFEAT A9 A (D M B (R R IR > A
TR AR T BT AR 30% -

WE_EZ—-AT_H=1+—HI
FRE S AEBRAATRENE
YR B A 18 I RO RE G TS e
HERERR 48 3 A R 63,978,000 TG
(ZF—H4 : ARH101,633,000
Jo) °
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(d)

Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 was 220,957,000 and
237,671,500, representing 3.78% and 4.07% of the shares of the
Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company

in issue at the Listing Date.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares

in issue from time to time.

The Group recognised total expense of RMB63,978,000 (2015:
RMB101,633,000) for the year ended December 31, 2016 in
relation to share options under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

granted by the Company.
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DI B Rl iF 2 &% 4. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(#45) (Continued)
VA RE 25 45 53 04 JE A7 588 I / Jik % e Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
Al # : ap)
() H R BB T R HE (d)  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(#)
A TR T o B RO 2 Ak S At The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year
F are as follows:
i
AHEH
i JBe e 8 I Contractual
B ol Number of 5t B 1 ] life of
Grant date options  Vesting periods options
o) 3 ST B A “ETNEF 4550000 HAKHAMRE-F-FEL A =HA25% T4
Share options granted TZAZ+=H 25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
to directors December 23, 2009 BREERRE - F——F+ A - +=HE25% +4E
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
LA EE =R "+ A" +=HR25% 4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
AR A MEE =% =+ A" +=HM25% e
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
—F—f 9,200,000 N AMEE ~F—"F - +LHA25% T4
—A++tH 25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
January 17, 2011 B AMEE - F—=F—ATLHA 2% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years
B AR E = F—0F— A+ HA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years
R e E - F-AE - ttH A 2% 4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years
o 45,600,000 FHRHAMEE =F =48 ~+AH A 10% T4
JA=+/\H 10% from the date of grant to September 28, 2013 10 years
September 28, 2011 ERFETIER ) e S 1 Ky = By AN E D11 4R
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2014 10 years
AR A SRR = F—HE LA~ FAB 309 T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2015 10 years
AR AEZE - F—AELA T AH B 30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2016 10 years
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For the year ended December 31, 2016

41. DAIBC Ay By 2L B 1Y 4 3k 58 5
(%)
DA 25 55 000 S A BEIRD i e
atdl : o)
) YR 2 B
(#)

R o

Grant date

= ——E
ALAZ+AH

September 28,

2011

R4
+—HMEH
November 4, 2014

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]
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(Continued)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(d)  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

S RE S
Number of

options

10,000,000

11,200,000

B

Vesting periods

AR IR E =2~ A~ + AR A 100%
100% from the date of grant to September 28, 2017

A AR E =R A+ — A H A 10%
10% from the date of grant to November 4, 2015
A AR E =R —AFE+—AMH B 15%
15% from the date of grant to November 4, 2016
AR H AR E ~ %~ +— Al A A 20%
20% from the date of grant to November 4, 2017
AR AR =%~ /=AM R 25%
25% from the date of grant to November 4, 2018
B H 2 = — U — A H 5 30%
30% from the date of grant to November 4, 2019

i i
AHEH
Contractual
life of

options

T4

10 years

4
10 years
=
10 years
T
10 years
T4
10 years
i
10 years
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

UM BB RARY 4. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(7 (Continued)
DIHE 25 45 55 0% 5 Ay 2 ) / % it W Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
Al # : ap)
(d) IR A B R T R RE R R (d)  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(#)
Ji i
AHREH
S R 2 Contractual
BHAH Number of 5t 7] life of
Grant date options  Vesting periods options
] fE B 4% i 6 1 e = 9 K2 6,050,000 B AMEE -F-FEF AT =HA25% 4
Share options granted +ZAZ+=H 25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
to employees December 23, HEEAPEE - Z——HF+ A=+ =HE25% A
2009 25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
ARHAMEE =%+ A+ =0 425% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
AREAREE-F-=E+"A-+=HA25% 4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
—EF——F 36,800,000 A HRE-F—"F—A+LHR 2% s
—H+tH 25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
January 17, 2011 B HMEE - F—=E—A+tHA2>5% 4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years
B A E = F—E—H T H A 25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years
A AEE - F—AFE—A+LH A 2% +4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

A. DR BEBN%AY 4. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(%) (Continued)
DIRE 35 45 55 ) A 5 Il / i JE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
Al # 4
(d) R A B R T R RE R R (d)  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(%)
i i
AHEH
S HE % H Contractual
BHAH Number of 5t i 1 ] life of
Grant date options  Vesting periods options
“F——F 94,400,000 A AMERE-F~=FAA -+ N\AR10% T4
NLAZ+N\H 10% from the date of grant to September 28, 2013 10 years
September 28, 2011 BiZH AHEE =LA A HB30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2014 10 years
AR AR =R —HE A ~HAH B 30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2015 10 years
AR FRE R —AE A ZHAH B30% 4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2016 10 years
e SIS 98,800,000 A HIEE - F—HE+—AMH A 10% i
+—HmA 10% from the date of grant to November 4, 2015 10 years
November 4, 2014 B AR E —F—AE+—HANH B 15% T4
15% from the date of grant to November 4, 2016 10 years
B A E = F—LF - —HIH 5 20% T4
20% from the date of grant to November 4, 2017 10 years
AR AR E = — 1 — A B 25% 4
25% from the date of grant to November 4, 2018 10 years
AR AR ZE —F U+ — R A A 30% T4
30% from the date of grant to November 4, 2019 10 years

240
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41. DAty 2o 2L R W A X R 5
(4)
DRE 5 465 55 00 e A S Gh s P
aHE o)
(d) R BH O T R RE S
(#)

FNEF LR B FARAL AR
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

41. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
(d)  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

The movements of the Company's share options under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme held by directors and employees during

sk the year:
ZEAE 2016
TR H
Number of options
REF-RE
REZ-RE Ll TZAE-H
fifife —A— kM (HiE) LAl AT
iy Outstanding Exercised Cancelled Outstanding
fhAH Brercise B at January 1, during during  at December 31,
Grant date price  Vesting period 2016 the year the year 2016
HK$ (Note)
R ZEEME 844 ZEEMETCAZAER 400,000 - - 400,000
Share option +ZHZ+=H 2-F—-=E+-A°+=R
December 23, 2009 December 23, 2009
to December 23, 2013
“EF—F 12528 ZF——F-fittH 25,940,000 (160,000) (2,625,000) 23,155,000
—~A+tH ECR-TE-AEH
January 17, 2011 January 17, 2011 to
January 17, 2015
“E—F 828 ZF—FAAZTAR 101,376,500 (6,057,500) (1,322,000) 93,997,000
JAZ AR ER-UEARZTAR
September 28, 2011 September 28, 2011 to
September 28, 2017
I L 931 ZZ-WE+—HAlA 109,955,000 (990,000) (5,560,000) 103,405,000
+-AMH E2R M-
November 4, 2014 November 4, 2014 to
November 4, 2019
237,671,500 (7,207,500) (9,507,000) 220,957,000
REF—AE
T A=At
Exercisable at 128,457,000
December 31, 2016
IR ()
Weighted average exercise 9.25 8.52 10.09 9.4
price (HKS$)

BbGE © AT H A i E T 2 B A A
11.68 #57G ©

Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$11.68.
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

A. DR BEBN%AY 4. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(%) (Continued)
VAR 35 %5 5000 e 4 S h ik ot i Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
At : )
(d) R A B R T R RE R R (d)  Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
(%)
AR 2015
RS H
Number of options
REF-1f
REF-1 EREMH +ZA=t+-R
fiiffE —H—B&fiff (Wi3E) EREFH Arff
T Outstanding Exercised Cancelled Outstanding
7HAN Exercise SR at January 1, during during at December 31,
Grant date price Vesting period 2015 the year the year 2015
HK$ (Note)
ke “ZTNE 844 “EFRNEFSASLER 4,400,000 (4000,000) - 400,000
Shate option TZAZT=H ECF-=EFZACEER
December 23, 2009 December 23, 2009
to December 23, 2013
“FF 1258 “F——4%-f+th 32,015,500 (3,020,000) (3,055,500) 25,940,000
—Atth E-F-TE-AtLR
January 17, 2011 January 17, 2011
to January 17, 2015
“E—k 828 ZF——FAAZTAR 121,765,000 (9,938,500) (10,450,000) 101,376,500
RAZTAR ECZ-LEAAZHAR
September 28, 2011 September 28, 2011
to September 28, 2017
i S 937 “F-MEF+—ANA 110,000,000 (45,000) - 109,955,000
+—AmA EZZ-NEE+—ANA
November 4, 2014 November 4, 2014
to November 4, 2019
268,180,500 (17,003,500) (13,509,500) 237,671,500
e S
TZR=t—Rufif
Exercisable at 95,639,500
December 31, 2015
T ()
Weighted average exercise 9.24 9.08 9.24 925
price (HK$)
Mt © AT 0 B A Y 0 HE S 35 A8 A Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$12.17.
12.17 ¥87C °
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42. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended December 31, 2016

“FRE A

2016 2015
ARWFIT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REANER (FHA) T 81 IR 12 B9 4 LG A - Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging (crediting):
1% BT 4 Auditor’s remuneration 4,504 4,300
TS AR I 2E A B A Cost of property inventories
included in cost of sales 37,257,201 32,901,651
B B { SE R R A AR Gain on deemed disposal of
interests in joint ventures (84,845) (285,414)
L/E W & Eii Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 46,255 33,164
R TH B Y AR AE S K Minimum lease payment of
operating lease rentals 43,903 44,355
B LA Staff costs
T (E0 4 DAHE 22 45 R T TR A7 Directors’ emoluments (including
FIEBER A (W 5T 43) equity-settled share-based payments)
(Note 43) 73,785 64,509
Fofth B TRiA Other staff costs
HBRARAE A Retirement benefit contributions 182,287 205,995
DARE £ 55 0 S I A 2 R 1 £5F 35K Equity-settled share-based payments 52,217 81,866
HoAth B LA Other staff costs 1,977,293 1,823,651
BETHA Total staff costs 2,285,582 2,176,021
W BRI B AL SR Less: Amount capitalised to properties
under development (486,291) (631,157)
1,799,291 1,544,864
TGN B A Minimum lease income from
investment properties (1,724,813)  (1,217,514)
AT E A Contingent rental income (188,280) (197,673)
W R A A B BB Less: direct expenses that
generated rental income 498,353 413,150
(1,414,740) (1,002,037)
JEAG 78 A 2EBUE (FH AN 78 A 2E2E4%) Share of tax of joint ventures (included in
share of results of joint ventures) 135,227 91,442
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

43, W iR EIERHM 2 43. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

H 48 ) E T A R R 2 w6 46 4k 5% ) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
AT BAARN N FHB AR - pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
Hih - willk D455
REHHA #B 8 SR
Salaries, HBTEAL Equity-
HHM4E  allowances Performance RIRFEA settled
Directors'  and benefits related  Retirement ~ share option st
fees in kind bonuses benefit expense Total

ARBTE  ARETE  ARETFZ  ARKETFLE  ARETE  ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

(HfE)
(Note)
BE-Z-RETA Year ended December 31, 2016
St—AHEE
A HEFR: A) EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
SRR Madam Wu Yajun - 5,000 6,500 106 - 11,606
FRIBE e Mr. Shao Mingxiao — 8,000 11,000 106 6,980 26,086
RS Mr. Yan Jianguo — 5,200 6,760 106 1,869 13,935
HETE Mr. Zhao Yi - 4,200 6,000 106 1,490 11,796
BT RE Mr. Li Chaojiang — 3,92 4,290 106 1,246 8,934
it Sub-total - 25,692 34,550 530 11,585 72,357
gt A S O R B AR N The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
To A SE [ S AT B R o setvices in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group.
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

43, P TR KRB HM  43. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

(4 EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
#4 - Wl DRS4S 5
REHEM #<B R R X
Salaries, HBTEAL Equity-
#44  allowances Performance JBHRHA settled
Directors'  and benefits related  Retirement ~ share option w5t
fees in kind bonuses benefit expense Total

ARBTE  ARETE  ARWFZ  ARETFLE  ARETE  ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

(FE)
(Note)
B) Mu#fi#%H: B) INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Frederick Pecer Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Churchouse /64 313 - - - 49 362
[ M:t. Chan Chi On, Derek 313 — — — 49 362
Uifigitn Dr. Xiang Bing 313 — — — 49 362
BRdEE Dr. Zeng Ming 313 — — — 29 342
/it Sub-total 1,252 - — - 176 1428
At Total 1,252 25,692 34,550 530 11,761 73,785
it m AT EESM EE A S A The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
NFERRIRAE o mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

4t Annual Report 2016




#r o B 5 3R B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

43, P T KRB HM 43. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

(#) EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
e Wk DG4
RENREA 3 H TR B
Salaries, HETEAL Equity-
#HH4E  allowances  Performance BIRAEA sectled
Directors’  and benefits relaed  Retitement  share option At
fees in kind bonuses benefit expense Total

ANRHFL  ARETL ARETT ARWTE AREFT ARKTZ
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000

(HiF3E)
(Note)
HE-ZF—HE+H Year ended December 31,2015
ST-BIEFE
A) BT A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
REE Lt Madam Wu Yajun = 5,000 5,000 89 = 10,089
TRBABE Ak Mr. Shao Mingxiao — 7,500 7,500 97 12,550 27,647
R it Mr. Wei Huaning — 824 — 23 2,161 3,008
HEREE Mr. Yan Jianguo — 4,600 4,800 97 2,500 11,997
il 7% Mr. Zhao Yi — 3,442 4,500 98 2,207 10,247
gt Sub-total = 21,366 21,800 404 19,418 62,988
AT E S A B AN H] The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
T A 4 [ A BRI R - services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group.

246
Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]




Kok B U 25 A MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

43, P TR KRB HM  43. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

(#

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

e ik DG4

RENREA ) AT B

Salaries, RIRALA Equity-

#HH4E  allowances  Performance BIRARA] sectled
Directors:  and benefits relaed ~ Retitement  share option A5t
fees in kind bonuses benefit expense Total

ANRHFL  ARETT ARETT ARWTLT AREFT ARETZ
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

(Hfat)
(Note)
B) MujJi#/7%% : B) INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Frederick Peter Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Churchouse J&4 293 - — — 108 401
Py it M. Chan Chi On, Derek 293 = = = 108 401
HESRE Dr. Xiang Bing 293 — — — 68 361
ey s Dr. Zeng Ming 293 - - - 65 358
e Sub-total 1,172 = = = 349 1,521
At Total 1,172 21,366 21,800 404 19,767 64,509

b S AT A A B A
I EH AR -

R BT S A IR A A N R AT AR > |
S B P B 60 35 EL AR AL AT A R R
AR B

AE TR o A AR T S AT AR T R R
o (7] T T FEAT AT B P S 2

WGt - AN RIATE S A B EALA R EAL
PR AL RN = F =R R F
—HETZHA =+ B IR FER KRB

=

iE °

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

Mzr. Shao Mingxiao is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as

the Chief Executive.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

Note: Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are
determined based on performance of the Group and individual for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015.
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43. A~ AT R R I B

(%)

e 4557
AEBELBREHEMAL S =4 (CF
—H4E SR RAATES S AMET
SR - TR (T W
%) AL MR T

43. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Employee’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
three (2015: three) were directors of the Company whose emolument is
included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two

(2015: two) individuals were as follows:
—BE  —2-AE
2016 2015

ARWTFE  ARWFL
RMB’000  RMB’000

4 Wil X EYEF Salaries allowances and benefits in kind 7,200 7,350
RIBUAHBAEAL Performance related bonuses 13,600 10,260
DR 2 45 G5 1 B R HEE B Equity-settled share option expense 3,151 4,684
B RAEF Retirement benefits 209 180

24,160 22,474

TR AR R S o e 6 T A L O M A
TLUFHE -

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of

the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:
SENE . RN
2016 2015
EEA#  EEAH
No. of No. of
employees employees
14,500,001 #57C % 15,000,000 # 7T HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000 — 1
14,000,001 #57C % 14,500,000 # 7T HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000 1 =
13,500,001 #JC & 14,000,000 #5 70 HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000 1 —
12,500,001 #57C % 13,000,000 # 7T HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 — 1
2 2
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S o SRR ARG E B HBEE T UT
AL

@) HBMAF
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the balances with related parties as set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and in notes 22 and 25, and the
transaction with the related parties as set out in note 31, during the year,
the Group entered into the following significant transactions with its

related parties:

(a) Joint ventures

ZERNE SERE
2016 2015
AREFIL ARKTIL
RMB’000  RMB’000

Property management service income — 612

(b) EEEHEREH

R YES
kAN

(b) Key management and director

=
2016 2015
ARBFL  ARHTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Sales of properties 53,205 86,202

Rental income 18 83

(c) BHEAF

Ak AR (B EE)
WA B WA (B RE)

(c) Related companies

=
2016 2015
ABBTE  ARKTE
RMB’000 RMB’000

Consultancy income (Note) 340 2,897

Property management service income (Note) 2,527 -

BFRE < I )y S A

(&) FREHNEEAAN R ERE R
(TR By AR5 R V) OB it
743 o

Note: The related companies are controlled by Madam Wu Yajun.

(d) The remuneration paid and payable to the key management
of the Company, who are the directors of the Company, for

the year is set out in note 43.
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45. B RAFERMMER 2L 45 DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

B 2 vl SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
R 2GR TR I FE R 4 1) A 4E ] The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
JEA G BN Tl EE - Group that have material non-controlling interests:
FELE R R AT
e i 5 S
SE AL/ Proportion of 25t
FROL I ownership interests FrHE g
Place of and voting Accumulated
i) NaibA incorporation/ rights held by non-controlling
Name of subsidiary establishment non-controlling interests interests
“FNE ZF-nE . ZERNE CEIR
2016 2015 2016 2015

ARHTE  ARETZ
RMB 000 RMB 000

T sfEaBR AR Beijing Zhuoxinruitong Investment

HRAR(HREE  Co., Led. (‘Beijing Zhuoxinruitong”) (i) HIE PRC 66% — 712 —
i 1) )

B RS E Chongging Longhu Jiakai
g ARAR Real Estate Development t1f PRC 49% 49% 1,105,370 1,034,248
([EER) Co., Ltd. (“Chongging Jiakai”)

R B Chongging Longhu Yizhi
BB AR Real Estate Development I PRC 50% 50% 1,205,517 1,212,676
([EERE]) Co., Ltd. (“Chongging Yizhi”)

R E Longhu Land Limited
BRARAH (‘Longhu Land") 15 PRC 50% 50% 1,399,031 1320243
([EEHAEH])

HRABEEE Nanjing Mingwan
HRAR Real Estate Co., Ltd. B PRC 49% 49% 1,687,598 1,714,350
((Hx4E]) (“Nanjing Mingwan")

HEENEX Qingdao Wanhu Real Estate Co., Led.
ARAR (“Qingdao Wanhu') (ii) 1 PRC 74.9% = 442,826 —

(% E &M ) Gi)
EREAEEFRAR  Qingdao Wanchuang Real Estate Co., Led.
(5 EEA ) (‘Qingdao Wanchuang”) ii) 1 PRC 74.9% = 859,263 —

BAFHHERNMEA  Individually immarerial subsidiaries
FEE R EA A with non-controlling interests 6,650,164 2,061,488

13,350,481 7,343,005
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AnmERRE R E
Byl EERE - ENEL B
T B R AN AR B A O
18) R AT as (BASC) AR 3 0 JF
il A8 2 3 A A I T S S EOK > i A
3 A B A B ) O 9R) D A i i (B
30) W BB BRI o 47 R S 8 1) 4 7
fe R IR AR, o

»
45. MAEREREPERZIEE 45
% W A vl e )
FifsE -
(i) Rt R E AR E —E T
A=4—HIR4FE R AL E 2 EHEA
A HREE—F—HE+ A=+ —
F 1 4 B A4 T o W i 1 R T
Gi)  HEEYLEREAANEEFNE
T A=A H IR RO B o
bt [
Bejing Zhuosinnitong Chongging ki
o A o L S S A
b 0l 6 005
Mfr M M M
B R AW RIBAD
HERE  Currenvasses 58301 B3, A1)
FigkE  Noamatses 3000 = B4 580
HHEE Comnelblivs (567512) =8 s
FREEE  Novourelablicis - - - (248,00)

BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Since Beijing Zhuoxinruitong was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group during
the year ended December 31, 2015, therefore no information about the non-

controlling interests needs to be disclosed for the year ended December 31, 2015.

(ii) Qingdao Wanhu and Qingdao Wanchuang are newly acquired entities during the
year ended December 31, 2016.
e i HRER (Lt Lt

Chongging Yihi LonghuLand Naing Mingwan Qingdho Washu Qingio Wanchuang
e S R o S S S S o R ST T
216 05 26 05 16 015 01 0l 2016 015
W0 o i A At A A A . .
B R RBW RBW RBW RBWD BB RBW BB RIBID
36 T064 5117802 49616 887,160 L1 L0040 - L5 -
10 L0917 D150 012 19318 ) AV - kUi -
(34750 S G 0 GaR6) B @B - (670 -
- - (32.668) (85%)  (0mo) - - - - -

The directors of the Company considered that the non-controlling
interests in the profit (loss) and total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year and cash flows of Beijing Zhouxinruitong, Chongqing
Jiakai, Chongqing Yizhi, Longhu Land, Nanjing Mingwan, Qingdao
Wanhu and Qingdao Wanchuang, are not material to the Group and
so no summarised financial information on the profit (loss) and total
comprehensive income (expense) for the year are disclosed. No dividend

was paid to non-controlling interests during the year.
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46. B L B 4% B 46. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AN 5 [ 3L AR DA iR R AN 4 R Y o The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
T s [6] IR i 1 AL S B B A &5 be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
1% 1 PR SR A 3R K [ 3y o shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes,

AL B B AR KL B R (A )
P TRS WiF 5k 26 B 27 4% 585 (9 A8 o B {8 S 5%
#) ~ BERBEFEWFEURALF
PEA NREAHE G (045 CBRATIROA ~ il
BAREEA)

where appropriate, the borrowings and senior notes disclosed in notes
26 and 27 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,

reserves and retained earnings.

AN T B AR o A The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
FRM—B 0 > AN F E R E AR basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
A T B A K AT TR A SRR o Sl PR B cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital, and take
B T AR - appropriate actions to balance its overall capital structure.
47. ZWMTH 47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) ZRT HE (a) Categories of financial instruments

ZEF A e T

2016 2015

AR TE  ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000

&Rl Financial assets
Ak E R Available-for-sale investments 180,021 130,920
6 Rt TRATAESR TR Derivative financial instruments designared as
hedging instruments 988,746 701,083

R B SUEIR Loans and receivables

(B & B &5 EY) (including cash and cash equivalents) 28,587,913 28,233,094
SR Financial liabilities
HEEH LA Amortised cost 83,744,502 72,106,788
HAbAT A M LR Other derivative financial instruments 215,915 —

252
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(b)

(c)

5l R L D R S BOSR

G2 0 ) 3 T B4 ] R e
EHRE - MESMTA B
W BRI KA S - e
W (REAT) FE Rl b e W 0 m) K
AEAENH - CHRMBITFR
MATH B LBl & - BATIRAR B
%~ AU ROR ~ AT — A BE
O EEBCRGOR ~ AT R A
KRB - ZE M TR
TR A& AR RER 3T o B2 & T
LR R it B K 2% =5 B ) B
RH T3 o BB R B
26 B DA £ RE 8 IR A 200l B 100
CEE

i 57

74 5 T R
5158 ) e B A L
F I 55 B (ST 30

245 T4 T 0 T 38 L
B R LR 9 7 o A
IS E

ES g g

7 SR AT 5 B B GRAT o A 3K
(3% BLAT T35 M R BARE A B R
SRAT BT R 5 T A v SRAT IR 3647 B
T B A RS R ) WB AT
A > [ UE AL B T B
B R -

ASE B T B AR AT A
B LA B A% ] A A R B 2 AT B
Al i 35 e 48 S SRR AT B 1) 2P (L
R -

EHE BB A R A R
AR K I B E B BRAT S
flsfak o BEBHTE AR > A LR
1A 38 SR B g S L S b R
R 26 S ) T 7 A ) TR <
PR R AR BOR Ty REA L BT A
BOR ST B AR R A 30t DA
FERMRFE > AT E (i E i R
1 M PR o 11 58 SR A R
A o
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

()

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, derivative financial instruments, accounts and
other receivables, amounts due from (to) non-controlling interests,
associates and joint ventures, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, accounts and bills payables, other payables, amount
due to a controlling shareholder of an associate, bank and other
borrowing and senior notes. Details of these financial instruments
are set out in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose primarily to the market risks of
changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates risks and
other price risk (see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risk or the manner in which it manages and measures the
risk over the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank balances
and bank and other borrowings which carried at prevailing market
interest rates and variable rate based on the interest rates quoted
by the People’s Bank of China and Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate, respectively.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to pledged bank deposits, bank and other borrowings
and senior notes which carried fixed interest rate.

The management aims at keeping material bank and other
borrowings at fixed rates at appropriate level by entering into
cross currency interest rate swaps. In order to achieve this result,
the Group entered into cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge
against certain exposures to changes in interest rates of the bank
borrowings. The management adopts a policy of ensuring that all
the material bank and other borrowings of the Group are effectively
on a fixed rate basis, either through the contractual terms of the
loan facilities agreements or through the use of cross currency

4t Annual Report 2016
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47. BT H @)

(c)

i 355 R (44

A 23 B 5 B (47

TR IR A G B AT S I 2E LR
2 4 0 B BRAT B EC A R B A
3 SR B RE 28 B 26 ©

74 55 I T3 B A 8 AT BRI L
JEUBR - R R A I R U B
B 2 — i o AR B UL B
FREPEALEUARMFHER
T A 1 o B R SRAT B ik

B AR B

AT BB AT T 35 A i 1 A AR T
B LT BN A RGE 2 AR TR
(RAT 45 R B ERAT S H b 30 A 2%
BB A B AR I ko A A R R
SR TR RERTEL o A
] A ) A A ) RS
B IR € DA 2% 200 18 35 B (3 8147
T A A5 K00 ) B TH B 100 {1
2 RERATRERRIN 5 ) Ay ke - B4
BN B3 5 A 8R4 B At A 3K A
JSRATHE R A2 1 AT RS ) o

R BI AR R R
200 18 5 B Cok 8847 B LAt 45 3K I
) o BT HAh S A R R
M 885t B e 5 A i TR A 2 4
3 e 58 S R 2 1 RS AR A
B EE > AEERE_F
—ANEFZH =+ H IR R A
w8 > N R ¥ 20,674,000 (Z
F—1HF : AR 14,835,000)

BEAh s A & BT T oo
BB O SR AT A7 A F ) - T BT
A H AR AR A S > R SE
BE-EZ-AFE+-A=+—H
1k 4 B Y6 R A 28 > N R
129,410,000 G ( = &F — 4« AR
134,377,000 70)
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

(0

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Details of the Group’s cross currency interest rate swaps and bank
and other borrowings entered into by the Group at the end of the

reporting period are set out in notes 28 and 26, respectively.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group cash flow interest rate is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the interest rates quoted by the People’s Bank of

China arising from the Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments carried at
variable rates (bank balances and bank and other borrowings) at the
end of the reporting period and assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 200 basis point increase or decrease for bank
and other borrowings and a 100 basis point increase or decrease for
bank balances are used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the possible change in interest rate in respect of bank

and other borrowings and bank balances respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by 200 basis points in respect of bank and
other borrowings and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by
RMB20,674,000 (2015: RMB14,835,000) for the year ended
December 31, 2016, after taking into effects of the cross currency
interest rate swaps designated as hedging instruments and

capitalisation of interest costs.

In addition, if interest rate had been increased/decreased by 100
basis points in respect of bank deposits, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
increase/decrease by RMB129,410,000 (2015: RMB134,377,000)
for the year ended December 31, 2016.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

T 53 JE KR () (© Market risk (Continued)
KIS e B A 2 Foreign currency risk management
745 [ 1) 4 i A 2 LN B i The Group collects all of its revenue in RMB and most of the
o BRH B2 (B Ea & expenditures including expenditures incurred in property sales as
P B B 30 ) DA B AR B S IR DA well as capital expenditures are also denominated in RMB.
RASHH
7 4 1] T 1 B T AR The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
I B8 2 7 DA JE Zh E B e (R A 1 borrowings denominated in currencies other than the functional
K o AR SR HIRT 5 38 L WA 2 4 1 currency of individual subsidiaries. The Group entered into
DA DLAN ST 5 T R SR AT cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge certain material bank
sk o AERI > EHER A borrowings denominated in foreign currencies. Given this, the
Y B B R AR A A R K management considers that the net exposure to currency risk is
- o S 45 ] B R B e B T A kept to an appropriate level. It is the Group’s policy to negotiate
T E AR AST A S b JE B R the terms of the hedge derivatives to match the terms of the
AR Bk e g KAL o TRk 30 hedged item to maximise hedge effectiveness. Details of the cross
A H ] 58 30 X R R s f currency interest rate swaps entered into by the Group at the end
FEIHHE S BT 28 o of the reporting period are set out in note 28.
LA - A S [ N T DA AT (LAY The Group is also exposed to currency risk arising from bank
SRATAF 2 B 7 AR G B R b o A deposits denominated in foreign currencies. The management
8 AR5 DA [a] £ e s (B AR SRAT A7 K maintains the portfolio of bank deposits denominated in different
LA T i TG S 1 B U T B (R A TE currencies and the exposure to currency risk is kept to an
KT o appropriate level.
242 [ A 45 R H DA AM RHE Y The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated
EcEE R EWAE(ZIEE LAY monetary assets and monetary liabilities (other than bank
T TR 28 S AR A 5 Y borrowings subject to cross currency interest rate swaps designated
SATHE RSN RARTE T as hedging instruments) at the respective reporting date are as
follows:
ZF N “ZHE
2016 2015
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B Assets
RTT USD 578,167 4,788
o HKD 4,043 33,456
SR CEEE
2016 2015
ANREFL ARETE
RMB’000 RMB 000
=Lt Liabilities
RTT USD 2,869,925 4,121,946
T HKD 89,397 6,594,672
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47. BT H @)

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

(c) it 4 (c) Market risk (Continued)
KNS K JE 43 A Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
AR A B R SR T Rt AR The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange fluctuation of USD
W 1 EE 2% 3 8 Sy o and HKD against RMB.
R FEA A [ A B R LA The following table details of the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
I8 41 s BfE % 18 i 1 370 5198 1) SRR increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
J¥ o SRR A BT A A B R ML 4 currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
WaHEEWIHE (Z46E B L foreign currency denominated monetary items (other than the bank
H ¥ 38 LB W ) 2 44 0 5 R 1 B borrowings subject to cross currency interest rate swaps designated
TTfEARBRAN) » M S 4 K 5 2 Hot as hedging instruments) and adjusts their translation at the year
SELAR MRS RERESR 1Y 5% 52 8) - 5% end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. 5% is the sensitivity
2 PR ) B B R N B A TR A rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
AN TR g 4 SRR P ) 2R 5 Sl A management personnel and represents management’s assessment
T 541 T [E 26 4 350 A) fiE 2 B 1Y 5T of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
i o SPURREE 2y T G 45 LA AN HE Y sensitivity analysis includes bank borrowings as well as bank
SRATIE DL S8R4T &t M B R 4R balances and pledged bank deposits denominated in foreign
TR o IEBRR N R SRR currencies. A positive number indicates an increase in post-tax
W (L BRS AF J3 3a ALF B o i A RS profit for the year where the RMB strengthens against the relevant
W O AH B ANz (B 59 IR currencies. For a 5% weakening of RMB against the relevant
i A1) 20 7] S5 f) B T S o currencies, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit for the year.
i AV S S
2016 2015
ANRETFL ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
X UsD
B V6 A Profit for the year 114,588 205,858
T HKD
A B V6 A Profit for the year 4,268 328,061
(c) TG4 (c) Market risk (Continued)
Al A A e Other price risk

74 S8 I TR ] A8 o 4 50 TS A AR
BEBR o AT - EEER AL
TR 364 4 P 162 B I B o

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its available-
for-sale investments. However, the management considers that the

Company's exposure to fluctuation in equity price is minimal.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

(d

Credit risk management

At each of the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees issued by the Group is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the amount of contingent liabilities disclosed in note
40. In order to minimise the credit risk, monitoring procedures
are carried out to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual accounts, bills and other
receivables and amounts due from related parties at the end of
the reporting period. The amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position are net of allowances for bad and
doubtful debts, estimated by the Group’s management based on
prior experience and their assessment of the current economic

environment.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit

rating agencies or state-owned banks in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks with high credit ratings and amounts
due from non-controlling interests, associates and joint ventures,
the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, in which

exposure is spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
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(d)

(e)

i B IR B (40
MEBEERZ LWYENS - &
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Ji B ) S A T T 1) SRAT SR AR
R DR BRI 2 A Y S R
TE A 709% o fis H I A3 ORIV T A A
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R [ M 2 R MR K AT A
PR FLE o TERLIER T - A%EM
A M M 1 1 < I ]
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EHRER R > W LY
8 R T 90 B T e R A AR
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RHEERAR « BULME > A0 7
HFHRL > ARENFRERCK
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i B < L B

ARSI B A R
5 0 1 2 AR T4 o
AR EY BRI R SR -
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

(d

(e)

Credit risk management (Continued)

For properties that are presold but development has not been
completed, the Group typically provides guarantees to banks in
connection with the purchasers” borrowing of mortgage loans to
finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up to 70% of
the purchase price of the individual property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage during the period of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay
the outstanding loan and any interest accrued thereon. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to forfeit the sales deposit received
and resell the repossessed properties. Therefore, the management
considers the Group would likely recover any loss incurred arising
from the guarantees. The management considers the credit risk
exposure to financial guarantees provided to property purchasers
is limited because the facilities are secured by the properties and
the market price of the properties is higher than the guaranteed
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that

the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and the flexibility through the use of borrowings. The
directors of the Company closely monitor the liquidity position
and expect to have adequate sources of funding to finance the

Group's projects and operations.

The following table details the Group’s expected remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) WMENE SRR 47) (e) Liquidity risk (Continued)
CRINSR e il o e T To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the discounted
EERERAE AR B R A R A o amount is derived from interest rates existing at the end of the
reporting period.
REF-AE
2R
TS =4
A% WREE AMHBE
Weighted Carrying iR
average amount at 0EOH  61Z180H 181%365H 1524 1534 34 Total
interest  December 31, 0 to 60 61 to 180 181 to 365 Ito2 2t03 Over  undiscounted
rate 2016 days days days years years 3 years cash flows
NRHTE  ARWFE  ARWTE  ARWTE  ARWFE  ARETL  ARWFE  ARKFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FAk&MAR  Non-derivative financial liabilities
Ritl Non-interest bearing — B84 ST5hI88 8590810 11528434 — — — 15843
ERTH Fixed interest rate instruments 433% 31,781,889 134,496 753,214 308,290 2,447,101 6,008876 24,417,180 34,069,157
BETA Variable interest rate instruments 470% 26,090,181 1,273,980 709,363 4328857 7,038,486 10,222,812 4831994 28,405,492
M ERAD Financial guarantee contracts - — 7,889,799 - - - - — 7889799
83,744,502 15,051,463 10,053,387 16,165,581 9,485,587 16,231,688 29,249,174 96,236,880
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47. BT H @)

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

(&) RENE &R (4 () Liquidity risk (Continued)

e S K2

t2A

mET  =+-H
Mg fRmEE AHBHE
Weighted Carrying REAH
average amount at 0F60H 6121800 181%365H 1826 1535 B30 Total
interest  December 31, 0to 60 61 to 180 181 t0 365 lto2 2103 Over  undiscounted
rate 2015 days days days years years 3 years cash flows
ANGHTE  ARETFE  ARETZ  ARWFr  ARETZ  ARETLT  ARETT  ARETL
RMBO00 RMB00 RMB00 RMBYO0O RMBO00 RMB00 RMB00 RMBUO0O

FhirkERAR Non-derivative financial liabilities

Rtk Non-interest beating — 19841208 4292763 7365118 8183327 = = — 19,841,208
EELR Figed fnteret rate instrumens 598% 18067867 167233 663,752 07582 140946 3G 1557623 23392203
BETA Variable interest rate instruments 5.18% 34,197,713 622,170 1,554,460 3,332,424 15,012,726 9,023,857 9,005,606 38,551,303
HHERAL Financial guarantee contracts - — 10414147 - - - - — 10414147
72,106,788 17,001,415 9583330 12,191,583 16,253,672 12386972 24581889 92,198,861

R EAEAMARZ FE RS
AL R B R 0 R A
S i o B T A

Rt A LR P R 6 40 2 R A
WERINZ 5T R > AL ERE L
PRZEIF HERO 2413 O A B 1o 2
IR AEERA
AR % % PR AR A T E Sz 208 1 A°F 5K
JH o SR BLAGRHRT 25 T R R
YEIR AR AT REPE T k52 > T2 )
R AT RETE IR A 22 5 0 B
TS TR < B Wi ST 2 A5 SRR K
(AT R -
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The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest

rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle
under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based
on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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it TR A PR

A B A S R
HHIARIE A ERHE o TR
] 88 2 - (i (R RS P
(BBl Sl A Bcdg) - KA
Z ] LT BE DA A % S e
BEMEZNFE > RAFER

Bl 2 FERRA (F— R =g k)

ZEH -

SR fR

Financial assets/liabilities

Cross currency interest rate
swaps classified as derivative
financial instruments in the
consolidated statement of

financial position

G0 BB IR VLR A B
ST A2 2 A AR
P

Early redemption option
derivatives in relation to the
domestic corporate bonds
issued by the Group

SEAC S [ B8R AT 0 2 w7
A B B R I A A TR
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

(f)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments

&4
4
21
Wik
BE
& it

Some of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets and liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised

(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements is observable.

TSRS —H 2 AT

Fair value as at

December 31, INTAE L5
“FR-ANE F—RE Fair value
2016 2015  hierarchy
ANR¥TFIL ARWTT
RMB’000  RMB’000
Assets: Assets: Level 2
988,746 701,083
B B o 03
988,746 701,083
Liabilities: Liabilities: - Level 2
215,915
£fE : Ak — HEH
215,915

G PEL T YN C

Valuation techniques and key inputs

Discounted cash flows. Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward exchange rates
and interest rates (from observable forward
exchange rates and yield curves at the end of
the reporting period) and contracted forward
rates and interest rates, discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit risk of the Group or
the counterparties, as appropriate.
ST B U B o AR A I = R (R it
AR T B Y R Rl g fh AR ) R 2
HT 4 1Y 3 A b % e A S A Al R AR B4 U
B M BR A — (A RE A S WA 4 [ B T E
BB 1Y B 2 BB (@ )

The fair value of early redemption options
are determined by assessing the difference
between the fair values of the bonds by
quoted price and the pure bond value.

A Rz eMEEREMABLA
(e R E MR SR R BB 4 TR
i > ERWMAMBANEE > Z@WA
BB RE T 25 T 15 R -
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47. BT H @)

03]

Srih TR A AP )

ARG BREAETT > RS
S S 2 RS AT o 4

W 43 B RS B 3E 26 e 27 4% 88 f9 5E
ANTEGES REETEE
A g Al T BN R # 988,746,000 7C
(ZF—HF 0 ARE701,083,000
JC) RHALATAE R T H AR
215,915,000 TG ( & — FL4E © &)
b AT ERRE » AR
B BATS R DR 2 TR0 AR 6 A 51
HR 2 4 T e T i TR £ 1 MR T £
BLFL N PEARS

FEAS B SR EE R e A
TR FE R N 8 E (R AT
BB &R EMTEE - ER@mAL
BAIEBLR A BRRE T R
EEREERE)
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47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

®

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the current and

prior years.

Except for the bonds and senior notes with fair value disclosed in
notes 26 and 27 respectively, the derivative financial instruments
of RMB988,746,000 (2015: RMB701,083,000) and other
derivative financial instruments of RMB215,915,000 (2015: nil),
the directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
in the consolidated statement of financial position approximate

their respective fair values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities
included in Level 2 have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow
analysis with the most significant inputs being the discount rate

that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.
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48. A2 vi) I B R 48. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(a) ANT BRI HBEE (a) Financial information of the financial position of the
# Company:

ZER-AE ZF N
2016 2015

AR TE  ARWTL
RMB’000  RMB’000

FER B NON-CURRENT ASSETS
BEE M 7 Investments in subsidiaries 20,269,271 22,717,178
i 4 mITH Derivative financial instruments 639,233 701,083
20,908,504 23,418,261
W CURRENT ASSETS
B MR R B At JRE MR Accounts and other receivables, deposits and
Fe S FEAT IR prepayments 2,041 2,113
fidam T HE Derivative financial instruments 349,513 —
SATH R R & Bank balances and cash 673,574 292,816
1,025,128 294,929
SNSRI CURRENT LIABILITIES
RERTRRRG ~ Clkd 4 Accounts payables, deposits received
B ERT B 3 and accrued charges 30,985 38,833
JRE AT B J 2 ) K0 Amounts due to subsidiaries 3,280,971 1,563,616
SRAT B HoAt A K — —AE N EI Bank and other borrowings - due within one year 3,635,787 283,616
6,947,743 1,886,065
T H B NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (5,922,615)  (1,591,136)
A8 7 R ) LA TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 14,985,889 21,827,125
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48. A2 v B ERE ) 48. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(@ AAFHMBRIEZHESR (a) Financial information of the financial position of the
e Company: (Continued)

SENE ENR

2016 2015
ABBTHE  ARSTT
RMB’000 RMB 000

JBeAR T ik CAPITAL AND RESERVES
R (B 29) Share capital (Note 29) 508,438 507,823
fit Reserves 1,266,724 4,220,788
Tt 25 48 %5 TOTAL EQUITY 1,775,162 4,728,611
FEm £ i NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
SRAT R HAAE 3 — — £ %] Bank and other borrowings - due after one year 7,653,691 9,169,342
B g Senior notes 5,557,036 7,929,172
13,210,727 17,098,514
14,985,889 21,827,125
(b) AT fEfEsEE (b) Movement of reserves of the Company:
R
SlikG  RRERE
i Tk Bt Shates held Share S EEil 4
Share Capital for share option Hedging Accumulated 5t
premium feserve award eserve feserve losses Total
Vil aivi ARHFIE NEHFIE Vil aii ARHFTE NBHFIE Vil aii
RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000
R-Z-T5—f—H At January 1, 2015 7,949,501 2523930 — 479331 148,574 (4,928697) 6,172,639
EEER Loss for the year = = = = = (439,831) 439,831)
M TAMATEE Fair value gain on hedging instruments - - - - 518,720 - 518,720
EFEERGN Gain on hedging instruments
TR teclassified to profit and loss - - - - (613,754) - (613,754)
AT AR Total comprehensive expense for the year — - - - (95,034) (439.831) (534,865)
AERSH R Recognition of equity-setcled
O EYHIES share-based payments - - - 101,633 - - 101,633
FEBEE Cancellation of share options - - - (3,587) - 3,587 -
B R/MR AR Dividend recognised as disribution (1,654310) = = = = = (1,654310)
(i:d Do Gl Issue of shares on exercise of
share options 217,009 - - (76,467) - — 140,542
AR 2R SRR Purchase of shares under the
share award scheme - - (4,851) - - - (4,851)
IEF-RELTAZ4—H  AcDecember 31, 2015 6,512,200 25,930 (4851) 500910 53,540 (5,364,941) 4,220,788
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48. AW BE R ) 48. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
(b) AATFIGEMEEE : 5) (b) Movement of reserves of the Company: (Continued)
fHERA
BRMRD R
Tt Rkt Shares held Share bl Ritk#
Share Capital for share option Hedging  Accumulated 5t
premium reserve award reserve reserve losses Total

ARKTE  ARKTE  ARETE  ARETE  ARKTE  ARETFE ARKTE
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000

FEER Loss for the year = = = = = (446,677) (446,677)
B TEMAT Bl Pair value gain on hedging instruments - - — — 287,663 — 287,663
EHNEERGEN Gain on hedging instruments

T H g teclassified to profit and loss — — — — (248,592) — (248,592)

SE R TR (o) A8 Total comprehensive

income (expense) for the year - - - - 39,071 (446,677) (407,606)

IR A R Recognition of equity-settled
AR share-based payments — - - 63,978 - - 63,978
SEBRELE Cancellation of share options - - - (21,639) - 21,639 —
ERBMRIRE Dividend recognised as distribution (2,083,332) - - - - - (2,083,332)

T R R Issue of shares on exercise of
share options 70,653 - - (18,539) - - 52,114

RAER O HBEERE  Purchase of shares under the
share award scheme - - (579,218) - - - (579,218)
REF=AEFZA=T—H  AcDecember 31, 2016 4,499,521 2523930 (584,069) 524,710 92,611 (5,789,979) 1,266,724

) BREWEAF (¢) Investments in subsidiaries

“RRE CF A

2016 2015
ARBFTE  ARBTT
RMB 000 RMB’000

I LAy FeA Unlisted shares, at cost 2,875,598 2,875,598
G ERL G YNEIRES Y Deemed capital contribution to subsidiaries 17,393,673 19,841,580

20,269,271 22,717,178

(d) FEATHHE A Rl 3kE (d) Amounts due to subsidiaries
TEAST B N ) R 0E A A~ The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
HARR SR e - are repayable on demand.
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49. YEIBAV > 5B 4LER  49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B2 A I wER JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

@ REF-AERFNE (a)
TZHAZ+—H s Raw
ZWE A AR

R/

B
Place of

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

ARG B REAY e

Equity interest

DRI RAR
Tk /e A
Issued and fully paid A&

Place of

attributable to the Group
L =
2016 2015

AAAH

Name of company

TR

Principal activities

incorporation/ share capital/

establishment registered capital operation

T e g 5 A RAR (Hzka) il 100% 1009 aftEA il 5

Beijing Dezhuo Trade Company
Limited (Note a)

AR ERAEA RAT (Hika)
Beijing Huicheng Investment
Limited (Note a)

A M AU A A R A 7] (st )
Beijing Longhu Chengheng

Decoration Company Limited (Note a)

TR B A RA A (H7E D)
Beijing Longhu Properties
Company Limited (Note b)

PRC

il 100%
PRC

il 100%
PRC

il 100%
PRC
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100%

100%

100%

AR 20,000,000 76
R BA

AR 20,000,000 76
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

Hals-es
AR#10,000,000 76
G
AER#10,000,000 76
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

FEff B A
AR2,000,000 76
BRI AR
AR2,000,000 76
Registered
RMB2,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB2,000,000

HalRES
NEH1,000,000,000 76
BRI
AEH1,000,000,000 76
Registered
RMBI,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBI,000,000,000

PRC

A
PRC

Trading of construction

materials

EZ i3

Properties development

B4

House decoration

VES i3
Properties development
and provision of

consultancy service
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49. TEHBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B2 A IR ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) (#) (a) (Continued)

FEA AL ARAE A1 CRTRAE
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NG incorporation/ RN ZZ—H4F  share capital/ Place of FEEH

Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities

RHEMMERBEARAR (k) FH 100% 100%  FEMEAR HE hER
Beijing Longhu Property Service PRC AR 5,000,000 76 PRC Properties management
Company Limited (Note a) B
B 5,000,000 72
Registered
RMB5,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB5,000,000

M B R A RAR (Wkb) 8 100% 100%  EMEA Gl IES
Beijing Longhu Qinghua PRC AE#500,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Property Company Limited (Note b) BRIA
AR 500,000,000 7
Registered
RMB500,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB500,000,000

R RE A RAR (Hika)  HE 100% 100%  FEMFEA I VIER 3
Beijing Longhu Shidai Properties PRC AR H1,400,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Company Limited (Note a) BRI AR
A 1,400,000,000 7
Registered
RMB1,400,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,400,000,000

PR R EEARAT (W) R 100% 100%  EfEAR HE VES T
Beijing Longhu Tianxing Properties PRC ARH600,000,000C  PRC Properties development
Company Limited (Note a) B AR
AR 600,000,000 72
Registered
RMB600,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB600,000,000
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49. TEHBAG - SBALER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B2 A RN ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) (#) (a) (Continued)

R L AR T AV CRTRAE
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NGEA incorporation/ RN ZZ—H4F  share capital/ Place of FEEH

Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities

B AR RAR (HRE.) R 100% 100%  FEMEAR HE IES 3
Beijing Longhu Zhongbai PRC AE#1,500,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Properties Company Limited (Note a) BB A
AR 1,500,000,000 7
Registered
RMB1,500,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,500,000,000

A E A IRAF (e a) il 100% 100%  sEMFEA i B
Beijing Mengke Properties Co., PRC AR 830,000,000 PRC Properties development
Led. (Note a) e and provision of

)\EWS}0,000,000TE consultancy service
Registered
RMB830,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB830,000,000

Joris B R A RAR Mk TR 100% 100%  FEMFEA i ER 3
Beijing Tongrui Wanhua Real PRC AE#2,800,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Estate Co., Led. (Note ) A
AR 2,800,000,000 76
Registered
RMB2,800,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB2,800,000,000

TR A AR (W) 100% 100%  sEfEAR i VES i3
Beijing Xingshun Real Estate PRC ARH700,000,000C  PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (Note 2) BL A
AR 700,000,000 7
Registered
RMB700,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB700,000,000
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49. FEWBA - fBEER
B A EERE )

(a)

(#)

AAAH

Name of company

TR B E A AR (WfEa)
Beijing Xiongrun Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(Note a)

Tt ALK s R A IR A A
Wik D)

Beijing Gubei Town Real Estate
Development Ltd (Note b)

TR EEREREERARA R
(fzEa)
Beijing Zhouxinruitong

Investment Co., Led. (Note a)

EM A EEARA R (Wika)
Changzhou Jia'nan Properties
Co., Ltd. (Note a)

akMbaL/
Place of
incorporation/

establishment

i
PRC

PRC

il
PRC

g
PRC
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)  (Continued)
ARAE A1
Equity interest
attributable to the Group
= i =t
2016 2015
100% 100%
60% 60%
34% 100%
(Wfaki)
(Note i)
100% 100%

DRfTRAR
Tk /R A
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

B A

A RH800,000,000 7
BEBA

A RH800,000,000 7
Registered
RMB800,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB800,000,000

Hals-Es
AR#127,500,000 7
BRI A
AR#127,500,000 7
Registered
RMB127,500,000
Paid up capital
RMB127,500,000

AT
B 1,000,000 76

AU BA
z

%
Registered
RMB1,000,000
Paid up capital
Nil

REM A

AR 720,000,000 78
B AR

AR 720,000,000 78
Registered
RMB720,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB720,000,000

B
Place of

operation

g
PRC

HEl
PRC

i
PRC

B
PRC

FIEH

Principal activities

IES 3

Properties development

VEZi3

Properties development

Investment holding

IESH

Properties development
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49. TEHBAG - SBALER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B2 A RN ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) (#) (a) (Continued)

R L AR T AV CRTRAE
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NGEA incorporation/ RN ZZ—H4F  share capital/ Place of FEEH

Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities

EMEEERRARAR (F5ED) TR 100% 100%  FEMEAR HE IES 3
Changzhou Longfor Jiye PRC 124,690,000 %75 PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (Note b) BURIA
124,690,000 57t
Registered
USD124,690,000
Paid up capital
USD124,690,000

N R A R ) (M) R 100% 100%  sEMFEA il B
Changzhou Jiabo Real Estate Co., PRC 196,160,000 %7 PRC Properties development
Led. (Note ¢) BRI
196,160,000 7t
Registered
USD196,160,000
Paid up capital
USD196,160,000

TR ERARA (Hrika) i 100% 100%  sEMFEA R UES
Wi Jianan Real Estate Co., PRC AR 260,000,000 PRC Properties development
Ld. (Note 2) AL
260,000,000 7
Registered
RMB260,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB260,000,000

EHEHREEERAT (Hta) I 100% 100%  ftEx Gic VIES
Wouxi Jiarui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Note a) PRC AR #559,500,0007C  PRC Properties development
B A
AR 559,500,000 78
Registered
RMB559,500,000
Paid up capital
RMB559,500,000
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49. TEHBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w W ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (#) (a)  (Continued)
akMbaL/ RS T A I DR LA
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
A4 incorporation/ ZERE ZZ—H4F  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
SR BRA AT (k) il 100% 100%  FEMEAR HE IES
Wouxi Jiateng Real Estate Co., PRC ARM720,000,0000C  PRC Properties development
Ltd. (Note a) SRR
ABH720,000,000 72
Registered
RMB720,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB720,000,000
FGHEE A AT (M) il 100% 100%  EMEA Bl IES
Wuxi Longhu Real Estate Inc. (Notea) ~ PRC AR 615,200,000 PRC Properties development
BRIA
AR 615,200,000 72
Registered
RMB615,200,000
Paid up capital
RMB615,200,000
RS8R A B A A ) G 60% 100%  EfEAR I BEHR
(Htzka) PRC AE#5,000,000 7 PRC Investment holding
Chengdu Dongjin Enterprise B IA
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. AE#5,000,000 7C
(Note a) Registered
RMBS,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBS,000,000
IR AR BB A A 7 R 100% 100%  EfEAR HE VES T
(I AR FERR ]) (Wit iEa) PRC AR # 30,000,000 7 PRC Properties development
Chengdu Jiaxun Investment Company B AR
Limited (‘Chengdu Jiaxun”) (Note a) ARH30,000,000 76
Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHBAG - SBALER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B2 A RN ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) (#) (a) (Continued)

R L AR T AV CRTRAE
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NGEA incorporation/ RN ZZ—H4F  share capital/ Place of FEEH

Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities

IG5 A 7 (ko) il 100% 100%  FEMEAR HE B
Chengdu Jinteng Trade Company PRC AR 20,000,000 76 PRC Trading of construction
Limited (Note a) SR A materials
20,000,000 7
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

FREHEMA S B R A IRA R (akb) o 100% 100%  sEMFEA i B
Chengdu Longhu Jinhua Real PRC AR 100,000,000 PRC Properties development
Estate Company Limited (Note b) BUREIA
B 100,000,000 72
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000

IRESEM RIS A IRA T (k) o 100% 100%  sEMFEA i RS p
Chengdu Longhu Property PRC AR 5,000,000 76 PRC Properties management
Services Company Limited (Note a) BRI AR
B 5,000,000 72
Registered
RMB3,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB5,000,000

TREFEMF & B A RAT (H7Eb) B 100% 100%  sEMFEA HE IE S
Chengdu Longhu Tongjin Real PRC ARH966,549,8657C  PRC Properties development
Estate Company Limited (Note b) BRA
AR 966,549,865 7
Registered
RMB966,549,865
Paid up capital
RMB966,549,865

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]




7 B 5 3R B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B2 A IR ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) (#) (a) (Continued)

FEA AL ARAE A1 CRTRAE
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NG incorporation/ RN ZZ—H4F  share capital/ Place of FEEH

Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities

A E B R (k) i 100% 100%  sEMEA il B
Chengdu Xixi Real Estate PRC AR H335,660,000C  PRC Properties development
Company Limited (Note a) B
B 335,660,000 72
Registered
RMB335,660,000
Paid up capital
RMB335,660,000

TR PR B A RA T (W) il 100% 100%  EMEA Gl IES
Chengdu Xixiang Real Estate PRC NE# 4363700000 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (Note a) BRIA
N 436,370,000 7
Registered
RMB436,370,000
Paid up capital
RMB436,370,000

AT AGHRE ) (Wi a) R 100% 100%  aEfbEA R BifRH
Chengdu Yuanbo Gardening PRC ARM20,000,0007  PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Co., Ltd (Note a) B A
20,000,000 7
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

TREFEM M A IRA T (skb) R 100% 100%  sEfiFEAR B IE S
Chengdu Longfor Jincheng Real PRC ARH390,000,000C  PRC Properties development
Estate Co., Ltd. (Note b) B AR
AR 390,000,000 7T
Registered
RMB390,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB390,000,000
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. BEWBA A - FEEER
TR 28 4 vl W 2

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Company Limited
(“Chengdu Jia'nan") (Note b)

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]

AR 382,890,100 72
Registered
RMB382,890,100
Paid up capital
RMB382,890,100

(a) (#) (a) (Continued)
kb RS T A I CRTRAR
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NP incorporation/ ZE-NE Z%F—HF  share capital/ Place of BT
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
AR E A RAR (Wkb) e 100% 100%  FEMEAR HE IES 3
Chengdu Longfor Beicheng Co., PRC ARM1,970,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Led. (Note b) BURIA
AR 1,970,000,000 7
Registered
RMB1,970,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,970,000,000
IRATEMEBE A RA R (Wika)  HE 100% 100%  EfEA HE IES
Chengdu Longfor Jinhua Real Estate PRC AR 650,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (Note a) B A
B 650,000,000 72
Registered
RMB650,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB650,000,000
PR R A PR A ) i 100% 100%  sEMFEA i IE S
(AR RS J) (Bt b) PRC ANEH#629,993,5007C  PRC Properties development
Chengdu Huixin Real Estate B IA
Company Limited AR 629,993,500 7
(“Chengdu Huixin") (Note b) Registered
RMB629,993,500
Paid up capital
RMB629,993,500
R 35 P A R il 100% 100%  sEfEAR i VES i3
(TR 2w 1) (M b) ARH382,890,100C  PRC Properties development
Chengdu Jia'nan Real Estate PRC BRI AR



49. BEWBA A - FEEER

B A EERE )

(@) (#)

AAAH

Name of company

AR EEEARAR
([RGB E ) (WEREb)
Chengdu Jinghui Real Estate
Company Limited
(“Chengdu Jinghui”) (Note b)

AR AR B A TR
(I e#h /%)) (WEED)
Chengdu Tuocheng Real Estate
Company Limited
(“Chengdu Tuocheng”) (Note b)

BRI B A R (W)

Chongqing Beilonghu Property
Company Limited (Note a)

BREOL A RA A (Wka)
Chongqing Henghong Investment Inc.
(Note a)

Kok B U 25 A MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-AETHZT—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)  (Continued)
FEA AL AR A
LK Equity interest
Place of attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ZERE “E-hE
establishment 2016 2015
T 100% 100%
PRC
HE 100% 100%
PRC
bl 100% 100%
PRC
g 100% 100%
PRC

DRfTRAR
Tk /R A
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

FEA A

AR 653,275,800 7
BRI

AR 653,275,800 7
Registered
RMB653,275,800
Paid up capital
RMB653,275,800

AL A

AR 633,495,100 78
RUEBA

AR 633,495,100 78
Registered
RMBG33,495,100
Paid up capital
RMB633,495,100

FEM B A

AR 700,000,000 76
A

AR 700,000,000 76
Registered
RMB700,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB700,000,000

HAURES
ARH10,000,000 76
B AR
ARH10,000,000 76
Registered
RMB10,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

B
Place of

operation

g
PRC

HEl
PRC

i
PRC

PRC

FIEH

Principal activities

IES 3

Properties development

VEZi3

Properties development

IES

Properties development

IESH

Properties development
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHBAG - SBALER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w Wk ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (#H) (@)  (Continued)
kb RS T A I CRTRAR
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NP incorporation/ ZE-NE Z%F—HF  share capital/ Place of BT
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
EEREHEREARAT (WD) FE 100% 100%  FEMEAR HE IES
Chongging Juntion Real Estate PRC [ ¥ 778,000,000 78 PRC Properties development
Development Inc. (Note b) BB A
NBH 778,000,000 72
Registered
RMB778,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB778,000,000
BN A B R A R HE 100% 100%  EfEA HE IES
(Mtika) PRC ARM1,000,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Chongqing Longhu Chengheng e
Real Estate Development Inc. (Note a) AR 1,000,000,000 76
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000
BN ARARARAR (Kb 100% 100%  GEfEA i IES G4
Chongging Longhu Development PRC AR+ 308,000,000 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (Note b) B IA and investment
AEH1,308,000,000 T
Registered
RMB1,308,000,000
Paid up capital

RMB1,308,000,000

BREENE L ERRARAR il 100% 100%  sEfEAR i VES i3
(KtzEa) PRC AE#30,000,000 7C PRC Properties development
Chongqing Longhu Hengshang BRI AR
Real Estate Company Limited (Note a) ARH30,000,000 76
Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000

BRI EREERAR I 51% 51%  akfEA T IESi30
Chonggqing Longhu Jiakai Real Estate ~ PRC ARH1,323,000,000G  PRC Properties development
Development Co., Ltd. (Note b) B AR
NEH1,323,000,000 76
Registered
RMB1,323,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,323,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]




49. BEWBA A - FEEER

B A EERE )

(@) (#)

AAAH

Name of company

BRI T EREARAR
(HtzEb)

Chongqing Longhu Kaian Real Estate
Development Co., Led. (Note b)

A R A IR A (k)
Chongqing Longhu Properties
Company Limited (Note a)

BRI B A RA R (HEb)
Chongqing Longhu Xijie
Real Estate Company Limited
(Note b)

EEHE A R R R AR
(Hfika)

Chongqing Longhu Yiheng Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (Note a)

BRI B EREERAR
(WaEc)

Chongqing Longhu Yizhi Real Estate
Development Co., Led. (Note )

22
o)

F 785 it A B ik

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

akMbaL/
Place of
incorporation/

establishment

i
PRC

G
PRC

Gl
PRC

PRC

BEZZ-AETHZT—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

ARG B REAY e

Equity interest

2016

100%

100%

51%

100%

50%
(HEn)
(Note h)

attributable to the Group

S

“F-Kh
2015

100%

100%

100%

100%

50%
(KfEn)
(Note h)

DRfTRAR
Tk /R A
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

AR

AR 1,278,000,000 TG
BRI

AR 1,278,000,000 TG
Registered
RMB1,278,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,278,000,000

FEff B A

AR 1,544,912,450 76
BRI A

AR 1,544,912,450 76
Registered
RMBI,544,912,450
Paid up capital
RMBI,544,912,450

FEff B A

AR 624,000,000 7
BRI AR

AR 624,000,000 7
Registered
RMBG24,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBG24,000,000

AL EA

AR 360,000,000 70
B AR

AR 360,000,000 70
Registered
RMB360,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB360,000,000

FEft A
200,000,000 7
BRI
200,000,000 357G
Registered
USD200,000,000
Paid up capital
USD200,000,000

B
Place of

operation

g
PRC

Bl
PRC

HE
PRC

B
PRC

i
PRC

FEEH
Principal activities

IES 3

Properties development

Properties development

and investment

BG4
Properties development

and investment

IESH

Properties development

IES T

Properties development
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHBAG - SBALER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B2 A RN ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) (#) (a) (Continued)

R L AR T AV CRTRAE
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NGEA incorporation/ RN ZZ—H4F  share capital/ Place of FEEH

Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities

EERBIEA RAH (HEb) il 100% 100%  FEMEAR HE EHE S
Chongqing Rongkai Industrial PRC AR 698,000,006 PRC Trading of construction
Company Limited (Note b) BB materials
N 698,000,000 7
Registered
RMB698,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB698,000,000

ERER A A IRAR (Wika) il 100% 100%  EfEA i IES
Chongqing Tianzhuo Investment PRC AR #20,000,000 76 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (Note a) BUREIA
AR 20,000,000 7
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

ERERMRFRRARAT () TR 100% 100%  FEMFEA I BEEE
Chongging Tianlang Agriculture PRC ARH10,000000C  PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Development Company Limited BRI AR
(Note a) 10,000,000 7
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

BRI E A RAR (Hika) R 100% 100%  sEfEAR i hEm
Chongqing Xinlonghu Properties PRC AR 5,000,000 7 PRC Properties management
Services Company Limited (Note a) B AR
AR 5,000,000 7
Registered
RMBS,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBS,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w W ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (#) (a)  (Continued)
akMbaL/ RS T A I DR LA
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NP incorporation/ ZE-NE Z“F—HF  share capital/ Place of EL 9 1
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
BRI EREARA i 100% 100%  FEMEAR HE IES
(Mekc) PRC 150,000,000 7T PRC Properties development
Chonggqing Longfor Dezhuo Real Estate B
Development Co., Ltd. (Note ¢) 150,000,000 %7t
Registered
USD150,000,000
Paid up capital
USD150,000,000
FEEWRERERRARAR i 100% 100% BB Bl IES
(fffzka) PRC AE#100,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Chongqing Longhu Keheng Real FEff B A
Estate Development Co., Limited AR #100,000,000 7
(Note a) Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
Registered
RMB100,000,000
R B RA AR G 50% 50%  LMEA I IES
(KzED) PRC (H7En) (HF#kR) 27,000,000 %G PRC Properties development
Longhu Land Limited (Note b) (Note h) (Noteh)  HUE A
27,000,000 % 7¢
Registered
USD27,000,000
Paid up capital
USD27,000,000
TUMBER B R A IR AR (Hi3ka) hR 51% 51%  BERA HE VES T
Hangzhou Longyao Real PRC (HfE5) ARH900,000,000C  PRC Properties development
Estate Development Led (Note a) (Note j) HAURES
AR 900,000,000 72
Paid up capital
RMB900,000,000
Registered
RMB900,000,000
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHBAG - SBALER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w Wk ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (#H) (@)  (Continued)
kb ARG AV o DRfTRAR
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NP incorporation/ ZE-NE Z%F—HF  share capital/ Place of BT
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
WM AR B AT IR ) (W) oY 100% 100%  sEMEA HE IES
Hangzhou Longhu Real Estate PRC 229,400,000 %70 PRC Properties development
Development Co., Ltd. (Note ) BB A
189,400,000 7T
Registered
USD229,400,000
Paid up capital
USD189,400,000
MR HEREARAT (Hika) HE 40% 4% BEBA T EZi3
Hangzhou Longzhuo Real PRC (Het k) (MfEEk)  ARE¥500,000,000C  PRC Properties development
Estate Development Led (Note a) (Note k) (Notek) skt
B 500,000,000 72
Paid up capital
RMB500,000,000
Registered
RMB500,000,000
UM BERE B TR A PR A ) (WfRE) R 100% 100%  FEMFEA I ER 3
Hangzhou Longjia Real Estate PRC B 50,000,000 70 PRC Properties development
Development Co., Ltd. (Note a) B AR
B 50,000,000 72
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
LS A R R (k) il 100% 100%  atftEA HH VES T
Shanghai Hengchi Real Estate PRC ARH1,010,000,000C  PRC Properties development
Company Limited (Note a) BRI AR

AR 1,010,000,000 78
Registered
RMB1,010,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB1,010,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]
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BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w W ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (#) (a) (Continued)
akMbaL/ RS T A I DR LA
LA Equity interest JieA /A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NG incorporation/ RN ZZ—H4F  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
LR ERARAR (Kt HE 100% 100%  REMEA i IES 3
Shanghai Longhu Property PRC AR 5,000,000 76 PRC Properties management
Management Company B
Limited (Note a) B 5,000,000 72
Registered

RMB5,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB5,000,000

LERENEERRARAR (i)  PE 100% 100%  aEftEA I E3
Shanghai Longhu Real Estate PRC ARM100,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Co. Led. (Note a) BRI A
B 100,000,000 72
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000

LEEREAKCARAR (i) BB 100% 100%  aEftEA i BEE
Shanghai Xinrun Garden PRC A E#12,000,000 76 PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Virescence Company BRI AR
Limited (Note ) N EH12,000,000 7
Registered
RMB12,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB12,000,000

EERATEERAR (Wika) i 100% 100%  atfftEA HE BHES
Shanghai Yujiu Industrial PRC ARH20,000,0007C  PRC Trading of construction
Company Limited (Note a) B AR materials
AR 20,000,000 7T
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. BEWBA A - FEEER

TR 28 4 vl W 2

(a) (4

R4

Name of company

Lt A TRAF (HfEa)
Shanghai Hengshi Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (Note a)

L ERE R RAR (ke
Shanghai Hengyi Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (Note a)

A R A RA R (kD)
Shanghai Hengrui Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (Note b)

LR A AR (kD)
Shanghai Hengjun Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (Note b)

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) (Continued)
R L AR A
LK Equity interest
Place of attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ZERE —E-T
establishment 2016 2015
HIE 100% 100%
PRC
HIE 100% 100%
PRC
R 100% 100%
PRC
I 100% 100%
PRC

Longfor Properties Co. Led.  HE W M & A FR A #]

DRfTRAR
Tk /R AR
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

FEf B A

AR 1,000,000,000 7G
HEBA

AR 1,000,000,000 76
Registered
RMBI,000,000,000

Paid up capital
RMBI,000,000,000

Haus-es
AR#1,100,000,000 76
e
ABR#1,100,000,000 76
Registered
RMB1,100,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB1,100,000,000

Rals-Es
ARH1,589,000,000 76
A
ARH1,589,000,000 76
Registered
RMB1,589,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB1,589,000,000

FEfit A
NERH4,300,000,000 7
BRI AR

N 3,539,934,000 ¢
Registered
RMB4,300,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB3,539,934,000

R
Place of

operation

i
PRC

il
PRC

i
PRC

A
PRC

TR
Principal activities

IES 3

Properties development

IER i3S

Properties development

IES

Properties development

IESH

Properties development



49. BEWBA A - FEEER

B A EERE )

(@) (#)

A%

Name of company

LA R E A RA R (Rt a)

Shanghai Hukang Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd. (Note a)

L R EERARAT (fta)
Shanghai Yangen Investment

Management Co., Ltd. (Note a)

e fa BRARAT (k)
Shenyang Jinheng Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(Note a)

RIS R OB R PR ] (A REb)
Shenyang Longhu Estate
Development Co., Led. (Note b)

akibaL/
Place of
incorporation/

establishment

il
PRC

il
PRC

i
PRC

il
PRC

7 B 5 3R B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)  (Continued)
L T e 1
Equity interest
attributable to the Group
e L =
2016 2015
50% 100%
(Wit k)
(Note k)
65% -
60% -
100% 100%

DR R
WAk /R AR
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

A
5,000,000 78
HRBA
Registered
RMB5,000,000
Paid up capital

Nil

REf A

A E799,050,000 7
B IA

A E799,050,000 7
Registered
RMB799,050,000

Paid up capital
RMB799,050,000

Rali-es
ARH100,000,000 78
e A
AR#100,000,000 7
Registered
RMB100,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000

FEfit A
F75.65,000,000 7
e

F75 65,000,000 7
Registered
USD65,000,000
Paid up capital
USD65,000,000

BB
Place of

operation

i

A1
PRC

T RS

Principal activities

Investment holding

Investment holding

IS

Property development

IES

Properties development
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHBAG - SBALER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w Wk ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (#H) (@)  (Continued)
kb RS T A I CRTRAR
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NP incorporation/ ZE-NE Z%F—HF  share capital/ Place of BT
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
WA EEARA (Wkb) e 100% 100%  REMPEA i IES
Shenyang Longfor Xinbei Real PRC FI0113,000,000 76 PRC Properties development
Estate Co., Led. (Note b) BR A
3T 113,000,000 76
Registered
USD113,000,000
Paid up capital
USD113,000,000
D) SR RA T (WiED) Y 100% 100%  REMPEA i IES S
Sichuan Longhu Real Estate PRC ARH50,000000C  PRC Properties development
Development Company BUREIA
Limited (Note b) 50,000,000 72
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
AR AME A RAR Mk R 100% 100%  atfftEA I ER 3
Xi'an Longhu Jincheng PRC AR 430,000,000 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (Note a) BRI AR
R 430,000,000 72
Registered
RMB430,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB430,000,000
ELAEM AR AIRAT (H5ka) B 100% 100  eftEA i RSP
Xi'an Longhu Property Service PRC ARH3,000,000 76 PRC Properties management
Company Limited (Note a) BRI AR
ARH3,000,000 7
Registered

RMB3,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000
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49. TEHBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w W ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (&) (@)  (Continued)
LAl ave ARAE A1 CRTRAE
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NP incorporation/ ZE-NE Z“F—HF  share capital/ Place of EL 9 1
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
MEEMLERREARAR (i) HE 100% 100%  REfEA i IES 3
Xi'an Longhu Real Estate PRC AR 50,000,000 76 PRC Properties development
Inc. (Note a) R BA
AR 50,000,000 7
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
WL E EARAR (e E 100% 100%  FEEA I L I
Xi'an Longhu Xingcheng Estate PRC AR 499,610,0007C  PRC Properties development
Co. Led. (Note a) e
N EH499,610,000 ¢
Registered
RMB499,610,000
Paid up capital
RMB499,610,000
WEHENEREEARAR (s  HE 100% 100%  sEfEA i IES
Xi'an Longfor Runrong Real Estate PRC ANE#615,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (Note a) B A
AR 615,000,000 G
Registered

RMB615,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB615,000,000

FRENEERRARAR (H5Eb) 100% 100%  sEfEA R ES
Qingdao Longfor Real PRC ARH1,100,000,0007C  PRC Properties development
Estate Co. Led. (Note b) B AR

AR 1,100,000,000 78
Registered
RMB1,100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,100,000,000
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHBAG - SBALER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w Wk ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (#H) (@)  (Continued)
kb RS T A I CRTRAR
L Equity interest JBEA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
NP incorporation/ ZE-NE Z%F—HF  share capital/ Place of BT
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
R A ERARA A (WREo) il 100% 100%  REMPEA i IES 3
Qingdao Longjia Real PRC 90,000,000 %76 PRC Properties development
Estate Co. Ltd. (Note c) BB A
90,000,000 %7
Registered
USD90,000,000
Paid up capital
USD90,000,000
H R EEARA R (HEc) HIE 100% 100%  aEftEA GC| EI
Qingdao Longkai Real PRC 80,000,000 %76 PRC Properties development
Estate Co. Ltd. (Note ¢) BRI A
80,000,000 % 7¢
Registered
USD80,000,000
Paid up capital
USD80,000,000
R EAEEARAT (M) il 25.1% - aiEE i IESH
Qingdao Wanchuang Real Estate PRC (HzEn) AR 1,148,133,2007C  PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (Note b) (Note h) AL
AR 1,148,133,200 7
Registered

RMB1,148,133,200
Paid up capital
RMB1,148,133,200

5 W AR AT (H7ED) i 25.1% —  tftEAk i ES i3
Qingdao Wanhu Real Estate Co., Led. ~ PRC (H7En) AR 597,425,0000C  PRC Properties development
(Note b) (Note h) BL A
AR 597,425,000 7
Registered

RMB597,425,000
Paid up capital
RMB597,425,000
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49. FEWBA - fBEER
B A EERE )

(a)

(#)

AAAH

Name of company

B R ERREARAT (M)
Ningbo Longjia Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (Note ¢)

TN B A RAR (HEa)
Yantai Longfor Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (Note a)

RN 5 e B B A A (T )
Dalian Dongyang Real Estate
Development Ltd. (Note a)

R EEA A (Wika)
Jinan Shengxue Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(Note a)

akMbaL/
Place of
incorporation/

establishment

i
PRC

i
PRC

il
PRC

ilE
PRC
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a)  (Continued)
ARAE A1
Equity interest
attributable to the Group

Bk S35

2016 2015

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% -

51% -

DRfTRAR
Tk /R A
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

Gali-gs
99,800,000 %7
R BA
99,800,000 K7
Registered
U8D99,800,000
Paid up capital
U8D99,800,000

Haus-Es

AR 600,000,000 78
e

AR 600,000,000 78
Registered
RMB600,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB600,000,000

FEff B A
ARH2,000,000,000 76
A
ARH2,000,000,000 76
Registered
RMB2,000,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB2,000,000,000

FEfE A
ANEH2,100,000,000 7
B AR
NEH2,100,000,000 7
Registered
RMB2,100,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB2,100,000,000

B
Place of

operation

i
PRC

PRC

i
PRC

B
PRC

FIEH

Principal activities

IES 3

Properties development

ER i3

Properties development

B

Properties development

IES

Properties development
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49. TEHWBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w Wk ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (&) (a)  (Continued)
LAl ave RS T A I ORI RAR
L Equity interest JBA /A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid %% H %
NP incorporation/ ZE-NE ZF—HF  share capital/ Place of ELS 9
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
REHEBAREFOEFRAF Wik FH 100% 100%  REfTEA i IES 3
Dalian Longfor Donggang Real PRC AR 340,000,000 PRC Properties development
Estate Co., Ltd. (Note a) BR A
A 340,000,000 7
Registered
RMB340,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB340,000,000
BREAWERARAR (K5 TR 100% 100%  FEMFEA i VER i3
Nanjing Jinmingcheng Real PRC AR 20,000,000 76 PRC Properties development
Estate Co., Ltd. (Note a) BRIEA
N EH8,000,000 7
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB8,000,000
MRABEEARAR (HRLAE]) TE 51% 51%  akftEA i ES
Nanjing Mingwan Real Estate PRC AE#3500,000,000C  PRC Properties development
Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Mingwan”) BRI AR

A 3,500,000,000 7
Registered
RMB3,500,000,000

Paid up capital
RMB3,500,000,000

BEMBEMAE R A A IR A A (HRke) hiR 51% 1% akftEA HH VES T
Suzhou Longfor Real Estate PRC 130,000,000 7T PRC Properties development
Co., Led. (Note ) BUL A
130,000,000 %7
Registered
USD130,000,000
Paid up capital
USD130,000,000
L M O S R A ) i 80% 80%  LftEA HH VESiT
(W&ED) PRC AR 50,000,000 70 PRC Properties development
Foshan Shi Shun De Gu Sheng BRIk
Hui Real Estate Company Limited A B 50,000,000 7
(Note b) Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
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49. TEHBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
B2 A IR ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(a) (#) (a) (Continued)

FEA AL ARAE A1 CRTRAE
L Equity interest JBA /R A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid 4% H %
YNGR incorporation/ ZERE ZZ—HF  share capital/ Place of FEEH

Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities

Jasmine Spread Investment Limited KBTS 100% 100%  HERA ik BGrER
(S A 7 ot 50,000 %70 HK Investment holding
BED BRIA
The British bESH
Virgin Islands Authorised
(the “BVI") USD50,000
Paid up capital
usD2

Join Dragon Limited SRR TR 100% 100%  HERA Hik BEE R
BVI 50,000 £ 70 HK Investment holding

BRIA
2%
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
usD2

Longfor Investment Co. Led. (Hffit g) ERATAHS 100% 100%  HERA B Eig el
Longfor Investment Co. Led. BVI 1£7 HK Investment holding
(Note g) B AR
I
Authorised
USD1
Paid up capital
USD1

Silver Oak Enterprises Limited BB ER RS 100% 100%  EERE ik RELER
BVI 50,000 %70 HK Investment holding

B BA
E
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
UsD2
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
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49. TEHWBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

W6 48 2wl e ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(a) (#H) (a)  (Continued)
akfbaL/ RS T A I ORI RAR
o Equity interest WA /A
Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid %% H %
R incorporation/ “ERE ZZ—HF  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
EREREARAT i 100% 100% LT ik 3 sidle
Fortune Glister Development Limited ([ 5 ]) HKD1 HK Investment holding
Hong Kong
(‘HK")
B S AR E ik 100% 100% 69,687,000 7T i BB
Joy Wealth Trading Limited HK HKD69,687,000 HK Investment holding
%A PR 7] i 100% 100% 17 Eik BE
Joyline Corporation Limited HK HKDI HK Investment holding
RREREE (R ARAR i 100% 100% 2,000,000 #7C i B
Juntion Development Hong Kong HK HKD2,000,000 HK Investment holding
(Holding) Limited
i 100% 100% LT ik HE R
Longfor Company Limited HK HKDI HK Tnvestment holding
EHERAH i 100% 00% LT Fits 13 vidls
Treasure State Limited HK HKDI HK Investment holding
BT AT A i 51% 51%  20,000367C i B
Easy Rise Enterprise Limited HK HKD20,000 HK Investment holding
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49. TEHBAY - A BALER

B8 A vl B RERS )
BB AR BT A
SH—H > AAAEEAS L

(b)

-

Joint Ventures
AR
kA

Name of company
AR AR RARAR (5t d)

Beijing Jinghao Wanhua Real Estate
Company Limited (Note d)

SR R s PR ] (it )
Guangzhou Junliang Real
Estate Ltd (Note d)

TN 789 i 5 S 2 A A ] (k)
Guangzhou Hupin Real
Estate Ltd (Note d)

kbR
LI
Place of
incorporation/

establishment

i
PRC

il
PRC

HE
PRC
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)

Particulars of the Company’s principal joint ventures at December
31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

ARG REAY e

Equity interest

attributable to the Group

ZFA
2016

34%
(Wt
(Note 1)

50%
(Wt
(Note 1)

50%
(WD)
(Note 1)

“E-TAF
2015

34%
(L)
(Note 1)

50%
(L)
(Note )

50%
(Wf3ED)
(Note 1)

CEfT R
Tk /AR
Issued and fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

BRI AR

B 50,000,000 76
Rallies

B 50,000,000 76
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
Registered
RMB50,000,000

HRBA
EH100,000,000 7
Rallies
100,000,000 7
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
Registered
RMB100,000,000

BRBA

A # 100,000,000 78
FE A

A # 100,000,000 78
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
Registered
RMB100,000,000

RENY
Place of

operation

i
PRC

HE
PRC

TR

Principal activities

IES

Properties development

IES 33

Properties development

IES 3

Properties development
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BREZZ-AETZA=ZT—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. TEHWBAG - SB4LER 4. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

B8 2w Wk ) JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
() WMRZE-NEX_ZF—HFET+_H (c)  Particulars of the Company’s principal associates at December 31,
=+—H » XATE EERHSAFGE 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
B
kbR RS B HEAG I CRITRAR
Associates ARk Equity interest JReAR /A A
e A H Place of attributable to the Group Issued and fully paid A& HE
NTEL incorporation/ ZE-RE ZZ—T4  share capital/ Place of FEEH
Name of company establishment 2016 2015 registered capital operation Principal activities
BB EEA R A (k) B 50% S0%  ARBE HH VESiT
Beijing Genzhouba Longfor PRC (Wt m) AR 50,000,000 70 PRC Properties development
Real Estate Development Limited (Note m) FEf A
(Note f) BT 50,000,000 72
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
Registered
RMB50,000,000
AR E R A RA A (k) HE 50% s0%  ARMRA HH VB
Beijing Jingtai Real Estate PRC (Hekn) (WfEEa)  ARH90,000,000 78 PRC Properties development
Development Company Limited (Note n) (Noten)  sEfitRA
(Note f) B 90,000,000 72
Paid up capital
RMB90,000,000
Registered
RMB90,000,000
RMERRARUERBARAT  HH 10% 10%  BEBA T LB
(Hf3Ee) (Fko) (Miko)  AE¥2,300,000,0007 PRC Properties development
Hangzhou Wanke Dajia Real Estate PRC (Note o) (Note o) EfMHACA
Company Limited (Note f) AR 2,300,000,000 76

Paid up capital
RMB2,300,000,000
Registered
RMB2,300,000,000

B A e S BB A R A A (BifE ) PR 49% 49%  HEBA I LBk
Xiamen Xiangzhou Real Estate PRC (HEp) (M&Ep)  AR¥50,0000007C  PRC Properties development
Development Limited (Note f) (Note p) (Notep)  aLfithEA
B 50,000,000 72
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000
Registered
RB50,000,000
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49. FEWBA - fBEER
B A EERE )

(c)

(%)
Wi -

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(8)

(h)

(@)

(3

(k)

7% WS 2 ) R S o ST 2 I A
A A

% WS A ) R S B RO 2 B
kite

7% WS 2 ) 8 7 I AR S 2 A

FaE R TR R Z G E

g ) S o B RS 2 &8

1

o I ) R B O 2
/L\\

A PR RS ()N
LS A R B AR A
W o 2 ] phy A2 ) AR A

20 TR R A% W) AL A A KA
B AR BRIIAE W A 7] > 5%
A 35 T8 A EL R
HEMAF AREAREEZLS
Al M SRS
HZAFA LR REK
A R A S I I B A )

WA R A RRIIAE B A 7 > T3
MRS & ok > %28 7 i
EHER N F MBS B o R AR
[ 6 2T 3% W) 38 25 @ o B
H o WO E A A A
IR o

#2 TAR R 4  H  A HRB AR I
B> HAREE A
KEZMM AR - AL HEZ
ERArEEG=4EE A NH
B WARMBZAFA L
ML S UE A A
V1A W 22 ]

W A ARSI 2~ 5 > T B
AR > AR BB AR A L
PR -

BEZZ-ANETZAST—HIEE
For the year ended December 31, 2016

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
() (Continued)
Notes:

(a) The subsidiary is a domestic wholly-owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

(b) The subsidiary is an equity joint venture established in the PRC.

(c) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.

(d) The joint venture is an equity joint venture established in the PRC.
(e) The associate is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC.
® The associate is an equity associate established in the PRC.

(g) The subsidiary is a wholly owned subsidiary and directly held by the
Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

(h) The company is accounted for as a subsidiary as in accordance with the
memorandum and articles of the company, relevant activities of the
company require consent with more than half of the directors in the board
of the company. The Group has the power to appoint more than half of the
directors in the board of the company, thus the Group has dominant control

of the company and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.

(i) The company is accounted for as a subsidiary as in accordance with the
investment agreement, the board of directors of the company can direct the
relevant activities of the company. Since the Group can appoint more than
half of the directors in the board of the company, the Group has dominant

control of the company.

G) The company is accounted for as a subsidiary as in accordance with the
supplementary agreement of the company, relevant activities of the
company require consent with simple majority in the board of directors.
The Group has the power to appoint two out of three directors in the board
of the company, the Group has dominant control of the company and thus

it is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.

(k) The company is accounted for as a subsidiary as in accordance with the

investment agreement, the Group has dominant control of the company.
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49. TEWBAA - FREER
TR 4% 2 v B RS )
© (#)
WL - (4)

)  FZAFERSHMEAR HAREZA
7 AR A T AR KA A AR B
GRS > B0 T A B I B R
SR -

(m) MEEZF-AFE+-H=+—
H R AR % 4 1 B 58 0
W58 A I T Sn B Hh ek
Wi 8% o S HT B SR AT > A KA
ZIEAm EWHES G LA EH
R =4 1T AL T 3 AR B
B G g — B
B B AEEREA L E
G A G S [ PR RE > O T
A MR IR A 4 ) — 1 & 8 4
% o AT ISk R - AEBAHEZ
R EHNFEER G LAES T
9 =4 T AL 55 Y3 A B O B
JRME AL 7H Ut
IR > PRI AR A B i 4 S
EWHATHERE RS« B
HA AL BB AR -

() EAFERERELER A A RS
BT Th IR AR R HOK A R A
Al HMBEEEEEREG RS
BB R o AREE AR T
N ) S 4 R 4
5o WO [ T R A AT
HRLE -

0  FAFAEIEHEAR > JIK
— GRS HA N AT EEE
A P > AT RN A B
B o DRI > A SE B ik 4 %
N RIREATE K Y2 o

) HREAAEFGHLAREARE
MO EFPAWL KA AREE
[K] 1 A< 55 [0 125 ] 5 5% 2 ) p A7
KRB > Wz w i 458 B
NIRFIER A H -

FERERL > LRI EEYBALMEE
ROEEZAEENB AR - 2EMSRE
B B8 m) o SR A I
Al AEAERBEAAFEECRE
LE) VIR
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

o

(m)

(n)

(0)

()

The company is accounted for as a joint venture as at respective period end
date as in accordance with the memorandum and articles of the company,
relevant activities of the company require the unanimous consent of all

directors.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, addendum to the investment
agreement of Beijing Gezhouba, was entered into between the Group
and its joint venture partner. Before the signing of the addendum, the
Group has the power to appoint three out of five directors in the board
of Beijing Gezhouba and relevant activities of Beijing Gezhouba require
unanimous consent from the board of Beijing Gezhouba. Thus, the Group
is able to exercise joint control in Beijing Gezhouba and accordingly it was
previously accounted for as a joint venture of the Group. After the signing
of the acddendum, the Group has the power to appoint three out of seven
directors in the board of Beijing Gezhouba and relevant activities of Beijing
Gezhouba require consent with more than half of the directors in the board
of Beijing Gezhouba, thus the Group is able to exercise significant influence

in Beijing Gezhouba. Accordingly, it becomes an associate of the Group.

The company is accounted for as an associate as at year end date as in
accordance with the memorandum and articles of the company, relevant
activities of the company requires consent with simple majority in the
board of directors. The Group has the power to appoint two out of five
directors in the board of the company, thus, the Group is only able to

exercise significant influence in the company.

The company is accounted for as associate as at year end date as one of the
equity owners has control over the board of directors of the company and
can direct the relevant activities of the company. Thus, the Group is only

able to exercise significant influence in the company.

The company is accounted for as an associate as at year end date as the
Group has two out of five directors in the board of the company with voting
rights, thus, the Group is only able to exercise significant influence in the

company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates of the

Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries, joint

ventures and associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at December 31,
2016, except for Chongqing Longhu Development which has issued

several bonds as disclosed in note 26.

The summarised financial information on the assets, liabilities and cash
flows of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material

non-controlling interests are disclosed in note 45.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On February 16, 2017, the Group through Chongqing Longhu

Development, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, issued the first
tranche of Green Bonds of (i) five years bonds of RMB1.6 billion with a
coupon rate of 4.4% repayable in full by February 16, 2022, Chongqing
Longhu Development shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate after
February 16, 2020 and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the
bonds by February 16, 2020, and (ii) seven years bonds of RMB1.44
billion with a coupon rate of 4.67% repayable in full by February 16,
2024, Chongging Longhu Development shall be entitled to adjust the
coupon rate after February 16, 2022 and the investors shall be entitled to
sell back the bonds by February 16, 2022.

On March 6, 2017, Chongqing Longhu Development issued the second
tranche of Green Bonds of a principal amount of RMB1 billion with a
duration of seven years and a coupon rate of 4.75% repayable in full by
March 6, 2024. The Issuer shall be entitled to adjust the coupon rate after
March 6, 2022 and the investors shall be entitled to sell back the bonds
by March 6, 2022.

The proceeds from the issue of the bonds, after deduction of the expenses
relating to the bond offering will be used to adjust its debt structure and

replenish working capital.

The bonds are non-guaranteed bonds and listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.
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Five Years Financial Summary

BETHET—HILEE

Year ended December 31,
R ANE ZFHF ZF-FE ZF-F R -TF
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ANREFE ARETT AREFT AREFLT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B¥EH Revenue 54,799,495 47,423,099 50,990,678 41,510,167 27,892,830
T iy ¥ ) Profit before taxation 15,956,310 13,938,187 13,626,622 13,218,654 11,301,542
JIr A58 BH 52 Income tax expense (6,021,444)  (4,574,070)  (4,876,244)  (4,582,788)  (4,436,068)
4 JE Vi 7 Profit for the year 9,934,866 9,364,117 8,750,378 8,635,866 6,865,474
DL AL Attributable to:
/NS SN Owners of the Company 9,152,953 8,988,037 8,353,632 8,037,222 6,301,060
JEHE I Non-controlling interests 781,913 376,080 396,746 598,644 564,414
A Vi 7 Profit for the year 9,934,866 9,364,117 8,750,378 8,635,866 6,865,474
BET A= —HIR4E
Year ended December 31,
R ANE ZE A ZFE RS DR TF
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ANRWEFE ARETT ARETT AREFT AR¥FTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R AR ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
GE A Total assets 224,830,374 184,088,606 168,156,225 144,171,967 125,426,497
A S Total liabilities (149,715,194) (121,620,952) (117,884,222) (104,396,548) (92,849,085)
75,115,180 62,467,654 50,272,003 39,775,419 32,577,412
E/NIE? ZEDN Equity attributable to
JRE A HE 4 owners of the Company 61,764,699 55,124,649 47,763,925 36,983,645 29,909,248
e £ Non-controlling interests 13,350,481 7,343,005 2,508,078 2,791,774 2,668,164
75,115,180 62,467,654 50,272,003 39,775,419 32,577,412
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